STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
12/6/2016 10:00 A.M.

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.

All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Pursuant to
NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, the public body may combine
two or more agenda items for consideration, and the public body may remove an item from the
agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. Any member of the Board
or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted
upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the Agenda for December 6, 2016.




DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Approval of Minutes for November 1, 2016.
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Approval of Minutes for November 10, 2016.
CONSENT AGENDA

[ For possible approval: First reading for Pacific Summit Energy LLC, out of county gas
company providing service to a Storey County business.

I For possible approval: Assessor's Recommended Corrections to 2016-17 Secured Tax
Roll for Clerical Error.

I For possible approval: Assessor's Recommended Corrections to 2016-17 Unsecured
Tax Roll for Exemptions.

IV For possible approval: Update to Storey County Administrative Policies and
Procedures including: Policies 202 Anti-Harassment; 203 Dealing with
Discrimination; and 1002 Definitions.

V' For possible approval: Treasurer's Report for October 2016.

VI For possible approval: Accounts payable claims dated 10/27/2016 for $919,259.40
and $9,053.98, dated 10/31/2016 for $2,950.00, dated 11/10/2016 for $1,729,184.86
and $6,855.95 and dated 11/23/2016 for $193,898.73 and $13,371.82. Payroll claims
dated 10/26/2016 for $4,603.53, dated 11/03/2016 for $132,010.86, dated
11/03/2016 for $76,087.45, dated 11/04 /2016 for $479,250.27 and 11/18 /2016 for
$370,472.56.

VII  For possible approval: Business License First Readings
A.SHANGHAI RESTAURANT dba SHANGHAI EXPRESS FOOD TRUCK -
General / 1269 Baring Blvd ~ Sparks (mobile food truck)
B. SAINT MARY’S MEDICAL GROUP, INC. - General / 411 W Sixth St ~ Reno
(mobile medical)
C. ASTEELFLASH USA CORPORATION - Contractor / 4211 Starboard Dr ~
Fremont (manufacturing)
D. ROSS HEATING AND AIR CONDITIONING, INC. - Contractor / 5245 Vista ~
Sparks (hvac cont.)
E. BRAZILIAN STONE, INC. - Contractor / 2 Round Robin Lane ~ Reno (paver
installer)
F. WEST EDNA ASSOC dba Mojave Electric - Contractor / 3755 W Hacienda ~ Las
Vegas (elect cont)
G. FST TECHNICAL SERVICES, LLC - Professional / 450 E Warner ~ Chandler,
AZ (quality assurance)




10.

11.

12.

H. INTERSTATE FIRE SALES & SVC dba State Fire DC Specialties - Contractor /
5370 East Idaho Street ~ Elko (fire suppression and security)

[. AUTOMATION MOVERS INTERNATIONAL - Contractor / 4110 Maret Place ~
Flint, MI (mechanical)

J. COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES, LLC - Contractor / 33 Locke
Dr ~ Marlborough, MA (wireless services contractor)

K. AMERICAN DOOR INSTALLATION, LP - Contractor / 209 W Mayflower ~ N
Las Vegas (contractor)

L. GOFERU - Home Business / 350 Prospector ~ Dayton (errands concierge)

M. MESA ENERGY SYSTEMS, INC. dba EMCOR Services Nevada - Contractor / 2
Cromwell ~ Irvine, CA (hvac contractor)

N. COLD JET, LLC - General / 455 Wards Corner ~ Loveland, OK (blasting
machine sales)

O. DREAMCRAFTERS, LLC - Contractor / 5488 Reno Corporate Blvd ~ Reno
(general contractor)

P. BART MANUFACTURING, INC. - Contractor / 3787 Spinnaker Ct ~ Fremont
(manufacturing)

Q. PROSTAR STAFFING SERVICES, INC. - General / 390 Potrero Ave ~
Sunnyvale, CA (staffing svcs)

R. CLASSIC TOUCH MOBILE EQUIPMENT REPAIR - Contractor / 9756 N
Virginia St ~ Reno (equipment repair)

S. SWEEP EASY CHIMNEY SWEEP, LLC - General / 935 Bejay Place ~ Reno
(chimney sweep)

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Approval of resolution 16-450, 2016 Storey County Business of the Year.
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Approve and award Storey County Extraordinary Partner of the Year Presentation.
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Consideration of and possible action to approve Resolution 16-451 advising Rural
Development of County’s resolve to defend or obtain title to location of rights of way
for county sewer lines in Virginia City and Gold Hill.
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Ordinance 16-273 authorizing the issuance of the Storey County, Nevada, Sewer

Revenue Bond, Series 2016 in the principal amount of $4,058,000 to pay in part the
cost to finance the Virginia City Sewer Improvement Project.




18

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Review and possible approval of Storey County Audited Financial Statements draft
and proposed changes for the year ended June 30, 2016.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

The applicant requests a special use permit allowing the required 75 feet building and
structure height limitation to be increased to 250 feet and to exceed six stories, and for
an extension of the allowed timeframe of the special use permit on property located at
the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada (APNs 005-011-
13, 14, 28, 29, and 39, approximately at T19N, R23E MDM).

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

The applicant requests a special use permit allowing the construction and
maintenance of an accessory dwelling (mother-in-law quarters), and primary
occupancy of the acessory dwelling during construction of the principal dwelling
(primary residence), at property located at 160 Vermillion Road, Highland Ranches,
Storey County, Nevada (APN 003-442-15).

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

The applicant requests a variance allowing the required 10 foot side corner-lot setback
distance between a principal building and the property line to be reduced up to zero
feet for the placement of a principal building expansion located at 106 East Carson
Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada (APN 001.156.02)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

The applicant requests a variance to light emission shielding requirements in Storey
County Code 8.02 Outdoor Lighting by allowing replacement of two existing outdoor
modern type light fixtures with historically appropriate light fixtures to the front and
north entrances of the Storey County Courthouse, and allowing an existing non-
conforming but historically appropriate outdoor light fixture at the south entrance of
the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada
(APN 001.081.03). The subject light fixtures must comply with Comstock Historic
District and Nevada State Historic Preservation Office requirements.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

The applicant requests a special use permit allowing: (a) a single-family dwelling
combined with a non-dwelling use (combined residence-barn) that will separately
house humans, animals, and agricultural equipment; (b) the maintenance of up to 80
large domestic animals and various accessory structures for sheltering, feeding,
watering, protecting, and servicing the animal; and (c) a temporary (up to one year)




occupancy watchperson’s travel trailer on property located at 199 Scales Road,
American Flat, Storey County, Nevada (APNs 004.331.40; 004.331.08; and 004.331.22).

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
LICENSING BOARD - SECOND READINGS
A. TOOLS & TECHNOLOGY BY BURNS, LLC - General / 550 W Plumb ~ Reno
(mobile tool store)
B. BUREAU VERITAS NORTH AMERICA, INC. - Professional / 1601 Sawgrass ~
Sunrise, FL (consult)
C. HESSE MECHATRONICS, INC. - Contractor / 6105 South Ash ~ Tempe, AZ
(equipment)
D. ADVENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC. - Professional / 503 Bangs Ave ~ Modesto, CA
(consultant)
E. DOUG WALL CONSTRUCTION, INC. - Contractor / 78450 Ave 41 ~ Bermuda
Dunes, CA (contractor)
E. F & M MAFCO, INC. - Contractor / 9149 Dry Fork Rd ~ Harrison, OH (equipment)
G. RENO CARSON HOME SERVICES - Contractor / 2206 Bordeaux ~ Carson City
(contractor)
H. PEOPLE READY, INC. - General / PO Box 2910 ~ Tacoma, WA (staffing)
I. KEYENCE CORPORATION OF AMERICA - General / 669 River Dr ~ Elmwood
Pk, NJ (distributor)
J. CHEWY, INC. - General / 385 Milan (ecommerce, fulfillment) TRI
K. SSUSA WEST, LLC - General / 470 East Sydney (steam sterilization of
herbs/spices) TRI
L. AQUA METALS RENO, INC. - General / 2500 Peru Drive (battery recycling
facility) TRI

20. CORRESPONDENCE

A. Storey County Fire Protection District October 2016 Report.
B. Canyon GID Independent Water Test Results

21.  PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

22. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding the
regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

[tems may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited to matters
not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon which action will be
taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the agenda). Time limits on Public
Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the Board. Please limit your comments to three
minutes.




» Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color, religion,
gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

» Inaccordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil rights
regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and institutions participating
in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from discriminating based on race, color, national
origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age,
marital status, family/ parental status, income derived from a public assistance program, political
beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or
funded by USDA (not all bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary
by program or incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program information
(e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact the responsible
Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or contact USDA through the
Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program information may be made available in
languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination Complaint
Form, AD-3027, found online a http:/ /www.ascr.usda.gov/comp

laint_filing_custhtml and at any USDA office or write a letter addressed to USDA and provide in the
letter all of the information requested in the form. To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866)
632-9992. Submit your completed form or letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special assistance or
accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners” Office in writing at PO Box 176,
Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused to be
posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 12/1/2016; Virginia City Post Office at 132
S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City
Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City Highlands Fire Department located
a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire Department located at 431 Canyon Way,
Lockwood, NV.

By
Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: December 6, 2016 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1

2.

. Title: Approval of minutes for November 1, 2016
Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.
. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 775 847-0969

. Staff summary: Minutes are attached.

. Supporting materials: Attached.

. Fiscal impact: N/A
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney

. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer

County Manager Other agency review:

. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ S —

Agenda Item No. 4.



STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 1, 2016 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman Gilman, Commissioner McGuffey, County Manager
Pat Whitten, Clerk - Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, District Attorney
Anne Langer, Community Outreach Director Cherie Nevin, Public Works Director Mike Nevin,
Planning Director/ Administrative Officer Austin Osborne, Community Development Director Dean
Haymore, Director of Security Melanie Keener

1. CLOSED SESSION:
Call to order closed session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of conferring

with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the Storey County
Employees Association/ AFSCME 4041 Comstock Chapter. This meeting will commence at 9:00 A.M.
immediately preceding the regular commission meeting.

2. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Meeting was called to order by the Chair at 10:03 A.M.

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for November 1, 2016

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Agenda for November 1,2016, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair
Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)




5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for October 4, 2016

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Minutes for October 4, 2016, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman,
Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,(Summary:
Yes=3)

6. CONSENT AGENDA:
I For possible action: Approval of claims for Accounts Payable dated 10/4/2016 (not
including check 86922 see item 13) for $1,605,434.56 and $4,800.86 and dated
10/7/2016 for $7,425.00. Payroll Checks dated 10/21/2016 for $372,753.88.

II For possible action approval of Business Licenses First Readings:
A. JB HENDERSON CONSTRUCTION CO - Contractor / PO Box 53176 ~
Albuquerque (contractor)
B. FD THOMAS, INC. - Contractor / 217 Bateman Dr ~ Central Point, OR
(contractor)
C. CODALE ELECTRIC SUPPLY, INC. - Contractor / 390 East 7th St ~ Reno
(electrical supply)
D. YEE CHON HON dba RCY International, LLC - General / 115 East Moana ~
Reno (Asian food delivery)
E. PANASONIC PROCUREMENT CORP OF AMERICA - General / Electric
Avenue TES
F. INTERTEK TESTING SERVICES NA, INC. - Contractor / 3933 US Route 11 ~
Cortland, NY (testing)
G. MSZ DESIGN, INC. - Contractor / 1052 Fleetwood Drive ~ San Jose, CA
(Software installation)
H. ATLAS MECHANICAL, INC. - Contractor / 8260 Camino Santa Fe ~ San Diego
(contractor)
I. MORITA MIYATA CORPORATION - Contractor / Shiba Square Building 8F ~
Tokyo JAPAN
J. KIK WASTE MANAGEMENT, LLC dba Desert Disposal - General / 4307
Margoree Lane ~ Fallon (portable potties)
K. EXPONENT, INC. - Professional / 149 Commonwealth Drive ~ Menlo Park, CA
(Engineer)
L. SILVER STATE HEATING & AIR, LLC - Contractor / 80 Coney Island Drive ~
Sparks (contractor)
M. LACO, INC. - Contractor / 2603 Camino Ramon ~ San Ramon, CA (wiring
contractor)
N. REED ELECTRIC & FIELD SVC. - Contractor / 5375 Louie Lane ~ Reno (motor
repair)
O. THE CARPENTER GROUP dba Carpenter Crane Hoist - Contractor / 112 Baglay
~ Vallejo (supplier)
P. FINNCO SERVICE, INC. - Contractor / 8241 Beech Ave ~ Fontana, CA (elevator
contractor)




Q. SSI NEVADA, LLC dba Schnitzer Steel Products - Contractor / 490 Valley Road ~
Reno (scrap pick-up)

R. CRITICALARC - Professional / 6188 Paseo Tienda ~ Carlsbad, CA (project
management)

S. CENTRAL SIERRA CONSTRUCTION, INC. - Contractor / 2551 Precision Dr ~
Minden (contractor)

T. SPECIAL PRECISION - Professional / 1095 Reese Way ~ Reno (consultant)

U. VALIN CORPORATION - Contractor / 1941 Ringwood Ave ~ San Jose, CA
(contractor)

V.SAFE T PROFESSIONALS, LLC - Professional / 794 East Kaibab Dr ~ Chandler,
AZ (consultant)

W. FLEXLINK SYSTEMS, INC. - Contractor / 6580 Snowdrift Rd ~ Allentown, PA
(conveyor contractor)

X. REIS ROBOTICS USA, INC. dba KUKA Industries - Professional / 6600 Center ~
Sterling Heights, MI (project management)

Y. M. ARTHUR GENSLER JR & ASSOC, INC. - Professional / 2 Harrison St ~ San
Francisco (architect)

Z. HP COMPUTING AND PRINTING, INC. - Professional / 1501 Page Mill Rd ~
Palo Alto, CA (IT cons)

AA. CSSC - General / 8863 Greenback Lane ~ Orangevale, CA (commercial
cleaning)

BB. OBEX CO - Contractor / 610 SW Broadway ~ Portland, OR (contractor)

CC. JOHN A SURWILLO - Contractor / 2699 Spearpoint Drive ~ Reno (machinery
repair)

DD. MORGAN INDUSTRIAL, INC. - Contractor / 23810 NW Huffman ~ Hillsboro,
OR (machinery)

EE. JPR SYSTEMS, INC. - Professional / 305 North Berry ~ Brea, CA (consulting)
FF. CLEANRITE, INC. - Contractor / 121 Woodland Ave ~ Reno (contractor)

GG. INLAND MARINE INDUSTRIES, INC. - Contractor / 3245 Depot Rd ~
Hayward, CA (metal fab.)

HH. SSR MANUFACTURING CORP - Contractor / 1834 Ferguson Lane ~ Austin,
TX (automation equip)

II. COMMERCIAL JANITORIAL OF RENO - General / 145 Thomas Ave ~ Reno
(janitorial)

JJ. WGD NEVADA, LLC - Professional / 1025 Connecticut Ave ~ Washington, DC
(consulting)

KK. NORTHSTAR GROUP SVCS - Contractor / 4795 Quality Court ~ Las Vegas
(asbestos abatement)

LL. ALL COMSTOCK, LLC ~ Home Business / 174 N C Street ~ Virginia City
(consulting)

END OF CONSENT AGENDA




Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Consent Calendar for November 1, 2016, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

7. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

Community Development Director Dean Haymore:
e The closure of two properties in TRI brings two new hotels to Storey County.
e TCO's are being given this week to Switch, Agua Metals, DR Can, Panasonic, Tesla, and the
big expansion at Golden Gate Petroleum;
e Community Development is working on nuisances in town, including the China town area.

Virginia City Senior Center Director Stacey Gilbert:

e A Halloween party was held last week along with a costume contest and lunch. This event
was well attended and received high positive feedback.

e The Senior Center will start having bingo every other Friday beginning November 3rd - after
lunch at 1:30 PM.

e The annual Thanksgiving party will be held on Wednesday, November 23rd.

e Saturday, December 3rd, there will be a craft/bake sale from 10 AM to 4 PM, before the Parade
of Lights. The Senior Center will also be roasting chestnuts in front of the Mark Twain.

°
Public Works Director Mike Nevin:

e Working with Farr West Engineering on the Virginia City wastewater treatment plant to clear up issues
regarding right of ways.

e The cape seal road project has been completed with the exception of a few small issues which
are being addressed by the contractor.

e The Miners Park project should be complete this week. Weather permitting, next week work
will begin on the gazebo in the Virginia City Highlands.

Senior Planner/Administrative Officer Austin Osborne:

e Work on the parking lot is moving fast. The contractor is wonderful to work with.
The rip-rap is near complete. A block wall will be constructed to hold everything in place.
Next, digging will begin for utilities and drainage systems and then pavement.
Working with a landscaping company on choosing trees and other landscaping items.
Construction is still on schedule for 90 days.
Congratulations to planner Jason VanHavel, selected as interim Public Works Director.

District Attorney Anne Langer:
e The MMR&D lawsuit against Storey County has been dismissed.




County Manager Pat Whitten:

e A special Commission meeting will be held November 10t at 12 noon, for the purpose of
canvassing the vote. Other items may be added to that agenda - this will be the only other
meeting in November.

¢ A 3-month lease has been signed with the owner of the lot on the north side of the courthouse
in order to provide additional parking spaces during the parking lot construction.

 The Courthouse painting project is 80% complete, just waiting for good weather to finish.

e In conjunction with voting on Tuesday, November 8th, a significant portion of the existing
Courthouse parking lot will be reserved for voters.

Interim Public Works Director Jason Van Havel:
e Thank you to Austin Osborne for mentioning his new position and thanks to Mike Nevin for
the many years of service to the County.

Clerk/Treasurer Vanessa Stephens:
¢ Election update: Early voting continues through Friday, November 4th, 8AM to 6PM, at the Storey
County Courthouse in Virginia City. As of last night, there has been a 32% turn-out for voting.
This includes absentee and mail, along with early voting.

8. BOARD COMMENT: (No Action - No Public Comment)
Commissioner McGuffey:

e With the opening of the Nevada Tourism Board office in China and with the history of the
Chinese involvement in the building of Virginia City, the Comstock can expect Chinese
visitors coming to this area. This history will also be included in the Storey County Slammer
museum.

e Good progress in being made on USA Parkway - it has been graded all the way to Opal.

e Six Mile Canyon looks great after the recent cape seal project. The fall colors add to the beauty

of the area.
e The Miners Union Hall has been painted by Radcliffe Painting - B Street is starting to shape
up.
Chairman McBride:

e A contingent of Storey County elected officials and staff attended Nevada Day festivities in
Carson City. It was a great day.

e Reno residents, John and Lulu Ohm, have donated several pictures to the County painted by
Virginia City artist Cal Bromuno in the 1960’s and 70’s. Some of this artwork will be given to
local organizations in which Mr. Bromuno was active and was a big supporter.

9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and Possible Approval of Tahoe Reno Industrial
Center (TRIC) Audit of Project Revenue and Net Revenue of the TRI Public-Private Partnership for
the year ended June 30, 2015.

Vice Chairman Gilman recused himself from discussion and vote on this item.
Comptroller Hugh Gallagher presented this item. This audit is conducted every year.

e This year’s projected net revenue is $2,486,000 of which $870,140 is due and payable to the
County’s public-private partner.




e There is approximately $5.8 million in reserves. Through the special revenue fund created to
take care of any current and future payments to the County’s public-private partner, the
County is in pretty good shape.

Connie Christiansen from Kohn & Company CPA's, stated that Kohn & Company conducted this
audit, an un-modified opinion.

Mr. Whitten: Each of the last three years, the County has made an advance on funds due to the
internal system that the County goes through for property tax payments. The $870,000+ does not
reflect that advance - correct?

Ms. Christiansen: That is correct. It happened subsequent. . .

Mr. Whitten: What Mr. Gallagher’s refers to will be a substantially less impact to the fund because
the County has already advanced for this year’s property taxes.

Mr. Gallagher: As of September 30, 2016, the ending fund balance in the TRI payback account is
approximately $2.4 million.

Mr. Whitten: Staff and legal counsel are in negotiations with TRI - a financial analyst has identified
three areas for calculating the net amount due. When complete, the information will be presented to
the Commission for potential approval and modification to the Stipulation Agreement that is in
place.

Public Comment:

Storey County Resident, Nicole Barde: The (audit) says that TRI hired a consultant to evaluate other
County revenue sources to determine if amounts could be allocated to the project. What would those
other sources be and how does it impact...

Mr. Whitten: Specifically, portions of the motor fuel tax currently received, portions of centrally
assessed - a tax in lieu of payment on utility companies, and utility fees - 1% electric and gas
franchise tax fees imposed on businesses in TRI.

Ms. Barde: Those are revenues the County receives that have not been included in the total revenues
that the County is marking for TRI payback.

Mr. Whitten: That’s correct. The amount attributable to TRI has not yet been ascertained.

Motion: I, Jack McGuffey, hereby approve the Audit of Project Revenue in the amount of $4,878,208
and Net Revenue of $2,486,137 representing the TRI Public-Private Partnership for the year ended
June 30, 2015, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman
McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)




10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Notice of Intent to file a loan/ grant application with
USDA-Rural Development utilities program for the purpose of financing the Virginia City Waterline
Projects to meet the present and future needs of the Virginia City water System demands for the
Virginia City/Gold Hill communities.

Cherie Nevin, Community Outreach Director, stated that an application has been filed with USDA-
Rural Development program for a loan and grant for a waterline project in Virginia City and Gold
Hill. The current rate is 1.875% - a fantastic rate good through the end of the year. This is an
application and does not say if the County will receive the loan and grant. Based on timing, the
recommended motion includes authorization for the Board Chair to sign loan documents not to
exceed $2.5 million dollars. This does not include any grant funds the County may get on this
project. There will be some grant funds.

Commissioner McGuffey: What is the money needed for?

Ms. Nevin: Phase 1 will replace two existing water storage tanks, and includes 4,600 linear feet of 8
inch water main on B Street, and 1,500 linear feet of 10 inch main on Union Street. Phase 2 will
replace approximately 14,000 linear feet of existing transmission main between Five Mile Reservoir
and a location 1.3 miles west of the water treatment plant.

Commissioner McGuffey: Why are two existing water tanks being replaced with one? Can the old
tanks be sold?

Public Works Director Mike Nevin: The two existing tanks do not have sufficient storage to meet
current fire flow for Virginia City and Gold Hill.
e In order to meet the minimum requirements, the tanks must be replaced with atleasta 1
million gallon tank.
e The site is conducive to eliminating the two smaller tanks and installing one larger.
e These projects have been identified prior in the water system capital improvement program
last updated in 2011.
e These tanks have served their useful lives. The smaller tank is from the 1940’s and is in very
bad shape. Fingers are crossed that there is not a rupture, there have been small leaks which
have been dealt with.

Chairman McBride: What's the time frame for this to be done?

Mr. Nevin: Depends on the loan/ grant process.

e The application needed to be in before the end of the year to take advantage of the “locked in”
loan rate.

e There is no guarantee that the County will receive the loan or grant, but at least the application
will be in so it falls under the existing medium household income requirements.

e New census data takes effect in January - everything will be based on the new medium
household income, which is much higher, causing the loan rate to be adjusted higher.

e Working with USDA, BLM, SHIPO, and private property owners on the transmission line
from Five Mile to Virginia City. There are a few concerns to be addressed.

Commissioner McGuffey: Any idea how much in grant money can be generated for this?
7




Cherie Nevin: Not sure at this time. It will not be as much as on the sewer project. Maybe up to
45%.

Mr. Nevin: Relative to the grant portion - there should be a significant “pot of money” available for
some of these projects because of the lead issue in drinking water across the country. The pipeline is
vintage 1887 with lead joints. This will be good argument for some grant funding.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve the filing of an application with USDA-Rural Development Utilities
Programs, for the purpose of financing the Virginia City Waterline Projects to meet the present and
future needs of the Virginia City Water System and the demands for the Virginia City/Gold Hill
communities and upon USDA RD providing a final loan/ grant funding package, to authorize the
Chairman of the Board to sign the obligating documents for a loan not to exceed $2.5 million,,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of modification and extension of Collective
Bargaining Agreement Between Storey County (Employer) and the Storey County Employees
Association AFSCME Local 4041 Comstock Chapter (Union).

Austin Osborne presented this item. Thank you to Tobi Whitten, Comstock Chapter President, and
team, for working with the County throughout the entire process which began almost one year ago.

Mr. Osborne reviewed the contract:

e The structure was mostly clean up, NRS alignment, and addressing language.

e Definitions in this contract are much more comprehensive and contain a better discussion of
how benefits are administered and the limitations.

e Managements rights were addressed, giving management more authority not only to exercise
managements rights under NRS288, but also the ability to use flexibility in discipline and
performance measurements for employees to create a more efficient, effective organization.
And to reward workers who work hard and are dedicated to what they do.

e A good portion of the process dealt with tailoring of certain needs of Communications/911
dispatcher series and the Tourism Commission series employees - both of those being 24 hour,
7 day operations.

e The contract complies with NRS in creating a “units” for supervisory and non-supervisory
employees.

Salaries: There were no “across the board” increases or COLA changes/increases.

e Language regarding items such as shift differential were addressed, along with tailoring and
aligning each position with other areas in the State. This allows the County to be competitive
with other agencies to attract and retain qualified employees.

e Some positions went up in pay and some went down.

Holidays did not change a lot, except for 24/7 departments.

e Fringe benefits, such as health, mainly remain the same. Changes were made to align with the

Affordable Care Act.




e Other items of benefits were adjusted - such as Field Officer Training - giving more
measurement of the training where the employee must prove the training is being done rather
than just saying it.

e Education reimbursement, sick leave, and annual leave are mostly unchanged, with the terms
being clarified.

* Most of the changes were made in order to be somewhere at or above market rate depending
on the jurisdiction, with exception of Reno/Sparks - targeting counties in the region that are
similar to Storey County.

This is three year contract - 2016 to 2019.

e All of this material, including supporting documents, is posted on the web in accordance with

NRS.

Commissioner McGuffey: The big win is - this a three year contract as well as the “cleaning up”
language.

Chairman McBride: Reiterated Mr. Osborne’s comments regarding the cooperation given by the
AFSCME Union and how “level heads” prevailed. Thank you Tobi Whitten.

Mr. Osborne: To all employees who endured this process - thank you. This will be good for
everyone.

Public Comment:
Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: This was essentially a “comp” study and clean-up - did any
positions get market adjustments?

Mr. Osborne: Yes. The handout shows where some of the positions, based on market rate and other
elements, were adjusted up or down.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the tentative agreement between
Storey County (Employer) and the Storey County Employees Association AFSCME Local 4041
Comstock Chapter (Union), I, Lance Gilman, hereby motion to approve the 2016-2019 Collective
Bargaining Agreement between the parties, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman,
Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 16-449, a resolution to direct the
County Assessor to prepare a list of all taxpayers on the secured roll in the County pursuant to NRS
361.300(3).

County Manager Pat Whitten stated this is routine - a cost-saving measure enacted by the 2015
Legislative session. In prior years, a costly procedure of publishing the tax roll in a local newspaper
was required. The legislation provides the opportunity to post this information on the County
website.

Chairman McBride: The Assessor’s Office will provide a copy to anyone who does not have access to
the internet.




Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Resolution 16-449, a Resolution that directs the County Assessor to prepare a list
of all of the taxpayers on the secured roll in the County pursuant to NRS 361.300(3), Action:
Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of check 86922 for $4,500.00 to the Bucket of
Blood Saloon for the paved lot.

Chairman McBride recused himself from discussion and vote on this item.

County Manager Whitten presented this item. This is a recurring quarterly payment for the lease of
the parking lot next to the courthouse - with only two more quarters of payments to go. The County,
in cooperation with the Bucket of Blood, has an equitable trust contract to purchase this property
which should take effect on or about July 1, 2017.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve check #86922 for $4,500.00 to the Bucket of Blood Saloon for the paved lot,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey, Seconded by: Vice Chairman Gilman,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve Business Licenses Second Readings:

A. LEGACY FIRE SERVICES, LLC. — Contractor / 1380 Greg Street ~ Sparks (fire protection
contractor)
MORROW EQUIPMENT COMPANY, LLC - Contractor / 3218 Pringle Rd ~ Salem, OR
(cranes/hoists)
SWFL, INC., dba Filament — Contractor / 100 North Arlington ~ Reno (wireless sensor network)
BOMBARD ELECTRIC, LLC - Contractor / 3570 W. Post Rd ~ Las Vegas (electrical contractor)
MUNDIAL GROUP, INC. —- Contractor / 81 Bairn ~ Silverlake, WA (quality control)
RENOWN REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER - Nonprofit / 1155 Mill Street ~ Reno (home care)
BEAR COMMUNICATIONS, INC., dba Bearcom — Contractor / 5720 Arville St ~ Las Vegas
(telecomm)
ERICSSON, INC. — Contractor / 6300 Legacy Dr ~ Plano, TX (telecomm)
PINWIDDIE-HINES CONSTRUCTION, INC dba DH of Nevada — Contractor / 1105 Freeport ~
Sparks (general contractor)
AECOM TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC. - Professional / 1 East 1*' St ~ Reno (engineering
consultant)
M2 TRANSPORT - General / 1230 Westfield ~ Reno (transportation)
FIGUEROA’S CLEANING dba Figueroa’s Cleaning — General / 5945 W Vanger Rd ~ Reno
(cleaning)

. ENVIRONMENTAL SPRAY SYSTEMS, INC. — Contractor / 7114 Convoy Ct ~ San Diego
(equipment)
. B&J, INC. — Contractor / 599 E Nugget Ave ~ Sparks (machine shop)

O D. W. NICHOLSON CORP - Contractor / 24747 Clawiter Rd ~ Hayward, CA (equipment)

~m QEETN W

=

2 2 R

10




e

<cn

rFO T

ARELLANO HEATING & AIR CONDITIONING LLC - Contractor / 32 S. Main ~ Yerington
(cont.)

G&G BUILDING SERVICES, INC. — Contractor / PO Box 20851 ~ Greenfield, WI (equipment)
DPR CONSTRUCTION, A GENERAL PARTNERSHIP - Professional / 1450 Veterans Blvd ~
Redwood City, CA (consulting)

HORIZON COMMUNICATIONS TECHNOLOGIES — Contractor / 30 Fairbanks ~ Irvine, CA
(low voltage contractor)

CHEWY, INC. - General / 385 Milan (ecommerce, fulfillment) TRI
SSUSA WEST, LLC - General / 470 East Sydney (steam sterilization of herbs/spices) TRI
AQUA METALS RENO, INC. — General / 2500 Peru Drive (battery recycling facility)  TRI

Community Development Director Dean Haymore recommended approval of items A. through S.
and continuance of Items T., U,, and V.

Public Comment:

None

Motion:

Approve Items A. through S., Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman,

Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,(Summary:

Yes=3)

Motion:

Continue Items T., U.,,and V., Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman,

Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:

Yes=3)

15. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

None

16 . ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned by the Chair at 11:05 AM

Respectfully submitted,

By 1@

Vanessa Stephens Cl k-Treasurer

11




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: December 6, 2016 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of minutes for November 10, 2016

2. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 775 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Minutes are attached.

S. Supporting materials: Attached.

6. Fiscal impact: N/A

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

— r—
—_—

Agenda Item No. 5



STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS SPECIAL MEETING
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 10, 2016 12:00 P.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA
MINUTES

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN

VICE-CHAIRMAN

JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman Gilman, Commissioner McGuffey, Comptroller Hugh
Gallagher, Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis, Interim Public Works Director Jason VanHavel,
Management Analyst Jessie Fain, Director of Security Melanie Keener, Stacey Bucchianeri-
Community Development, Deputy Clerk Wendy Bacus

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 12:00 P.M.
Meeting was called to order by the Chair at 12:00 P.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for November 10, 2016

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Agenda for November 10, 2016, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair
Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for October 18, 2016

Public Comment:
None




Motion: Approve Minutes for October 18, 2016, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman,
Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

5. CONSENT AGENDA

I For possible action, approval of Business License First Readings:
A. TOOLS & TECHNOLOGY BY BURNS, LLC - General /550 W Plumb-Reno (mobile tool
store)
B. BUREAU VERITAS NORTH AMERICA, INC. - Professional /1601 Sawgrass-Sunrise, FL
(consult)
C. HESSE MECHATRONICS, INC. - Contractor/6105 South Ash-Tempe, AZ (equipment)
D. ADVENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC. - Professional/503 Bangs Ave-Modesto, CA (consultant)
E. DOUG WALL CONSTRUCTION, INC. - Contractor/78450 Ave 41-Bermuda Dunes, CA
(contractor)
F. F & M MAFCO, INC. - Contractor/9149 Dry Fork Rd-Harrison, OH (equipment)
G. RENO CARSON HOME SERVICES - Contractor/2206 Bordeaux-Carson City (contractor)
H. PEOPLE READY, INC. - General /PO Box 2910-Tacoma, WA (staffing)
I. KEYENCE CORPORATION OF AMERICA - General/669 River Dr-Elmwood Pk, NJ
(distributor)

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Public Comment;
None

Motion: Approve Consent Calendar for November 10, 2016, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

6. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

Interim Public Works Director Jason VanHavel:
e The Miners Park Project is 100% complete. The children have been enjoying the new equipment.
¢ The roof for the Virginia City Highlands park gazebo is scheduled to be installed next week.

7. BOARD COMMENT: (No Action - No Public Comment)
Commissioner McGuffey: ,
e This was a very interesting election year. Participation by the local candidates was very much

appreciated.

Vice Chairman Gilman:
e The County recently held a “sexual harassment/bullying seminar” for all personnel. It was
well attended and there was positive interaction regarding the issues. Compliments and
thanks to the persons who presented this seminar.

Chairman McBride:




e Congratulations to all who won in the election. There are two new School Board members -
Gary Hames and Melissa Field, and one change in the Canyon GID with the election of Rosie
Austin.

o Attended the Police Academy graduation in Carson City. The Storey County Sheriff’s office had
a graduate - Brooke Jewkes, along with Jessica Stephens from the Justice Court. Congratulations
to both on completion of POST certification.

8. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Canvass of the election results for the General Election held
in and for Storey County, State of Nevada on November 8, 2016.

Chairman McBride presented this item and asked for Public Comment. There was no public
comment.

Motion: to approve the canvassing and the election results of the General Election held in and for
Storey County, State of Nevada, on November 8, 2016, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and possible approval of transfers from the Fire
District 474 Operating Fund #250 and/ or the Mutual Aid Fund #270 into the Capital Improvement
Plan #280 in an amount not to exceed $1,000,000.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher presented this item. This is a request from previously approved
Resolution No. 16-435 for the establishment of the 474 Capital Improvement Plan.

e A transfer from the 474 Operating Fund or the 474 Mutual Aid Fund, in an amount not to
exceed $1,000,000, is requested.

e The reason for an amount “up to” $1,000,000 is that the 2016 year-end financial statements are
not out yet.

e As of October 31¢, both funds have approximately $2.6 million.

e This will change drastically because this is the first year the County has to “book” a PERS
liability as well as OPED (retirees benefit) out to 30 years. It is not known how much will be
specific to the 474 Fire District.

e This will provide the opportunity to determine how much really can be put into the Capital
Improvement Plan without endangering operations.

Vice Chairman Gilman: Why pre-approve rather than wait until knowing what the number will be?

Mr. Gallagher: There is only one meeting in December, this would have to be (heard) at a meeting in
January - which can be done. Presenting this today provides the ability to put out a notice about the
amount that will be put in. The request is for an amount “up to” amount because the calculations are
not known.

Vice Chairman Gilman: In approving an item of this magnitude, it would be preferable to be done at
the time it is actually identified - as opposed to an “up to”.




Chairman McBride: There was a Resolution previously approved. If these liabilities have to be
booked and there is a shortfall before this is approved, there could be a negative ending fund balance
in those accounts ~ which the County would not want.

Vice Chairman Gilman: Is this the bottom line Mr. Gallagher?

Mr. Gallagher: Absolutely. The Resolution approved certain County entities to go ahead and
transfer funds whenever they want. Mr. Gallagher does not want to do this but rather wants to
inform the Commission that this is at least a possibility of what may be done.

Vice Chairman Gilman: The report on this will actually come at the meeting where an amount is
identified?

Mr. Gallagher: Right. At this point, this is just a comment about what might be done - the amount
will not be above $1 million and will not be known until financial statements are received. There
may be no transfer at all. This is a preemptive measure in case the need arises.

Commissioner McGuffey: The PERS liabilities - what are the specifics?

Mr. Gallagher: Per the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 45, future PERS payments
and insurance have to be booked for up to a 30-year period. Currently the County actually “pays as
we go”. Under GASB, this is an audit requirement - an unfunded mandated. This could be a “hit” of
about $15 million to the County’s overall balance sheets. The County is obligated to do this this year.
Of that amount, there is a certain portion the 474 Fire District will get for PERS and retiree benefits.
Mr. Gallagher is not happy nor approves this, but it is the Government’s (requirement).

Chairman McBride: Is this 474 specific, or all County-wide offices?
Mr. Gallagher: All of the County funds.
Chairman McBride: This is a lot of extra work, especially since the County “pays as it goes”.

Mr. Gallagher: Texas, during its legislative session, is going to try to get a bill saying this does not
apply to them.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve the transfer of funds not to exceed $1,000,000 into the Fire Capital Improvement
Plan from the Fire District 474 Operating Fund #250 and/or the Mutual Aid Fund #270, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve Business Licenses Second Readings:

Stacey Bucchianeri, Community Development, recommended approval of items A. through LL. and
continuance of Items MM., NN., and OO.

4




Public Comment:
None

Motion: Continue Items MM., NN., and OO., Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman,
Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (Summary:
Yes=3)

Motion: Approve Items A. through LL., Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman,
Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,(Summary:
Yes=3)

11. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

Gary Sack, Virginia City Resident: Requested that the County consider paving the last 200 feet of
South G Street where it curves up to F Street. This has turned into a busy street and Mr. Sack gets a
lot of dirt and dust. There was a barrier, but people have started driving over it.

Chairman McBride: Have you talked to Public Works yet?
Mr. Sack: No. It was suggested that he come to the Commission meeting.

Chairman McBride: Jason VanHavel, the new Public Works Director as of January 1, is present and
will look into this to see what can be done.

Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: What's going on with the issue of water quality in the
Riverbend/Lockwood area?

Chairman McBride: Public Works has drawn samples that have been sent to a lab for analysis - the
results have not yet been received.

Ms. Barde: Can the County compel the GID to do anything when the samples come back?

Vice Chairman Gilman: The understanding is the County has no jurisdiction over the GID. But the
County has an interest in community health and protection. Meetings have been held in that area.
People have been going to the media without proper information - without waiting for the
information. The County did a testing across the board as support backup to insure safe drinking
water in County communities and is waiting for those test results. In a recent test that the GID is
mandated (to perform) for public health and EPA requirements, does not show any negative water
source there. This has been done on a regular basis ever since the GID has been there. Those reports
are positive. The County is waiting for the results of its specific testing. This is getting media
attention that probably isn’t deserved.

Ms. Barde: The County is waiting for results to determine why there is brown water.....

Chairman McBride: It may not be determined why there is brown water. The tests that have come
back have been conclusive that there are safe drinking levels. It might show there is iron or

5




manganese or things that are esthetically not pleasing - health-wise not a problem. It has been
suggested by the GID that sometimes the Fire Department flushing hydrants can stir up sediment in
the bottom of the water lines, creating brown water. This has happened in Virginia City in the past.

Ms. Barde: If the water is brown - a negative esthetic - would there be a grant that could help the
community buy filters for homes to take care of that cosmetic issue - at least for the ones affected.

Chairman McBride: It is not affecting everyone, without tearing everything apart - it may be specific
buildings.

Vice Chairman Gilman: There is not enough information yet to make a decision.
12. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned by the Chair at 12:29 PM

Respectfully submitted,

Vanessa Stephens Clerl¢-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/6/16 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: First reading for Pacific Summit Energy LLC, out of county gas company providing
service to a Storey County business.

2. Recommended motion: [ motion to approve as part of the consent agenda the first reading, a
General Out of County License for Pacific Summit Energy LLC, 2010 Main St., Suite
1200, Irvine, CA 92614.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda %

Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4, Staff summary: [ motion to approve as part of the consent agenda the first reading, a General
Out of County License for Pacific Summit Energy LLC, 2010 Main St., Suite 1200, Irvine,
CA 92614.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attomey

8. Reviewed by:

_X__ Department Head Department N/@me: Gerald Antinoro
-

—

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[1] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e —y
[ —

Agenda Item No. b I



“ STOREY COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE
Gerald Antinoro
Sheriff

Y o

"\Y L& 7 &
ﬂ@ 2

<) 7 ) >

“» . =

November 10, 2016

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office
Pat Whitten, County Manager

Fr: Brandy Gavenda %

Please add the following item(s) to the December 6, 2016 Commissioners Consent
Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READING:

A. Pacific Summit Energy LLC. 2010 Main St., Ste. 1200, Irvine, CA 92614

PO Box 498
205 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 89440
Office: (775) 847-0959 Fax: (775) 847-0924



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: December 6, 2016 Estimate of time required: 0-5 mins

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For Possible Action — Approval — Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to 2016-17
Secured Tax Roll for Clerical Error

2. Recommended motion: Approval
3. Prepared by: Tobi Whitten
Department: Assessor’s Office Telephone: 847-0961
4, Staff summary: A clerical error on parcel number 005-071-55 occurred after the close of the
2016-17 Secured Tax Roll. The Assessor’s Office had not received information regarding a

Nevada Governor’s Office of Economic Development Tax Abatement on this parcel, which
became effective April 16, 2016, The tax bill was generated based on the unabated value,

and will require adjustment.

5. Supporting materials; Please see attached letter with adjusted tax amount.

6. Fiscal impact: Unknown

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Assessor’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ B oy |

Agenda Item No. (p 1



STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE

m m 26 South B Street
P.0. Box 494

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR bt L

{775) 847-0961 Phone
(775) 847-0904 Fax
Assessor@StoreyCounty.org

October 31, 2016
Memo to: Storey County Commissioners

Re: 005-071-55

The above referenced parcel was billed with errors for the 2016-17 tax year. A clerical error
occurred, and the Real Property Tax Bill requires correction. The Assessor’s Office had not
received any information regarding a Nevada Governor’s Office of Economic Development Tax
Abatement on this parcel, which was approved on September 15, 2016 and became effective
April 16, 2016, and therefore the abatement was not applied to the tax bill. In accordance with
NRS 361.765, I am requesting the following changes be made:

Real Property Abatement Abated
Taxes Taxes

2016-17 Billed $132,722.66 - .
2016-17 Corrected $132,722.66 $66,361.33 | $66,361.33

Please approve this correction, and advise the County Treasurer to make the changes and issue a
corrected tax bill and/or refund to the taxpayer, if necessary.

Thank You,
<<§;v<”).

;

Jand éeddon
Stov@y_gaun Assessor

Storey County Is an Equal Opportunity Provider



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: December 6, 2016 Estimate of time required: 0-5 mins

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For Possible Action — Approval — Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to 2016-17
Unsecured Tax Roll for Exemptions

2. Recommended motion: Approval

3. Prepared by: Tobi Whitten
Department: Assessor’s Office Telephone: 847-0961

4. Staff summary: NRS 361 provides for property tax exemptions to individuals who meet
certain criteria. Exemption applications and renewals are typically due to our office on or
before June 15 of each fiscal year, but circumstances beyond a taxpayer’s control may
cause a delay and, as a result, an exemption not being applied to the tax bill. In cases where
the Assessor’s Office feels that the taxpayer could not have reasonably filed their
exemption application or renewal by the deadline, or if there is an unforesceable error
causing the exemption to not be applied correctly, the tax bill may be amended by the
Clerk-Treasurer at the direction of the Board and a new tax bill or a refund be mailed to the

affected taxpayer.

5. Supporting materials: Please see attached letter(s) with adjusted assessed values.

6. Fiscal impact: Unknown

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Revi /e?i by:
Department Head Department Name: Assessor’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action;
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ n ] s |
[ —

Agenda Item No. {p TIL



Sana Seddon

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR

November 18, 2016

Memo to: Storey County Commissioners

Re: MH 000169, Jerry D Farley

STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE

26 South B Street

P.0. Box 494

Virginia City, NV 89440

(775) 84740961 Phone
(775) 847-0904 Fax

Assessor@StoreyCounty.org

The above property owner has a Veteran’s Exemption to be applied to their property located at
417 Canyon Way, Lockwood. Mr. Farley was unable to submit his renewal for this exemption in
a timely manner, and the exemption did not transfer to his home. Therefore, we were unable to
apply the exemption prior to the printing of their Unsecured tax bill. Pursuant to NRS 361,765, 1

ask that the assessed value be corrected as follows:

Assessed Assessed
Assessed Improvements Personal Exemptions Net Assessed
Land Value P Property P Value
Value
Value

2016-17

Billed 0 1,163 1,428 0 2,591
2016-17

Corrected 0 1,163 1,428 2,600 0

Please approve this correction, and advise the Treasurer and the Assessor to make the changes
and send a new tax bill or refund as necessary.

Jana Séddon V
Store§ County A

Storey County Is an Equal Opportunity Provider



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/06/16 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action. Update to Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
including: Policies 202 Anti-Harassment; 203 Dealing with Discrimination; and 1002 Definitions.

2. Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation by staff and in conformance with the Storey
County Administrative Policies and Procedures, I (Commissioner) motion to approve the
amendments to Storey County Administrative Policies 202 Anti-Harassment; 203 Dealing with
Discrimination; and 1002 Definitions.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 847-0968
4. Staff summary: The purpose of the Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures is to
establish authority to implement the personnel program on a consistent basis. The

Policies and Procedures require that review and necessary updates occur every five
years and otherwise as needed.

5. Supporting materials: Enclosed: Draft Policies 202 Anti-Harassment; 203 Dealing with
Discrimination; and 1002 Definitions.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
(@’ __ Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[S—p—

Agenda Item No. (p E

Page 1 of 11



Enclosures: Draft Policies 202, 203, and 1002

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 202

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 05/19/08
REVISED: 12/06/16
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAW
SUBJECT: Anti-Harassment

1 POLICY: The Employer promotes a productive work environment and does not tolerate
verbal, physical, written, or graphical conduct/behavior(s) that harasses, disrupts, or interferes
with another’s work performance or that creates an intimidating, offensive, or hostile
environment based on that person’s race, color, religion, age, gender, sexual orientation,
national origin, ancestry, disability, veteran status, genetic information, domestic partnership,
or any other basis that is inappropriate-or-offensive. prohibited by law.

2  PROHIBITED CONDUCT - BEHAVIOR(S): The employer will not tolerate any form of
harassment, including any conduct/ behavior(s) on the part of employees, volunteers, clients,
customers, vendors, contractors, etc., that impairs an employee’s ability to perform his/her
duties. Examples of prohibited conduct/behavior(s) include, but are not limited to:

e Offensive verbal communication including slurs, jokes, epithets, derogatory comments,
degrading or suggestive words or comments, unwanted sexual advances, invitations, or
sexually degrading or suggestive words or comments.

e Offensive written communications including notes, letters, notices, emails, texts, or any
other offensive message sent by electronic means.

e Offensive gestures, expressions and graphics including leering, obscene hand or finger
gestures, sexually explicit drawings, derogatory posters, photographs, cartoons, drawings,
or displaying sexually suggestive objects or pictures.

e Physical contact when the action is unwelcomed by recipient including brushing up
against someone in an offensive manner, unwanted touching, impeding or blocking
normal movement, or interfering with work or movement.

e Expectations, requests, demands, or pressure for sexual favors.

3 TRAINING: The employer will provide training every two (2) years to all employees on the
prevention of discrimination and prohibited conduct/behavior(s) in the workplace. All new
employees will be provided a copy of this policy upon hire and the contents will be discussed
during the new hire orientation process. New employees will participate in training on the
prevention of discrimination and prohibited conduct/behavior(s) within thirty (30) days of
hire. A copy of this policy will be made available to applicants upon request.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Page 2 of 11



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER: 203

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE:  05/19/08
REVISED: 03-16-
10/12/06/16
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: _ PAW

SUBJECT: Dealing w/Allegations of Discrimination and/or Prohibited

Conduct/Behavior(s)

Process

Employees or applicants who believe they are being discriminated against or subjected to any form of
prohibited conduct/behavior(s) as described in this policy by another (e.g. employee, client, customer,
vendor, contractor, etc.) because of their race, color, religion, age, gender, sexual orientation, national origin,
ancestry, disability, veteran status, genetic information, or domestic partnership, as well as those who believe
they have witnessed another employee, client or member of the public being subjected to prohibited conduct/
behavior(s), have an affirmative duty to bring the situation to the attention of the employer. Employees
covered by a collective bargaining agreement may opt to use the process described in this policy or in an
applicable grievance procedure delineated by their collective bargaining agreement, but may not use both.

Employee Responsibilities

Employees who believe they personally are being or have been subjected to prohibited conduct/behavior(s)
and/or are the target of any form of prohibited conduct/behavior(s), or have witnessed any other employee
being subjected to these behaviors, should immediately:

1. Identify the offensive conduct/behavior(s) to the alleged harasser and request that the
behavior cease.

Note:  An employee is NOT required to talk directly to the alleged harasser or to the

employee’s supervisor. It is critical, however, that the employee contact one of the individuals
listed in sections 2 or 3 below if s/he believes s/he is being targeted or has witnessed what the
employee believes to be prohibited conduct/behaviors(s) directed to  or committed by  another

employee(s), client(s), customer(s), vendor(s), contractor(s), etc.

2. If the employee feels uncomfortable in speaking directly to the alleged harasser or if
the employee requested the prohibited conduct/behavior(s) to cease, but the request did
not produce the results desired, the employee should report the conduct/behavior(s) as
soon as possible to a supervisor or manager or to the employer’s designated EEO
Officer or the HR Representative.

3. Employees who believe the EEO Officer has engaged in prohibited conduct/behavior(s)
should bring such concerns to the attention of the alternate EEO Officer or to any
County Commissioner. The County Commissioner will designate an objective person
to conduct an investigation of such allegations. Employees may also report the
conduct/behavior(s) to the County Manager or the employer’s attorney.

4. An employee who witnesses or obtains information regarding prohibited
conduct/behavior(s) by his/her immediate supervisor is required to report the incident
to the EEO Officer or HR Representative.

5. Applicants are encouraged to contact the designated EEO Officer or the alternate.

Supervisor/Manager Responsibilities

Regardless of whether the employee involved is in the supervisor’s or manager’s department and regardless
of how s/he became aware of the alleged prohibited conduct/behavior(s), all supervisors and managers must
immediately report all allegations or complaints or observations of such conduct/behavior(s) to the EEO

Page 3 of 11



Officer, HR Representative, Elected Official, Department Head, or County Manager. A supervisor’s or
manager’s failure to immediately report such activities, complaints, or allegations will result in discipline, up
to and including termination.

e The persons(s) involved, including all witnesses;
e A written record of specific conversations held with the accused and any witnesses; and
e All pertinent facts, including date(s), time(s), and locations(s).

A supervisor’s or manager’s failure to immediately report such activities, complaints, or allegations
will result in discipline, up to and including termination.

IV. Investigation

Upon being made aware of allegations or complaints of prohibited conduct/behavior(s), the employer will
ensure that such allegations or complaints are investigated promptly. The employer treats all allegations or
complaints seriously and expects all employees to be candid and truthful during the investigation process.

The employer will make efforts to ensure that all investigations are kept as confidential as reasonably
possible. Employees will be stronely-advised requested to refrain from discussing the subject content with
others, particularly while the investigation is in progress. Employees may be required to provide information
to regulatory agencies and/or the employee’s union representative or attorney. The employer will release
information obtained only to those individuals necessarily involved in the investigation and the administration
of the complaint with a business need-to-know, or as required by law.

The employer will communicate to the individual who made the initial complaint, as well as the individual
against whom the complaint was made, whether the allegations were substantiated or not.

If evidence arises that a participant in the investigation made intentionally false statements, that employee
will be disciplined, up to and including possible termination.

If it is determined that a violation of this policy has occurred, the employer will take remedial action against
the perpetrator commensurate with the severity of the offense. Such remedial action may include, but is not
limited to, a counseling, verbal warning, written reprimand, transfer, demotion, suspension without pay,
and/or termination. The employer will also initiate action to deter any futurc prohibited conduct/behavior(s)
from occurring,

With regard to disability-related complaints, the EEO Officer (when appropriate, working with the supervisor
and/or the complainant) shall propose a resolution to the complaint based upon the findings of such
investigation. Such resolution will include reasonable accommodation when the employer determines that
such a reasonable accommodation can be provided by the employer.

V. Prohibition Against Retaliation

Retaliation is adverse treatment which occurs because of opposition to prohibited
conduct/behavior(s) in the workplace. The employer will not tolerate any retaliation by
management or by any other employee against an employee who exercises his/her rights under this
policy. Any employee who believes s/he has been harassed, retaliated or discriminated against in
any manner whatsoever as a result of having filed a complaint, assisted another employee in filing a
complaint, or participated in an investigative process should immediately notify the EEO Officer or
the alternate. The employer will promptly investigate and deal appropriately with any allegation of
retaliation.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or
Administrative Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 1002
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 09/26/14
REVISED: 12/06/16

Page 4 of 11



AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER: ___ PAW

SUBJECT: Definition of Terms

1. Definition of Terms

1.1 POLICY: The terms used in these policies shall have the meanings defined below:

Alcohol: The intoxicating agent in beverage alcohol, ethyl alcohol, or other low molecular weight
alcohol including methyl and isopropyl alcohol.

Alcohol Use: The drinking or swallowing of any beverage, liquid mixture, or preparation
(including any medication) containing alcohol.

Allocation: The assignment of a single position to its proper classification on the basis of the
duties performed and responsibility assigned.

Administrative Leave: Authorized leave for administrative purposes, such as for conducting an
investigation which may be with or without pay, at the option of the employer.

Adulterated Specimens: A specimen is considered adulterated if it contains a substance that is
not a normal constituent or contains an endogenous substance at a concentration that is not a
normal physiological concentration.

Anniversary Date: The date-the-employee-is-hired-as-defined-below-or-promoted-or-reclassified
upward-or- downward. This is the date an-employee becomes-eligible-for-consideration-for-a-salary
inerease—The-anniversary-date-may-be-adjusted-as-speettically-provided-elsewhere-in-the
personnel-policies—(Note-speeial-provisionsregarding-military-leave) date on which the
employee starts work as indicated in-writing in an offer of employment, is reclassified or
promoted to a new job classification, or a less than part-time or regular part-time employee
becomes a full-time employee. The date on which an employee is demoted to a lower pay range,
reassigned, or transferred to alternative positions where their talents or skills maybe best utilized
to their own or the organization’s benefit, or where they are better able to perform the job in
accordance with required standards, is not an Anniversary Date.

Applicant: A person, including a current employee, who is applying for any position with the
employer. May also be referred to as the candidate.

At-will: Employment status wherein the employee may be terminated at any time, with or without
cause. An employee in an at-will status has neither a property right nor an expectation of
continued employment with the employer and is not covered by the provisions of the discipline,
layoff, or dispute resolution sections of these personnel policies.

Authentication: For the purposes of FMLA, providing the health care provider with a copy of
the medical certification and requesting verification that the information contained on the
certification form was completed and/or authorized by the health care provider who signed the
document; no additional medical information may be requested.

Base Rate of Pay. The amount of pay the employee is designated to receive within the pay range
for the employee’s classification, excluding pay such as overtime, bonuses, longevity, shift-
differential, and incentives.

Board: The governing body of Storey County.

Page 5 of 11



Casual Worker/Hire: A person hired at the pleasure of the employer to work less than an
average of twenty (20) hours per week on-an-engoing basis-or-for-mere-than-twenty-(20)-heursper
Jad-efHewer-than-one-hundred twentv- (120} consecutivework-davs-over « fiscal

year period.

Child: (Son or daughter) For purposes of FMLA, a biological, adopted, or foster child, a
stepchild, a legal ward, or a child of a person standing In Loco Parentis, who is either under age
18, or age 18 or older and “incapable of self-care because of a mental or physical disability.”

Clarification: For purposes of FMLA, contacting the health care provider to understand the
handwriting on the medical certification or to understand the meaning of a response.

Class: A group of like positions assigned to the same title and pay grade based on similar duties
and responsibilities and minimum qualifications. Positions are allocated to the same class when
they have a similar job title (e.g., a group of Administrative Assistant I positions), qualifications,
pre-employment testing, and similar pay. For instance, five Administrative Assistant I positions

in four different departments are all in the same class, “Administrative Assistant I”.

Classification: The analysis, development, and placement of positions within the classification
plan.

Class Series: Two or more classes which are similar as to the fundamental type of work, but
which differ as to degree of responsibility and difficulty, and which have been arrayed in a
progression of level of responsibility and complexity of duties. The series of Administrative
Assistant 1, I1, and ITI is an example of a class series, while each position by itself is a class.

‘ I"gf hf)(i(?lfli!lltl(iﬂ A de‘beﬁ'p{']ﬂﬂ Ht {he e qennal e h AL ATO R TaTO . -
%melmww—imlaewmﬂ%mmﬂwﬂmpmmwﬁ
and-qualibications:

Confidential Employee: An employee occupying a position which by the nature of its duties has
access to decisions of management affecting employee relations and has been designated
confidential by the Personnel Director with concurrence of the County Manager. In addition, it
includes any employee occupying the County Manager’s Office and Human Resources.
Confidential employees are not covered by this Agreement.

Contraband: Any item such as illegal drugs, drug paraphernalia, or other related items whose
possession is prohibited by this policy. This term includes marijuana and related products
deemed illegal by federal law.

Conflicting Employment: Outside employment that interferes with the employee’s ability to
perform his/her assigned job.

Conviction: A finding of guilt, including a plea of no contest or imposition of sentence or both,
by any judicial body charged with the responsibility to determine violations of the federal or state
criminal drug or alcohol statutes.

Date of Hire/Hire Date: The actual date an employce first renders paid service in a regular
position.

Day: Calendar days unless work days are specified.

Demotion: Involuntary movement of an employee from one job classification to another job
classification having a lower maximum base rate of pay, as a result of disciplinary action or not
successfully completing the probationary period related to a recent promotion.

Page 6 of 11



Department Head/Department Manager: An elected official or appointed official who is
directly responsible to the County Manager or to the Board or to a board established by the Board,
for overall administration of an office or department of the employer.

Diluted Specimens: Diluted specimens have creatinine and specific gravity values that are lower
than expected for human urine. The HHS has determined that specimens with creatinine levels
greater than or equal to 2.0 mg/dL and have a specific gravity greater than 1.0010 but less than
1.0030 are dilute. Individuals with creatinine levels greater than or equal to 2.0 mg/dL but less
than 5.0 mg/dL are required to be retested under direct observation.

Disability-Related Inquiry: A question (or series of questions) that is likely to elicit information
about a disability. (See-Seection2-6-5-of these-pelicies-for-a-more-complete-deseription:)

Discharge: Termination, separation, dismissal, or removal from employment for cause.

Discipline: A suspension (generally without pay), involuntary demotion, reduction in pay,
discharge, or written reprimand or verbal warning.

Discrimination: Employment decisions or actions which are inappropriately taken because of the
applicant’s or employee’s race, color, religion, age, gender, sexual orientation, national origin,
ancestry, veteran status, disability, or union activity.

Dispute: Unresolved work-related problems identified by an employee or group of employees
pertaining to work-related issues. Disputes may not be related to disciplinary action.

Domestic Partner: Persons who are registered as domestic partners with the state of Nevada per
Senate Bill 283 of the 2009 Nevada Legislation.

Drug Test: A urinalysis (urine) test that includes specimen collection and testing by a Department
of Health and Human Services (DHHS)-certified laboratory. Both a screening test and a
confirmation test must be used to establish a positive test result.

Eligible List: A list of names of persons who have satisfactorily completed an examination for a
position and have qualified; also includes Reinstatement List (scc below). A list of names of
persons who have been laid off and are available for reinstatement.

Employee: A person employed in a budgeted position on a full- or part-time basis. For purposes
of those sections of these policics covering discipline, layoff, and dispute resolution, the term
employee excludes elected officials, department heads and casual workers.

Regular Full-time Employee: A person who has successfully completed an initial
introductory period in a regular budgeted position-with-a-nermatty-scheduled-work-week and
whose regular workweek consists of at least forty (40) hours.

Regular Part-Time Employee: A person who has successfully completed an initial
introductory period in a regular budgeted position which requires at least twenty (20) average
hours per week over a fiscal year period, but less than full-time employment.

Introductory Employee: A person who serves in an at-will status for a specified period of
time during which s/he is evaluated by the employer to ensure that s/he has demonstrated fitness
for a position by actually performing the duties of the position.

Exempt Employee: An employee who is exempt from the overtime provisions of the Fair
Labor Standards Act. (Such determination is made on the basis of duties and responsibilities
performed and the method of pay computation and rate of pay.)

Non-Exempt Employee: An employee who is subject to the overtime provisions of the
Fair Labor Standards Act.

Page 7 of 11



Employer Premises: All employer property and facilities, the surrounding grounds and parking
lots, leased space, employer motor-driven equipment/vehicles, offices, desks, cabinets, closets, etc.

Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Officer: (Optional) The staff member assigned the
responsibility and authority to receive, investigate, and resolve complaints of alleged
discrimination/harassment. This individual also has the responsibility to provide training to the
employer and assure appropriate notices are posted.

Essential Function: A fundamental job duty of the position held or desired. A function is
essential if the job exists to perform that function, a limited number of other employees are
available to perform the function, or the function requires special skill or expertise. (See-Seetion
2:6:8-ofthese-pelicies-fora-meore-complete-deseription:)

Examination/Test: Any measure, combination of measures, or procedures used as a basis for any
employment decision. Examinations include the full range of assessment techniques from
traditional paper and pencil tests, performance tests, assessment centers, introductory periods, and
evaluation of physical, educational, and work experience qualifications through informal
interviews and scored application forms. Open examinations are open to all applicants, internal
and external. Promotional examinations are open only to selected categories of employees of the
employer.

Full-Time: Work which requires hours of work as established by the employer as full-time. A
full-time employee is regularly scheduled to work a normal work week of forty (40) hours. Note:
For the purpose of determining eligibility for benefits and layoff, collective bargaining agreements
may provide alternate definitions of full-time.

Grade: The designation of a salary range for a job classifications of same or similar worth.

Illegal Drugs: Any controlled substance or drug which is illegal to sell, possess, cultivate,
transfer, use, purchase, or distribute. Illegal drugs include prescription drugs not legally obtained
and/or prescription drugs not being used in the manner, combination, or quantity prescribed, or by
the individual for whom prescribed. Illegal drugs also include marijuana and related products
that are deemed illegal by federal law.

Incomplete or Insufficient Certification: For purposes of FMLA, a medical certification is
considered incomplete if the employer receives a certification, but one or more of the applicable
entries have not been completed. A medical certification is considered insufficient if the
employer receives a complete certification, but the information provided is vague, ambiguous, or
non-responsive.

In Loco Parentis: A relationship in which a person has put him/herself in the situation of a
parent by assuming and discharging the obligations of a parent to a child, with whom he or she
has no legal or biological connection, including day-to-day responsibilities to care for or
Sinancially support a child.

Invalid Specimens: An invalid specimen is one that contains an unidentified adulterant,
contains an unidentified interfering substance, has an abnormal physical characteristic, or has
an endogenous substance at an abnormal concentration that prevents the laboratory from
completing testing or obtaining a valid drug test result.

Job Competencies: The knowledge, skills, and abilities (KSAs) and other personal
characteristics that work together to produce outstanding performance in a given area of
responsibility.

Job Description. A written description of a job which includes information regarding the
general nature of the work to be performed, specific responsibilities and duties, and the
employee characteristics required to perform the job.

Page 8 of 11



Job Specifications: The specific qualifications necessary to be able to perform the job.

Key Employee: A salaried FMLA-eligible employee who is among the highest paid 10 percent of
all the employees employed by the employer within 75 miles of the employee's worksite.

Layoff: A separation from the employer’s service because of a shortage of funds, lack of work,
abolishment of a position, reorganization, or for other reasons not reflecting discredit on an
employee and for reasons outside of the employee’s control.

Leave Without Pay: Authorized leave in a non-paid status.

Legal Drugs: Prescription drugs and over-the-counter drugs that have been legally obtained and
are being used in the manner, combination, and quantity for which they were prescribed or
manufactured. This term does not include marijuana or related substances that are deemed
illegal by federal law.

Medical Examination: A procedure or test usually given by a health care professional or in a
medical setting that seeks information about an individual’s physical or mental impairments or

health, (See-Section2:6:8-of-these-policiestora-more-complete-deseription)

Next of Kin: For purposes of FMLA, the nearest blood relative other than the covered
servicemember’s spouse, parent, son, or daughter, in the following order of priority: blood
relatives who have been granted legal custody of the covered servicemember by court decree or
statutory provisions, brothers and sisters, grandparents, aunts and uncles, and first cousins,
unless the covered servicemember has specifically designated in writing another blood relative
as his or her nearest blood relative for purposes of military caregiver leave under the FMLA.
When no such designation is made, and there are multiple family members with the same level
of relationship to the covered servicemember, all such family members shall be considered the
covered servicemember’s next of kin and may take FMLA leave to provide care to the covered
servicemember, either consecutively or simultaneously. When such designation has been made,
the designated individual shall be deemed to be the covered servicemember’s only next of kin.

Orientation Period: A trial or working test period which is an integral part of the examination
and selection process during which an employee serves in an at-will status and is required to
demonstrate fitness for the position for which s/he was hired by actually performing the duties of
the position. The employee in the orientation period may also be referred to as a Probationary
Employee.

Personnel Action: Any action taken with reference to appointment, compensation, promotion,
transfer, layoff, dismissal, or any other action affecting an employee’s employment status.

Position: A group of duties and responsibilities requiring the ongoing services of one or more
employees, which is listed in the authorized position list contained in the currently approved
employer’s budget or established by formal action by the County Manager.

Positive Drug or Alcohol Test: Any detectable level of drugs or its metabolite (in excess of trace
amounts attributable to secondary exposure) in an employee’s urine or blood. With respect to
alcohol, a blood alcohol concentration of 0.02 or higher constitutes a positive test.

Probationary Employee: An employee who is undergoing a working evaluation period during
which s/he is required to demonstrate his/her ability to carry out the duties of the position to
which hired and during which s/he is employee “at-will” and may be laid-off or discharged from
employment for any reason with or without cause.

Promotion: The movement of an employee from one position class to another position class
having a higher maximum base rate of pay, usually as a result of some type of examination but not

as a result of reallocation of a class.

Page 9 of 11



Rate of Pay: An employee’s salary or wages as shown in the employer’s compensation plan.
Reallocation: A-change-in-the-classification-and-pay-grade-of-a-position-to-a-higheror-lowerpay
srade: A change of an entire class to a higher or lower pay grade.

Reclassification: The process of analyzing and redeveloping the duties, responsibilities, and
minimum qualifications of an existing position and moving it to another class within the
classification plan.

Reasonable Accommodation:

e a modification or adjustment to a job application process that enables a qualified
applicant with a disability to be considered for the position such qualified applicant
desires; or

* a modification or adjustment to the work environment, or to the manner or
circumstances under which the position held or desired is customarily performed, that
enable a qualified individual with a disability to perform the essential functions of that
position; or

e a modification or adjustment that enables a covered employee, with a disability, to enjoy
equal benefits and privileges of employment as are enjoyed by other similarly situated
employees without disabilities.

Reassignment: Transferring individual employees to alternative position classes where their
talents or skills may be best utilized to their own or the organization’s benefit or where they are
better able to perform the job in accordance with required standards.

Reclassification: The change of a position to a different job class which results from changes in
duties and responsibilities.

Reduction in Pay: Disciplinary action by an employer moving an employee to a lower pay level
in the same class and same pay grade.

Regular Position: An authorized position which appears in the authorized position list contained
in the employer’s budget documents or its amendments approved by the County Commissioners.
(Normally a regular position consists of duties which must be performed at least twenty [20] hours
per week on a regular, year-round basis.)

Regular Rate of Pay. The employee’s base rate of pay plus other additional pay for which the
employee’s specific assignment may entitle him/her.

Regularly Scheduled Shift. The shift created by the department that is the same schedule for at
least 30 days.

Reinstatement: The restoration of a laid-off employee or an employee rejected during a
promotional introductory period to a position in a class in which the employee formerly served as a
regular employee.

Reinstatement List: A list of names of persons who have been laid off and are available for
reinstatement (rchire without examination).

Reprimand: A written notice to an employee stating specific performance and/or behavioral
deficiencies and the improvements in behavior and/or performance which the employee must
make, and that further disciplinary action will follow if the employee does not make the required
improvements. (A performance evaluation form shall not be considered a reprimand.)

Resignation: A notice by an employee that s/he intends to separate from the employer’s service.
The employer may require that resignations be in writing.

Page 10 of 11



Salary Range: The minimum and maximum salary set for each classification, grade, or level as
designated by the position compensation plans. (Also see Grade.)

Son or Daughter of a Covered Servicemember: For purposes of FMLA, a biological, adopted,
or foster child, stepchild, legal ward, or a child for whom the covered servicemember stood In
Loco Parentis, and who is of any age.

Son or Daughter on Covered Active Duty or Call to Covered Active Duty Status: For purposes
of FMLA, employee’s biological, adopted, or foster child, stepchild, legal ward, or a child for
whom the employee stood In Loco Parentis who is on covered active duty or call to covered
active duty status, and who is of any age.

Spouse: A husband or wife as defined or recognized under State law for purposes of marriage.
Step: A specific rate of pay within the salary range established for a class. (Also see Rate of Pay.)

Substance Abuse Professional (SAP): A licensed physician, or a licensed or certified
psychologist, social worker, employee assistance professional, or addiction counselor (certified by
the National Association of Alcoholism and Drug Abuse Counselors Certification Commission)
with knowledge of and clinical experience in the diagnosis and treatment of drug- and alcohol-
related disorders.

Substituted Specimens: Substituted specimens have creatinine and specific gravity values that
are so diminished or so divergent that they are not consistent with normal human urine. The
HHS has determined that specimens with creatinine levels of less than 2.0 mg/dL are
substituted.

Supervisor: An employee, or an elected official who has been authorized to select, train,
schedule, and evaluate the work of other employees, and to make decisions or effectively
recommend actions related to the hiring, evaluation, and discipline of assigned employees. This
person may also serve as the department head.

Suspension: The temporary separation from service, with or without pay, of an employee for
disciplinary reasons or pending investigation of an employee’s conduct.

Temporary Employee: A casual worker.

Transfer: A lateral change of an employee from one position to another position in the same class
or to a different class in the same salary range. 4 transfer does not include an employee moving
from one office to another while maintaining the same position classification.

Warning: Verbal notice or counseling of an employee specifying required changes in work
performance or on-the-job behavior.

Work Week: 7 consecutive periods of 24 hours which may begin on any day and at any hour of
the day.

Work Day: A period of 24 consecutive hours which begins when the employee begins work.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every S years or sooner as necessary.

Page 11 of 11



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: December 6, 2016 Estimate of time required: 0.

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [| Public hearing required | ]

1. Title: For possible approval: Treasurer's Report for October 2016.

2. Recommended motion: Approve as part of consent agenda.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Monthly Treasurer’s Report.

5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact: N/A
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. {o'ﬂ:



I9El8IB TS (558025 IE0 S v99SZ'95 O0E659'T$ B88'E96°46T § OEBEVTS ST'Z91'8% 0J6SEP'SS 6LESZ6b$ bIPOLLZ$ 68°8T8°6L $ bZO09G'STH § 68'650'6LE § TU8SL'06S §  WWLOLANVHD

- $ - $ ] $ « S - S = $ 110 2d
1510 Xd
s $ = $ - $ - $ 1510 XW
$ 7L6T000T $ 86'9ST'T S 8G9S8'ES 90TLSTS 8TSSBZL $ SUEOL'LE S TU6IBTGL $ LVS95'SSY § 1510 2d"%d
ISIN

(T4

IPOEPOT § £6°680°28 - S 0005206 9997 & 65960ST § 2/vZl S T0GIY $ 9992 $ IEOTLY $§ vS'S8E'T $ 9L0I0% S I8T6L0Z $ €6°9€0°82 § 12'680°TZ §  D3ISNNTVIOL
awAedssnp

IWPOEYOT § £S5S80C $ v9'957'9 $ 9997 S 65°860'ST $ 2LWZT § TOSIY § 999LT $ TEOTLY § PSG8ET ¢ 9L0TOP $ TYT6L'0Z $ E€69E08T S TT'SBOTT S L107/9102

= | .m.m.m-w.w.m-m-w.w.m.m-mzo.x.:«ﬁoh
9102/S102

$ o Kl = BE &= B ™ [ = [§ @ == = |[§ = =f = |§ - §  |=mowns
S10Z/v102

YT0Z/ET0T

€107/2102

2r0z/110T

1102/0102

0102/6002

6002/8002

8002/£007

£002/900T

HOSSISSY

e— —

€0 § - S DOZE0CS LSSUBIPL S 0005115 9SS6BE€S VI8BSLS BUVYSUY S CBEINELS S6V09'BE $ TT6EE00Z § 96Z20TSE$ EY'LIB'EIT ¢ SIVIOL L4043

.
VNN
"

'
vV NV VWV

LLUTIS'VI6

el
0
oy

€0 $ €0 § paindas punjay
9v'TIS'VI6 § - $ = 4 vO'ZEY'ZS LS'SYR'ZVT § 09°9ST'T$ 9S'S68'ES$ PUBRSTS SYYYSYY S THEIEL S SEVO'BE S TTGEEV0Z $ 96°ZZO'TSE $ EVLIB'EIT $ Q3IWNIISIVLIOL

65°LLT'2T6 $ - $ - ¢ Sp097'T$ SETSS'ZVT § PEVST'TS ESS8'E$ E6TBSTS EBISHY'YP $ VEOEQ'ET $ 08'BIS'8E $ LI'SEE'66T § 96°TTOISE $ 6YYIBTIT S  LI/9TVIOL
65 THO'T $ T6°€9T $ SET $ 1Sy $ 10€ § LTTS $ SOST $ SSEP $ €S S TEEES S ssassy [enads
08'SETTI6 S SY09T'Z$ VO8BEYT $ 66TSITS CTOESSES C6BLSTS 99T0V'vr $ 68TZOEL $ STSBY'SE § VW60L'66T $ 96TTOTSE $ SUTEECIT § L10Z/9102
wvezz $ s $ = $ srae $ 29°€6Z $ 9zz $ <08 $ 189 § S916 $ 889z $ ST $ vo'vor $ - $ v6'ZS6 $  ¥OKud vi0L

197907 S S LSPLT S LOOVE $ 0Tt S 6LE $ 65T $ ey $ oger $ BE'SE S ELT6T AR $ 91551 $ 910z/5102
55355 [e12ads

SLSSY $ 910Z/5102

8T L6Y $ |e3oigns

89TET S ST0Z/YT0Z
53955y (e10ads

stoz/vioz
YI0Z/ET0Z 12308
ssassy |enadg
9L $ 9L1s $ o S Wi $ 960 $ 9T9T S €Ly S ELET $ LTTL S £T°LST $ YLOZ/ET0Z
£10Z/T10T

2102/1102

TT0Z/0T0T

65'0€ $ sZ0 $ v80 $ 69T $ §56 $ 18C $ us $ 86TY $ LE'86 $ 0102/600C
6002/800Z

8002/L00

£00T/9002

9002/500Z

LSPLT § LOOYT $ ozt $ 6£€ $ 657 $ wwew S ogT $ sese $ €LT6T $
29°L6T $§ SSEST $ 90T $ vy $ we § €6y $ BOVE S Loy $ IETIZ s @
LLT0T $ O0TTL $ 650 ¢ 96T $ LOT $ TWIW $ ¥59 $ 68T $ 9086 $

9UTLI'T
T0vssS

RV
wvr v

LLTOT § OTTL $ 650
18'€0¥ S oL $ 9LTS S wo

96T
wi

5086
LTTL

89157
> $ €191

vy
w0

0T $ ww $ vS9 $ 68T
960 $ 9T'9T S EL'v $ ELET

v
w
v N

-
w
il
~
VOB NN
3
o]
-~
w

TvioL %2¥/¥  1LINJYAO %9Y/V  SALIUNId  HIW3I/IYH H1NOA JDVaNI a3 ani 31vis nov dvd 9Q HXS dO HOS QI9 1SNANI TVY3IN3D YUNSYIHL
S9T 90S9¢-100 vOIVE-TO00 T00 0se T00 S81 oto 1741 090 09t 0st 00S-T00 T00

9T0Z ¥380D0



00"

00~
00"

-LS°0ZT"
-£8°0%T"
-86°229°
-L9°Z0E"
-ZZ 110"

-€0°e1E

t0°283"
-%0° €95
-zy e

00"

-25°vs6’
-09°1ZS’
-99° 160"
-56 %12’
-0y 8v9’
-9E PEE’
‘90¥

~6S°ELS
=00°0L

~S5°06T"
~16°8€B"

00"
-00°039

-00°000"
-69°¥ZT’
-SZ'0SE’
-09°93g’
-90°TLs’
-00°'000"
-LZ°9L8’

00"
00"

¥S°6¥9°

-S0° €02

-$0°900"

00"

-9T° 199
-S6°621"

007002

00° 000"
00°00T"

0E"6EY

oL ¥e8”’
0s zoz”
€8°96% "

00"
oo-

oL gzt
€9°SLT’

@0’

T

ave
Loz
S6E°‘T
LET
998

114
0LL T
zZetl

9T
€T
134
e€9
18
8L

86L°T
0SE

000°T
TES'T
SLS'T
LS8°2
(244
00T
e

66

LEP'T

:1:34
¥oe’‘s

z
&

8LL’‘S
6ST L
€90 9T

S
g

ONTANT

sbeg

00"

oo"
00"
00*
oo0*
00"
0o0*
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
oo
00"
oo0*
00"
00"
00~
00*
00°*
00"
oo*
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
co-
oo”
oo*
00"
00"
00*
00*
00
00"
00"
00~
00"
00~
00"
oo*
00"
00"
00~
00"
00"
o0~
00"
00~
00"
00°

100 S¥Easnval

00°

00°
o¢’
00’
00"
00"
00’
00’
0o
00’
00"
00’
00°
0o’
00’
oc”
0o’
00"
00"
00’
00°
[
00°
0o’
0o0-
00"
00"
00"
00°
00’
00°
00
00"
00’
00"
00"
00"
00’
00"
00
00
00"
¢0"
00"
00°
0o
00"
00"
00°
00’
co”
00°

NI SuE=dSNVEL

oe- 00" 00"

00" 00* 00~

00" oo 0o°

oo* 697306 "1T 29° 11891
00" oo~ 00"

96" 9E¥‘SL TE'S66 'LEE TE 9EL'TL
0L*0S9 10°2s€°92 ZS t89° vt
00" 0o~ 00°S5¥9‘TET
00° 00" oco*

00° 00" TZ ¥8%‘SIT
=00 000 ‘SLE 00* 00"

00" 00* 00"

00~ 00" 00"

00" 00" 00° 06T

00" 00" 8S°0v0'ZE
00~ 00" 00 ¥e

00- 00 0L TeT‘69¢€
00~ 00 €9°5sZ’'9
00 00 vSTL80 02T
00" 00" ve“LzL'EZ9
00~ 00" 00702
~00°T9T 99 00 00" L9S 'SV
00°1ZL'62 €8°LL9'8 L6955’y
00- 00° oo-

00" 00" 00"

00" 00- 00~

€1 6LL 6T°SSL'ST Y PEL"LT
(] 00" 00°

c0" 00" Z€°585°62
00°TL8 TP 00" 00°

oo 00" 00°

00° 00" 00°

00" 00" 00"

00~ 00" 00-

00" 00" 00°

00" [y oo
-LT°9%T'ZL 0L 06¥°‘9¢E €Z°ETT6
00" 00" 00"

o0 00" 91°86E'TT
biL 90V 'S9E 627029029 6S°00T'6%6
00° 00" 00"

00~ o0 00"

00" 00~ 00"

0o~ oo- 00"

00" 00" [l

00~ 00" 00"

00" ~EPTL6LLSO'T -SLUETT 065
00" 00" 00"

00° 00" 00°

00° 00" 00"

00~ 00" 00"

00" 00~ 00"

TEIION0OA NaNOL STIOEAYA SINEWasanasia

9T0Z/0T ¥o4
LIZHS ONIODNYTWE ATHLNOW
ONILNNQIOY S« ¥EUNSYHLL
YHINSYELL ALNOOD AFNOLS

00*

00"

00"
-65°0€8°Z02Z

00"

-GS vSERYY
-€8°LES ‘86

00"

00"
-ET6LE'TZ

00°

00"

00°
-05°66T°'2
-ST°L91’8
-00°¥98
-8Z°600'8TT
-L5760L 2
-68°81I8 ‘6L
-¥Z 096 'EI¥
-00°0%

00"

-T%' 66%'2E

00"

00"

00"
-€1'€€8'2S
-55°56% 1€
-€T' €E€P' €T
-¥9°' VOE 'LT

00°

00"

00"

00"

00
-00' 0§
-68'650 2L

00*
-96°'SEV‘S
-LL 6Z9'STIS‘Z

00°

00*

00"

00"

00"

00°
6T'ZTI9'LST ¥

00"

00*

00°

00"

00’

SIqiEoae

00*

00-

00"
-62°800°2L
-€6°0¥T LOZ
-€9°LEPEEV T
-L0° ISP 092
~ZT 959 'LE6
~£0°8TIE
-TO0ETP ¥
~$0 E9S‘S6E’T
A M L AR 44

00"
-20°S¥0 ST
-E0°S6E°LE
-99°15Z'2¥
-0% " LBE'6BE
~9¥ " VET’'SE
-66°799 '8TT
-69°D¥E’'ST9
-00°05
~SS°96S'LLL T
-0E"S6Z'T19¢E

-00°000'000°T
-%0°290°219°1
0L PSEEPS’T
-6L°BTO0'$99°T
-T¥ 8ET 'BEY
-007°000°00T
-LT°9L8'%8
00"

00"

¥5°6%9 66
-S0°€ST
~ZTTETF ‘BEE’T
00"
-SEETIVEY
-08°LZ9°€zZ’'8
00°002
00°000°2
00°00T'T

0€ BEP
0LTveR 'BLT S
0S5°Z0T'6ST L
2B S6L'ESSET
00"

00°

DL ETT'S
€9°SL¥ '8

00-

TEemE0d 198

SaNNE TTY TYIOL

ONIQTIOH SIXWL aTNDAS
ONIQIOE SEXYL AIENDISNO
ATy TEOIOW

ZONEONANE FII
IOTHISIA SVIJ
NOISSIWWOD WSIHENOL DA
LOErodd TIVY DA

aNnd oaTd IIVL §,JATATHS
SLNVED TYIIAEd

MOVHAYE IAL

annd ¥vd

LIN THEL

anNnd I¥N0D EDIISAC
INFAQIDOVY LNIOICGNT
L¥N0D IOIELSIA

IIVLS

anNni XHOTONEDEL

1€ T00HIS

TTO0HDS

13N0D 9AEa

OD¥VYE STTIM ANOE VASN
YEMAS FAIAIA YINIDAIA
ALID VINIONIA 30 NMOL
TIIH @109 J0 NMOL
NOLLVZITIEYLS

NELSAS ¥ZLIYM

aNNd ZUNIONALSWEANT
S1DICCYd TYLIAYD
NOTILISINOOY LNIWAINDI
FOIANES

ary TEALOW

IDIVLETA TAIJ
ADNEOWANE FILA

WTA

NOIINLTLSTY

SAYod

XYL~ FONYLSISSY INEDIANI
TYOIAEN INEOIANI
THRIENID

YOSSESSY HSWD ALLI
JdTHEHS HSWO ALLIA
HSWD ALr3d

SNIOO dI0

INOODOY JIDT ZLYLS
LEINYH AINOW OOV STIaM
LROODOY 20 09¥Vd STIaM
SETYS AL¥IA0¥d ¥ 30 €
SQEYDD MNVE SSENISNE
JANYE NI HSWD

ONIAIOH L¥NCO IDIYISIA
HSYD ¥aSn O9¥VA £77dM

“NOIIdTEIo5aa

ZOET:60 9T/0€/TT *

006
oog
oLz
09z
[+}-14
OET
oze
0tz
a0z
ooz
06T
68T
LBT
S8
08T
0LT
S9T
03T
0ST
o0FT
SET
0T
ozt
(a4
oot
060
080
oLo
@90
0so
svo
%o
SE0
¢eo
¥Z0
ozo
ST0
0To
100
S06
Y06
€06

961
T6T

8€T
L6T

oY

my

0DTZAL :ON Jxoday



96" ¥C 9T/LZ/0T
€6 °90¢€ 9T/LZ/0T
S0 6€€ 9T/LT/OT
66 1T 91/LT/01
$L°8ST 9T/LZ/0T
00°02ZL'ZL 9T/LZ/0T
0L %2T 9T/LZ/0T
00°0S¥’'L 9T/%T/0T
00°2SZ°T 9T/¥T/01
00°09T°Z 9T/%1/0T
00°9€% 9T/%1/0T
00°00S‘Z 91/%T/0T
T1°ZSE ST/%1T/0T
I1°9T2 9T/%T/0T
11° %22 91/%T/0T
LY 8%E’‘C 91/%T/0T
11°89% 91/¥%T/0T
00-%88°L 91/%T/0T
¥6°€0T 91/%T/0T
00° 0% 91/¥%T/0T
00°000°T 9T/%1/0T1
61°29S 9T/%T/0T1
00°09 91/%1/0T
0S°L6 91/0€/6
98°2Z6T'01 9T/0€/6
SL 8T 9T1/0€/6
00°00T 91/91/6
29°S% 91/9T/6
00 9% 9T1/9T/6
00" %T 91/91/6
00°%%€‘2 91/20/6
€%°8 91/20/6
00 9% 91/20/6
00 9% 9T/6T/8
00°0TE 91/61/8
79 62 91/61/8
€6 6T 91/zzZ/L
6T°ST 9T/80/L
00°00T 9T/80/L
00°6€ 91/%C/9
Z1°2€ 91/01/9
vE°SZ 9T/0T/9
00°09 91/62/%
0L €80°S 91/10/%
00°108 91/8T/¢€
80° 9T ST1/8T/6
00°SL ST/¥0/6
00" 8L ST/¥Z/L
81°06 S1/92/9
S0°98 ST/ZT/9
00°06 ST/2T/9
SL 6€E ST/LT/¥
16 °9T ST/LT/%
00°09 ST/LT/%
Junouy 23ed o9YD

9T/1€/0T - 00/00/0
666666 Ubnoiyy T
syoayD butpueisang

s sbeg DNILNNODDY S«JHINSTYHIL

IAYES FADNIAYHINODHTHL IRIV
TYNOIIUNIIINI MO¥VY

ONI ONIHSITENd YIAYIIY
dT ANVAO¥d SYOIAAWY

ONI 0DSTY

HONYNIA dINdF T TYLIdYD
ONI NON SYDNIV

ONI ‘ddvaTaEom

DONI S¥N0L ALID VINIDVIA
0D ¥¥ FMIONAL X WINIDAIA
SAOEMOD HNOLSHWOJL HHIL
FSS0d dd33L ALNNOD AHAOLS
a OTHONY ‘INI¥LA4
NOTLYAYHSNOD H0 LdAd ASN
‘YETIVIEY HONYY DONYISOW
¥SIT 3 ILODS ‘NOSIUYW
WNISNN NOISNVIW AYMOVKW

‘Y QI¥MddE  ONIAAYIO

ONI STIVD

D711 TIIW 4109 XD0LSHOD
DUYNEHY ¥YM TIAID MDOLSWOD
TYNOISSHIONd ® SSANISAL
a TIESsSNd  NOaNvdd

ONI 99D JFYHIL

0D ¥AMOd DIATIOVA VHAHEIS
NILSOY ‘HENN0gS0O

LA ONINIOHDS

INYd ' ATADEM

SNOISSHIAWI HATLYAONNI
NYHd ‘SIOWAVH
SHASI¥JYAINT AVAd NOS
ELSETAD ® NNITO ‘NOLHDIHT
SNOTSSHIAWI HAILYAONNT
LOI¥LSIA TOOHDS 0D IS
WNISNW NOISNYW AWAOVA

oL dI19d09 ‘LSsind

NOSY( ‘SNIMMYH

a¥vod OSNIZVED VAYAIN
YANOL ‘MOTIVH

ONI 999 HFJIEL

AYWYL 'NYDIW

HIYYAL HONAT

WNISNN NOISNVW ATADVIW
NYWOH-HITYEH A0 AId AAN
DONI DIDOTHAOD

NOOVIV FTIVUVIW NNV ‘AVIINNW
VHIIGYI ‘NOSECH

ONI 999 HAIYHL

HONH ‘I¥0DJddp

AYIVE ® VANIT ‘¥YFaId
NHOL ‘ENSTJINd

NHOL ‘AVHS

avHD 'SNVAR

HY¥0gHEd ‘JIANHE

sweN sokoTdwd/IopusA
uoIxs

#303UyD woxa

£T:6€:-60

ALNNOD XHIOLS

6T9¢E0%
SSS%0%
0C7%0%
6V6E0Y
SETO00T
E€TLEOY
68STOT
0LLYOY
£68€0%
v68¢€0%
T06€0¥
CSETIOV
S68E0F
Z89%0%
889¥%0%
£99¥0¥%
69LV0Y
0P9%0%
¥S800T
LBBEOY
886€07
€£9%00T
vESV0Y
8E6EO0Y
OEQTOT
LB6ZOY
896707
C96%07%
O0PEE0T
LL8OOT
CTHB8E0Y
£9670%
OPEE0T
LTLTOT
69L707
9t€6%07%
80670%
9SCTI0T
S68707
8E6E0Y
6C9€07
€LBYVOY
69LV0V
ZCLEOY
LLOEOY
LESYOY
9ELVOY
BE6E0Y
9L9V0Y
0LSVOV
ZBEEOY
619707
TZ9%0%
6S6€07

00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 66T

# uosasd Dbas jued

: QWTL uny

9T/0€/T1T
Z9LTIg

£5048 D
2s0L8 D
TS0L8 4D
6v0L8 2D
8%0L8 D
L¥0L8 D
svoL8 D
vv0L8 2D
8€0L8 D
LeOL8 2D
TEOL8 D
s2T0L8 XD
76698 D
LL698 D
L6598 D
L9698 D
99698 MO
8%698 D
%698 O
8€698 D
89€698 MO
¥2698 D
12698 D
20698 XD
68898 D
8L898 XD
v6L98 D
8¥L98 D
€vL98 MO
8€L98 MO
SL998 O
¥2998 AD
TTI998 4D
8€598 MO
vev¥98 AO
6¥%¥98 O
S6T98 D
€L098 D
12098 D
£5658 MDD
L9LS8 D
T9LS8 O
S1¥S8 4D
TSTS8 D
666%8 D
06€€8 D
0ScE8  AD
LT6Z8 D
16528 2D
SLYZ8 MO
voveg MO
€L6T8 MD
LE6T8 D
(AN to]

# 3oaud di

: 93eqg uny
:ON 23xodey



0S°9¥%C Wd\hN\OH HLNHD HITIYEH TYNOILYdANDD0 90866 00 66T 8TTL8 O
00°6T 9T/LZ/0T DT HONILINSNOD NOLION  €9T%0% 00 66T LTILS D
00°9S 91/LZ/0T NI OD dWVILS ¥3ddNd VYAVAIN 42545 4 00 66T 9TIL8 XD
00°0€0’T 9T/LZ/0T HLTH TYNOILVYdNODO0 YAVAEN LSEVOD 00 66T STTL8 2O
7S°896 ‘% 91/LZ/0T SHOUNOSHYE NVWNH LdJ3d AEN €PETOT 00 66T PTITIL8 2D
00°2¢t wH\PN\oa ‘HHTIVIEY HONVE SNYILSNKW 889%07% 00 66T CTTIL8 MDD
€5°L28°€E 9T/LZ/O0T ID) S AONIDYEWZ TVJIDINAW ¥80€0¥ 00 66T TTTL8 AD
99°96 91/LT/0T JNTVA INJL FESAQCH ANNOW TL¥00T 00 66T OTTL8 MO
LT €L9 ST/LZ/0T OTT IOFIIA HOAYNOW 960E07 00 66T 60TL8 D
06°02 ST/LZ/OT 0D ¥OLOW TIHOH TIEVHOINW LS8Z0T 00 66T 80TL8 MAD
¥Z2°0TL 9T/LZ/0T NI SNOILATOS dDIAA0 OYLINW 880%0F% 00 66T LOTL8 AD
00°STS 9T/LT/0T WAASAW NOISNVW AWADVIW 69LV07 00 66T SOTL8 2D
00°S8Z°¢ 9T/LZ/0T D711 SINIHAE dANTE dINOIT COT?0¥ 00 66T SOTL8 MAD
PS TV 91T/LZ/0T ONI ISISSY-H4IT  0€0TOT 00 66T $0TL8 D
9% °6 9T/LT/OT NI SHOIAYES ENIT JHOVADNYI 9SEVOY 00 66T CO0TL8 O
6% °29C 91/LZ/0T LSEMATIN TTYINIX 68%¢0T 00 66T TOTL8 MO
00 886 9T/LZ/0T ¥V NVILSI¥HD ‘dHTHOAIN 868C€E0® 00 66T 00TL8 D
8% " 19¢ 9T/LZ/0T NI IDW OANI NIVINNOW NOXI G8800T 00 66T L60L8 XD
LL 96T 9T/LZ/0T SNOISSTIAWI FATLYAONNI OPEEOT 00 66T 960L8 D
86°0LOT WH\DN\OH HOIAYES LIAEY¥YD 1LOddd HWOH 688001 00 66T S60L8 XD
00 STV 9T/LZ/01 OHDS J¥YVM HIJYNOA DI¥OLSIH 9Z800T 00 66T Pe0L8 MO
00°G88°'1¥H 9T/LZT/0T SSIANISNd WHHMAIS HOIH 086V07% 00 66T £€60L8 MO
Z9°1€S 9T/LZ/0T 0D NOILOANISNOD ALINVED  9S800T 00 66T 160L8 MO
0098 9T/LT/0T HADNITED 668T0T 00 66T 060L8 MO
2Z°1L8’C wH\PN\OH WNATOILIE LES/ILYD NIATOD 968%0% 00 66T 680L8 MD
82 STT 9T/LT/0T ONI T3IOH TTIIH dT109 699%0% 00 66T 880L8 MO
0E"L6T 9T/LZ/0T d1 SYDTIIYdEA SL6E0Y 00 66T L80L8 D
€8°88T wH\bN\OH ONI SHSIYJYELNI NOSNDIAHA S8PTI0T 00 66T 980L8 D
SL"T9S 9T/LZ/01 DTT ‘SNOTIIYDINNWWOD DDA LSLYO0Y 00 66T S80L8 MO
88 " %S 9T/LT/0T ANYdNOD TYNHEILSYA 605707 00 66T ¥80L8 D
67°L88'6T ST/LZ/0T DONIYHEANIONE LSHEM dAYA STIZEOV 00 66T £€80L8 2D
2596 9T/LT/0T 0CD S0O¥d JdHEWIVA SLLOOT 00 66T 28048 D
00°00T wﬁ\bN\oa HOTAA0 AATAHHS 0D SYIHN0A ZZrEod 00 66T 080L8 MDD
£€0°98 9T/LZ/0T NOILYdOd¥0D S€U HSIdA S06207% 00 66T 6L0L8 AD
00°0ST S9T/LZ/0T g ¥QOWHEY ‘OZIAYWIA 781I%707¥ 00 66T 8L0OL8 D
00"66T 9T/LZ/01 ADVYL ‘SILIND I86¥%07% 00 66T 9L0L8 D
€P° QLS 9T/LZ/01 DONI A¥ES NOILDNAOAd dO¥D LPSEOD 00 66T SL0L8 D
0oe"8%e’T 91/LZ/0T OLNEWYIOVYS 40 ALNNOD CLE6FOY 00 66T ¥LO0L8 D
0E"98 9T/LZT/0T SNOILNTOS sNd D9SH 0DLSOD 0ZT000T 00 661 €L0L8 2D
LS T6V 9T/LZ/01 ATddNS ¥ SINVIVIS LSNOD £SSE0Y 00 66T ZL0L8 D
00°CTT 91/LZ/0T OTT TIIW dIod MDO0LSKWOD L8BEDY 00 66T TLOL8 D
00" 0OTT 9ST/LZ/0T IYANNOd AJILIWID MDOLSKOD 066€0¥ 00 6671 690L8 XD
No.mMN~ 9T/LZ/0T TTOS LNWONAW WODOd JALATAWOD 898¥%07% 00 66T 890L8 D
00°TS8°S 9T/LC/0T ANYdWOD ONIHSITANd HAd0D E€LSTOY 00 66T 290L8 D
00°00€ 9T/LZ/0T OXTd 40 ALID 9LE6VOY 00 661 g90L8 D
ow.wa~ ST/LZ/0T dTHSYIANLYYd ODTTIdD 89C€E0¥ 00 66T £€90L8 D
00°526°8S 9T/LT/OT NQJd DOIT8Nd dENO TYLIdVD C69¢t0% 00 66T T90L8 XD
S6°509 91/LZ/01 SLEYd OINV ALID TYLIAYD SLY00T 00 66T 0s0L8 D
£%"8TIC ST/LZ/0T TYNOISSEI0dd ® SSHENISNG £€9%00T 00 661 650L8 D
00" TIT¥® ST/LZ/O0T SIMIT LLODS ‘TIaddnNg TLO9EOY 00 66T 8S0L8 D
0Z° 9% 9T/LZ/0T DT "TYOICEW IFAIL ANNOE cL8VOY 00 66T LS0OL8 D
T6°LS mH\hN\OA ONI ANVYdWOD ¥3X¥Vd €Cd ZZ%00T 00 66T 96048 MO
26 67¢ 9T/LZ/0T ‘d'1 ‘STAOLS ANd LSEd £€897%0% 00 66T SS04L8 XD
86 °9T 9T/LZ/0T ONI 0D ATddNS HDATd ddHdEzd S8TEOV 00 66T ¥S0L8 D

Junouy 23eq Yo9uD sweN @2AoTdum/Iopusa # uosiad = baog jues # osun dL

9T/TI€/0T - 00/00/0 woxa
666666 ybnoIyl T #3(09UD woxa
s3)o9yD butpueilsang
ONILNAODOV S«¥HINSTHAL

€T:6€:60 : SWIL uUNd 9T/0€/TT : =3eg uny
ALNNOD ZXHYOLS

¢ 9beq ZoLTag :oN azodoy




€

abed

€2 PTT'S68

€2 FTIT 568
00°0S6°Z
28°CZT0‘T
00°0TP'T
LT 98%
€6 9¢EL
ESTEFPT'T
€L°0S
14701

T2 90%
00°88S
62 VLT 'E
007059
00°2Z00°€
05°590°2
ST ET

LE"TSZT'ZLS
€6 0%9
00°89L'T
0§ €LT

00° 00T
$9'LTE
00°00T
25°982°'6
85 °8LS'T
0006

00"SLT'TT
68 €8%
T9°9%2¢C
00"%0T
00°ScT
0068
S%"T0T

Junowy

:Te3o0L

:Te305 Juedg

ST/TE/0T
91/12/0T
91/12/0T
9T/ST/L
ST/80/%
S1/60/0T
ST/%1/8
¥1/ST/8
s1/LT/0T
9T/LZ/0T
sT/LZ/0T
st/LzZ/0t
ST/LZ/01
91/LZ/0T
8T/LZ/01
s1/LZ/0T
S1/LT/0T
S1/LZ/0T
91/L2/0T
ST/L2/0T
ST/LZ/0T
ST/LZ/0T
stT/LZ/0T
sT/L2/0T
9T/LZ/0T
ST/LZ/0T
s1/LZ/0T
91/LZ/01T
91/LZ/0T
91/LZ/0T
sT/LZ/0T
91/LZ/0T
9T/LT/01
9T /LZ/0T
ST/LZT/0T
ST/LT/0T
91/LZ/0T

@3ed@ }o°ud

9T/T€£/0T - 00/00/0
#3(02YD woxjg
s)oayp Butpueisang
DNILNNOOOVY SudIINSYINL
AILNNOD ZAFMOLS

666666 uybnoIul T

ONIINIVdA HIJITOAYE

L DEY¥D ‘gsHEH

LZTTYH# DOSSY ¥ALHOIA HAAIA
I1I0D ‘SSHH

HEONYANSNT HATT

dnind IFFAOTAWE /TYDICHN
SZT "SNI E4IT TYINOTIOD
¥9/NOILDITIOD HAZ AATIHHS
ENIHOYI A7T0M

Y1 TYLNIWNOAIANT NIILSHM
AJFS YOINIS AILNNOD HOHSYM
HO0IAA0 SAJATYIHS 0D HOHSYM
ONI S¥NO0L ALID WINIODAIA
0D ¥ dEIMONUL ® YINIDUIA
D11 YAYAEN A0 ALIWJOAINA
0T WAITOFILEd SYWOHL
ISNOH SNILSVYOY HHL

¥1SdL

LTVHASY N¥HLSEM HOHVYL
SHASTVAYIAINE AVHEd NNS
‘SNOILYDINNWWOD ¥YISZAVIS
DONYA ANV JO0d SHIIWS
YHINED DNFA 3 004 SHLINWS
ONI TOJYINOD ILSId VIJHIS
0D JIMOd DIATOVd VAFAIS
ANVAWOD TYOIWIHD VIJdHIS
OILYIDOSSY SHIAOTAWH OSOS
ONI SIDIA¥HES TVHOTD DdS
ONI ‘SYUFHAVEDOAL ONII
(¥D) ONI OD NVDIOW AVA
ONIINIVd dJATITOAYH

0D ¥AFINE ® HYIL TTIIDANG
NYId¥amMod

d OTHONY 'INT¥ILE4

W ISINOT ‘¥YNAJ

IS ® SDIHAWY¥D dAIS HHI NO
ONI LO4dd #DIAJ0

sueN @3AoTdug/Iopusp
woxg

€T°6£°60

696707
Z1T

T0S006
61T

ETTO006
LOTO06
TOZC006
S19006
L9V E0T
LETEOT
600€0T
2E6T0T
£68€07
¥68€E07%
z96¢01
S¥8¥0%
98L¥%0P
CSLY0V
8L6EVOT
Z68€0%
TL8%0%
SL6Y707F
¥8E€E0P
ZE€E9TOT
0E9TOT
S6STOT
698¥%0%
O0TZTOT
606%0%
LE6TOY
696707
8¥€00T
ZTE0E0T
S68E0¥
TL6VO0Y
0ZZ¢O0T
c8LZOT

# uosi=ag basg

66T
66T
66T
661
66T
661
66T
661
66T
66T
66T
661
66T
66T
661
66T
66T
66T
661
66T
66T
66T
66T
661
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
661
66T
66T
661
661
66T
66T

jueyg

SuTL und¥ 91/0€/TT

ZoLTag

09TL8 dA
€beESE  ud
cveESE ¥d
v61SE ¥d
€T0SE dd
vLLYE dd
SoLvE d¥dd
TeZvE d¥d
69TL8 D
8STL8 2D
LSTL8 D
9GTL8 D
$STL8 D
€STL8 O
CSTLB 2D
TSTL8 D
6¥1IL8 D
LPTL8 D
9%1IL8 O
SPTL8 2D
€PTLE D
8ETL8 AD
LETL8 D
SETL8 MDD
Ye€1ILe MO
E€E€TL8 2D
CEIL8 D
TETL8 MO
0ETL8 D
LTTL8 D
9ZTL8 D
SZTIL8 MO
¥CTIL8 D
C¢TIL8 D
TZTL8 D
0ZTIL8 AD
6TTL8 D
# >oayud di
: @3ed uny
:oN 3xoday



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: December 6, 2016 Estimate of time required: 0 min

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

For possible approval: Accounts payable claims dated 10/27/2016 for $919,259.40 and
$9,053.98, dated 10/31/2016 for $2,950.00, dated 11/10/2016 for $1,729,184.86 and
$6,855.95 and dated 11/23/2016 for $193,898.73 and $13,371.82. Payroll claims dated
10/26/2016 for $4,603.53, dated 11/03/2016 for $132,010.86, dated 11/03/2016 for
$76,087.45, dated 11/04/2016 for $479,250.27 and 11/18/2016 for $370,472.56.

2. Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006

4. Staff summary: Please find attached the claims
5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: NA Fund: NA _NA_ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
_NA_ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
ﬁ Department Head Department Name: Comptroller

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action;
[] Approved
[1] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

~r—
[S— S—

Agenda Item No. bﬂ



T

€V 81C

00" TTY

0z 9%
T6°LS

Z6°6%¢E

B6°9T
36° %2
E6°90€

SO0°6EE

88°SLT

66°TT

vL78ST

poozL'zL

oL vt

TV.LOL
ADIHD

abeg

LTS
66" ¢C
£2°002
ZE'LE
98" €YP
69° %1
Ze° 06
96°SZ
-6S'2T
66'8
86°'%C
65732
86°'LT

£v'812
05" Z8¢E
0S'ET
00°ST
02 9%
T6'LS
66766
66°66
P6° 671
86791
96°ve
€6°90€

S6°S0T
0T €E€2

88°00T
00°SL

66°T1

S0 12
¥S° 8%
Yy EY
ZS8° 01
Zs'91
LLs

06°6

00°0zZL 2L
0552

SL°Le
SY 1L

LNNOWY

TZs8L
TTS8L
TZS8L
TZS8L
12s8L
TZSs8L
12S8L
1ZS8L
TZS8L
TZS8L
T2S8L
TZS8L
12s8L

£298L
BLSBL
8LSBL
8LSBL
T198L
6T98L
vzoeL
vzoeL
vZ98L
L9S8L
SbSeL
oT98L

LLSBL
LLSBL

vOS8L
8098L

6Z98L

61S8L
6TS8L
6TS8L
LO98BL
L0OS8BL
LO9BL
LO39BL

8vS8L
9098L

9098L
9098L

#SNWAEL

9t/Lz/ot
9T/Le/oT
91/LZ/0T
9t/LzZ/0T
9t/Lz/ot
9t/Lz/otT
91/LZ/0T
91/LZ/0T
91/L2/01
st/Lz/ot
91/LzZ/0T
9T/LZ/0T
9t/Lz/oT

91/L2Z/0T
9T/Lz/0T
9t/Le/oT
91/LZ/0T
9T1/LZ/01
91/LZ/0T
at/Lz/ot
9t/eLz/ot
91/LZ/0T
9t/LzZ/0T
91/L2/0T
9t/LeZ/0T

91/Lz/0T
9t1/Lz/0T

9t/Le/ot
gt/Le/ot

9tT/LZ/0T

91/LZ/0T
9T/LZ/0T
91/Lg/0T
91/LZ/0T
9t/Lz/0T
9t/Lez/ot
9t/Lez/oT

9t/Lz/0T
9T/LzZ/0T

9T/LZ/0T
9tT/LZ/0T

3LYd

QYET LTIY ZYLEGME
USANFHSTAE ¥IV -dOHS
YOLVIQYY 0TE9SOS
LOFNNOD ¥IOW MOTHE ZPLESMA
SYALTII-MOTd 9%0TEMA

d¥D SVOD-ESTSZMA
SdWYT-ENIY¥d

HOLIMS -0TS93¥d

T¥das TI0 »ZZ8¥Md

ANTO MOTd JYIV-dOHS

A8 FSNd 0TS99

WYHD OXWNE JIY¥ -MOT4 I¥L
VILTIL INVIO0D 8¥PSSHMd

QISUNESTA INIWHS INAYD

910Z ‘61-9 LJO

$dITddNS SWA

J3IW YIINNODTHIEEAO FLYANI
ALNJFIA ¥Od VHIWVYD

ALNdEd ¥O0d VEIWYD

SAYYD AYOWIN * WAIWYD
HOLVT WOOYHIWE-DSOA
SFOIA¥IS FONZTUFTANODATHL

SE1TddNS SHA

2008 DA JIINAYH
SMO08 VWZNUNOE ‘LIA AN

ONILSHL LHOI¥M
TYOISAHd 1TAD ZIT3dS

HD
dOHS
dOHS

A¥ANOYT ¥L 1S
A¥4ANOVYT SL 1S
AYQNOVYT 2L 1S
A¥ANOVYT TL IS

(0TP00-2Z005) LSTHILNT LIA
SEITddNS SKIE

SEITddNS SKIE
SEITddNS SK3

NOILAI¥OSIQ ZDOIOANI

9T/LZ/0T ¥ALSIODAE NDIHO

ALNNOD AZIOLS

SLAVd OLOY ALID TIYLIAYO

TYNOISSAAONd % SSIANISNH

SIMIT 110DS ‘TTIIYANA
OTT “1I¥OIdIW FFAL ANNOE

ONI ANVAWOD dEMIVE €04

*d"1 ‘STIOLS ANE LSEE
ONI 0D ATddns 2078 ¥IDYEH
IA¥IS HONEMHINOODITIL LPIV

TYNOILVNYIINI MOUAY

ONI ONIHSITENd YIAVOIV

SSANTTEM ANV HIIVIH D¥VY

dT ENVd0dd SYITHUIWY

ONI 0DS1IV¥Y

EDNUNIJS 4INd3 T TVIIAYD

ONI NON SWOXEIV
YOANFIA

91/92¢/01
Stletdd

osoce

650L8

BsoLe
LsoLs

asoLe

§S0Le
¥soLs
gsoce

zsoLs

TsocLe

osoLs

670L8

B%0LE

LyoLS

9voLs

AFEWNN
ADIHD

93eQ uny

ON 7330day



80'LZ 9zZseL 9T/L2/0T SITINSIVD OIVH-706850S
ONI XAT1ddNS 0OILO¥W LIOITIE T80LS

00°00T 00°00T €T968L  9T/LZ/0T NOSNVY SS¥ID Old
FITIIO0 JITIFIHS 0D SVIHNOA 080L8
£0°98 €0°98 LIS8L  9T/LZ/0T IND COOMYDOT HONVAIYEJ008
NOILWIO4¥0D S8A HSIA sL0L8
00°0ST 00°0ST 8z98L  9T/LZ/0T ONILIXUYW / LNZD0A
g ANOWNY ‘OZAYWIA BLOLS
S56° %S S56° %S sT98L  9T/LZ/0T ¥ELYM YL IS
ONI ¥Sn SHOIVA LLoL®
00°66T 00°66T 0¥98L 9T/LZ/OT ISHL ¥INIWVXE SNYId SEH
AOWEl ‘SILEND 9L0L8
€¥°SLS €¥°SLS szseL  9t/Lz/0T INVTd -TONINOD QIIM
ONI A¥ES NOILONQO¥d dO¥D SLOLS
0€°8%E'T 0€E"8¥E'T T958L  9T/LZ/0T YOTO009T SILALS
OINIWYHOVS 30 AINNOD YLOLB
0€°98 86°8T $988L  91/LZ/01 SA17ddns 20
TETLY $9S8L  9T/LZ/OT SdI74d0S 00&F
SNOILNTOS Snd JESH ODIS0D €L0LB
LS T6® LS T6% vZS8L 9T /LZ/0T TYA AIVD-104 MOWAD 0DITUD
A1d4NS ® SINVIVAS LSNOD ZLOLB
00°2ZTT 00796 0BS8L  91/LZ/0T
00791 08S8L  9T/LZ/0T 9102 ‘6T-9 1DO
OT7 TIIW A7T09 MDOLSWOD TLOLE
05°99%°81 00°252'81 Zv98L  9T/LT/O0T IXdL NOIISIND IOTIVE
05 9¢€T TY9EL  9T/LT/0T 934 JO0 FSOTD
00°8L Zv96L  9T/L2/0T ATETIVAY S¥ELOA 40 ISIT
(DA) HTDINO¥HD MDOLSWOD oLoLs
00°0TT 00°0TT 6LSBL  9T/LZ/0T 9102 ‘6T-9 12O
IVANNOS AYEALEWAD XDOLSWOD 690L8
Z0°SEZ ¥8 LY TS98L  9T/LZ/OT QYOF¥ ANI DI¥OLSIH - WId
BT LSBT Ts98L  9T/Lz/0T LTL-T6SPZT ¥N/ATY WII-DIW
TOS LNWONW WNDOd HALATAWOD 890L8
£€°562°¢C £€€°S62°C £€598L  9T1/LZ/0T 9102 1d43S INV¥DTISAOLSNSA
ONI ISEHED ALINAWAWOD LSOLB
00"TG8'S 00°TSB'S 9%98L  91/LZ/OT ST# ZLVA&N
ANYEWOD SNIHSITENE FA0D 390L8
00°00€E 00°00€E 2198L  91/LZ/0T DNINITNL
OMTE A0 ALID S%0L8
sL°29 SL°Z9 SLseL  9t/Lz/OT X¥M ¥00Td TIVL
ATddNS AVYLINYS TYALNZED 790L8
08258 z0°s 8IS8L  91/LZ/0T TO000-S6002SZL6 TEVOUIV
T0" 0¥ 8%¥98L  91/LZ/OT HONH
2008 €E98L 9t/Lz/ot FOIANES TTIED AVAI LI
10° 0% 9vS8L 91/LZT/0T NILLIHM d ZTOBS-E¥YY SLL
€0°02T EZSBL  9T/LZ/0T a¥dI T0000-290€92ZLL
T9°L9T €£2S8L 9t/Lz/o1 EIVTIE OBTL-T¥L-SLL
60°09¢€ »198L  91/LZ/0T T0000-LT9LS0Z¥6 LIOW
10°0% v198L  9T/LZ/0T 10000-Z08LEOZP6 LOOW
dIHSYENIYVYE 0DTTHD £90L8
00°20S’0¢ 00°20S’0€ ZZSBL 9t/Lz/ot S¥IAVd MUV -SANNI HOLYW
%3 DNIAYOSANYT ITIANISSYD zT90L8
00°526°8S 00°526'8S LYS8L  9T/LT/0T {TTP00-Z00S) LSEEILNI L3A
aNnd DITENd ENO TYLIdYD 190L8
56509 8Y PIT 1ZS8L  9T/LZ/0T AINTd N1 -ENI¥E
8E" ¥ T2s8L 9T/Lz/0T ONTd JIAUAS QAEM
TYLIOL INQORWY #SNWAL A1¥a # 0/d NOIIJI¥OSIA ADIOANI YOANIA FIFWAN
XJEHD MOEHD
9T/LZ/0T ¥ILSIDIE MDIHD 91/9¢/01 : @3eqg uny

4 abea ALNNOD AHAUOLS STE€TEd *ON 3z0day




27T IO¥N0S TILI 8e0L8

8Y°T92 87" 19¢C gsseL  9tr/Le/ot ZTOSNOD NIE QI¥HS 2/1
NI I9W OdNI NIV.LNOOW NO¥I LEOLE
LL" 962 LL"962 S6SBL 9t/Lz/oT SNZd
SNOISSTUAWI FATLYAONNI 960L8
86°0LO'T ze'88 9€98L  9T/LZ/OT HOIVd ¥1d ATddNS ONINVITID
L6 6E £¥S8L  9T/LZ/0T T4E¥ LHOIT ¥AWZ-N¥Ed SOLT
L9881 £¥58L  9T/LZ/0T TYOIRLIDITE - MEWWYIS
LY LOT €vSeL  9T/LZ/0T SA¥0D ® FAVL -dOHS
S0°6T gpseL  9t/Lz/OT SYESI¥ ¥ SUATANIUIS
00'LZ9 86s8L  91/Le/o01 1ddd 90T€ A0A SI00UT WAOLS
FOIA¥ES LICEED LO4EA ZFWOH S60LEB
00°STV 00°9T I888L  9T/LZ/0T
05" VEZ IBSEL at/Le/otT
0S*LST 1868L  9T/LZ/0T
00t I858L  91/LZ/0T 9102 '6T-9 1DO
OHOS (MUWM HIWNOI DINOLSIH P60L8
00°588°T¥ 00°588°1¥ 6E98BL  9T/LZ/OT MIHSINIA /M ISESS HSIWAOD
SSEANISNE W¥IEIS HOIH £60L8
0§°z02Z 05" z0zZ L¥98L  9T/LZ/0T 00°S% X §°'%
WOL ‘ZJIESNYED z60Ls8
Z9°1ES Z9° TE€S vESBL  9T/LT/OT FTIN 9 ¥Od HOLVA
0D NOILDNMISNOD HLINVED T60LS
00°98 00°98 oese8L  9T/LZ/OT MANA qO¥-N¥E SAENIW
HIONIVED 060LB
zZZ TLe'Z 0Z°6¥%9 8ZS8L  9T/Lz/OT INA %3 IS -M1
91" %56 8ZSBL  9T/LT/OT NN 3 1S -I¥L
98" E8Y 8zZseL  9T/LZ/0T T8a 3 TINA - IAL
00" ¥8L gzseL  9t/Lz/0T 15a 3 INA-MT
WNATOULId 1dS/IL¥VO NEATOD 680L8
8Z°STT 82°STT 62568L  9T/LZ/0T aNNagy¥ LISOdEA
ONI TH1OH TIIH aTI09 880L8
0E-"LET 9L EET TLs8L  9T/LZ/OT ANYdOo¥d TIVL
7S €9 TLSBL  9T/Lz/01 ANYA0¥d EDIA40 SSIANISNg
dT SYDTTIFYIA LBOLE
£8°88T €8 88T s968L  9T/LZ/0T OILVINSNI FAId -dOLS LSEN
ONI SHSIVA¥ZEINZ NOSNDUEES 980L8
SL°T9S SL™T9S vSSEL  9T/LZT/0T TIVL NO 319¥D
D11 ‘SNOILVOINNWWOD 204 SBOLB
88° %S 85°6 9198L  9T/LZ/0T SHINALLVE WYY
[FRN-3 4 LZTS8L 9t/Lz /0T SONILLI-
ANVAWOD TYNILSYI 780L8
69" L8B'6T 69 LBB'6T sSs8L  9t/Lz/0T DEASNI 2 WD dWI ¥AMIS DA
ONINZTANIONE ISIM ¥V £680L8
25°96 zZ5°96 €958L  91/Le/0T YEALNAD QOOMND0T -EFII00
00 SO¥H YIAWIVYA Z80L8
AN AT AR 05" 92T 9zseL  9t/LzZ/OT LIM YOLOW Z¥LESMA
T6°T¥L 9zseL  91/Lz/0T YOLYIAYY-0TE9S0S
0¥° 022 9zs8L  91/LZ/0T Dd4S9 TAC FAIA
09" %S 9zZs8L  91/LZ/0T arnTd SNYYL-506850S
T8'88T 9zs8L  91/LZ/0T aHO8 TAA MOTd -9V0TEMI
96" T8T 9zs8L  9T1/LZ/0T INYW INI ‘dOSNIS-OHNINNVII
09°S¢L 92s8L  91/LT/0T AT0 ENVEE 'ZZEIFIV 0TEISOS
78 €Y 9zs8L  91/LZ/0T anLs AINYW-TEISOS
¥%° 9L 9zs8L  91/LZ/0T LI¥ NYW LSNVHXE-0TE€950S
00°SL 9zs8L  91/LZ/0T 02713d DVY-dOHS
TYIOL LNOOWY #SNVIL aLVa % 0/d NOILIdT¥DSEA ZDIOANI YOANIA YIERNN
ADFHO MOEHD
91/LZ/0T ¥ILSIDIY MDIHD 9T/92/0T * @3eq uny
¢  @obeq AINNOD AZ¥OLS STETEd :ON 3x0day




00°0¢% 8€98L 9t/Lz/oT LT/2T-LT/1 S3anA

00°0se £V98L 9T/LzT/0T VSSENVA ‘SNZHAILS
QDVN ETTILE
00°2T 00" 21 98S8L 91/LZ/0T 910Z ‘61-9 LDO
‘HATIVIENY HONYY ONVLSNW ZITILS
€S°LT8'E S0° 589 8T98L 9T/Lz /0T ASYHDANS INVED D4Y
8% Z%T € 8T98L 91/LZ/0T ONYNEINIVN LNSWdINOH
1D) S AONIDYIWA TYdIDINNK T1TL8
99°96 ¥6" 1P 0098L 9t/Lz/otT INIYE AV¥dS FONVEO
00°'0€E S098L 9t/Le/ot AVAYE ONIINNOW ¥O0d O¥WDTIA
[AA 44 0Z98L 9t/LZ/0T $4171ddNS ONILVAEHO
FNTYA ENUL FSNOH ANNOW 0TTLE
LT €E9 00°0€ €ESBL 9t/Lz/ot WIONITATEES AWYIS ANVYION
LT €09 EESBL 91/LT/0T STIIE YOI SWNOJI
DTT LOEAIA HOUYNOW 60TLS8
06°02 06°02 ZzvssL  9t/Lz/0T TEZEE -¥27€ YL 8YZBYXE
0D YOIOW THOH TIWHOIW 80TLB
vZ otL £€9°SET zSS8L st/Lz/ot SYALHOITHOIH ‘" ¥IAVA
0L €%T 2SS8L 9T/LZ/0T AFd¥d AJOD
v9° LY ¥LSBL 91/Lz/0T SdND WYOod
L8'9ST $LSEL 9t/Lz/0T 100 HM ‘SHLON ‘S¥YANETVD
2Z°L1T 66S8L 9T/LE /0T SHEITd4NS FOIAI0
€0°91 €098L 9t/Le/ot
ST €6 £098L 9t/Le/oT
NI SNOILANTOS FDIJI0 O¥IZEW LOTLE
00°STS 00°08Z S8S8L 9T/LZ/0T
00°sz2 S8S8L 91/LZ/0T
00°0T S8S8L 9t/Le/ot 910Z ’‘6T1-9 1DO
WNESOAW NOISNYW AWMOYW 90TL8
00-ssz‘e 00°S8Z°T £8S8L 9T/LZ/0T
2717 SINIAE FNTE dINOIT S0TLE
PSTTT® ¥8°2T LT98L 9t/Lz/0T SEITdENS SUE
¥6°L¥E LTI98L 9t1/Lz/0T SHI14dNS SWE
9L" 0S LT98L gt/Le/ot SHI71ddNS SKWE
ONI LSISSY-3411 vOTLS
00°0GL 00°0SL YHI8L 9T /Lz/0T NOSMHANTH A¥d OL ¥HA¥O
¥ I¥IE0Y ‘NAVET €0TLB
9v°6 Iv°6 IAZLTA 9t/Le/ot < SBYILIT/BEN
NI SFOIAYIAS ENIT HOWNONYT ZOTLS
6%°292 6%°292 ZESBL 9t/Lz/otT UMA¥YH DSIW
LSEMAIN TIVEWIX TOTLB
00°886 00°L Z8S8L 91/Le/otT
00°8SS Z28s8L 9t1/Le/oT 910Z ‘61-9 LDO
00°S0% z8s8L 9t/LE/0T
00°8T z28s8L 9t/LZ/0T
¥ NVILSI¥HO ‘¥dTHDOIIN 00TLE
86 "6€T 6S°LS TES8L 91/L2/0T AATYA SYOTEMA
6€°28 TESSL 9t/Lz/0T JIHSYM-MOTE IJL-BPPSSMI
011 d&r 660L8
T9°LsS0’8 0€E"6¥E’C ZE9BL 9t/Le/ot LEN F¥0D HOLIMS HO FAVI€
09°L9T'T zg98L 91/LZ/0T addds ST0Z DA O¥d 3I80QV
S8 LLZ Z€98L 9t/Lz/ot IIM INIVW INI¥d MOEHD dH
€8°958°'¢E zZE98L 9t/Le/oT INIVW MS TUNNNY E¥YMAA
0S°LL ZE9BL 9tr/Le/ot YA € ALNVNYYM HOLIMS dH
S0 w02 ZE98L 9t/Le/ot1 FAOVIdTY / JYIVdEd CH
8% %21 ZE9BL 9t/LZ/0T ¥IdV¥d LOTd SIYW MAOMIAN
TYIOL LNNOWY #SNVIL JLVA # 0/d NOIIdI¥YOSEA FDIOANT AOUNZEA YTEWON
MOHEHD MOEHD
9T/LZ/0T ¥ILSIDIAY MDIHD 91/92/0T ajeq uny

v efeq ALNNOD AH¥OLS ST€TEd :ON 3I0day




S

8S 8LS'T

00°06
€L°2T
00°66

8% LEE
00°00T
00" ESY
00°SLT'TT

6B EBY

19°9%22
96°S18
007701
00°sz

00°68

3Y°T0T

05°9%2
00°6T
0095

00°0€0°T

PS 896’V
00002
TYL10L
ADEHD

abeg

€6 %Y
€6 VY
62788
80°TL
ZL-sez
TE"CE
91°S0T
ETAR 4 4-]

BE ELS
0Z°SoL

00° 06
€L°C1
00766

8V LEE
00°00T
00" €SV
00°SLT'TT

S6°L6T
v6 582

19°veeT
95°S18
00" %0T
00°SZ

00°0¢
00°6T

9v €2
00" 8L

0S°9%Z
00°6T

00°8S

00002
007002
00°00S
00°DET

¥5 896’7

LNOOWY

€SS8L
£SSBL
€5S8L
£5S8L
€588L
£5S8L
£ESS8L
£S5S8L

9958L
99s8L

2s98L
0Zs8L
€6858L
6098L
9ESBL
SE9BL
6¥98L

TyS8L
T¥S8L

SESS8L
SZ98L
BBSBL
Z9S8L

9SS8L
2Z98L

0£98L
S6S8BL

TZS8L
BESBL
LBSBL
T098L
L6SBL
T098L
039S58L

ZLS8L

#SNYHEL

91/LZ/0T
91/LE/0T
91/LZ/0T
9t/Lz/ot
9t/Lz/ot
at/Lz/ot
9t/Lz/ot
91/LZ/0T

9t/Lz/ort
9t/Lz/ot

9T/LZ /0T
9T/LZ/0T
91/LZ/0T
91/L2/0T
9t/Lz/ot
91/LZ/0T
91/LT/0T

91/LZ/0T
9t/Le/01

9t/Le /0T
91/LZ/0T
9t/Lz/ot
9t/LzZ/0t

9t/Lz/0t
9t/Lz/ot

9t/Lz/ot
9t/Le/ot

9t/Lz/ot
gt/Le/ot
9t/Lz/ot
9T/LZ/0T
9T/LZ/0T
st/Lz/ot
st/Lz/ot

91/LZ/0T

aLva

9a1d @i TIOL 0€T
dOLSISEY LS O N 1I8E
LIIND LS O N SvT

STY 0¥ LHOIHMI¥YD C18Z

¥ 1S AYM NOANYD TEP
FISHAWNd LHOTYMI¥YD 0192
LHOIT LS SUENCISSINWOD OS
SLHOIT LS ALID WINIDVIA

d3d s VYOTHO
d3d ¥ AOTHD

INA A * JYILAIVO '€
z/1 ONITENd I¥L
SAJ¥OLS0d

aoOMydO0T ¥04 INIVE
dZgTEI-¥ ¥ TIIO0 gISO
LEEYLS 2 WWOD-UHILOD
FSNOH ILANOD ONIINIVA

YIVdEy HYIL 0Ty ar
YIVdIY JAIL $9SENUA

W3SSY ONIY¥4S-¥IAYOT dar
SITIALIVE ¥¥d HAIT
9102 ‘61-9 LDO

JLS609T NAINW

ETOIHEA MT d0d SOIHAWED
S# LNWNQAH

SONILIZW ¥Od SaAd
a¥sn 1IJddEd SA00H LdIdFDEA

TYOISAHd TAA MEN NOANIX
JWIT -dLMM

SIOAYE TWYN JAYLS

SAHd INEWAEDOVIdEd¥d JLYWNI
SAHd INIWIOVId 3¥d HWYNI
SAHd INIWIOVIdTdd ILVWNI
ON¥A/TYDISAHA LOd

HOIWW ALNNOD ILd3ES

NOILAI¥DSEU EDIOANI

9T/LZ/0T ¥ALSIODAN MIOFHD

ALNNOD AZUOLS

0D ¥IAMO4 DIAIDWE WA¥IIS

ANVANOD TYOIWIHD W¥IIIS
OILYIDOSSY SHIAOTIWE 0SDOS
ONI SEDIA¥ES TVEOTD DES
ONI 'SYFHAVYOOAL ONIA
LYYW INIVd ONZA

dOIA¥ES TIO NIVHA ONIYd
(¥D) ONI 0D NUYDYOW iAWY

ONIINIVd JFJ4ITOAVA

0D ¥EEdN¥ ¥ H¥IL T17TE0dENd
NV 1d¥IM0d

ONI TOYLNOD OISAHd

a OTIONY ‘INIMLEd

W ISINOT ‘¥N3d

IS ® SOIHAWND ZQIS EHL NO

ONI 10d3d IDIJA0
HINZD HITVIH TYNOILYdINDOO
OJTT ONILTINSNOD NOLEON

NI 0D dWVIS ¥YIEENY VAVASIN

HLITH TYNOILYANDD0 VYAVASIN
SEDINOSTA NYWAH LdEd AIN
EOANIA

9T/92/01
STETHEd

YETLE

EETLS
CETLS
TETLS
0ETLS
62TL8
BZTILS
LTTLS

9TTILE

SZTLR
vTTLE
€2TL8
[AATA ]

TeTLe

ozZiLe

6TTLS
8TITLE
LTTLE

9TTL8

STTLS
yiILe

IENAN

ADIHD
23eQ uny
ON 3axoday



05" €LZ PE9BL 91/Lz/01 ENOHd ¥IINNOD
SNOILYDINNWWOD AVLSZAVLIS EPTLE

087901 08°90T SPIBL 91/Lz/01 LITBEEQO NAV
ANANSYAAL 0D IS ZYILS
Z9°BZE'T 88" €RE 9LSBL 9T/LZ/0T IJOdSNYEL FIWNNT
YL %96 9LS8L 9t/Lz/ot IYOISNYIL FIWWNI
HONVINEWY 0D IS TVTILS
25 9% Z5°9% z098L 9tr/Lz/otT LNVILDHJINISIA TIVC
III £ DINIWOQ ‘3EINOTIVAS OFTLS
0T"8E2'T 0T-"8€Z'T T6S6L 9t1/Le/0T dOHS 1JID ¥Od NID WID
S % INIM SYIZVTO NVIHLAOS 6ETLB
00°00T 00°00T LESSL 9t/Le /0T aNnagd LISOdEa
HN¥A ANV d00 SHLIWS BETLB
v9°LZE ¥9°LZE 69S8L ST/LeZ/0T SNOILVOIQEW FLVANI
¥AINED 9N¥A ¥ dO0d SHLIWS LETLS
00°G99'T 00°599°T 6PSEL 9T/LZ/0T INIVdEYE NYEENENS #002
SEIULSNANI FIVLIS IFATIS 9ETLE
00°00T 00°0S ELSBL 9t/Le/ot TOOMXD0T TOUINOD LSEd
00°0S ELSBL 9t/Le/ot TOOMAJ0T TOELNOD LSEd
ONI TOYINOD LSEd WI¥IIS SETLE
zs 9eZ'e Zy 96T £GS8L 9t/LZ /0T JSHAEIA LHOIVMIAYD 0192
ET"2ES €SSBL 9t/Le/ot (NIVINNOd)a3d a¥ TIOL 00T
TL°¥6 €SSBL 9t/Le /0t SIHOIT ¥LS HO 40 NMOL
Z6°19 €SS8L 9T/LZ/0T ¥ 40 € /1S NOINN 09T
S9°EE £SS8L 9T /LZ /0T M¥Yd Q¥ HONWY I¥Ed 000T
[4 34 £SS8L 9t/LZ/0T AIVd HOA Q¥ FUIAWE Tv1Z
BS"BLT £SS8L 9tL/Le/ot ¥ LINN AM NOANYD 02Z%
8STLOT £568L 9t/Lz/0t € LINN AYM NOANYD 0C%
6L°8S €SG8L 9tT/LZ/0T I8 O N S8T
0L" 586 €S58L 9t/Le/ot ¥A NA¥Ed SOLT
LLTETT €5S8L 9T/LZ /0T Q¥ HONWYY I¥3d 008
86°€0T £SG8L 9t/Lz/0t SIHOIT IS 3 S 1€S
80" v6 €558L 9t/Lz /0t SILHOIT IS O S 2Z¥E
06°L9 €SS8L 9t/Lz/0t SILHOIT IS O N 9LT
¥¥°S509 €£5898L 91/LZ/01 HSNOHIYNCD 1S € § 92
€E"SSZ'T E£SSBL 9t/Lz/ot NOANYD ZTIN XIS 02ZZ
PE 6P £568L 9t/LzZ/0T L04dd HO IINA 1S NIVW
TV 90V €SS8L 9T/LZ /0T (ONINIVEL) IS 2 N TI%T
6Z°Sv¢C €SS8L 9T/LZ/0T SHE¥Id LS O N
€5°Z€ €SG8L 9t/Lz/0T AYVATIVE 1S NOSHYD
0T°92T €GG8L 9t/Lz/ot OA LINQ 1S D §
LE"LE €5S8L 9t/Lz /0T IHOIT T¥d/J00dLNO IS 2 §
66° TV €£SS8L 91/Lz/0t IS O ZLE/OA 1INN IS O S
6E°ZE ESSBL 9t /Lz/0T FOWIYD IS &€ § HOT
LT 0€ €558L 9t/Lz/0T 1S NOLLNS
[4 A4 £€SS8L 9tT/LT/0T d¥¥d DA LS & N S02
BE LY €598L 9T/LZ/0T whw 4 HENIAVYE IYINWAS 00S
82°SST £SGRL 9T /LZ/0T OWTISYD 1S D S 12
68°¥€E9 €558L 9t/Lz /ot INTd ¥IM LS HINOS MOOT
19°81 £SSEBL 9t/Lez /0t A¥Yd  SNIWETO WVS 06
6%°988 £S5S8L 9T/LZ/0T TIVL T¥%E AMH SN 116
99°L8 £558L 9T/LeZ/0T 0s LS D § so02
8L 08 €558L 9T/LZ/0T OS LS D S E0T
LE VL ESSE8L 9T/Lz/0T ¥a LS O S 102
00-902 €£9S8L 9T/L2/0T Z/T dOHS Q¥ TT0L 00T
96°T0T €SS8L 91/LZ/0T 9071 Q¥ TIOL 01T
IYI0L LNNOWY #SNWAL JLVd # 0/d NOILAI¥YDSIA FDIOANI JOANZIA ATEWAN
ADHHD ADHHD
91/L2/0T ¥HLSIOIY MOIHD 9T1/92/01 : ®3eQ uny

9  eobeq AINNOD ATHOLS STETEd :ON 3z0dey




L

0% 6SZ°616
TZ°90%

00°88S

62°%LT’C

007 0S8
00°999°1

00°Z00°E

05°590°2

SZTET

EE°69S'T

EE"ST8
00°0ST

55°926°9

LE"ZTST'ZLS
£6°0%S

00°89L°T

€£97°29€‘1
0S"ELT
TYLIOL
XOEHD

abeg

TYLOL SMDZHD
127907

00°0s¢
00" BEE

09°LSY'T
69°9TL’T
00° 0S8

00°999°T

00" BT
00°9TT T
0o-o00Z’1
00°00%
00°89¢2
00° ¥

0S° 21T
00"T6L'T
0o-1e
00° 2L
0076
STTET

6L° 56
PSUELY'T

EE"S18
00°DST

08 ZEE'T
SLE6S'Y
LEg-egse’'zLs
£6°0%9
00°Z9€E‘T
00" 2v

00" %2E
00°9¢€

00" ¥

£€9°Z9€'1

INOOWY

ovsS8L

6ESBL
6€S8L

LEIBL
LEIBL

BSBL
TSS8L

¥658L
v6S8L
v6S8L
76S8L
PeS8L
v6s8L

£65S8L
E6S8L
€6S8L
£658L
€658L
oLsS8L

6558L
6558L

89S8L
06S8L

0ss8L
0SS8L

0s9s8L
vPS8L
T6S8BL
26S8L
Z6S8L
26S8L
TES8L

LZ98L

H#SNVAL

9t/Lz/ot

st/Lz/ot
9t/Lz/ot

91/LZ/0T
9tT/LZ/0T

9t/LzZ /0T
9T/LT/0T

9t /LZ/0T
9t/Lz/ot
9t/Lz /ot
9t/Le/ot
9r/Lz/ot
at/Lz/ot

91/LZ/01
91/L2/0T
91/Le/0T
91/Le/01
91/L2/0T
9r/Lz/ot

st/Lz/ot
9t/Lz/oT

9T/LET/0T
9t/Lz/ot

9t/Lz/ot
9t/Lz/ot

91/LZ/0T
91/LZ/0T
9T/LZ/0T
91/LZ/0T
9T/L2/0T
9T/L2/0T
91/LZ/0T

9T/LZ/0T

JIva

XOHIVAD AUVIINYIA -JIMES

NVOS di0I
7T0S dSNS "'OYLINHd4 “TOEd 20

91702 LdES STVEW QOOMMDOT
9T0Z SNV STVEW JdOOM3D0T

SNEFAIS ONAd

SEDIANES LSIAHE0T

9102 ’'9T LJO-vZ 43S

9T0Z ‘61-9 LDO

910Z ‘61-9 LDO

FDaVE HWVN NOSNVA

ISA -HOA
1sSa » 2FJ-Md

TIVL SEENLXIA IHOIT

ONILINIVd FSNOHI¥N0D
LOELTHOAV XINNY

vH# WIVTID

LIVYHdSY

9102 ‘61-9 IDO

SHIMELLYE AINEND

NOILJI¥OS3IA FDIOANI

91/LZ/0T ¥WIALSIDIY MDIHD

AINNOD AZTIOLS

GNIHOVW J4TOM

YT TYINIWNOAIANT NATLSEM

A¥IS ¥OINFIS ALNNCD FTOHSWM
FDIJI0 SJITYIHS 0D ZOHSUYM

SELYIDOSSY ¥ ¥EITVM

ONI S3NOL ALID VINIDHEIA

0D ¥¥ FIANOOUL ¥ WINIDAIA

OTT YAVYAEN 40 ALIW3OAINN

OTT WNETOULEd SVWOHL
dRILYINIIEL

ZSNOH DNIISVO¥ FEL

ONI dn0¥9 .J4Nd FHL
YISaL

LIYHISY N¥IISIM FOHV.L

SASTUAYILING MVIE NOS
TYOIAIW ¥ENXALS
YOANIA

91/92Z/0T

6STLE

8STLS

LSTLS
9STLS

SSTLE

YSTLE

€STL8

¢STLS

1STLs

0STLE

6vILS

sviLe

LYyTLE

9vILE

SPILR
yviLe
AHEWON

ADEHD
a3eq uny

STETEd :ON 3x0dsy



T

86 €506

86° €506

TYIOL
a¥vd

a2beg

9L° S8
9L 00T
9L°S6
00°S8
0008
66°LE
66°62
-00°sT
8e"SL
Z6° €99
96°1S%
00°6SC
00° St
89°9
§S°6S
6S°¥¥S
68 EL
00°0T
69709
L6°8
YLOLY
ss° 11
£€6° 1T
S6°ve
£L°58¢
0o-2se’z
0066
81°8¥%S
6T°LL
S0°S€T
00°SET
00991
S6°6T
00°0%2
ZL 9T
00°LE
99°8S
81°92
886V
SLTTITI
8681
P8 6€
BZ°S6
00°S6L
ST vL
91°2s
2E"B6T
08-2L
00z

gLva

816
816
816
816
816
816
8Té6
LT6
LT6
916
916
S16
S16
LT6
ZB%T
[4:5an
LTE
Z8%T
616
(4224
(4:3 29
28%1
ST6
ST6
ST6
ST6
0ze
916
LT6
816
816
L16
[4:1 40
28%1
Z8%1
L6
[4:228
Z8YT
[4:5 20
(4248
[4:349
[4:1 20
LT6
916
616
v16
L16
[4:2 20
126

#SNYAL

9t/Lz/0T 15d DJdA
9t/Lz/0T 1Sa HOIWASIA
9t/Le/ot ST AZAROD
9t/Le/ot 1sda os
91/LZ/0T PLIS 1S4
9t/Lz/ot HYEVS (¥VOEAEN

91/42/0TADVIITA ISNOW SETTIVIM
st/Lz/ot aNndad
9T/LZ/0T SINIWIAONIWI NOILWLS
ST/LZ/0TNEY ¥ JOOH ¥OJd FAVANIV

g1/LZ/0T SILAND A0S FAVINIV
91/LZ/0T FTOH S 90T 0TuS 61T
91/LZ/OTONITAINE DITENd A¥YION
91/L2/01 HOYLSOd
81/L2/01 LOAN-YENNOE * T

9T/LT/OTLEANESSYE ‘N4 ’HD'HA 'OV

9T/LZ/0T SIHOIT TL 1S
9T/Lz/oT d3E0 HSUM
91/Lz/0T

91/Lz/0T SL¥¥d ¥VE LHOI'T
9T/LZ/0T WIOJINN-A1daNS FITHD

9T/LZ/0TITddNS ONILSVL NID WD
9T/LZ/OTWNE VOO ‘NIWHD -ZL° LS
9t/Lz/ot ANTD ¥OO0Td “gdV¥LldNd
9T/LZ/0TTd " ATNOW “ TANYS - YTWHY'IS

9T/L2Z/01 SNEAYOE ANNOUDAWTA
9t1/Lz/0tT LTAd XOHd0NA
91/LzZ/0T SJN00€ Hd0D 440 HATH
91/LZ/0T ONINIVHL
9t/Lz/ot SHWY, SSEODV FLOWIA
9T/LZ/0T Dd WOOULINOD WDISSHAL

ST/LT/0T T WAHSENAHN JICIWVIVA
9T/LZ/0T NOILAIADSENS-ANIZVOVNW
9T/LZ/0TI3 ATA EILLIT DDI/A004
9T/LZ/0TIDO¥A T00d-XIIIVON/A0C0L
9T/LZ/0T FEONUNILNIVAW LNIWdINDI
9T/LZ/0TINL XL ¥8°28 =ZX 11dS
9T/t2/0TEITddANS ¥8° 28 =2X 114§
91/L2Z/0TEIVALLYE /ANYI/SAITIANS
9T/LZ/0TEW dHS 13D NO dHS ¥SES
9T/LZ/0TSATVISAN HITd INWOTIHN
9T/LZ/0T SEI1ddNs
91/Lz/0T SHIT3dNS DNINYHTD
9T/LZ/0TD ¥Od ONINIVIL STOZDWI
9T/LZ/01

9T/LZ/0T ENOHd EIITIZLVS
9T/LZ/0TIVW ¥ITIVIL NOLLINIAHNA

91/LZ/0T 9T0Z AON WOSAN
91/L2/01 LAEEDHEN 4D
qi¥a NOILAI¥DSHEA

YALSIDIY a¥V) ASVHIUNG

ALNNOD AF¥OLS

NOILVZTIEOHLNY ANV MIIAZY A0 INIWIDATTMONNIDY

60LETPLYT
25S6¥%ZSYT
TPLLSSEPT
ET679BBEL
€99TTO8ET
ZSTT90
ZSTTI90
SYETTIN NISKOHL
SEMOT ZL113dS
YOWAVH dIV LSEMHINOS
O0NE IV LSEMHLNOS
LNF EVO-VLLIDIS
ZIVIS d0 DIS-AJVES
9TETOT S4SN TTISSNY
TII¥D 0T % IST Md
YISAL/TIINI3dddd Md
LOdEd HWOH NIAZN
HSYMAYD OULIAW
NINIWIL ONI¥Nd HONNT
CELBTP-LYIE - NAHX
9%LTPZ00T HWANFHX
S 2TV @
LOd3AA FWOH-HAJAL
LOdEd AWOH-HJIJFL
L0dda HIWOH-HA4E
¥d QNNO¥DAVId ~MNOSWL
HOXODLOL9ASX# ANI
dCOH SX00€ FA0D JOI
d JO JOOENUOM SHWVH
TYNNNY DdAWOLOD
TVANNY DJAWO.LOD
WESNEY NNITD
YAYAEN €809Z6 NIVdA
Sag¥ aT0 I00E NIV
NOOTYS 500 Q¥ NIVL
+ SHIYELIVE ENST¥ANa
YAINADYIANS WM MO
YHINIDUIINS WM MD
BOVE# IAVWIVM MO
WO¥d HI¥VA WOLSND MD
TTISSIE MD
HOVIAIAW NOZVWY MD
WOD " LAL SILdEND
00N8 ¥LD WYX= ISNOD
ONINIWVIL NVOIW N¥FITD
LSOdavod -NIAZAN'D
OLNY ¥dWN NMO¥E
ASSW? - O¥ONTILNV
SS0¥D a=¥ Od
LINIWAYA

# EOTIOANT

+TBI0L PIEDs

QAVO TYIDEIWWNOD ENO STTIM

Ld3a-aNna

AOANIA

91/92/01
1S08%58d

(43

AHEWON
od
23eg uny

oN jxodsy



arTe MNVE) TIVIRADEA-D0DA

1

abegq

NOILLAI¥Osda

YEANOISSIWWOD

ALYa NOILVYZI¥OHLAY (NY MIIATY A0 LNIWIDATTMONNDOY

00°0¢6'2 TYIOL SYOHHD AddAL

9T/TE/0T 00°0S6°2
91/ST/6 T¥SOd¥Nd 00°0S6°‘2

#ZOIOANI aLva TYLOL LNNOWY
ADFHD MDHHD
YILSIDEY™ SADHHO dEdAL
ALNNOD AZdOLS

ONIINIVE FAJIT0avd 09TL8
00LE LTO0Z

SWYN HOANIA #QUOD3FY YVIX AHEWON
TYISId %DEHD

9T/TE/OT ¢ 23eQ uny

06€TEd :ON 3xoday




0S° 9%

0s°vie
Z8° 692
98 LEY

00°98%

0009

€07 2T

00"SLE
£E9°¢8
00°TLT
66 60T

ZL"S¥Z'6D

S¥ 0%

9L 09%
L0°G892
00°s¢L

9T " ¥v1C

€9°82T

00°06S5°Z
0E" €6V’
TYLOL

ADHEHD

1 abeg

98" ST
(R 4

0S- 9%

(IR £ 4
28692
98" LEV

00°9€
00" 0S¥

00° 09

L% 10T
“vv'68

00°SLE
€928
00" TLT
66°60T

ZL S9S ‘9%
corooL‘z

SL 98
OL" €S
9L 09s
L0" S92
00°s¢L

81762
S8y
v6° 06
25°0T
2S°9T
LLs

69°6

SE"9Z
Lv 8e
197 €L

00"o08L'T
00"0T8
0E" €67 Y

INOOWY

6598L
6598L

9EL8L
0898L
ovL8L
vLL8L

voLBL
voLs8L

€088L

LyL8L
LYLBL

BSSBL
E1I88L
€0LBL
TELBL

¥9L8L
€SLBL

ELLBL
€LL8L

cLLsL
zoLBetL
TLL8L

LS98L
LS9BL
LS38BL
oLLBL
oLL8L
oLLBL
oLLBL

69L8BL
69L8L
69LBL

0SL8L
0sLBL

LELBL

#SNYAL

9T/01/TT
st/ot/TT

ST/0T/T1
9T/0T/TT
91/0T/TT
9T/01/TT

91/01T/TT
91/0T/TT

9T/0T/1T

91/0T/T1
9T/0T/TT

91/01/TT
9T1/0T/TT
9T/01/TT
9T/01/TT

9T/0T/TT
9t/0T/Tt

91/01/11
9T/0T/1T

9t/ot/T1
st/ot/tt
9t/0tT/11

91/01/1T
9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/T1
9T/01/TT
9T/0T/TT
91/0T/TT
9T/01/T1

9t/ot/TL
91/01/T1
91/01/1L

9T/0T/TT
91/01/TT

9T/0T/T1

4Lvd

AIA ¥OSNES-92E£8Y0S
SYILTIIA-XO0LS

YIMAS /JALYM €NS AOOMADOT
S3007T ¥ELNZD JOOMADOT
QISYNESIA LNIWHSINIVO

SUIVAEY vLd

9102 ‘Z AON-0Z 1DO
NOILVILSININAY DITENd

OOdWVHS TIU¥L
INNODDY NO LIJE¥HO

SNODEd dET~AHAWOD

INI¥Ed TYLIDIA AN SO
T0JLVYd ¥0d WIEIWVDO

WILSAS ¥ELOA DOTUYNY
Sd0L INW NO INIWW

S4I17ddNS SW3
FIYMLIOS ONITTIH SWI

SEI'IddNS SWH
dOHS 1LJ4ID JO4 SY00H
TYOISAHd LOU AZHOA

HO
dOHS
dOHS

A4ANOYT YL LS
AJANAVT SL LS
A¥ANOVYT 2L 1S
AdANOYT TL LS

S3I171ddNS SWA
S5d17d4dNS SWAE
SEITddNS SWA

LJ0ddns
SN FTEVL‘SITILIVAOY LIAIMS

SUTVATE-TNOSHE MAN

NOILAI¥DSEA FOIOANI

9T/0T/TT YHLSIODIY MOTHO

AINNOD AZ¥OLS

SL¥vd OLAY ALID TY¥LIAVD
NIWIAQIEWI TYEINTD NOANVD
H4YS ¥ SSVID 'MO0T M ¥ D
TYNOISSIIONd ® SSENISNE

ONI HdIsd S/«NOLdNg

SIMET LIODS ‘TIay¥ng

a TTESSN¥ ‘NOUNVdH

ONI ANVAWOD ¥IAIVE €0d
OTT INIOEMOWTIE

ALLYd ‘HSESId

D171 ‘SEODVWI ® SNOIS LSa3d

‘d"T ‘SE¥OLS Angd LS34

SESTYAYIINT AW¥IE

QLT INSWdOTEAHA SAV
TYNOILYNAZINI MOYEV
ONI ONIHSITHENd VIAVORV

SSENTTEM ANV HIIVIH J¥V

ONI 0DSTW

ONI NON SYONIV

ONI SWHLSAS VYILV¥A JIONYAQY
OTT SNOILNTOS ¥AW
JOANZA

9T/0T/1T

T8TLE
08TLE
6LTILS
8LTILR

LLILB

gLTLE

SLILS

vLtLe
€LTLE
ZLILS
TLTLS

0LTLE

69TLS8

891L8

LITL8

99TL8

S9TL8

P9TL8

€9TL8

¢9TL8
191L8
YEEWON

ADFHD
23eq uny

STETEd ‘ON jzoday



4

0o0-egsc
08 S8
00 s9v

ST°90S

9S "P8T

vi"€60’2

88°8T0'T

00°9sT
8L T1ZT
€€ EEB'TT
60°L6E
85°60S

8%"TST'92¢C

10707
0o0*zoz
02°60S

70°89¢€

TYLOL
AOFHD

abeg

58728
S6°S¢
06° 1S
S6°S¢
S6°0€E
S6°9¢
S6°0€
S6°EL
00°2sZ
08°S8
00°SSv
€€ PE
63791
€1 SSY
LS PE
66° 67T
¥ €60°C
gg-ze
0S°09¢L
087 SLT
00°9ST
8L 12T
€ETEEB'TT
607 L6E
857605
8V TTIL 922
00" 0%
T0°0V%
00°zo0Z
0Z°60S
v6°9¢S
002z
65" 71
68 1L
€6° Y
0E"2¢
B6 VY
og"8
6% 2S
LNNOWY

6ELBL
SBLBL
0998L
vo88L
SLLBL
SLLBL
SLLBL
SLLSBL

LBLBL
BOLSBL
LOLBL
0€L8L
0€ELBL
0ELBL

8sL8L
8SL8L

90L8L
9898L
86LBL
86L8L
S0L8L
v6LBL
1898L
¥LBL

cvLeL

LI9LBL
ZL9sL

68LBL
v698L
6088L

6S98L
6598L
6598L
6598L
6598L
6598L
6598L
6598BL
6598L

#SNVAL

9tT/0T/1T
91/0T/1T
91/01/1T
91/0T/1T
91/0T/1T
91/0T/11
91/01/1T
9T/0T /1T

9T/0T/1T
9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/1T
91/0T/1T
91/0T/1T
91/0T/11

9T/01/1T
91/0T/11

9T/0T/11
9r/ot/TT
9T/0T/11
9T/0T/1T
9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/IT
9T/0T/1T
9T/0T/TT

91/0T/TT
91/0T/TT

ST/0T/TT
91/01/TT
9T/0T/TT

9T/0T/1T
9T/0T/TT
91/0T/TT
9t/ot/1T
9T/0T/TT
St/ot/11
91/0T/11T
9T/01 /1T
91/0T/TT

arva

JOOMADOT ¥YATOOD VALVM
JIALYM
STYLINZY ¥ITO0D HO

¥ILYM SL IS

dEALYM PL 1S

JILYM TL IS

HALYM ZL 1S

L¥3D ¥O4 YEANEQ OL TIAAVHEL
dOHS LAID VITINYdYSHVYS
ST¥OM dV¥ FTD00D AON

O¥HD ALVI

AITIOULAWOD /XANTITH

qo0d SHEIA LIFELS

SO¥EVHD NIJ QaT1Ig
YIVHO IDIAE0

FSVIT 40 FWWHS DLDA

IT 30 I

TLS NOILSENO LOTIVE
ONILOA ATIVE

aI0§ SITLLOE 9ST
@N/A3H ¥9 A€ WII-OWI
LI0JENS WYEO0dd 9T0Z AON
JESYNESIA INIWHS INJYD
SOVE AJOH AlNd AAYEH

0T# ¥AYO+/ATINETA 8T #ONI
SEEZ I¥NOO DN¥A 0D AFIOLS

9T/0T IJIM 6T¥BBTELLE ANI

JYIEWIDIA LUCIANS LOVULNOD

SLIN ¥3ITId €L-"

WOOT LITdS-¥dMS IdL
ONIENL-MD01S
SANYT ' WAY'IY 80069Md
YOLDENNOD -80069Md
AD0TE NOILONNL 80069Md
YALTIA 6Z099¥4

WOOT LITdS-dOHS
YEILTII JIV -ZLLLSMGE

NOILATIOSEA IDIOANI

9T/0T/TT YALSIOTH XIIHD

ALNNOD AEdOLS

ONI ¥SN SHOIVA
AOW¥L ‘SIX¥ND
ONI SEOVIIAEHE NMOUD

+ YIQEW SLdEDONOD FATIVIAO

HSYIEWIWN HTYSETOHM ODLSOD

SNOILNTOS SN€ DHSH ODLSOD

OTT TIIW QT09D MDO0LSWOD

(JA) HTDINOMHD MDOLSWOD
LYANNOS AYILEWAD MDOLSWOD
TOS INWONW WNDO0d FLITIWOD

ONI LSEHD ALINNWWOD
AGN 40 FDIAY¥ES NOILDETIOD

d¥0D SOILSWId DISSVID

YFANSYIELL NOSAVO J0 ALID
dIHS¥ANLIYA 0DTTHD
ONI FTTdSYD

SYILAOITY TOLILWD

VOANZEA

9T/0T/T1

86TLS
L6TLS
96TLE

S6TLB

ve1LS

€6TLE

Z6TLE

TEeTLS

06TLE

68TLS

88TILE

LBTLS

98TLE

SBTLE
¥8TILS
€8TLS

Z8TIL8

YIENON
JDEHD

@3eq uny

STETEd :ON 1xoday



€

og-s8
00°9ST

L0 L96

00°0vE

os gLy

9L'S5S'T

00°80S’S

YeE' 06T

00" 56

ZL"SZ6°Z€E

¥s'etl

8S°9¥L‘T

SV 6SE
TYLOL
ADFHD

sbed

0€°S8
00°9¢T

00'ov
LAEA2S
€6°v8S

00°s9
00°S¢t
00°S¢
00°S¢€
00°SE
007 00T
00°S€E

00 0st
0S°ZTT

BE° SS9
8E° 006

00°02%
00°880°S

99*¥1T
89°SL

00" se

PI°Z96°¢€
86°L¥s‘2C
09°S%6°S
00" 0Ly

¥ST6T

28" SET
2T* 0SS
66211
LE*T6
9L 9T
LT TIL
€¥°2S
“T6° 1YL
$9°S0T
08*LES
€0TLe
16" 19T
oL-98
LT 9¢
9€* €€
09°%S
9L 9T

LNNOWY

T6LBL
S6L8L

csSL8L
ZsLeL
T9L8L

£398L
€£998L
€998L
€998L
€998L
€998L
98LBL

SSL8L
SSLBL

9698L
9698L

Z088L
zo88L

oLLBL
S698L

Z998L

6%LBL
6¥LBL
6vLBL
9TL8L

LzLsL

T998L
T9%8L
1998L
1998L
T998L
T998L
T998L
1998L
T998L
T998L
T998L
T998L
T998¢L
T998L
T998L
T998L
T998L

#SNTAL

ST/0T/TT
9T/0T/TT

91/0T/1T
91/0T/1T
91/0T/1T

91/0T/11
9T/01/1T
91/0T/T1
9t/otT/11
9T/0T/11
9t/0T/T1
9T1/0T/TT

91/01/1T1
91/0T/11

91/01/1TT
91/01T/1TT

91/0T/1TT
91/01/11

91/0T/T1
91/0T/TT

91/0T/TT

ST/0T/T1T
91/0T/TI
91/0T/TT
91/0T/TT

9T1/0T/1T

9T/0T/TT
ST/0T/TT
91/0T/TT
9T/0T/1L
9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/TT
91/0T/TT
9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/1T
9T/0T/1T
9T/0T/TT
9T1/01/TT
91/01/1T
9T/0T/1T
9T/01/TT
9T/0T/TT
ST/0T/TT

FLYA

STOZ NJYHO WOD WI3-OWI
d3d dWYLS HTId L068%T ANT

SEILLITILO
INI¥ A& ANCd
AINNOD avNd NV¥Ed dINCA

ATIELAYNO - DOIW
ATIILEYN0 - INY'Id JILVM
ATEEL¥YND TTIOL 00T
ATEILNVND -D TLE
ATIEIAYNO-D00A
ATIZLIVNO-HO

TO¥LNOD 1S3d ATAID

SvX 8
S¥X s°2

08 ISA / SLZ TIND-MT
gZt 7ISQ /08T TINQ-IAL

SNOSYW DA-NIWAY
JADVTIH YILETOT

ENVdQ¥d SHY ZL IS
INYdO¥d -OSMT

TYOISAHd TAD FSUNEWITF

INAWINOEdIKI AIMIS
I0T M¥d ‘TIYM ONINIVIEN
TYNIJ SOUNIVNC FTIW XIS

ENHNIZEE SYFLYIAL ¥0 MOIdL

LTIEE A 'ASY LIV-LS5929¥d
SHENH 92EBYOS

23N ¥ ‘SLTEEA -S068SOS
TYES ‘dWNd JELYM-SG068S0S
TYES TIO-€LA

WSY ¥OSNES -AZAWOD
INEWHTE -tLy

LIAID FH0D

LNIWZTH-€LY

SENVIE -9PEBEAL

LY LSONNEHL -JIZVIETAL
LIQEED 30D

¥IALTII IV 6209983
S3AVIE-MDOLS

Savd d¥d 9ZEBV0S

aIinid SNVJL -0S

SEAYTE ¥dMS BOTSSME

NOILEI¥OSEA EDTOANT

9T/0T/TIT YALSIOFY ADFTHO

ALNNQD AZ¥OLS

OHOS (QUVM HILINOd DIVOLSIH
ONIDVYWIOHEDIW L¥ISIA HOIH

SENIHOVW SSIANISNE S.A¥dVH

OTT SINIWLSIANI dLD

S8d ¥ FLIWMEL NISVE LVEED

WOL ‘ANIESNVED

WNATOYLEd LES/EIVD NIATOD

‘¥ Q¥v¥MdE ‘ONIAAVIO

dT SYOTIFIEHS

IAFLS FDAOID ‘FIWA

ONIYIIANIONT ISIM dAVA

¥ SYIOHDIN ‘NIV3

ONI A1TddNS OLOV LLOITIE
WOANIA

9T/01/11
STETEd

TICL8
otTzZLs

602L8

80zL8

LoeLs

90zZLe

s0zZLs

vozig

£ozZLe

202ZL8

1ozLs

gozLs

661L8

JIGWON
ADTHD

33ed uny
ON 3a0day



14

SPT9ST
6€°868
¥0"€0Z°1
91°SS
0E" bL
VE'SET’E

0Z°0€E9

00°LST

9E°TPT

0S"BET‘VS

0S°p2T

007008

¥Z'99S°1TT

12°TLE

00°00L 069

SLTEPT

0T"96S°0T

06796

0S°86T

TV.LOL

A0FHO

abeg

0091
SV 9sT

1€ %9
80" 758

¥0°€02’T
91°SS
0E" VL
$E'SET‘E
-¥8°TE
¥0°ZL
00°06S
00°S
00'v€Z
00"8T
9E"TPT

s2°690°LT
sz 630°LE

$9°8T1
89° S8
6L 0E
6E°6T
=00°0¢€

00°00s
TL°60Z°9
ZeT Lol
26°920°1
6€°Z9T°€E
TT TLT

00°008°%
00°006°589

SLTEVT

9€£°' 2SS
YLTEVO'OT

6 6L
96791

0S°26T1
00°9

LNONOWY

TTL8L
SvL8L

L898BL
L898L

BLLBL
LLLseL
8088L
9SL8L
9998L
9998L
9998L
0TLBL
0TLBL
oTLBL
0I88BL

LOBBL
LO8BL

$998L
S998L
S998L
S998L
$998L

Z898L
03L8L
09L8L
09L8L
09L8L
THLBL

6L98L
v9g9sL

0698L

6898L
6898L

99L8L
99L8L

60LBL
60L8L

#SNAL

9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/TL

9T/0T/T1
91/0T/1T1

91/01/1T
9T/0T/TT
91/0T/TT
91/0T/TT
9T1/0T/TT
91/0T/TT
91/0T/TT
9T/0T/1T
91/0T/TT
91/0T/T1
9T/0T/TI

91/01/TT
91/0T/11

9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/T1
91/01/T1
91/01/1T
9T/0T/TT

91/01/11
9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/T1
91/01/T1
91/01/1TT
91/01/TT

91/01/11
91/0T/11

91/0T/11

9T/0T/TT
91/0T/1IT

9T/0T/IT
91/01/11

ST/01/11
9T/01/11

dLiva

SAYYD SYWISIVHD

XOaavW wW380D
TYINEd FSAILEE

SAITddNS SWHE

FONVNILNIVAN INIWIINOZ

0S/3ONE3 YOI TYLIW
LIAEAD AD0LS

YMAO¥H MD0LS
ITEYD AD0LS

9102 ‘Z AON-0Z 1D0

08/¥93407dX3 ANS
0S /¥HI0TdXHE ANS

anis-€0LMI
dVI0 -€0LMA

JIATTIII A¥E dV0 -€LTSPMA
1IX YOOH AOOH-B80TS9MA
LIQE¥D FH0D

YEDIIIO HITVAH 9T0Z AON
YANAIS SWI¥ TYILEYL

YOOud JINYIS SWI¥ TVILIEVA
ZAVESdN d¥M SSETIIIM 0D
JYIAYES SWI¥ TYILIYA

9T0Z AON AFAOLS/LPTIN

LOT ¥ILNEDWWOD NIVMI XAV
M

@d04aE€ ‘N 'SNI OF

€S000-T¥06009T
€S000-T¥06009T

IITING ITONIHS
ddId ¥EMIS 470 Y04 soNId

910Z ‘Z AON-0Z 1DO

NOILAI¥DSEA FDIOANI

9T/0T/TT WALSIDIY NDFHD

ALNNOD XFAOLS

WOISNW NOISNVW AWYIOVW

ANVAWOD MIVD NNAT

FAIT TYNOILYN NTOONIT
ONI LSISSY-EJIT

SNOS % SIL¥ND N 1
1IN0V ' THOENM

07T ANVAMOD ATdOS ONIX

LSEMUIN TIVEWIX

¥ NYILSI¥YHD ‘¥ATHOEINA

NOSNHOL ¥ quw¥mdd Iodane

q¥0d 1S3IM SANOL

D11 d€0

JdaW NYNNSTOW O SIWYL

OTT1 FD¥N0S TLI

NI IOW O3NI NIVINNOW NO¥I

TVES A¥ANTS NIVINNOWIELNI

OT1 ‘SILVIDOSSY ¥ STIVONI

HITYEH NMOLIWOH

FOTA¥ES IIAEED 10dIA IWOH

JOANIA

9t/0T/1T
STETEd

oEZLB

62ZL8

8ceLs
LzzLe
gzzLe
szzLe

1444

e€zeLs

ceelLs

1zeLs

ozzLrs

6TZLS

8IZLS

LTZLE

91ZL8

steLe

viZLs

€1ZL8

[AXAR:]

ATEWAN
MOFHD

23eg uny

:oN jaodey



S

00"9LT"Y
¥z 96
00'000°S
ZE'BBT'T
98 €TT
00'0¢t
00°o002
vz ve
057608

00°82L’S

0T 6SV°E
OE"E68
00°0S¥
S9°L
00°0s2
[X AR AN
00°ST
00°S6Z

LE VT

827 0LT

9L" SV
L9°999'T
LY 8%E’Z
00" 9%%

TYLOL
ADEHD

abeg

00°9LT'Y
vZ° 96
00'000°S
ZE'8BL'T
9B ECT
00°0€
00002
vZ 76
0s°608
00°‘t62'%
00" €59
00" Vv6E
00°0ve
00°0ST
0z 6SV'€E
OE"£68
00" 0S¥V
SS°L
00°0s2
Lz' et
00°ST
00°S62

€8°L1IC
8v° 8¢

¥8 92
€T°29
96°LE
GETEY

gL SY
L9°999'1
LY BPE’Z
00" 0EY

LNOOWY

VELBL
6698L
€698L
1698L
€ELSBL
v188L
LESBL
CILBL
€vLBL
S188L
sTe8L
SieBL
SissL
S1es8L
96LBL
L998L
v898L
6CTLBL
0088L
oLS8L
6LLBL

66L8L

8vL8L
8998L

TsL8L
EELBL
L6LBL
T088L
£E6LBL
£898L
caLsL
TTLBL

#SNTEL

91/0T/TT
91/0T/TT
91/01/1T1
9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/TT
91/01/TT
9T/0T/TT
9T/01/11
ST/0T/TT
9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/11
T/0T/TT
9T1/0T/TT
91/01/11
9T/0T/TI
9T1/0T/11
91/01/T1
9T/0T/TT
91/0T/TT
ST/0T/T1
91/0T/11
91/01/11

9T/0T/1T
91/01/11T

97/01/TT
9T/0T/1T
9T/01/1T1
9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/1T
91/0T/TT
91/0T/TT

JLva

# 0/d

SKNY¥d 9

SNOIS HO

LT/9TAZ NOIILNEIUINOD
NOISSIWWOD ONINNVTIA

AILOETTIOD SEEL

LIWN¥Ed ¥VE MOVNS
WSI¥NO0L ALID WINIDVIA

SANNOYDMOVE ¥ LNINUJYIONIA

SEA

aNna =y

SSESSY NIWAY I3N0D LSIA
LTOZ/TE/ZT-LTOZ/T/T
HOLYINOFY FOVLTIOA-SL-N
YSSANVA ‘SNIAHAELS
ANNAHEY IISOdHA ¥ALYM
EONYNILNIVA INIZWGINOI
YEANEOM TI04

dWYTAYEH -92EBVOS
L0YLS 9ZEBYOS

YITINVW/SYEATOI ITI3
SEITddNS FDI&40 TIVL
SEITAdNS NOILDETE
T-L0ST9LZ-H0-dD

40340 OF¥ /SIONAO¥E ¥IAVd
1¥0ddNS WY¥O0Ad 9T0Z AON
¥ALIZ 00TX00T

9T0Z ‘Z AON-0Z IO0

NOIIdI¥OSEA FDIOANI

9T/0T/TT ¥ILSIDIY ADFHD

AINNOD AZYOLS

FINTD HLITYIH TYNOILYANDOO
ONI SEIDOTONHOEL NLIN

OTT ONILINSNOD NOLON
HINY FAZQ YOYAIN NAFHLAON
ONI VINJOIITYD A0 TALXIN
ONI FDIA¥ES I¥OdT VAVAEN
ATINSTIIL ASN

HLTVYEH 40 AIQ ASN
NOILUXVI LdH3d ASN

ALFAVS DITHNd Lddd ASEN

YETIOUILIHWOD AIN
YETTOULIWOD ASN
HETTOULAWOD AIN

SEILNNOD 40 NSSV TYNOIIWN
SIAVd MONML ¥ OLAV VYJVN
00¥N

SVTTVd ' AVIINW

LJ)dS ADNIDEAWA TWdIDINNW

71 YIHLYNNY ‘FJOOW

0D ¥YOLOMW THOH TAYHOINW

NI SNOILNTOS 3DIAI0 OALIW
VINSE0N ‘INONTLYYW
YLD ALINOWWOD NIVML N¥WW

¥SIT ® LIOJS ‘NOSIAWW

JOANIA

9T/otT/1T

vszie
£SCLE
zszLe
15¢L8
oszie
6veLe
8vzZL8
LveLs
9%2ZL8

SYZLB

vvzLse
€vZL8
ZveLe
veLe
ovzLs
6ETLE
BEZLS
LEZLS

gtzLe

SEZL8

veEzLs
£E€ZL8
ZeeLs
T€ZL8
UIENON

ADIHO
23eq uny

STETEd :ON 3xoday



ET '6LL EEY
LE 608
007" 8L

no'ozz

SS°TET
00°SS
00°1Z
86°G99'T
00°2ZLS
o8 "vey
0T €ee
00°¥9s
00°8L
00" ELE
007661

00°5L8'Y

6L°Z0T 'Y

86°88S°T
00°SL
00°90T
Z6°6
0s°LEZ

89°5s2

0s°21

TYLOL
ADEHO

9 abeg

€1 6LL'E6D
LE 608
007 BL

00°0TT
00°01TT

§S°1€Z
00°SS
00°TZ
86°599'1
00°2ZL9
08°¥Z¥%
0T €€T
00° %39S
00" 8L
00" ELE
00°66T
00°000°2
00°000°2
00°SLE
007008
69°EQ0T’T
0Z €0L
00" €ELE
06°22v'1
86°885°2
00°SL
00°90T
2676
0S°LEC

LA 34
vo-cz

0s'2T

LNOOWY

vLI8L
00L8L
9vLBL

9598L
9s98L

ZELBL
LTLBL
9TLBL
9L98L
SZL8L
STL8L
ZBLBL
T8L8L
viL8L
SELBL
ST88L
5598L
SS598L
S8398L
S598L
6998L
6998BL
6998L
6998L
89L8L
vSL8L
ETLBL
82ZLBL

S9L8L

T698L
2698L

oBLBL

#SNWAL

9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/1T

9T/0T/11
9T/0T /11

91/01/1T
9T/0T/1T
9T/0T/1T
91/0T/1T
91/0T/1T
91/0T/1T
9tT/0T/11
9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/1T
9T/0T/11
9T/0T/1T
9T/0T/11
9T/0T/11
9T/0T/1T
9T/0T/1T
9T/0T/1T
9T/0T/1T
9T/0T/TT
91/01/1T
91/01/1T
9T/0T/1T
9T/0T/Tt
9T/0T/TT

91/0T/1T
9T/0T/11

91/0T/1T

jcan {es

# 0/a

QEATEOEY XVI ALIFJO¥4
IA0ddNS ¥IEOLDO

4l TIvD

SYIANQISSTWWOD

SDY.L ¥ SOVE HONIAIAZ
LOdIJHD TOYINOD LSEd

97102 ‘Z AON-0Z LDO

¥ OLAVY -IDWVALNOD LIOd4NS
dNO¥D A€ dI¥d

SHSSYID ENIM SSHTWILS
SAITddNS SWI

WILSAS ONILYOdHY SWI/IYIA
dOHS LJ4I9 ¥04 SAEYDLS0d
INIVA 0¥3d SO0LT

H3d WVXZ FNA NOSEVYEd
NOILIVLINSNOD
ONILINIYA/SNOILYTEAE
FSVYEYLYA

OLMW/SNOILYIHN JITdnd
YIVd3Y 3 FAIL -P0LMM
SHYIL 9ZEBYOS

SHE¥IL - 2§

SAVIL SL-d

I ‘YOI¥av

OI¥OLINOW SL 1S

9102 ‘Z AON-0Z LDO

aNTOd a¥VOd INEWASANENIFA
WOFSNN YIWWYIS

H0Id440 M¥FTO
HO¥Ed 40 FOILSAC

1S3l 4l YIWOIT

NOILJAT¥DSIA FDIOANI

9T/0T/TT WALSIDIY NOFHD

ALNNOD XAFAOLS

WILSAS YITIVM OD IS
LOINLSIA TTOO0HDS 0D IS
ONI SHDIA¥IS ALITILN 84S

IIT £ DINIWOQ ‘ENOTIVES

VEd OTT SAIALSAANI ADITS
‘0D NOILILSINDIV FIHDAIS
ONI TOYINOD LS3Ad VHIAIS
NATIY NYI¥E ‘JYOHS

ONI ¥Sn SNSNIS

‘0 NILSNA ‘TI4IES
SOTHAWMD *® €3M QUVNOFAVYS
ONI 0dddnd

ONI ‘SWELSAS ONILJOdHY
ONI XLIVIDE4S HOHVLI ONIY
NI ONIJVOSANVT NIT¥D ONI¥

FLId ' COVNEN

ONI SEIDILVYELS awd

0D ¥HEENN ¥ EFIL T7IDANd
INTWFIILIE ATdWE DITENd
ONI SEDIAEA NOILOILO¥d
a OTIONY ‘ININLAJ
NIXSAY ‘ENJOESO

IS ® SOIHAVYED FQIS FHL NO
OT7 ‘lOdIA ¥I¥A HLISS30
AOANZIA

9T/0T/TT ¢
STETEd *

aLzLe
LLZLS
aLeLe

SLTLS

vLeLs
€LZLY
cLeLns
1LzZLs
oLzLs
69ZLe
892ZL8B
LozLe
992ZL8
s92Le
vsozLe

£9zLe

zozceLe

19ZLe
o9zLe
6SZL8
8scLe
LSZL8

EETAR:]

SS2L8

YFTEWNON

MDFHD
°3eqg uny
oN 2xodey



L

06" €9V

2T 6V%S

€y 18S’'¥®

007008
06" €9%

YL 8EE
8E°0T¢

SzZ-88
€L°99S'T
95°560°T
sZ-°s8
157 98¢
-95°'S02°T
95°50Z°T
€T 6SE’T

-€T°€89
€T°€89
05" %9 0S°%9
00-°s2 00°sz
0% €162
00°0€9 00°0€9

00°82% T 00°86T

00°09

00°¥9T‘T

00°9

00°0%8'T¥

LT 6SL 0Z°68¢

L6 69€
Sy iee'e oz 8L
26729
28°99
65°82T
6L LET
ZS°LTIT
Z2Z°1vy
29 veL
65821
65 T0%
0z 8L
60°8%T
99°0ST
657821
657821
6% °TET
6E°9¢ET
66°TST
65°82T

TY.LOL
ADEHO

LNOOWNY

2b6eg

0V €162

00°96€'6€
00" vYv‘e

8ELSBL
v8LBL

ToL8L
ToL8L

LLIBL
LL98L
LLogL
LLI8BL
LLIBL
LL9BL
LLI9BL
LL98L
LL98L
LLIBL

ozZLsL
c188L
BBLBL
8SL8L

6TLBL
6TLBL
6TLBL
6TLBL

E8LBL
£8LBL

5898L
5898L

8ILBL
SL9BL
SL9BL
SL98L
SL98L
SL98L
SL98L
SL98L
SLI9BL
SL98L
SLI8L
SLI8L
SLI8L
SL98L
SL98L
SL98L
SL98L
8TLBL
SL98L

#SNWAL

9T/0T/T1
9T/0T/11

9T/0T/11
9T/01/11

9T/0T/TT
ST/0T/T1
9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/T1
9T/0T/T1
9T/0T/T1
ST/0T/IT
9T/0T/T1
9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/TT

9T/0T/T1
9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/11
9T/0T/TT

9T/0T/11
stT/ot/t1
9T/0T/T1
9T/0T/11

9T/0T/T1
9T/0T/T1

ST/0T/T1
ST/0T/T1

ST/0T/T1
ST/0T/T1
ST/0T/TT
ST/0T/T1
ST/0T/TT
9T/0T/T1
9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/1T
9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/1T
9T/0T/11
9T/0T/11
91/0T/1T
9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/1T
9T/0T/1T
9T/01/11
9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/TT

H1¥d

SIMIMIAL ‘1SIA

INIVA WELSAS ¥ILVM 2L 1S

YII- QNI SOLT

S/M- N¥3d SOLT

8% ST HOA

9%T 1SA /959 OF¥ Md
0S 7TIST / OIS DIF Md
INISO¥EX Md

09T 1SA / S¥ DIY-HOA
NOI.LOE¥¥0D

HLIS DNO¥M OL QIDEVHD
SLE TS / 2hE DFA-Md
NOILIDI¥EOD

JLIS DNO¥M OL QEDIVHO

FENL NOA FOVAANS MOTEE

JITdS NIWIL

SETINGAT YOI SIADAVE MEAN

910Z “C NON-0Z IDO

1D¥Wd T00d/XZNUND TIMOL
I0¥d T00d/Iav¥ddn AGNAND

61/1T-02/01
6T/0T-01/6
104d3d TIIH d7TI09

1S O TLE

J1DA

NOILEI¥OSHA FDIOANI

9T/0T/TT YELSIDAY MDIHD

ALNIIOD AZ¥OLS

OTT VAUAEN 40 ALIWJOJIINN

SAS ¥HIVM SMOQVIW FEXONAL

LNIWEINOUAWI TVEENITO I¥L

OTT1 WOHTOELEd SYWOHL
ADONIOV SOLNY HHL
OTT EDLLION LSdL

INIO ‘NIWIL

1T SLAVIOEWAS

SASTUGYALNT ¥VHEJ NNS

TYOIOIW ¥AAXALS

‘SNOILVDINNAWOD AVISTIVLS

JoaNdAa

9T/0T/TI1

€8ZL8

88ZL8

LBTZL8

98TLE
sB8zLe
vBZL8
£82L8

z8zLe

8ZL8

08ZL8

6LTLE

ATEWAN
ADFHD
@3eq uny

SIETad :ON 3x0day



8

9V '¥eT'62L'T

00°60€

00°SET
00°8ss‘2

00°S0%‘T

8L°002

90°L68

00°99T°T

oo-ozL

oL 982

00" TER
00°008
TYLOL
MDOEHD

abeg

TYLOL SXO0FHD

00°¥PT
0o-oz
00°S¥%T

00" SET
00°85S5‘¢2

007009
00°508

¢z 16T
95°6

90°LE8

00" 786
00" PE
00°CET
0o-ztT
00° %

00°TTL
0076

86°6
00" Lz
8L°6
00°00T
00°0TT
00°0€E

00" TEB

LNNOWY

8LI98L
8LI9BL
BLIBL

TLI9BL
vvise

1T88L
1T188L

8898L
8898L

vZLBL

€ZL8L
€2ZLBL
€EZLBL
€EZLBL
€TLBL

ZTLeL
2ZL8L

TZL8L
TZLBL
TZL8L
TZL8L
TZL8L
TZLBL

6SL8L

#SNWAL

9T/0T/TT
91/0T/11
91/0T/TT

91/0T/1T
91/0T/1T

9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/TT

91/0T/1T
9T/0T/1T

9T/0T/1I

91/01/T1
9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/1T
9T/0T/1T
9T/0T/TT

9T/0T/11
91/0T/TT

91/0T/1T
9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/TT
9T/0T/TT
gt/ot/Tt
9T/0T/1T

91/0T/TT

HLYda

4 0/a

VILYM NI €SV

WJO4ITOD T1IL

VD DO TIL'JITOD TLL' ATV
ST60°9LT SYN ONILSIL ¥NA

S33d ASd0INVY ¥ XOL

FIVILEY TO00 LPO8VO OF
YJg0D TO00 LP08Y0 OF

dSYIT S0 FTAVHS OIoA

9702 ‘T AON-0Z L1DOO

9102 ‘Z AON-0Z LDO

LNGAZ ONIMW INIM TVLIOL
SNOILVODEAd MOANIM
NEIQEYONI TIM¥D TV¥S NO¥aI¥
dNO¥H HONONUHL Ad OZUVWIQ
HTLLNHS /¥TTIOVE WIL

HOVE ST$®@ SEna

ONIOATd TINY YFILS AIAS

NOIL4I¥DSHA FOIOANI

ST/0T/TT ¥ALSIDA¥ YDIHD

ALNNOD AFAOLS

EYT TYLNIWNOAIANT NAALSEAM
YAYASIN ‘XINNOD HOHSYM

¥ANOAOD 0D FOHSUYM
0sSZ € L¥FH0d “JAATYM

ONI ‘NV¥1Id IDIAN¥ES NOISTIA

SETENLNIA ALID VINIDAIA

ONI S¥NCL ALID VINIDVIA

0D ¥ FINDOAYL I VINIDAIA

J1LDA
STYINTE GELINO
AOANZEA

9T/0T/TIT :
STETEd *

66ZL8
8eZLE

L62LE

96CL8

secLe

vezZLs

€62LE

(4348}

i6zZL8
06ZLe

ATEWNN
ADFHD

83eq uny

ON 3x0doy



T

TYLOL
avO

abeg

00" €2¢€
gL' <8
00"SLy
co'eZT
86 '66€
vs-es
¥8°80T
66°P1
9% sS
66° 1T
o0-ott
89°'9
85°9
LASE 14
6S°L
ST'L
96592
OV TSE'T
LY 8S
00" LE
00°0T
60" 9V
veE'se
00'6L
ZS°PbSL
1Z°'821
LE 89T
65°Z¥
96 °0S
£6°9¢C
SE"T8E
96°6
L6 P9
96" 6L
S6°LY
66°0T
00°0S
v0°92¢
SL'TO0S
pr2¢8
L0'se
L9 4
-9T0EY’T
00°1€E
Ze"88s
00°0S¢L
00 0L
00°08
%" 1€
00°s¢
00-€2
8%y 91
oe'veze
Sy'ev
0s°8T

LNNOWY

926
£EBYVT
€8YT
EBYVT
€EBYT
EBYT
9¢Z6
676
€E8%T
LCe
EBFT
LZ6
Lze
LZ6
LZ6
LZ6
926
EB8¥T
€26
€Z6
€26
€26
€Z6
€26
0€6
86
E8PT
LZ6
€26
LZe
ST6
ST6
ST6
SZe
SZ6
526
ots
oce
LZe
LZ6
vee
vZe
526
vZe
Lee
926
(44
(443
€26
E26
vz
E8PT
LZe6
LZ6
Lee

#SNTEL

91/0T/IT  SJNO00€ HAOD IDI ST0Z
91/0T/1T 71SC QOOMNDOT
9T/0T/IT 9T-ST-TT ONIANIILY Va

9T/0T/TIT INWMNOY FIDANIS 4INdDF
9t1/0T/TT Z X 00ST 24V
91/0T/1T SEITddNS WOQNHIYE
91/0T/T1 SAVdI ¥04 LEN¥IINI
91/0T/11 HIYMIIO0S TEOAY
91/0T/TT NOSLOd

91/0T/TT INIVA LINEWdINDE AAVEH

91/0T/11 aoom
91/0T/11 cta) Adlel ¢
91/0T/11T dDYLS0d
91/01/11 dOV.LS04
91/0T/11T FOYLSOd
91/0T/11T FOVLSOd
91/01/11 YEANEA NI ONINIVAL
91/01/11 HLOWAA

9T/0T/TIMVAE LS '¥0ddO AZA NODE
9T/0T/TTOD SIATIW ¥D SITLITIOWL
91/01/1T ANZT W
91/01/11T OL¥ ‘DT XHOMAWYEA
9T/0T/TTd DOH WW FINLONVISVAANI
9T/0T/IT INIZVOVW SSENISNE AN
9T/0T/TI UIWWYTS
9T/0T/TT NI ‘STHEYT SYYANETIVD

9T/0T/TT NOSLIOa
9t/o0t/TT FWVES NOISSIW SL IS
9T/0T/1T WEOAINN

9T/0T/TTIVN ¥ETIVAL NOIINIAZIG

9T/0T/TT  ¥ALATT AYOT -SNOSYL
91/0T/T1 dZIINI V-AAVd M1
9T/0T/TT  ¥ESOTD UOOU-HSIWWOD
ST/01/11 SAVELS JIIHOILWYE

ST/0T/TITO "MOLVEIdSHN-NANWY'TS
9T/0T/T1 HOLY'l ¥00d-2S50A
ST/0T/TIWAYHD S3NA WAOI TYNNNY
ST/0T/TTISEND WNISNW/STYINELYN

9T/0T/TT ONINIVAL
ST/0T/TT 13na
9T/0T/TT SOVL EONIAIAS
9T/0T/TT  NESOQ dWYLS SSITEAAY
91/01/TT SHO¥VYHD INITNANVAA

9T/0T/TTIIVL SEITEANS ONINVITID
9T/0T/TT EONVNIALNIVW MYSNIVHO
9T/0T/TTD ONINIWIL WVXd QNV¥NIY
9T/0T/TTIULS O § ZLE -LEANNELNI

9T/0T/1T aoom@d01 -LANIEINI
9T/0T/11 ONILEEW J¥4Nnis
9T/01/TT NOZHONT
9tT/o0t/11 ¥SDS AN OL T3Nd
9T/0T/T1 HLINWEAQ
9T/01T/11 WYOJIRD D"
9T/0T/1T FONVNIINIVW TL LS
9T/0T/11 SHINALLYVE Zi LS

qLva NOIIdIdDSHA

YELSIDEY QYYD FSVHOUNG

ALNNOD AZAOLS

FUOWAVH YP86VEQOL
698ZSP0ST

dNOD ODVN 9T/ST/TT
6L6LEBOOOT
IANVId-90¥6S0
ANVYIA-0v66T0

J0N€ ST0ZLIOTIX
TEATHNYA

ENIM IVIOL

HOIZ¥d ¥OHUVH UIAANS
FLIN T XNAEND WHAATIS
9TEOTT SdSn TIISSNY
9T2ZOTT sdsn TTISSNA
9TTOTT Sdsn T7Idassnyd
915201 sdsn TI1aSSNA
911201 S&sSn T1IsSNY
HIVIAIV MS dNYNHEA
SILJYIHS-L/LSTy FLOND
ANIA ONIN¥EdSTHM M4
PW TYOIAEW SOLIL M4
Add LEN0D A¥VYAO¥d Md
IY¥E0dd SOTAVW Md
INOSVYE Lr Md

OT7 MNIT SSEINISNG Md
$902809Z# Q0O

LOddd IDIAJI0

SLHOIT ALTEAON
IWYII LSV NIAEIN
ATddNS JdEIHD W
SHMOT ¥ITONITI
ONIDVY LIWWNS MP

. SEMOT-HIJED
) SHEMOT-H4JED
SIMOT-HAIAL
SEMOT-HIJEL

L0dad EWOH-HAJdL
€ZT6000# ANI
EEBTPISOH ANI

NNI QTIIIEIVE SHWVH
NO¥AZHD SEWVH
VYANIAYD

VANIAYD

SEDAVHD INITINANYAL
NZS0a

SAUTIIVE dTAOD
YAINZD WYXd LSNOD
LI¥ -NIAEN'D
NTIAGND

VXEANE SVO 0D¥XEL OV
QU¥YOE ® IW NMVAE OV
Q¥ONILNY

SNId ALHAVS/NOZVYWY
ALIWNOJINN SNINAY
10dEa FWOH SNIXAV

+ SHINELLVE SNINAY
LNIWAVd

# HDIOANI Id3G-ANNI

a¥¥d TYIDUIRWOD ENO STTIM

YOOANIA

9T/0T/11
LS08YSEd

£6

FHEWON

od
93eq uny
ON 11oday



4

S6°558'9

S6°558'9

TYLOL
[e2:4 s8]

obeg

YENOISSINNOD

a1va NOILVZI¥OHINY ANV MIIAZY J0 INIWIDAETMONIOV

2z 10T €871 9T/0T/11T

LINNOWY H#SNWAL AZLVa

VYILSIOFY QUVO ISVHIENA
ALNOOCD XFACLS

ENIT ADVE SIWYL

NOILdT¥DSHEA

+T®I0L pIeds

T6ZT660LVBSLL

# FDIOANI 143a-ANNJ

HOANTA AFEWON

od
91/0T/TT @ 23eQ uny
LS08¥SEd :ON 3x0day




20°s L988L 9T/€2/11 T0000-56002S2L6 AUVOAIV

SO0V 0L88L  9T/€Z/T1T NALLIHM d T0BS-Ev¥ SLL
z0"08 Zve68L  9T/E2/11 avdI SOW Z V.I¥ad 113D
$9°L82Z $988L  9T/EZ/1T avdI T0000-Z90€92Z2LL
60°09¢€ €688L  9T/€T/11 T0000-LTILSOZYELIOY
10°0¥% £688L  9T/€Z/11 T0000-Z08LEOZFELIOV
JIHS¥IANINY 02717140 8TELB
€S°GLY 8T°0T 1Z88L  9T/€T/1T TYIAS €228%YMd
60" 8S 1zesL  9T/€T/TIT WALIId €ZZ8YMd
BL*TZ TZ8BL  9T/EZ/1T dyD €0H -£ZZB8YMd
96°ST 1Z88L  9T/EZ/TT ¥IALTII AOOLS
69-22 TZ88L  9T/€2Z/1T YELTI3 -MDOLS
ST LT 1Z88L  9T/€2/1T FIALTII-ADOLS
00°812 TZ8BL  9T/€2/1T YOSNAS IaE¥ 068508
69°22 TEZ88L  9T/EZT/11 SYFLTIZ-AD0LS
66" €S TZEBL  9T/€2/11 YALTII -MOTd LZSYPYMd
-86° 7% teeeL  9T/€T/1T LIQEED ¥ALIIL
6V EE TZB8L  9T/EZ/1T ¥ALTII ¥IV LZSYYMd
Le*9¢g TZB8L  9T/€Z/T1 TI0 -TOLD $9Z9SUd
08" bL TZBBL  ST/EZ/TT JLVLI¥ ¥IITIJ $2295¥d
L8 TE T2Z8EL  9T/ET/TT SYFLTIA -ADOLS JdOHS
6v° 97 TZ88L  9T/EZ/1T JATING ILNIOL AD -dOHS
98° vE TZ8S8L st/ez/1t ¥IIAVAY ‘¥ITINO0D dOHS
(32444 TZz88L  9T/€z/TT AZFIYIV dOHS
SLAVd OLNY ALID TVLIdYD LTELS
11706 11706 Zeg8L  9T/€Z/TT QISUNESIA INTWHSINNYO
TYNOISSHIONE ¥ SSEANISNG 9TELS
TT1°952 T1° 982 seesL  9r/€z/1l ¢ NYOH ¥IV-SLE
ONI Z¥Id S.NoIyng STELE
05" €22T 0S°ET 9¥88L  9T/€T/TT
00°012 9¥88L  9T/€Z/TT 9T0Z ‘9T-£ AON
SIMET LLODS ‘TIaNindg PIELS
00°89T 00°89°1 L168L  9T/€Z/11 FIAVIT WYEL
ATTAN ' TTIMNMOXE ETELS
SZ 0L sz oL 1688L 9T/€Z/1T SEITIANS SKE
DTT ‘IYOICEW FENI ANNOH Z1ELB
66°60T 66 60T ZL8BL 91/€2/11 SHIINAEA ¥Od YIIWYD
‘d"71 ‘SFYOLS ANE LsIH TTELR
00°22 0o-ze LBBBL 91/€2/T1 SEEI ONITIA
FLLENAT ‘dy04dE" 0TELS
05" 81 0581 0Z88L 9T/€T/T1 avdT A9 -T0LD
(ONZ¥) SATd STTYHELLYE 60€EL8
00°S6T 00°S6T 6188L  9T/€Z/11 HOLYNJALIVY -SLn
ONI‘DI¥LOATE MONAL ¥ OLOY BOELS
85" 8% 858V S988L 91/€2/1T dDIANES FONTYHANODHTHL
IA¥TES HONENIINODATAL L¥IV LOELE
7688 122837 LTBBL ST/€Z/11 dOHS
25°0T 6888L 91/€2/11 A¥ANNYT VL IS
25791 6888L 9T/€T/T1 | A¥aNOVYT SL 1S
(AN} 6888L 91/€2/11 AJANOYT ZL IS
6976 6888L S1/€2/1T AAANOYT TL IS
ONI QDSTVY 90ELS
6L°52Z 6L°522 B8888L 91/€Z/11 STITdANS SWE
ONI NDN SVOYIV S0€ELB
0S"¥b0“1 05 t%0°T S068L ST/€Z/TT 444 NOIIYNIWXIL AT¥WE Hd
NI SWHLSAS INIWN¥IAOD SO¥ VOELS
TYLIOL LNNOWY #SNVNL A (ol # 0/a NOILdT¥DSHEA IDIOANI ¥OANEA VHEWON
AOFHD ADEHD
9T/€2/T1T HILSIDAY MDHHD 91/22/1T : @3eq uny

T abeg ALNNOD AZAOLS STETEd :ON 3z0da¥




06°ETT
00°%99°1

vz szt

00°SET
€0°98
00" SET
00°0TT

S9°6EY

00" vy ve
s1'2zL
00°SSY
00°sL2

68°66T

9L 6TL

00°0ST
92 1St
007891
SS°ES
EB"CI8
ADFHD

z abeg

06 "ETT
00°%99°T

9L 99V
-29°90¢
~EB TLY
ge"8
z8°v9
BB CZTE
-09°6%
00 sz
EL°LST
“vLTTL
8% 921
91996
zg-9¢

00°SET
E0°98
00°SET
00°0TT
96 "vS
96" %S
T6°601
96° %S
S6° %S
06°60T
00 vZyv 've
ST 2ZZL
00°SS¥
oo-sLe

9L7 921
EI7EL

oo votT
9L"STS

00°0ST
9T 1St
007891

SSTES

LNOOWY

OvESBL
Z168L

[44:-1-75
[44:1:74
Zz88L
[44:1-75
[44:1-75
2288L
ZZ88L
ZZ88L
[44-1: 78
[44:1.73
ZZ88L
[44:1:72
[44:1:-73

ST68L
9988L
PI68L
TE68L
9888L
9essL
€988L
9E68L
SeBBL
SEBBL
LO6SL
S¥88L
B8¥88L
VEBBL

BS68BL
peE6EBL

ivesL
Tv68L

9%68L
LL88L
8T68L

LP88BL

#SNTAL

st/ez/1t
9T/€z/1t

9T/€T/1T
9T/€2/11
9T/€2/11
9T/€Z/1T
91/€2/11
9T/€2/11
9t/€z/1t
9tT/€z/11
9T/€Z/TT
9T/EZ/11
9T/€2/11
9T/€2/11
9T/€Z/1T

91/€z/11
9T/€T/1T
9T/€2/1T
9t/ez/11
91/€Z/1T
9T/€2/11
9T/€Z/1T
ST/€Z/11
9T /€Z/11
9tT/€2/11
9T/€2Z/11
9t/ez/1t
9T/€2/11
9T1/€2/11

91/€2/11
9tT/€Z/11

9T/€2/11
9T/€2/1T

9T/€2/1T
9T/EZ/11
9T/€zT/1T

9T/E2/11T

JLYa

# 0/d

HYILNID dOOMADO0T -HEAJ0D
ONITIVW SLOTIVE

1€ T3A SL-€

SETVALLYE qyd ¥
SATYILIVE d¥d dqx

v¥dgs TIO-€L¥ ¥4

YOIVNLOY -¥1ZZ90S

ATTSSY €NH -€Z20990S

¥d ‘SHOHS SEHNWVIE -TT91S0S
A9711I0d -LS929¥S

SLTdd -vZTosud
YOSNIS-ATWOD

SEXWVIE -8%8TSOS
SEIYILILVE-QU¥E davay

¥VIM LXH ISOd 8V¥B-TISOS
INYOM TT04

INO QOOMMDQOT HONVEINEJ00S®
HIANEOM 1704

UANAFOM TI0d

TIVL ¥IALTIIA JALUM

EDId80 218 ¥HALTIA ¥ILVM
IA¥ES 3 NYETID ‘S¥ELTIA HD

YILUM TL LS
VELYM TL IS

J00d-DSMT

$SL -AV¥dS q3aM
ONISILYEAQY JIEOLDO
ONINIVYEL

LNHLNI 40 EDILON vasn
FOWId ONITTIOd NI HOHNVHD

FONVHOXE ¥2TT0¥
SQI0OEA AN

gSANESIA INIWHSINIVD
YAAYET WYIL

SEI17ddNS KOOY 1SHY¥

NOILdI¥DSEA FDIOANT

9T/€2Z/TT FALSIODIY MNDHHD
ALNNOD AHUOLS

ONINIINIONT LSIM WAV
00 SO¥E JYIAWIVA

FIOIA¥ES ONITIVHW HSITONE

ONI A1ddNS 0LV LLOITTA
NOJVHS ‘NOXId

NOILYIOdIOD SEd HSIA
¥UNITEONY WAOVYT 'ENOWIS Hd

NNV HLIEVZITE ‘A¥Q

ONI VS[l SHOIYd

ONI TIW LHS ¥ ONIJOO¥ d®a
ONI A¥IS NOILONAO¥Ed dO¥D

+ VIQEW SLAEDONOD FAILVIYD

AOTALVA ‘HTA0D

(OA) ETDINOUHD ADOLSWOD

TOS LNWONKW WNDOd ALITIWOD
ONI ISHHD ALINOWWOD

AdN 40 IDIAYES NOILDETTIOD
ALLODS/NATI¥YW ‘dOTSNYHD
ATd4dNS XJWLINVYS TVALNID
FOANIA

9T/22/11
STETEd

LEELE
9EELE

SeEeLs

PEELB
€EELB
ZEELB
TEELB

OtELB

6ZELB
BZELS
LZELB
ozZeLe

STELB

vzeLs

£TELB
ZZELSB
TZELB
0ZELS
6TELS
HAENOAN
ADIHD

@3eq uny
ON 3j30day



967 €9T OEBEL 9t/€eg/1t OVHS 'ONIHSNE 'NId -$ZZ8¥Md

6L BL 0EBBL  9T/E€Z/TT ENIT d -€2ZZ8%Md
6E° LY OEBBL 9L/€2Z/11 INITA €Z2Z8¥vMd
-%9°81 0EBBL  9T/€2/1T anis -vzzsvMma
-86°2 0€88L  9T/€2/1T ION -¥Z2Z8¥Md
Z8° 061 0€E88L  9T/€Z/TT NId ONIAAS-E0LMA
L6°TT 0€88L 9T/€2/1T LON ‘aNLS -vZZevMd
6E°06 0EB8L 9T/€Z/1T DHLO¥d SHNE -WAIHAIMS
o171 g€l SSELB
89 V96 ‘E 00°8BIZ 0T68L 9T/EZ/1T YIANIS SWIN SIATEVO WAX
19°ZES’E 0T68L ST/EZ/T1T AINVNIYM dH ¥FA¥TIS SWIN
8%°SZT 0T68L  9T/€Z/1T 04 AFTIHD FAVYOHAN WA
65°88 0T68L 9T/€2/1T dH NIAEN D JENOI
D71 FDYNO0S TILI PSELB
8%°19Z 8% 192 LZBBL 9T/€Z/11 HTOSNOD NIf” QH¥HS Z/1
NI IOW O3NI NIVLNNOWN NOWI €SELB
00°9¥% 00°9% 6L88L  9T/€Z/1T SQYYD ZId SEMMAL
SNOISSA¥AWT HAILYAONNI ZSELB
S0"CPL T PP 0€ETT 6Z88L 9T/€2/1T A00¥ OHIZVD MAvd HOA
19°11 6288L  9T/€2/11T dV0S HSYM ¥VD
FOIAYES IIQIED LOJAA HWOH TSELB
00°08T 00°08T €Z68L  9T/ET/1IT JINAOM TT0d
HANAY NIITHIVY ‘AITOIH 0SEL8
6L°8 6L 8 €¥68L  9T/€Z/TT
NZITIZ ‘NOILONIWIIH 6VELB
BL 6 68"V L688L  9T/€Z/1T SEIT4dNS SKE
68° ¥ L688L  9T/€Z/1T SAITAANS SWE
NIZHDS A¥NIH 8VELS
0t-9LeZ 0T-9LEZ T¥88L 9t/ee/11 SISHL WWY ¥ FLVILIN HOWH
QLT ILNIVW TIOVd A7ddNS aH LYELS
00°S82Z 00°s82 ZEEBL 9T/€2/11 YAAYEAT WYAL
T AIAYA ‘LIVH 9vELB
00°59 00°59 8288L 9T/€2/11 ATIZLIVND -DSMT
S3d ¥ HLIWNIL NISVE Ivayd SYELB
00°SET 00°SET 8V68L 9T/€E2/11 00°S¥XE
WOL ‘A¥SESNVED PYELS
56'8 -00°2€ 8L88L  9T/€Z/1T AINUNLIE SHIVId FWUN
S6° 0% 8L88L  9T/€2/11T SALYId FWVYN
ONI STTVD EVELS
05 z€2Z 05-z¢€z 6Z68BL 9t/ez/tt YINYOM TT04
3 FSINIA “NOLIIH ¥ETInd ZYELB
00°0€T 00°0ET LE6BL  9T/ET/TT ¥IAYOM TT0d
ANTTHE ‘NYOUNYTA TYELS
S6°62Z S6°62 ZEBBL 91 /€2/11T INAWHDYIdEE OVTd FLVLS AN
HHI-ONI AEN 40 S¥OLS DVId OvELB
S6°BOE 9L EET 9LBEL 91/€2/1T ENVAONd TIVL
¥S €9 BEEBL 91/€2/11
15°ST 9688L 9t/ee/1T INVAONd VOLVIENHED %L LS
¥1°'96 9688L 91/€2/1T ANVdO¥d VL 1S
d7 SYOTTIINNEL 6EELS
S6° €8 S6°t8 €L88L 9t/€2/11 SEIT¥ALLYE
ANVIWOD TYNFLSVA BEELS
1Z°5¥8°ST Y6 1€V‘2Z €288L  9T/€Z/T1T VI# YAMIO ASVL
AL 2 €Z88L  91/€T/1T 0T# ¥EQEO MSYL
€1°989°9 €Z88L  9T/€Z/TT TT# ¥EAWO NSYL
00°SZE*‘S £Z88L 9T/€Z/1T SIIVAdN NV'Id JLSYW
TYLIOL LNNOWY H#SNWAL aLva # 0/d NOIL4I¥DSIQ FDICANI FOANIA WIEWAN
A2dHD MDHAHD
9T/€Z/TT ¥ALSIDIY MIHHD 9T/22/TT : @3eq uny

€ abeq ALNNOD ANOLS STETEAE :ON 310d8X




05°998°¢6 i43-1-73 9T/€2/11 S33d ¥IANIIIA DITEnd

JIANIIIA DINENd AEN oBELS
00°098°C 00°098°¢C ¥886L  9T/€T/1T INZWA¥d TYONNY XIJOLS
SEDINOSIA NVWNH AAN 6LELS
6L ¥18'S 6L°%18°S zegeL  9r/ez/1T 1D0 FSVHOIN YELYM
SAONNO¥D ¥ DATH NIWAY AIN BLELS
€6 VET €S PET T068L  9T/€Z/1T SIHDIT ZLTa/ZLE
1D)ES AONIOMEWE TYdIDINOW LLELB
09°8¢ 09°8¢€ £EBEL  9T/€2/1T SIMYE NOILWOINYI
FNTYA ENYL ISOAOH ANOOKW 9LELB
00°002°T 00°002°T SE68L  9T/EZ/TT $T0Z LDO
1 LYFE0¥ ‘SIHEOW SLELB
06°V0€ 05" %0€ orBeL  9T/€T/1T TLIE FDIOANT QILDINAOD
OLNEWYEOVS £0 H¥IL NYOUOK YLELB
00°SET 00°SET sg68L  ST/€T/TT JIANAIOM TI04
NOAH WANOW ‘FNOOW €LELR
00°891 00°89T oze6eL  ST/€T/11 ¥IAVHAT WAL
HY30820 ‘ SJ00W ZLELB
08°LZ1 087,21 LzeeL  9T/ET/1T JANAOM 1704
I7Y0 ' INOOK TLELB
00°SET 00" SET zz68L atT/ez/11 JANIOM 1104
T VIHLYNNY *ZHOOW OLELB
00°58¢2 00°582 8z68L  9T/EZ/TT ¥IAVIT WYL
Y HATIVEW ‘HETTIW 69€ELB
98" T€ 00" 2T vH68L 9T/€2/11T sy
98" 61 vE68L  9T/EZ/1T
VAYWYI ' NVOIW B9ELS
v6°9b2 S0°62 T€88L  9T/€2Z/1T LOYLS %Z0980S
68°L1Z TEBBL  9T/E€Z/1T AWYIAVAH S9ZE8¥OS
0D ¥OLOW THOH TAYHOIW LIELS
€8°BTE ZB €9 S¥68L  9T/EZ/TT
10°552 0068L  9T/€2/1T SEI7ddNS FDIII0
NI SNOILNTOS ZDIJI0 QWLIAW 99€L8
95° 8% 95°8% 9C68L  9T/EZ/TT ANOD OD¥N
MO¥L ' AHIANOOW S9€L8
95°ST 02'¢ sL88L  9T/EZ/1T ITHO0D HSYIIS WIHD
9€° 2T SLBBL 9T/eg/1T HIAWWY'IS HD/SIHOIT Qa7
NOL ' A¥WENIOW Y9€LB
00°00L 00°00L TS68L  9T/€Z/1T
AHILOWIL ‘ZHL¥WVIOKW €9€L8
00°L9T 00°59T te88L 9T/€T/1T 910Z ‘9T-€ AON
00°2 Tc88L 91/€2/1T
WNASNW NOISNVW A¥XOVK Z9EL8
66°LI6"'SY 66°LT6E'SY 0€88L  9T/€Z/TT
0711 SINEAE FNTE AIndIT T9€ELB
00°000°ZT 00°000°Z 6v88L  9T/€Z/1T
00°000°0T 6v¥88L  9T/€2/1T
D17 SINIAZ ANTE aINdIT 09€ELB
T€ €SP TE'ESY 6688L  9T/€T/1T SEI7d4dNS SWA
ONI 1SISSVY-Z3IT 6SELS
0L"6 0L"6 Lv68L  9T/€Z/11 BEWDST/S
NI SEDIANES INIT HOVNONY'I §SELS
00°9ST 00°9ST 6T68BL  9T/€2/1T "IAYAT WYEL
T YNOVT 3I0NEA LSELE
§S 912 S5 Y1Z 0688L  9T/€Z/TT SWNOATINN INIWESANEWT A
aMoo¥E ‘SIAMIAL 9SELB
0L T8S
TYIOL INNOWY #SNWAL 21va # 0/d NOIIJI¥DSEA FDIOANI FOANIA FIHWON
ADEHD MDFHD
9T/€Z/TT ¥ILSIDAN MDHHD 91/22/TT : ®3eq uny

abeq ALNAOD AHIOLS STETEd :ON 3x0day




S

0S°LB9‘S

8L°S9L'T

00°00¢
00°'0T
LY 6ES

ZETELE'Z

0s LT

Z6ESY'Y

00°SL
vv-s9se
00°00T
00°006°T
oc-oe
0s"Z¥v1l
00°SEE
8T TZS
00°€9
00-08

0s°L8s

00 EEL‘6T

TYLOL
ADEHO

abeg

oL
£9° v
gete
6E°E
€0°
86°T
€E°8
8L°T
€€ 2
99°
(4
DS°LBY‘S

€9°S0E’T
ST°09%

00°00¢€
00°0T
LY 6ES

0a-0sZ’t
TE'ETT'T

0S°LZT

897898
$T°58S°€E

00°seL

Py S95°¢
00°00T
00°006°1
00°08
0S°ZvT
00°SEE
81" 129
00°€9
00°08
00°2Ze¢
0S°9€ES
00°6S¢C
05°9%8°¢6

LNOOWY

6¥68L
ev68L
€v68L
EV6E8L
E¥6BL
6¥608L
6¥68L
EV68L
6¥68L
[34-3-72
6P68L
6E68BL

LS88L
LS88L

9S88L
£068L
6068BL

5S88L
SS88L

9Z68L

LEB8L
LEBBL

0888L
1168L
9€88L
S888L
vS88L
TC68L
9zZ88L
ES88L
vZeeL
z<88L
8C68L
ZC68L
ZcesL

veESSBL

HSNYAL

9T/€2/1T
9T/€T/11
9T/€2Z/TT
9T/€2/11
91/€2/11
9T/€2/11
91/€2/11
91/€Z/1T
9T/€2/11T
9T1/€2/11
91/€2/11
9T/€2/11

9T/€T/1T
9t/€z/11

st/eg/1t
9r/€z/t
gt/ee/1t

9T/€2/11
9T/€Z/11

9T/€Z/1T

9T/€2/11
st/ez/1t

9T/€2/11
9T/EZ/TT
9T/€2/11
9T/€2/1T
9T/€2/1T
9T/€EZ/TT
st/€z/11
9T/EZ/TT
9T/€2/11
ST/€2/11
91/€2/11
9T/EC/TT
9T/€2/11
91/€Z/11

dLva

QOOMADOT/EUId
NIWAY /I TIOELAN0D
JITYIHS

ar

JJdIYIHS

SYAON OITENd

(DA) TAIL
YFAA0DTA

AFITO

I¥L/a¥1d
INZWAOTIATA ALINNWWOD

9102/81/11

S6€ AMH
¥dD SILYVH ' AZHOX

dFIAOD VE-LSIBLPBSLL LIDOV

YIRACM 11048

SEUIL €L-¥
IdL -ZeLLSMd

ONIVOLINOW WIVIV OSOS
HOELd0 TV¥ENED SLOTIVE
aNN3Ty LISOdAd

TITIJTE 9T0Z/¥0/1T

9102 '9T-f AON

YIN¥OM TI0d

WELSAS ¥EDINIYAES HAIA
9T/TT/2T-9T/%T/11

TALOH-TEND AUV ONINNVIA

I¥DOIFZ2YEIM-TYOISAHd 104
STVOISAHd Qdn MEAN
STYIISAHd TdA MAN

S3Ja ¥MEANIJAIT DITEnd

NOILAI¥DSAd HDIOANI

9T1/€2/11 ¥ALSIOTY NDHHD

ALNNOD AZFEOLS

dT NI SHOIAYES TVdOTD DES

"d GIAVA ‘OYALGANYS

SOTHAWED 3 H3M qQUVNOIAIVS
aQVIVL ‘NOSI¥FHON
LJdEA NOILIWONAT VSWIA

{¥D) ONI 0D NVOAOW AW

ONI SAIDILVILS A

‘0 NANHIVE ‘XETOINd

0D ¥ARLNY * FAIL TTENING
ONI SHDIAEA NOILDELO¥d
ONI SNOILNTOS LNIWNDOAO¥d
MYVW AFTSLLIA

ONI SEMOd8 KINLIG

d OTEONY ‘INIYLIAG
YSHEITHL 'VITIZNYd
NOILDELO¥d FdId AVIHAIAO
OTT YIAHW INOYALNO
NILSOY ‘dNJOFS0

IS ® SDIHAWY¥D FAIS HHL NO

HILNED HLIVEH TYNOILVENDDO

YOANIA

ot/ze/11

oowLe

66ELSE

86ELE
LEELB
96€ELB

S6ELB

v6ELS

£E6€L8

Z6ELB
T6€ELB
O6€ELS
68ELE
8geLe
LBELB
98€LR
SBELS
vBELe
€8ELE

[4:3 4]

TRELS

YIEWON
ADIHD
83eqg uny

STETEd :ON 330day



00 2z¥% T988L 9T/EZ/1T

00-z18 1988L  9T/€Z/1T
00" vy T988BL 91/€2/1T 9102 ‘91-€ AON
ONI S¥NOL AIID VINIDHEIA STPLE
00°S¥%T 00°S%T 0E68L gt/€ez/1t ATAYOM TI04
HIWSE 'SYDEANIA YIVLE
99°L8T 93°L8T TL88L 9T/€2/11T JISANESIA INAWHSINIYD
TYINLSNANI SONWYNIS JHELINO ETHLE
09° LYY 00" 8T vL88L  9T/€Z/TT FAYL IWYN SNOWIS "L
0S°"€ET vL88L  9T/ET/TT F9qvE FWVN SNOWIS 'L
0T 9T¥ vL88L  9T/ET/T1T SWILI WNOJINN FAOdAT
OTT VA¥AIN 0 ALIWNOJINN ZTvL8
00°00S 00°00S 6€88L  9T/EZ/1T NOILYWIED
NOILVWEYD SMOQVIW HAAONAL TTYLE
00°891 00°89T vZeBL 9t/eg/1t AINAOM 1704
HSINIA ‘EINTIOIDTA-NAMONHI oTvLe
T0°98T°€ LE'LOT eE8s8L 9T/€2/1T STYD S9 TISA HOA
oo"egvz't BEBSL 9T/€T/TT LOT TISA /9LS OFF-Md
T16°€ST BEBBL 9T/€Z/11 00706 7TSA -HOA
S0°09S‘T BEBBL 9r/€z/11 0€Z 1S / L6S 9FA-Md
80°221T 8E€88L 9t/€2/11 00°99 r1SA-HOA
077 WNFTOULIE SYWOHI 60¥L8
00°0%T 00°0%T 1888L 9T/€2/1T AIVAAY ANIS TIVD
AWFLYWEEHL 80%L8
00" 0%8 SL"E6 0988L 9T/€2/11 av FZISHY
00°0LE 0988L 9T/€2/11 NOISAQ E4INS
SL°B8T 0988L 9T/€2/11 0S AMH
05" L8T v068L  9T/€Z/TT INFWLINYDEE INYHD adn
AONIOV SOLNV FHIL LOWLE
oc-zeé 00°2¢ 6S88L  9T/EZ/TT
00" %98 6588L  9T/€2Z/1T
00°9¢ 6588L 9T /€2/1T 910Z '9T-€ AON
SASTUINIAING X¥VEd NOS 90¥%LE
LZ S8 LZ S8 ET68L 9T/€2/11 SYANYOM NOILDIETI
WSSANYA ‘SNEHAZLS SovLe
00°0E6°E 00 0E6°E EE68L 91/€2/11 HONNI NI AINNOCD OL ad
(OA) MALNED ¥OINAS 0D IS vOvL8
0v-SzZ8 0%°SZ8 Z988L 91/€Z/11 dOHS 14ID ¥OJ4 NID WID
S 3 ANIM SYHZVIO NAFHINOS €0%LE
0021 00°zt 8s88L 9T /€2/TT 9102 ‘9T-£ AON
NITIY NVI¥E ‘JVOHS ZO¥LB
ST LLO Y €L-zI 8I88L  9T/€Z/TT Z/1 -ONITENd I¥L
6€£°59 £888L 9T/€EZ/11 dor 2960-L%8
0£°Z6R'E £688L 91/€2/11 SNOIIWDINNWWOD -ZT%9-262
8E 6L €EB8L 9t/€2/11 JLDA 005L-L¥8
9€° LT EEBBL 9T/€Z/11
ONI SHEDIA¥IS TYHOTD DES T0¥%L8
S8°58 89°22 6¥68L  9T/€Z/1T 210A
8L T 6v68L  9T/€2/1T ONINNYI
80°L 6V6EL 91/€2/1T 1I
8S” 6%68L 9T/€2/11 (OA) TNId
8Z°9 6968L 91/€2/11T YANOISSTWWOD
SE'TT 6968L 91/€2/11 HOLVASIA TVELNAD
L8 € 6768L 91/€Z/11 AOSSISSY
Lo T 6¥68L  ST/E€Z/TT INFWAOTIAZA ALINNWKCD
60°S 6b68L 91/€Z/11 (DA) =NIL
IVIOL INNOWY #SNWAEL ELva # 0/d NOILAI¥DSEQ FDIOANI YOANEA WEEWAN
XDFHD NDFHD
9T/€Z/TT YHLSIODIE NDFHD 91/22/11 : @°3eQ uny
9 abeg ALNNOD XFHOLS STETEd :ON 3z0dey




L

€L°868°E6T
09°Z6T
coroz
00882
ao-"ses‘e
00°999°T1
oL 10T
00°B€R
TYLOL
2DEHD

abeg

TYLOL SMOHHOD
09'Z6T
0002
00" 882
go°sgs‘z
00°999°1

oL 10T

LNNOWY

vees8L
EVE8L
9TE8L
Z%88L
SzZesL

6988BL

#SNWAEL

9t/ez/1t
31/€Z/11
9t/€e/1T
9T/€T/TT
st/ez/1t

91/ez/11

d1va

ISNOEIUIS LW ¥04 ANVS
WMOATTOD TLL

JEAVET WYEL

STYD X9 DILAES HO
SHOIAYES LSIAEEOT

ATIN A0S HLWYWNT

NOILdI¥DSIA FITOANI

9T/E€Z/TT WALSIODAA NDIHD

ALNNOD AZEOLS

ONI HLIUONOD Qt

YT TYLNTWNOVIANZ NATLSEAM
NAYVN ¥ENIEM

YEd AS MNVL DILJIS SUALVM
SELYIDOSSY 3 ¥DITUM
LOH¥AOD 40 IdIA JLVLIS WM
FOANIA

9t/zT/11

TZvLB
ocwLe
6T17L8
8TvLE
LTIVLS
9TVvLS
YIENON

AOEHD
@3eq uny

STETEd :ON 3Ixoday



00" %2 6€6 9t/€g/11 NIAZN 60ZLEOD
L6"ZOY ZE6 9T/€2/11 FAVADdN Dd A¥YD €LSSE0
86° €8 Z€6 9T/€Z/TTAEY M ANY HLOOLINTE LI €LSSEO
L6 T6E'T Z€6 9t/€2/11 AL NIWWYIS LOSYE0
L6°T6E'T Z€6 9T/€2/11T AL D20A LOSPED
867 ¥ ZE6 9T/ET/1T SMAADS 0LLTEO
€5°¥S 6E6 9T/€T/1T NVWTOH  10d9d EWOH LZTI¥1C0OQ
v8* %9 6€6 9tT/€z/11 NYWTIOH  LOdEd 3WOH 9ZT¥T00
€8°¥ST 6€6 9T/€2/11 NVWTIOH  LOd3a FWOH SZT¥T00
88" €07 6€6 9T/EZ/11 NVWTIOH  1LOddd EWOH ¥vZIVLO0O
00°0TT 6€6 9T/E2/1T NVWTOH  LOd2d EWOH 90TTT00
TL°S6 SE€6 9T/€Z/1T EONVNALNIVW ONIAIINd SEMOT XZHOA
-Z€'82 6€6 9T/€2/11 VIIIEAS ONIDVY LIWWNS
66" 9€ SE6 91/€2/1TT HONVNALNIVW LIOdSNVAL OLNY VdUN AHAANS
6%° 258 SE6 91/€2/1T SAIVAIdE JFZ0a LVYD NVWHSYD ¥HAANS
66°2Z £€6 9T/€2/11 ISYHOUNE WIAEW b Ld LNSWISUNEWIZA
66 % €€6 9T/€2/11 HSYHOUNG VIASW € Id INIWASUNEWIEY
50°9 £€6 9T/€Z/1T dSVYHOUNG VYIAEW ? Id INIWASHNEWIIA
verL £€6 9T/€T/11 HSVYHOUNE VIQEW T Id INIWISHNEWIZE
LY 89 LBBT 9T/€2/11 1Y TYNOS¥Ed T¥OHIN ANIA ONIYEdSIHM M
58°5¥% L8YT 9T/€2/1T § NHOL Md OY ONINNWTIG 03¥ AVEd WAATIS M
€2 CE LBYT 9T/€Z/11 WL WA Md ODWN AAANIM dWNUHYE MdA
0S4t LBPI 9T/€2/11 WL WW Md OD¥N dWNAKYd SEJIL TE M
S6'S9 GE6 9T/€2/1T SOVTA NOILWLIS ¥OLS OVId HONOTINIDW
§1°20S €6 9T/€2/1T JOHSHUOM INIAZ TYANNY SLOH NVEd AFANLIHM OX
0%" Z€ 1€6 9T/EZ/TTLSYL-ONILINAYN NID WED S HLIWS ax
g8z’ g 1€6 91/€2/11 JISNW NIFIMOTIVH WOD " SEANNLI T4I aX
66°FT €6 9T /E2/1T SYLEWNN ZAVIVd WOD "NOZYWY ax
10°0€ LBYT 9t/€eg/11 ODYN SVD ZIvH# ATEIAVA WO
S0°T¢L LBYT 9T/€2/1T OD¥YN SVD  HVYAONOL NONFAEHD WL
00*SE L8V 9T /ET/1T JYOJQEE ddV¥ AEYION FIVLS 40 DFS AN 4arP
EE"PS £€6 9T/EZ/TIN00E NIVDINNWWOD NISnd 8ZZ0918" ' "# ANI
00°0LE €€6 9T/€2/TITELd €145 ONUL ONIW XO€ OEZEAY9" " "# ANI
9L ' T6 €£E6 9T/€C/1T FSYE LANIEYD VIQAW Z1d BEVEGES " “# ANI
00'e® EE6 9T/€2/11T YHZINVYONO MSHA  TLd BEPE6ES™ ™ "# ANT
00° 06T €E6 9T/EZ/TTTLd €045 SNEL ONMW XOd LSTEA6F " "# ANI
00" 0¥%L €E6 9T/€2/TT2ld €045 ONAL ONMW XOH 69909LE" " "# ANI
LE TBT £E6 9T/€Z/11T MOTIEA ¥ANOL JFIALNIAA ZLld BTIPSLTIE " "# ANI
2T 6LT €€6 9T/€2/1T NV¥AD ¥ANOIL dFINIA4 TLd BTPSLTIE" " "# ANI
€% 6€ 9€6 ST/€Z/TTHOITHSYIZ ¥ SHIA0D A8 LOd3d FWOH - TUOWAVH
06°8TT 6€6 9T/€2/11 NIAZSN Od AW OL 09
08° 1€ BE6 91/€2/11 SYYAYY ¥O0d IOVLSOd VANIAYD
L8639 SE6 91/€Z/TTSTYIHEIYN ONINIVAL Tdd  LO4EA TWOH ANSFLANA
06" 8€ S€6 9T/€2/1T SHI¥NELLVE L0430 HWOH INSTHIING
00" 0SL SE6 9T/€Z/11 ONINIVIL J0WL W NOXIQ
91° 8L 1te 9T/€2/11 ¥9 LNO"HYANNOY OS aa
SO°PTIT 1E6 9T/€Z/TT JOHSYHOM INFAF TYANNY TIINO ¥WEd ¥IATIS ad
8% 6 SE6 9t/ee/1t SYIVAIE TL IS LOdEA FWOH SILAND B
00" 9 vE6 9T/€Z/TIDIHIA QOOMMDOT- HSYMAVD SYANNIM-NIAEN D
9T-2S V€6 91/€2/ 1T HNOHd SFLITTIILYS LSOdavod-NIASIN "D
00° SV LEG 9T /ez/11 SYID A¥VION INVLLI¥E
00° S€ LBYT 9tT/€2/11 DLW LSINE WIHNN OV
9€°sLe BE6 9T/€T/1T ¥3S OL 1dand OYONTI.INY
G0 €6 LES 9t/€z/1T Q3IIqEyD =g L dO¥UE-FWIAd NOZYWY
S6°8TE SE6 9tT/€z/11 S¥IVAEE TL IS 10430 FWOH SNIMAW
INIFWAYd C¥VYD TYIDAIWWNOD ENO STTaM 76
TYIOL LNOOWY #SNWAL JrLva NOIL4I¥DSHEa # HEDIOANI Ld3d-annd YOUNEA HIEWAN

ayvo od
YILSTIOZY Q¥WD HASYHOAENG 9T/22/11T ¢ @3eq uny
ALNNOD ATYOLS 1S08¥SHd :oN 3xoday

1 abeg




4

Z8 TLE'ET

ZB TILE'ET

gz 'L18"’

00°0TT
00°0TT
00°0TT
00°0TT
9L S8
9L°00T
9L Se
Z1°os

TYLOL LNOOWY

2beg

FLVa

4 (47
6€6
6€6
6€6
6€6
(42
(41
Z€6
€6€6

YINOISSTWWOD

YINOISSIWWOD

NOILVZI¥OHLOV ONY MATATY J0 LNIWIDAHTMONIDY

9T/€2/11
9T/€z/11
ST/€2/11
9T/€2/T1
9T/€e/11
91/€2/11
9T/€2/11
9T/€2/11
9t1/€2/11

#ENYAL q1va

0SX0S ¥IEIA TIVL
NVSNS

NYSNS

SNYSNS

NYSNS

1S D204
HOL¥4ASIU 1S8a
T1SA AZAWOD
VLLIEAS

NOILdT¥DSEA

YALSIDIY AYVO FSVHOHENA
ALNOOD A3YOLIS

+(B30L PIEDs

y¥v0eS90001€ER
ENSI¥ANA T80vZL
M NOSVYL €86EZL
SHEMOd LS6EZL
YATTIIH LS6ECL
60LETVLYT
28569%2SyT
TPLLSSEYT
8SLTEOT

# SDIOANI I4d3T-ANNS

AOANIA YIEWON
od
91/22/11 : @¥3eg uny
1S08bSHd :ON 3I0day



VIANSYIAL

YIATIOELAWOD

YINOISSIWWOD UINOISSTIWWOD NYWATVHD

1SI9UCTSSTWWO) JO pieog Ajuno) As103s aya Aq paaoxddy

€S E09'YVD 1 pesIngstTa [e3joL
00" 1I1030MpPa@ ©3 ISISURIL AISN TeIOL
00" 9114 dag ITA UO PIDFX SPaAQ IdAoTdwzg Te3CL
00" :31s0dag 30921Tq 92Aordwz TeloL
ST°098°¢E 1809y @akorduz Te3IOL
00" IS)O9YD I03IDNPIC TeIOL
8E EVL $6d1ld¥ 103 I93suea]l I9sM) Telol
Iunouy a9dked # pag # aa

/# dwz  /309ud

:sdnoxn [1oIded
91/0Z/0T :33BQ PUS-POTIag 91/92/0T :®83BQ YO3YD Tetoads :adAL TTOIARg

AVYNIWITIEG z93stbey ooy €Z:€5:80 9T/9Z/0T :uny
z abeqd WZLSAS TTIO¥AYd ALNNOD ATYOLS Y0TS0¥d :3day




JIANSVIAL

YETIOULIWOD

YINOISSIWWOD AENOISSIWWOD NYWEIVHD

:SIJUOTSSTWWO) JO PIROE AJUno) 431038 ay3 Aq paaoiddy

98°0T0 ZET 1S)P9YD I030MpPaa Te3ol
no* iSdLJI¥ 10J IBISUeBl] IIs [e30]
Junouy s3ded # peg # aa
/# dud /308D
9T/€0/1T :332a ¥23yd a03onpaq :adAL TToikeq
IYNIS z3381bey YoBey) LO:ZT*HT 9T/€0/TT :uny

[4 abeg WILSAS TTONAVd ALNNOD ATAOLS ¥0T1S0¥d :aday



TYNI

abeg

ANANSYIAL

YITTOULINOD

YINOISSIWWOD HEINOISSTIWHWOD

NVWXIVHO

———

SY LBO'9L

00"

junowuy

9T/€0/1T :33eq XSayDd

x9381bay dayn
WILSAS TI0¥AVd ALNNOD ATAOLS

FSIJUCTSSTWWE) JO PIBOE AJUNO) 4A3103S5 ay3 AQ peaozddy

:S)Y03YD I030Npag Telol

1SdLAE I0J 13jsuex] I9S) TeI0L

294ed 4 pea  # aa
/# dug  /3o3yd

a03onpag :adAl Troxdegq

€0:9T:%T 9T/€0/IT :uny
W0TS0¥d :adey



ATANSYIAL

YETTIOALAWOD

YEINOISSIHWOD HINOISSIWWOD

NYWIIVHD

9T/0€/0T

AYYNIWITING

S

abeqg

LZ0ST'6LY

9Z°109°€

6Z°66L°6 (91T dag
TL TI¥‘S82

ZB'ZI0T

60°98% ‘81T

0T 6€6°09

Junowy

6 8 L 9 S ¥
193ed pua-poTISg 91/%0/1T :33ed 03ud
I935T69Yy Yoaup
WILSAS TTIO¥AWd ALNNOD XTUOLS

iSIJUOTSSTUWWO) JO paeog Ajuno) A2103§ 2yl Aq pasoxddy

ipasangsIdg

:1030Npag 031 IIFSUBIL ISS()

IT@ UC pialx spag o2aforduzm

€

:31sodeg 302x11qg @3kotduzy
:s)0ay) sakordusz
rg309yd Iolonpaa

*SdLdd X0F Iajsuexal Iasn

saked 4 paa
/4 dug

Z 1 :sdnoxn Tr0xdAeg
aernbay :adAl TTOxARd

Te3oL

1e30L
Te30L
e3ol
T®30L
Te30L

T®30L

4 aa
/323w

LELEFIT 9T/TO0/TT :uny
VOTS0¥d :3day



YIANSVIEIL

AATIOULIWOD

HINOISSTIWWOD FANOISSTIWWOD NVWIIVHO

9T/ET/TT

AAYNIWITEG

S

2beg

:SIBUOTSSTWWO) JO paeog A3uno) 4A3103§ a3yl Aq paaocaddy

95°TLY'0LE ipasangsiqg
69°L6Y ‘2 1x030Npag 03 I2FsUeI], IISN
6Z°6LE'OT :+97td dog XTQ uO PI8IX Spag 22Aorduzm
197608 'v82 :31sodaq 302xtg o2Aorduzm
28 2ZI0'T :syoay) asdorduz
€L°9SE’TT 1s308YD) xolonpaa
Z¥ 91¥ ‘09 :8dLdd I0F I8ISuell IISA
Junowy 99hked # paq

6 8 L 9 §
$@3eQ pue-potIad ST/8T/TT :@3eA Xd3Ud

z338TH9y Yoaud
WELSAS TIO¥AYd ALNNOD XIAOLS

/# dug

¥ € T 1 :sdnoxp 110x4Aed
TeTnbay :adAl T10x14A®R4

Te308

Te3oL
Telol
Te3lon
Telorn
Te3ol

Te30L

# aa
/323uw

8T:Zy:1T 9T/9T/T1 :uny
WOTSOo¥d :3doy



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: / A-G-16 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings

2. Recommended motion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda)
I move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request)

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None

District Attorney
8. Reviewed
~x__ Depa t Head Department Name: Community Development
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

——
J 7 —)

Agenda Item No. (g ‘_Y_‘ﬂ_



P O Box 526 » Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 + Fax (775) 847-0935 * buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office November 28, 2016
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Stacey Bucchianeri

Please add the following item(s) to the December 6, 2016, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

A. SHANGHAI RESTAURANT dba SHANGHAI EXPRESS FOOD TRUCK - General / 1269 Baring
Blvd ~ Sparks (mobile food truck)
SAINT MARY’S MEDICAL GROUP, INC. - General /411 W Sixth St ~ Reno (mobile medical)
ASTEELFLASH USA CORPORATION - Contractor / 4211 Starboard Dr ~ Fremont (manufacturing)
ROSS HEATING AND AIR CONDITIONING, INC. — Contractor / 5245 Vista ~ Sparks (hvac cont.)
BRAZILIAN STONE, INC. — Contractor / 2 Round Robin Lane ~ Reno (paver installer)
WEST EDNA ASSOC dba Mojave Electric — Contractor / 3755 W Hacienda ~ Las Vegas (elect cont)
FST TECHNICAL SERVICES, LLC - Professional / 450 E Warner ~ Chandler, AZ (quality assurance)
INTERSTATE FIRE SALES & SVC dba State Fire DC Specialties — Contractor / 5370 East Idaho Street
~ Elko (fire suppression and security)
AUTOMATION MOVERS INTERNATIONAL — Contractor / 4110 Maret Place ~ Flint, MI (mechanical)
COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES, LLC - Contractor / 33 Locke Dr ~ Marlborough,
MA (wireless services contractor)
AMERICAN DOOR INSTALLATION, LP — Contractor / 209 W Mayflower ~ N Las Vegas (contractor)
GOFERU - Home Business / 350 Prospector ~ Dayton (errands concierge)
. MESA ENERGY SYSTEMS, INC. dba EMCOR Services Nevada —~ Contractor / 2 Cromwell ~ Irvine,
CA (hvac contractor)
COLD JET, LLC - General / 455 Wards Corner ~ Loveland, OK (blasting machine sales)
DREAMCRAFTERS, LLC - Contractor / 5488 Reno Corporate Blvd ~ Reno (general contractor)
BART MANUFACTURING, INC. — Contractor / 3787 Spinnaker Ct ~ Fremont (manufacturing)
PROSTAR STAFFING SERVICES, INC. — General / 390 Potrero Ave ~ Sunnyvale, CA (staffing svcs)
CLASSIC TOUCH MOBILE EQUIPMENT REPAIR - Contractor / 9756 N Virginia St ~ Reno
(equipment repair)
SWEEP EASY CHIMNEY SWEEP, LLC — General / 935 Bejay Place ~ Reno (chimney sweep)
Inspection Required

T o poEEgaOR

rFOTEO0Z ZFR

»n

ec: Chris Hood, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Assessor’s Office
Dean Haymore, Comm Dey. Fritz Klingler, Fire Dept. Commissioners’ Office



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: December 6, 2016 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [XT. Regular agenda)( Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Approval of resolution 16-450, 2016 Storey County Business of the Year
2. Recommended motion: Approval of resolution as submitted
3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Copy of resolution is attached.

5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[SES )

Agenda Item No. q



RESOLUTION NO: 16-450

A RESOLUTION HONORING
NICK AND JESSIE FAIN & DIVIDE FITNESS
AS THE 2016 ANNUAL STOREY COUNTY BUSINESS OF THE YEAR

WHEREAS THIS AWARD WILL BE GIVEN TO A STOREY COUNTY BUSINESS
OR ORGANIZATION THAT HAS SHOWN SIGNIFICANT CONTRIBUTIONS
TOWARDS THE ECONOMIC STABILITY IN STOREY COUNTY

WHEREAS NICK AND JESSIE FAIN & DIVIDE FITNESS HAVE
SHOWN EXTRAORDINARY ENTREPRENEURSHIP, MARKET INNOVATION,
STRONG COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND CONTRIBUTIONS TOWARDS
FULFILLING A NEEDED SERVICE IN VIRGINIA CITY

THEREFORE LET IT BE KNOWN TO ALL PRESENT THAT THE BOARD OF
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY DO HEREBY RESOLVE TO
COMMEND AND HONOR NICK AND JESSIE FAIN & DIVIDE FITNESS FOR
THIER CONTINUED AND EXEMPLARY SERVICE TO THE PEOPLE OF STOREY
COUNTY

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 6TH DAY OF DECEMBER 2016, BY THE
FOLLOWING UNANIMOUS VOTE

By: By:
Marshall McBride, Chairman Lance Gilman, Vice Chairman

By: By:
Jack McGuffey, Commissioner Vanessa Stephens, Clerk / Treasurer

Date: DECEMBER 6, 2016



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: December 6, 2016 Estimate of time required: 10-15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required | |

1. Title: Storey County Extraordinary Partner of the Year Award Presentation.

2. Recommended motion: [ move to award the Storey County Extraordinary Partner of the Year
to the Nevada State Office of the United States Department of Agriculture Rural
Development.

3. Prepared by: Cherie Nevin
Department: Community Relations Telephone: 775-847-0986

4, Staff summary: The purpose of the Storey County Extraordinary Partner of the Year Award is
to honor an organization whose partnership with Storey County has proved to be an asset to Storey
County and its communities. This award is presented to an organization that has:
¢ Consistently demonstrated excellence in professional and regional leadership;
e Made, or is making, significant contributions to the welfare of Storey County through
involvement and participation; and
¢ Given their time and energy for the betterment of Storey County, contributing to positive
economic growth and stability for the area.
e Exhibited outstanding initiative, inspiration, leadership and organizational skills which
produce significant results directly benefiting the county and its citizens.

5. Supporting materials: Award Criteria

6. Fiscal impact: NONE

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: -
K"\L District Attorney
8. Reviewe :
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

o
e ed

Agenda Item No. IO



STOREY COUNTY EXTRAORDINARY PARTNER OF THE YEAR
AWARD CRITERIA

The purpose of the Storey County Extraordinary Partner of the Year Award is to honor an
organization whose partnership with Storey County has proved to be an asset to Storey County
and its communities.

This award is presented to an organization that has:

e Consistently demonstrated excellence in professional and regional leadership;

e Made, or is making, significant contributions to the welfare of Storey County through
involvement and participation; and

¢ Given their time and energy for the betterment of Storey County, contributing to positive
economic growth and stability for the area.

e Exhibited outstanding initiative, inspiration, leadership and organizational skills which
produce significant results directly benefiting the county and its citizens.




STOREY COUNTY EXTRAORDINARY PARTNER OF THE YEAR
NOMINATION FORM

Organization Name: USDA Rural Development

Why was 2016 noteworthy for the organization and what was the organizations impact on
the county and its communities?

The Nevada State Office of the United States Department of Agriculture Rural Development
partnership with Storey County has proven to be a tremendous asset to Storey County and its
communities.

Over the past couple of years. Storey County has been successful in receiving USDA Grant and

Loan funds for the Virginia City Wastewater Treatment Facility, the Virginia City Sewer
Improvement Project. Both of these projects were significant to Storey County in assisting us to

make critical improvements to our facilities.

The Storey County Fire Protection District was successful in receiving a USDA loan to purchase
fire apparatus.

The entire staff of the Nevada State Office of the United States Department of Agriculture Rural

Development has consistently demonstrated excellence in professional and regional leadership,
outstanding initiative. inspiration. and organizational skills which has produced significant
results directly benefiting Storey County.

We are grateful for this partnership and extraordinary working relationship.

Anything else we should know about the organization and its staff, something that makes
their story special?

Sarah Adler and her entir: m includi limi heryl Couch. Lisa Goodfellow
Barbara Allen. John Nelson, Jenny Taylor and others have gone above and beyond to work with

county staff to ensure that application and compliance process is as seamless as possible. They
are always available and willing to help with any issue that comes up. They are truly team

players.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: December 6, 2016 Estimate of time required: 15
minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Consideration of and possible action to approve Resolution advising Rural
Development of County’s resolve to defend or obtain title to location of rights of way for
county sewer lines in Virginia City and Gold Hill.

2, Recommended motion: I move to approve the Resolution advising Rural Development of
the County’s resolve to defend and/or obtain the County’s rights of ways for its sewer lines
in Virginia City and Gold Hill.and authorize the Acting Chair to sign.

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis

Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964
4. Staff summary: See attached staff report

5. Supporting materials: Proposed Resolution

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

X District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[1] Denied [1] Continued

Agenda Item No. | |



STAFF REPORT

The Office of the General Counsel for the US Department of Agriculture has
advised that as a condition of closing the loan from Rural Development to finance
the improvements to the sewer system in Gold Hill and Virginia City, that office
will require the passage and forwarding of a resolution from the Board of County
Commissioners that the County is resolved to defend any challenges to its title to
rights of way for the existing sewer lines and/or where they will be relocated and
that the County will make every effort to obtain rights of way and/or easements for
its sewer lines if such action becomes necessary. The attached resolution provides

that information.



RESOLUTION NO. 16-241

RESOLUTION Advising Department of Interior, Rural Development (Rural
Development) of County intent to obtain or defend title to any
property in which sewer improvements financed by funds from
Rural Development will be placed

WHEREAS, Storey County is proposing to issue a Sewer Revenue Bond to be
purchased by Rural Development for the purpose of financing improvements to the County’s

sewerage system located within the Gold Hill and Virginia City areas of Storey County; and

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Agriculture, Rural Development is
requesting an opinion of counsel that the rights of ways for the construction operation and
maintenance of the facilities to be installed, repaired, or enlarged with the proceeds of a loan to
be made or insured by, and/or grant from Rural Development to Storey County confer upon
Storey County the necessary rights-of-way for the construction , operation and maintenance of
the facilities in their present or proposed locations and, that the instruments conveying the rights
of way give Storey County a continuous and adequate right of way to permit the construction,

operation, and maintenance of the Counties sewer facilities; and,

WHEREAS, there are a number of title issues extant in Virginia City due to such

matters as fires, loss of original documents, inconsistent surveys and other matters; and

WHEREAS, there has continually been an operating sewer system in Virginia City and

Gold Hill since prior to 1888 in much the same location as it exists today; and

WHEREAS, there are no known challenges to any of the rights of ways in which the

sewer lines in Virginia City and Gold Hill are located; and



WHEREAS, the United States Department of Agriculture, Rural Development seeks
assurances that Storey County will defend its title to the rights of ways and/or easements where
the sewer lines are located or will be realigned in Virginia City and Gold Hill and/or will take
action to obtain clear title to the rights of ways and/or easements where the sewer lines are

located or will be located in Virginia City and Gold Hill.
NOW THEREFORE IS IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS;

The County of Storey will make every effort to defend its title to the rights of ways and/or
easements where its sewer lines are presently located or will be located by virtue of

improvements proposed to be made to the sewer lines in Virginia City and Gold Hill.
IT IS HEREBY FURTHER RESOLVED:

Should it become necessary, the County of Storey will take affirmative actions to obtain
clear title to the rights of ways and/or easements where its sewer lines are located or will be

located as a result of improvements proposed to be made to the sewer lines.
ADOPTED this day of December, 2016.
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY

By:

MARSHALL McBRIDE, Chairman

ATTEST:

VANESSA STEPHENS
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: December 6, 2016 Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Discussion and Possible Action an ordinance authorizing the issuance of the Storey
County, Nevada, Sewer Revenue Bond, Series 2016 in the principal amount of $4,058,000 to pay
in part the cost to finance the Virginia City Sewer Improvement Project.

2. Recommended motion: I MOVE TO APPROVE ORDINANCE #16-273
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF THE STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA, SEWER
REVENUE BOND, SERIES 2016 IN THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $4,058,000 TO
PAY IN PART THE COST TO FINANCE THE VIRGINIA CITY SEWER
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT.

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 847-1006

4. Staff summary: Attached is an ordinance for consideration authorizing the issuance of the Storey County
Sewer Revenue Bond as part of the USDA Virginia City Sewer Improvement Project. This ordinance is drafted
for adoption in one reading pursuant to NRS 350.579 and must be approved by a vote of at least 2/3 of the
Board of County Commissioners. The ordinance must be published twice by title after adoption and pursuant to
the USDA Loan Resolution; the debenture must close by December 20, 2016. The loan with USDA is for a
period of 40 years.

5. Supporting materials: Ordinance and supporting documents
6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: 135 ‘Zg/_ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
(.. District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
%ﬁ Department Head Department Name:
__ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ Approved [
[

] Approved with Modifications
[1] Denied

Continued

[y E—

Agenda Item No. ] 2_



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
SEWER REVENUE BOND, SERIES 2016

NO. R-1 Maximum Principal Amount: $4,058,000
Dated: December 20, 2016

Storey County, Nevada (the "County"), solely from the special funds provided
therefor, hereby acknowledges itself obligated, and for value received, hereby promises to pay to
the UNITED STATES OF AMERICA (the "United States"), the principal amount above or such
lesser amount advanced hereunder together with interest on the unpaid balance at the rate
1.375% per annum.

Interest shall accrue on the unpaid balance of the total principal amount hereof
from the date of this Bond. Interest accrual shall be calculated based on a 365 day year. Interest
payments shall be made by the County monthly on the 20th day of each month commencing on
January 20, 2017. Amortized principal payments shall be made by the County monthly on the
20th day of each month commencing on January 20, 2017 and ending within forty years of the
date hereof until the total principal amount or such lesser amount as is advanced hereunder with
interest thereon as aforesaid has been fully paid. The County shall pay amortized installments in
ar: amount which shall be sufficient to fully pay the total principal amount advanced plus interest
thereon within forty (40) years from the date of this Bond. An amortization schedule is attached
hereto as Exhibit A and made a part of this Bond. If less than the maximum principal amount
shall be advanced under this bond (this "Bond") by December 20, 2017, the United States of
America, Rural Development ("RD") shall prepare or cause to be prepared a revised amortization
schedule showing installments of the principal advanced under this Bond, which schedule shall
be provided to the County and attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part of this Bond in place
of Exhibit A attached upon the date of delivery of this Bond.

Principal may be advanced under this Bond by a written request of the County
Chairman, Treasurer or Comptroller. The County Treasurer, as registrar for this Bond (the
"Registrar"), shall maintain records showing the principal amount advanced hereunder and such
records shall be conclusive evidence of the amounts and dates of each advance of principal.

If any installment is not paid when due, then in addition to installments thereafter
becoming due, the County shall pay interest on the unpaid balance of the total principal amount
from the due date of the delinquent installment to the date of payment of the delinquent
installment, provided, that interest accruing by reason of any such delinquency shall not include
any interest applicable to such delinquency period in any installments subsequently paid and
shall in no event cause the total interest payable on this Bond to exceed the Interest Rate per
annum set forth above on the unpaid balance of the total principal amount. Except as otherwise

43947335



provided herein, every payment on this Bond shall be applied first to interest due through the
next installment due date and then the balance to principal.

The installments of principal and interest are payable in lawful money of the
United States of America, without deduction for exchange or collection charges, during the
period the United States of America is the registered owner of this single Bond, at the
appropriate United States Department of Agriculture, Rural Development office, currently
designated as 1390 S. Curry St., Carson City, Nevada 89703, or at such other place as the United
States may designate in writing, and are so payable during any period the United States is not the
registered owner hereof at the address shown on the registration records of the County. The final
installment of principal due on this Bond is payable only upon the surrender of this Bond to the
County.

All installments of principal are subject to prepayment at the option of the County
prior to their stated due dates and, in inverse order of maturity, by the payment of such principal
amount and accrued interest to the prepayment date. Prepayments shall be made on the date, at
the place and in the manner provided herein for making regularly scheduled installment
payments and partial prepayments shall be in the amount of that portion of one or more of the
final installments allocable to principal. No partial prepayment shall extend or postpone the due
date of any subsequent installment. Any prepayment shall be in the amount of principal being
prepaid, together with accrued interest thereon to the date of prepayment, and shall be made
without penalty or additional interest or charges. Prepayment shall be made upon prior notice as
provided in the 2016 Sewer Revenue Bond Ordinance authorizing this Bond and adopted on
December 6, 2016 (the "Ordinance").

This single Bond is duly authorized to defray in part the cost to acquire, improve,
equip, operate and maintain a sewerage project within the meaning of NRS 244A.0505,
consisting of facilities pertaining to a county sanitary sewerage system (the "System") for the
collection, interception, transportation, treatment, purification and disposal of sewage, liquid
wastes, solid wastes, night soil and industrial wastes, including without limitation a drainage and
flood control project as defined in NRS 244A.027 (the "Project"), under the authority of and in
full conformity with the constitution and laws of the State of Nevada, and in particular the Bond
Act (hereinafter defined) and the provisions of Sections 244A.011 through 244A.065, inclusive,
Nevada Revised Statutes, and all laws amendatory thereof (the "Project Act"), and pursuant to
the Ordinance.

This Bond does not constitute a debt or indebtedness of the County within the
meaning of any constitutional or statutory limitation and shall not be considered or held to be a
general obligation of the County. The County does not pledge its full faith and credit for the
payment of this Bond. Pursuant to the Project Act, as supplemented by Sections 350.500
through 350.720, Nevada Revised Statutes, and all laws amendatory thereof (the "Bond Act"),
and all laws thereunto enabling, this Bond is a special obligation of the County payable and
collectible solely out of and secured by an irrevocable pledge of certain net income derived from

2
43947335



the operation of the County's municipal sewer system (the "System"). The owner hereof may not
look to any general or other fund for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Bond
except the special funds pledged therefor. This Bond is issued pursuant to the Project Act and to
the Bond Act. Pursuant to Section 350.628 of the Bond Act, this recital is conclusive evidence
of the validity of this Bond and the regularity of its issuance.

Payment of this Bond and interest thereon shall be made solely from, and as
security for such payment there are pledged, pursuant to the Ordinance, two special funds
identified as the "2016 Sewer Revenue Bond Account," and the "2016 Sewer Revenue Bond
Reserve Account," into which the County covenants to pay from the revenues of the System,
after provision only for all necessary and reasonable operation and maintenance expenses, sums
sufficient to pay the principal and the interest of this Bond and to create and maintain a
reasonable and specified reserve. For a description of said funds and the nature and extent of the
security afforded thereby, reference is made to the Ordinance. This Bond is secured by and
constitutes an irrevocable and prior lien (but not necessarily an exclusive lien) upon the net
revenues of the System. Subject to designated conditions, additional bonds may be issued
payable from the net revenues and having a lien thereon inferior and junior to the lien, or subject
to additional conditions having a lien thereon on a parity with the lien of this Bond and the 2015
Bond (as defined in the Ordinance), in accordance with the Ordinance.

The County covenants and agrees with the owner hereof that it will keep and
perform all the covenants of the Ordinance, including its covenant against the sale or mortgage
of the System or any part thereof unless provision has been made for the payment of this Bond
and its covenant that it will fix, maintain and collect rates sufficient to pay operating and
maintenance expenses and 100% of both the principal of and the interest on this Bond and any
other obligations payable annually from the net revenues of the System (including reserves).

This Bond shall be registered for payment in the name of the registered owner
hereof only as to both principal and interest in the records of the County in the office of the
Treasurer of the County, as Registrar, and in the panel appended to this single Bond. This Bond
is transferable by the registered owner hereof, in person or by his attorney duly authorized in
writing, at the office of such County Treasurer. No transfer of this Bond shall be valid until it
has been duly entered in such records and duly noted on the registration panel appended to this
Bond.

It is further certified, recited, and warranted that all the requirements of law have
been fully complied with by the proper County officers in the issuance of this Bond.

No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of or the interest on this
Bond or for any claim based thereon or otherwise upon the Ordinance or other instrument
pertaining thereto, against any individual member of the Board of County Commissioners or any
officer or other agent of the County, past, present or future, either directly or indirectly through
the Board of county Commissioners or otherwise, whether by virtue of any constitution, statute

3
43947335



or rule of law, or by the enforcement of any penalty or otherwise, all such liability, if any, being
by the acceptance of this single Bond and as a part of the consideration of its issuance specially
waived and released.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Board of County Commissioners of Storey
County, Nevada, has caused this Bond to be signed and executed in its name and on its behalf
with the manual or facsimile signature of the Chairman, countersigned by the manual or
facsimile signature of the County Treasurer, attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the
County Clerk, with the manual or facsimile seal of the County affixed hereto, all as of the date of
the delivery hereof.

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

{SEAL}
Chairman
Countersigned:
County Treasurer

Attest:

County Clerk

43947335



Prepayment Panel

The following installments of principal (or portions thereof) of this Bond have
been prepaid by the County in accordance with the terms of the Ordinance authorizing the
issuance of this Bond:

Signature of
Date of Payment Amount Prepaid Registered Owner

$

MANDATORY REGISTRATION FOR PAYMENT AS TO PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST

The within Bond is registered in the office of the Treasurer of the County, as

Registrar, in the name of the last owner listed below; and the principal amount of the Bond and
interest thereon shall be payable only to such owner, all in accordance with the Ordinance

authorizing the Bond's issuance.

Date of Name of Address of Signature of

Registration Owner Owner Registrar

,2016  United States USDA, Rural Development
of America 1390 S. Curry St.
Carson City, NV 89703

43947335



Provision for Assignment

For value received, the wundersigned hereby assigns and transfers unto

the within Single Registered Sewer Revenue Bond No. R-I,

together with accrued interest thereon, and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint

attorney in fact to transfer said Bond on the registration records of the County

at the office of the County Treasurer, a Registrar with full power of substitution in the premises.

Dated 520

In the presence of:
Signature Guaranteed
By

NOTICE: The Signature to this assignment must correspond with the name as it appears upon
the Registration Panel of the within Bond in every particular, without any alteration whatsoever.

Name of Transferee:

Address of Transferee:

Taxpayer Identification number or

Social Security Number(s):

43947335



Exhibit A
(Attach Amortization Schedule)

43947335



Monthly Amortization Factor & Amortization Schedule Calculator

Storey County Phase 2 Wastewater

S 4,058,000.00

Loan Amount

1.375%

Interest Rate (entered as a percentage l.e. 3.625%)

**Disclaimer - Please note that the
breakdown of principal and interest

40|Term payments shown are an estimate only
0| # of Years of Principal Deferral (selectfrom drop-down) and don't account for leap years. Actual
40|Amortization Perlod amounts are dependent upon the actual
i e il S e
2.71|Amortization Factor next,
S 10,997.18 |Payment
12/20/2016|Date of Loan Closing Balance
Payment Interest Principal S 4,058,000.00
1/20/2017| $ 4,738.97 | S 6,258.21 | $ 4,051,741.79
2/20/2017| $ 4,731.66 | $ 6,265.52 | $ 4,045,476.26
3/20/2017| S 4,267.15 | $ 6,730.03 | S 4,038,746.23
4/20/2017| 4,716.48 | S 6,280.70 | S 4,032,465.53
5/20/2017| $ 4,557.24 | S 6,439.94 | § 4,026,025.59
6/20/2017| S 4,701.63 | S 6,295.55 | $ 4,019,730.03
7/20/2017| S 4,542.85 | $ 6,454.33 | $ 4,013,275.70
8/20/2017| S 4,686.74 | S 6,310.44 | S 4,006,965.26
9/20/2017| $ 4,679.37 | S 6,317.81| S 4,000,647.44
10/20/2017| $ 4,521.28 | $ 6,475.90 | S 3,994,171.54
11/20/2017| $ 4,664.43 | S 6,332.75 | S 3,987,838.79
12/20/2017| $ 4,506.80 | S 6,490.38 | § 3,981,348.41
1/20/2018] S 4,649.45 | S 6,347.73 | $ 3,975,000.68
2/20/2018| $ 4,642.04 | $ 6,355.14 | $ 3,968,645.54
3/20/2018| S 4,186.11 | S 6,811.07 | S 3,961,834.47
4/20/2018| S 4,626.66 | S 6,370.52 | S 3,955,463.95
5/20/2018| S 4,47022 | $ 6,526.96 | S 3,948,936.99
6/20/2018| S 4,611.60 | S 6,385.58 | S 3,942,551.41
7/20/2018| $ 4,455.62 | $ 6,541.56 | $ 3,936,009.85
8/20/2018| S 4,596.50 | S 6,400.68 | S 3,929,609.18
9/20/2018| S 4,589.03 | S 6,408.15 | S 3,923,201.03
10/20/2018| $ 4,433.75 | S 6,563.43 | $ 3,916,637.60
11/20/2018| § 4,573.88 | S 6,423.30 | S 3,910,214.30
12/20/2018| S 4,419.08 | S 6,578.10 | S 3,903,636.20
1/20/2019| $ 4,558.70 | § 6,438.48 | $ 3,897,197.72
2/20/2019 S 4,551.18 | § 6,446.00 | S 3,890,751.72
3/20/2019{ S 4,103.94 | S 6,803.24 | S 3,883,858.48
4/20/2019| S 4,535.60 | $ 6,461.58 | S 3,877,396.90
5/20/2019| $ 4,381.99 | S 6,615.19 | S 3,870,781.71
6/20/2019| S 4,520.33 | $§ 6,476.85 | S 3,864,304.86
7/20/2019( S 4,367.19 | $ 6,629.99 | S 3,857,674.88
8/20/2019| S 4,505.02 | $ 6,492.16 | S 3,851,182.72
9/20/2019| $ 4,497.44 | S 6,499.74 | S 3,844,682.99

I




10/20/2019| $ 4,345.02 | $ 6,652.16 | $ 3,838,030.82
11/20/2019| $ 4,482.08 | $ 6,515.10 | $ 3,831,515.73
12/20/2019| $ 4,330.14 | $ 6,667.04 | $ 3,824,848.69
1/20/2020| $ 4,466.69 | $ 6,530.49 | $ 3,818,318.20
2/20/2020| $ 4,459.06 | $ 6,538.12 | $ 3,811,780.08
3/20/2020| $ 4,164.24 | $ 6,832.94 | $ 3,804,947.14
4/20/2020| $ 4,443.45 | $ 6,553.73 | $ 3,798,393.41
5/20/2020]| $ 4,292.70 | $ 6,704.48 | $ 3,791,688.93
6/20/2020| $ 4,427.97 | $ 6,569.21 | $ 3,785,119.72
7/20/2020| $ 4,277.70 | $ 6,719.48 | $ 3,778,400.24
8/20/2020| $ 4,412.45 | $ 6,584.73 | $ 3,771,815.51
9/20/2020| $ 4,404.76 | $ 6,592.42 | $ 3,765,223.08
10/20/2020| $ 4,255.22 | $ 6,741.96 | $ 3,758,481.12
11/20/2020| $ 4,389.19 | $ 6,607.99 | $ 3,751,873.13
12/20/2020| $ 4,240.13 | $ 6,757.05 | $ 3,745,116.08
1/20/2021| $ 437358 | $ 6,623.60 | $ 3,738,492.48
2/20/2021| $ 4,365.84 | $ 6,631.34 | $ 3,731,861.14
‘3/20/2021| $ 3,936.35 | $ 7,060.83 | $ 3,724,800.30
4/20/2021| $ 4,349.85 | $ 6,647.33 | $ 3,718,152.98
5/20/2021| $ 4,202.02 | $ 6,795.16 | $ 3,711,357.82
6/20/2021| $ 4,334.15 | $ 6,663.03 | $ 3,704,694.79
7/20/2021| $ 4,186.81 | $ 6,810.37 | $ 3,697,884.43
8/20/2021| $ 4,318.42 | § 6,678.76 | $ 3,691,205.67
9/20/2021| $ 4,310.62 | $ 6,686.56 | $ 3,684,519.11
10/20/2021| $ 4,164.01 | $ 6,833.17 | $ 3,677,685.94
11/20/2021| $ 4,294.83 | $ 6,702.35 | $ 3,670,983.59
12/20/2021| $ 4,148.71 | $ 6,848.47 | § 3,664,135.12
1/20/2022| $ 4,279.01| S 6,718.17 | § 3,657,416.95
2/20/2022| $ 4271.16 | $ 6,726.02 | $ 3,650,690.93
3/20/2022| $ 3,850.73 | $ 7,146.45 | $ 3,643,544.48
4/20/2022| $ 425496 | $ 6,742.22 | $ 3,636,802.26
5/20/2022| $ 4,110.08 | § 6,887.10 | $ 3,629,915.17
6/20/2022| $ 4,239.04 | $ 6,758.14 | $ 3,623,157.03
7/20/2022| $ 4,094.66 | $ 6,902.52 | $ 3,616,254.52
8/20/2022| $ 4,223.09 | $ 6,774.09 | $ 3,609,480.43
9/20/2022| $ 4,215.18 | $ 6,782.00 | $ 3,602,698.43
10/20/2022| $ 4,071.54 | § 6,925.64 | $ 3,595,772.79
11/20/2022| $ 4,199.17 | $ 6,798.01 | $ 3,588,974.78
12/20/2022| $ 4,036.03 | § 6,941.15 | $ 3,582,033.64
1/20/2023| $ 4,183.13 | $ 6,814.05 | $ 3,575,219.59
12/20/2023| $ 4,175.17 | $ 6,822.01| S 3,568,397.58
3/20/2023| $ 3,763.93 | $ 7,233.25| $ 3,561,164.32
14/20/2023| $ 4,1588.76 | $ 6,838.42 | $ 3,554,325.90
5/20/2023| $ 4,016.88 | $ 6,980.30 | $ 3,547,345.59
6/20/2023| $ 4,142.62 | $ 6,854.56 | $ 3,540,491.03
7/20/2023| $ 4,001.24 | $ 6,995.94 | $ 3,533,495.09
8/20/2023| $ 4,126.44 | $ 6,870.74 | $ 3,526,624.36

|




9/20/2023| $ 4,118.42 | $ 6,878.76 | $ 3,519,745.60
10/20/2023| $ 3,977.79 | $ 7,019.39 | $ 3,512,726.21
11/20/2023| $ 4,102.19 | $ 6,894.99 | $ 3,505,831.22
12/20/2023| $ 3,962.07 | $ 7,035.11 | $ 3,498,796.11
1/20/2024| $ 4,085.92 | $ 6,911.26 | § 3,491,884.86
2/20/2024| $ 4,077.85 | $ 6,919.33 | $ 3,484,965.53
3/20/2024| $ 3,807.21 | $ 7,189.97 | $ 3,477,775.55
4/20/2024| $ 4,061.37 | $ 6,935.81 | $ 3,470,839.75
5/20/2024| $ 3,922.52 | $ 7,074.66 | $ 3,463,765.09
6/20/2024/ $ 4,045.01 | $ 6,952.17 | $ 3,456,812.93
7/20/2024| $ 3,906.67 | $ 7,090.51 | $ 3,449,722.42
8/20/2024| $ 4,028.61 | $ 6,968.57 | $ 3,442,753.85
9/20/2024| $ 4,020.48 | $ 6,976.70 | $ 3,435,777.15
10/20/2024| $ 3,882.90 | $ 7,114.28 | $ 3,428,662.87
11/20/2024] $ 4,004.02 | $ 6,993.16 | $ 3,421,669.71
12/20/2024| $ 3,866.96 | $ 7,130.22 | $ 3,414,539.48
1/20/2025| $ 3,987.53 | $ 7,009.65 | $ 3,407,529.83
2/20/2025] $ 3,979.34 | $ 7,017.84 | $ 3,400,511.99
3/20/2025| $ 3,586.84 | $ 7,410.34 | $ 3,393,101.65
4/20/2025| $ 3,962.49 | $ 7,034.69 | $ 3,386,066.97
5/20/2025| $ 3,826.72 | ¢ 7,170.46 | $ 3,378,896.51
6/20/2025| $ 3,945.90 | $ 7,051.28 | $ 3,371,845.23
7/20/2025| $ 3,810.65 | $ 7,186.53 | $ 3,364,658.70
8/20/2025| $ 3,929.28 | $ 7,067.90 | § 3,357,590.79
9/20/2025| $ 3,921.02 | $ 7,076.16 | $ 3,350,514.63
10/20/2025| $ 3,786.54 | $ 7,210.64 | $ 3,343,303.99
11/20/2025| $ 3,904.34 | $ 7,092.84 | $ 3,336,211.15
12/20/2025| $ 3,770.38 | $ 7,226.80 | $ 3,328,984.35
1/20/2026| $ 3,887.62 | $ 7,109.56 | $ 3,321,874.78
12/20/2026| $ 3,879.31 | $ 7,117.87 | $ 3,314,756.92
3/20/2026| $ 3,496.39 | $ 7,500.79 | $ 3,307,256.12
4/20/2026| $ 3,862.24 | $ 7,134.94 | $ 3,300,121.18
5/20/2026| $ 3,729.59 | $ 7,267.59 | $ 3,292,853.59
6/20/2026{ $ 3,84542 | $ 7,151.76 | $ 3,285,701.84
7/20/2026| $ 3,713.29 | ¢ 7,283.89 | § 3,278,417.95
8/20/2026| $ 3,828.56 | $ 7,168.62 | $ 3,271,249.33
9/20/2026| $ 3,820.19 | $ 7,176.99 | $ 3,264,072.34
10/20/2026| S 3,688.85 | 7,308.33 | S 3,256,764.01
11/20/2026| $ 3,803.28 | $ 7,193.90 | $ 3,249,570.11
12/20/2026| $ 3,672.46 | $ 7,32472 | § 3,242,245.39
1/20/2027| $ 3,786.32 | $ 7,210.86 | $ 3,235,034.53
2/20/2027| $ 3,777.90 | $ 7,219.28 | $ 3,227,815.25
3/20/2027| $ 3,404.68 | $ 7,592.50 | $ 3,220,222.75
4/20/2027| $ 3,760.60 | $ 7,236.58 | $ 3,212,986.17
5/20/2027| $ 3,631.11 | $ 7,366.07 | $ 3,205,620.11
6/20/2027| $ 3,743.55 | $ 7,253.63 | $ 3,198,366.48
7/20/2027| $ 3,614.59 | $ S

7,382.59

3,190,983.89




8/20/2027| $ 3,726.46 | $ 7,270.72 | § 3,183,713.17
9/20/2027| $ 3,717.97 | $ 7,279.21 | $ 3,176,433.95
10/20/2027| $ 3,589.81 [ $ 7,407.37 | 3,169,026.58
11/20/2027| $ 3,700.82 | $ 7,296.36 | $ 3,161,730.21
12/20/2027| $ 3,573.19 | $ 7,42399 | $ 3,154,306.22
1/20/2028| $ 3,683.62 | $ 7,313.56 | § 3,146,992.67
2/20/2028| $ 3,675.08 | § 7,322.10 | § 3,139,670.57
3/20/2028| $ 3,429.98 | $ 7,567.20 | $ 3,132,103.37
4/20/2028| $ 3,657.70 | $ 7,339.48 | § 3,124,763.89
5/20/2028| $ 3,531.41 | $ 7,465.77 | § 3,117,298.12
6/20/2028| $ 3,640.41 | $ 7,356.77 | $ 3,109,941.35
7/20/2028| $ 3,514.66 | $ 7,482.52 | § 3,102,458.83
8/20/2028| $ 3,623.08 | $ 7,374.10 | $ 3,095,084.72
9/20/2028| $ 3,614.47 | § 7,382.71 | $ 3,087,702.01
10/20/2028| $ 3,489.53 | $ 7,507.65 | $ 3,080,194.35
11/20/2028| $ 3,597.08 | $ 7,400.10 | $ 3,072,794.25
12/20/2028| $ 3,472.68 | $ 7,524.50 | $ 3,065,269.75
1/20/2029| $ 3,579.65 | $ 7,417.53 | § 3,057,852.22
2/20/2029| $ 3,570.98 | $ 7,426.20 | $ 3,050,426.02
3/20/2029| $ 3,217.57 | $ 7,779.61 | $ 3,042,646.41
4/20/2029| $ 3,553.23 | $ 7,443.95 | $ 3,035,202.46
5/20/2029| $ 3,430.19 | $ 7,566.99 | $ 3,027,635.48
6/20/2029| $ 3,535.70 | $ 7,461.48 | $ 3,020,173.99
7/20/2029| $ 3,413.21 | $ 7,583.97 | $ 3,012,590.02
8/2Q/2029| $ 3,518.13 | $ 7,479.05 | $ 3,005,110.97
9/20/2029| $ 13,509.39 | $ 7,487.79 | $ 2,997,623.19
10/20/2029| $ 3,387.72 | $ 7,609.46 | $ 2,990,013.73
11/20/2029| $ 3,491.76 | $ 7,505.42 | $ 2,982,508.31
12/20/2029| $ 3,370.64 | $ 7,626.54 | $ 2,974,881.78
1/20/2030| $ .3,474.09 | $ 7,523.09 | § 2,967,358.69
2/20/2030| $ 3,465.31 | $ 7,531.87 | $ 2,959,826.81
3/20/2030| $ 3,122.01 | $ 7,875.17 | $ 2,951,951.64
4/20/2030| $ 3,447.31 | $ 7,549.87 | S 2,944,401.78
5/20/2030| $ 3,327.58 | $ 7,669.60 | $ 2,936,732.17
6/20/2030| $ 3,429.54 | $ 7,567.64 | § 2,929,164.53
7/20/2030| $ 3,310.36 | $ 7,686.82 | $ 2,921,477.71
8/20/2030]| $ 3,411.73 | $ 7,585.45 | $ 2,913,892.26
9/20/2030| $ 3,402.87 | $ 7,594.31 | $ 2,906,297.94
10/20/2030| $ 3,284.51 | $ 7,712.67 | $ 2,898,585.28
11/20/2030| $ 3,384.99 | § 7,612.19 | $ 2,890,973.09
12/20/2030| $ 3,267.20 | $ 7,729.98 | § 2,883,243.10
1/20/2031| $ 3,367.07 | $ 7,630.11 | $ 2,875,613.00
2/20/2031| $ 3,358.16 | § 7,639.02 | $ 2,867,973.98
3/20/2031| $ 3,025.12 | § 7,972.06 | $ 2,860,001.93
4/20/2031]| $ 3,339.93 | $ 7,657.25 | S 2,852,344.68
5/20/2031| $ 3,22354 | $ 7,773.64 | $ 2,844,571.04

S 332191 |$ 7,675.27 | $ 2,836,895.77

6/20/2031




7/20/2031| $ 3,206.08 | $ 7,791.10 | $ 2,829,104.68
8/20/2031| $ 3,303.85 | $ 7,693.33 | § 2,821,411.35
9/20/2031| $ 3,294.87 | $ 7,702.31 | $ 2,813,709.03
10/20/2031| $ 3,179.88 | $ 7,817.30 | $ 2,805,891.73
11/20/2031| $ 3,276.74 | $ 7,720.44 | $ 2,798,171.29
12/20/2031| $ 3,162.32 | § 7,834.86 | $ 2,790,336.43
1/20/2032| $ 3,258.58 | $ 7,738.60 | $ 2,782,597.83
2/20/2032| $ 3,249.54 | $ 7,747.64 | S 2,774,850.19
3/20/2032| $ 3,031.43 | $ 7,965.75 | $ 2,766,884.44
4/20/2032| $ 3,231.19 | $ 7,765.99 | $ 2,759,118.45
5/20/2032| $ 3,118.18 | $ 7,879.00 | § 2,751,239.45
6/20/2032| $ 3,212.92 | $ 7,784.26 | § 2,743,455.19
7/20/2032| $ 3,100.48 | $ 7,896.70 | $ 2,735,558.49
8/20/2032| $ 3,194.61 | § 7,802.57 | § 2,727,755.92
9/20/2032| $ 3,185.50 | $ 7,811.68 | $ 2,719,944.23
10/20/2032| $ 3,073.91 | $ 7,923.27 | § 2,712,020.96
11/20/2032| $ 3,167.12 | $ 7,830.06 | $ 2,704,190.90
12/20/2032| $ 3,056.11 | $ 7,941.07 | $ 2,696,249.83
1/20/2033| $ 13,148.70 | $ 7,848.48 | § 2,688,401.35
2/20/2033| $ 3,139.54 | § 7,857.64 | $ 2,680,543.71
3/20/2033| $ 2,827.42 | $ 8,169.76 | $ 2,672,373.95
4/20/2033| $ 3,120.82 | $ 7,876.36 | § 2,664,497.59
5/20/2033| $ 3,011.25 | $ 7,985.93 | § 2,656,511.66
6/20/2033( $ 3,102.30 | $ 7,894.88 | $ 2,648,616.78
7/20/2033| $ 2,993.30 | $ 8,003.88 | $ 2,640,612.90
8/20/2033( $ 3,083.73 | $ 7,913.45| $ 2,632,699.45
9/20/2033| $ 3,074.49 | $ 7,922.69 | $ 2,624,776.75
10/20/2033| $ 2,966.36 | S 8,030.82 | $ 2,616,745.93
11/20/2033] $ 3,055.86 | $ 7,941.32 | $ 2,608,804.61
12/20/2033| $ 2,948.31 | $ 8,048.87 | $ 2,600,755.74
1/20/2034| $ 3,037.18 | $ 7,960.00 | $ 2,592,795.74
2/20/2034| $ 3,027.89 | $ 7,969.29 | S 2,584,826.45
3/20/2034| $ 2,726.46 | S 8,270.72 | $ 2,576,555.73
4/20/2034| $ 3,008.92 | $ 7,988.26 | $ 2,568,567.47
5/20/2034| $ 2,902.83 | $ 8,094.35 | $ 2,560,473.12
6/20/2034| $ 2,990.14 | $ 8,007.04 | $ 2,552,466.09
7/20/2034| $ 2,884.64 | S 8,112.54 | $ 2,544,353.54
8/20/2034| $ 2,971.32 | $ 8,025.86 | $ 2,536,327.68
9/20/2034| $ 2,961.94 | $ 8,035.24 | $ 2,528,292.44
10/20/2034| $ 2,857.32 | $ 8,139.86 | S 2,520,152.58
11/20/2034| $ 2,943.05 | $ 8,054.13 | $ 2,512,098.46
12/20/2034| S 2,839.02 | 8,158.16 | S 2,503,940.29
1/20/2035| $ 2,924.12 | $ 8,073.06 | $ 2,495,867.23
2/20/2035| $ 2,914.69 | $ 8,082.49 | $ 2,487,784.75
3/20/2035| $ 2,624.10 | $ 8,373.08 | $ 2,479,411.67
4/20/2035| $ 12,895.48 | $ 8,101.70 | $ 2,471,309.97
$ 2,792.92 | $ 8,204.26 | $

5/20/2035

2,463,105.71




6/20/2035| $ 2,876.44 | $ 8,120.74 | $ 2,454,984.96
7/20/2035| $ 2,774.47 | $ 8,222.71| § 2,446,762.25
8/20/2035| $ 2,857.35 | $ 8,139.83 | $ 2,438,622.42
9/20/2035| $ 2,847.84 | § 8,149.34 | $ 2,430,473.08
10/20/2035| $ 2,746.77 | $ 8,250.41 | § 2,422,222.67
11/20/2035| $ 2,828.69 | $ 8,168.49 | § 2,414,054.18
12/20/2035| $ 2,728.21 | $ 8,268.97 | $ 2,405,785.21
1/20/2036/| $ 12,809.50 | $ 8,187.68 | $ 2,397,597.53
2/20/2036| $ 2,799.93 | § 8,197.25 [ $ 2,389,400.28
3/20/2036/| $ 2,610.34 | $ 8,386.84 | $ 2,381,013.44
4/20/2036| $ 2,780.57 | $ 8,216.61 | § 2,372,796.83
5/20/2036| $ 2,681.59 | $ 8,315.59 | § 2,364,481.23
6/20/2036| $ 2,761.26 | § 8,235.92 | § 2,356,245.31
7/20/2036| $ 2,662.88 | $ 8,334.30 | § 2,347,911.01
8/20/2036| $ 2,74191 | S 8,255.27 | $ 2,339,655.74
9/20/2036| $ 2,732.27 | $ 8,264.91 | $ 2,331,390.83
10/20/2036/ $ 2,634.79 | $ 8,362.39 | $ 2,323,028.44
11/20/2036| $ 2,712.85 | § 8,284.33 | § 2,314,744.12
12/20/2036| $ 2,615.98 | $ 8,381.20 | § 2,306,362.91
1/20/2037| $ 2,693.39 | § 8,303.79 | $ 2,298,059.12
2/20/2037| $ 2,683.69 | $ 8,313.49 | § 2,289,745.64
3/20/2037| $ 2,415.21 | $ 8,581.97 | $ 2,281,163.67
4/20/2037| $ 2,663.96 | $ 8,333.22 [ $ 2,272,830.45
5/20/2037| $ 2,568.61 | $ 8,428.57 | $ 2,264,401.88
6/20/2037| $ 2,644.39 | $ 8,352.79 | $ 2,256,049.09
7/20/2037| $ 2,549.64 | $ 8,447.54 | § 2,247,601.55
8/20/2037| $ 02,624.77 | $ 8,372.41| $ 2,239,229.14
9/20/2037| $ 2,614.99 | $ 8,382.19 | $ 2,230,846.95
10/2Q/2037| $ 2,521.16 | $ 8,476.02 | $ 2,222,370.93
11/20/2037| $ 2,595.30 | $ 8,401.88 | $ 2,213,969.05
12/20/2037| $ 2,502.09 | $ 8,495.09 | $ 2,205,473.96
1/20/2038| $ 2,575.57 | $ 8,421.61|$ 2,197,052.35
2/20/2038| $ 2,565.74 | § 8,431.44 | $ 2,188,620.91
3/20/2038| $ 2,308.55 | $ 8,688.63 | $ 2,179,932.27
4/20/2038| $ 2,545.74 | $ 8,451.44 | $ 2,171,480.84
5/20/2038| $ 2,454.07 | $ 8,543.11 | $ 2,162,937.73
6/20/2038| $ 2,525.90 | $ 8,471.28 | § 2,154,466.44
7/20/2038| $ 2,434.84 | $ 8,562.34 | § 2,145,904.11
8/20/2038| $ 2,506.00 | $ 8,491.18 | $ 2,137,412.93
9/20/2038| $ 2,496.09 | $ 8,501.09 | $ 2,128,911.84
10/20/2038| $ 2,405.96 | $ 8,591.22 | $ 2,120,320.62
11/20/2038| $ 2,476.13 | $ 8,521.05 | $ 2,111,799.57
12/20/2038| $ 2,386.62 | $ 8,610.56 | $ 2,103,189.01
1/20/2039| $ 2,456.12 | § 8,541.06 | $ 2,094,647.95
2/20/2039| $ 2,446.15 | $ 8,551.03 | § 2,086,096.92
3/20/2039| $ 2,200.40 | $ 8,796.78 | $ 2,077,300.14
4/20/2039| $ 2,42;5.89 S S

8,571.29

2,068,728.85




5/20/2039| $ 2,337.95 | $ 8,659.23 | § 2,060,069.62
6/20/2039| $ 2,405.77 | $ 8,591.41 | $ 2,051,478.20
7/20/2039| $ 2,31845 | § 8,678.73 | $ 2,042,799.48
8/20/2039| $ 2,385.60 | $ 8,611.58 | § 2,034,187.89
9/20/2039| $ 2,375.54 | $ 8,621.64 | $ 2,025,566.26
10/20/2039| $ 2,289.17 | § 8,708.01 | $ 2,016,858.24
11/20/2039| $ 2,355.30 | § 8,641.88 | $ 2,008,216.37
12/20/2039| $ 2,269.56 | $ 8,727.62 | $ 1,999,488.75
1/20/2040| $ 2,335.02 | $ 8,662.16 | $ 1,990,826.59
2/20/2040| $ 2,324.90 | $ 8,672.28 | $ 1,982,154.31
3/20/2040| $ 2,165.44 | S 8,831.74 | $ 1,973,322.56
4/20/2040| $ 2,304.46 | $ 8,692.72 | $ 1,964,629.85
5/20/2040| $ 2,220.30 | $ 8,776.88 | § 1,955,852.97
6/20/2040| $ 2,284.06 | $ 8,713.12 | § 1,947,139.85
7/20/2040| $ 2,200.53 | $ 8,796.65 | $ 1,938,343.20
8/20/2040| $ 12,263.61 | $ 8,733.57 | § 1,929,609.64
9/20/2040| $ 2,253.41 8,743.77 | § 1,920,865.87
10/20/2040| $ 2,170.84 | § 8,826.34 | § 1,912,039.53
11/20/2040| $ 2,232.90 | § 8,764.28 | $ 1,903,275.25
12/20/2040| $ 2,150.96 | $ 8,846.22 | $ 1,894,429.03
1/20/2041| $ 2,212.33 | 8,784.85 | $ 1,885,644.18
2/20/2041| $ 2,202.07 | $ 8,795.11 | $ 1,876,849.07
3/20/2041| $ 1,979.69 | $ 9,017.49 | § 1,867,831.58
4/20/2041| $ 2,181.27 | $ 8,815.91 | $ 1,859,015.67
5/20/2041| $ 2,100.94 | $ 8,896.24 | $ 1,850,119.43
6/20/2041] $ 2,160.58 | $ 8,836.60 | $ 1,841,282.84
1/20/2018| $ 4,649.45 | $ 6,347.73 | $ 3,975,000.68
2/20/2018| $ 4,642.04 | $ 6,355.14 | $ 3,968,645.54
3/20/2018| $ 4,186.11 | $ 6,811.07 | $ 3,961,834.47
4/20/2018| $ 4,626.66 | $ 6,370.52 | $ 3,955,463.95
5/20/2018| $ 14,470.22 | $ 6,526.96 | $ 3,948,936.99
6/20/2018| $ 4,611.60 | $ 6,385.58 | $ 3,942,551.41
7/20/2018| $ 4,455.62 | $ 6,541.56 | $ 3,936,009.85
8/20/2018( $ 4,596.50 | $ 6,400.68 | $ 3,929,609.18
9/20/2018| $ 4,589.03 | § 6,408.15 | $ 3,923,201.03
10/20/2018| $ 4,433.75 | $ 6,563.43 | $ 3,916,637.60
11/20/2018| $ 4,573.88 | § 6,423.30 | $ 3,910,214.30
12/20/2018| $ 4,419.08 | $ 6,578.10 | $ 3,903,636.20
1/20/2019| $ 4,558.70 | $ 6,438.48 | $ 3,897,197.72
2/20/2019| $ 4,551.18 | $ 6,446.00 | S 3,890,751.72
3/20/2019| $ 4,103.94 | § 6,893.24 | $ 3,883,858.48
4/20/2019| $ 4,535.60 | $ 6,461.58 | S 3,877,396.90
5/20/2019| $ 1 4,38199 | $ 6,615.19 | $ 3,870,781.71
6/20/2019| $ 4,520.33 | $ 6,476.85 | $ 3,864,304.86
7/20/2019] $ 4,367.19 | $ 6,629.99 | $ 3,857,674.88
8/20/2019| $ 4,505.02 | $ 6,492.16 | $ 3,851,182.72
9/20/2019| $ 4,497.44 | § 6,499.74 | $ 3,844,682.99




4/20/2043| $ 1,929.75 | $ 9,067.43 | $ 1,643,382.95
5/20/2043| $ 1,857.25 | $ 9,139.93 | $ 1,634,243.02
6/20/2043| $ 1,908.48 | $ 9,088.70 | $ 1,625,154.32
7/20/2043| $ 1,836.65 | $ 9,160.53 | $ 1,615,993.79
8/20/2043| $ 1,887.17 | $ 9,110.01 | $ 1,606,883.78
9/20/2043| $ 1,876.53 | $ 9,120.65 | $ 1,597,763.13
10/20/2043| $ 1,805.69 | $ 9,191.49 | $ 1,588,571.64
11/20/2043| $ 1,855.15 | $ 9,142.03 | $ 1,579,429.61
12/20/2043| $ 1,784.97 | $ 921221 s 1,570,217.40
1/20/2044 $ 1,833.71 | $ 9,163.47 | $ 1,561,053.93
2/20/2044| $ 1,823.01 | $ 9,174.17 | § 1,551,879.76
3/20/2044| $ 1,695.38 | $ 9,301.80 | $ 1,542,577.96
4/20/2044| $ 1,801.44 | $ 9,195.74 | § 1,533,382.22
5/20/2044| $ 1,732.93 | § 9,264.25 | $ 1,524,117.97
6/20/2044| $ 1,779.88 | $ 9,217.30 | $ 1,514,900.66
7/20/2044| $ 1,712.05 | $ 9,285.13 | $ 1,505,615.53
8/20/2044| $ 1,758.27 | $ 9,23891 | $ 1,496,376.62
9/20/2044| $ 1,747.48 | § 9,249.70 | $ 1,487,126.92
10/20/2044| $ 1,680.66 | $ 9,316.52 | $ 1,477,810.40
11/20/2044| $ 1,725.80 | § 9,271.38 | $ 1,468,539.02
12/20/2044| $ 1,659.65 | $ 9,337.53 | $ 1,459,201.49
1/20/2045| $ 1,704.07 | § 9,293.11| $ 1,449,908.38
2/20/2045| $ 1,693.21 | $ 9,303.97 | § 1,440,604.41
3/20/2045| $ 1,519.54 | $ 9,477.64 | $ 1,431,126.77
4/20/2045| $ 1,671.28 | $ 9,325.90 | $ 1,421,800.87
5/20/2045| $ 1,606.83 | $ 9,390.35 | $ 1,412,410.52
6/20/2045| $ 1,649.42 | $ 9,347.76 | $ 1,403,062.77
7/20/2045| $ 1,585.65 | $ 9,411.53 | $ 1,393,651.24
8/20/2045| $ 1,627.52 | $ 9,369.66 | $ 1,384,281.58
9/20/2045| $ 1,616.58 | $ 9,380.60 | $ 1,374,900.97
10/20/2045| $ 1,553.83 | § 9,443.35 | $ 1,365,457.62
11/20/2045| $ 1,594.59 | $ 9,402.59 | $ 1,356,055.03
12/20/2045| $ 1,532.53 | $ 9,464.65 | $ 1,346,590.38
1/20/2046| $ 1,572.56 | $ 9,424.62 | $ 1,337,165.76
2/20/2046| $ 1,561.55 | $ 9,435.63 | $ 1,327,730.13
3/20/2046| $ 1,400.48 | $ 9,596.70 | $ 1,318,133.44
4/20/2046| $ 1,539.33 | $ 9,457.85 | $ 1,308,675.58
5/20/2046| $ 1,478.98 | S 9,518.20 | S 1,299,157.39
6/20/2046| $ 1,517.17 | $ 9,480.01 | $ 1,289,677.37
7/20/2046| $ 1,457.51 | $ 9,539.67 | $ 1,280,137.70
8/20/2046| $ 1,494.96 | $ 9,502.22 | $ 1,270,635.48
9/20/2046| $ 1,483.86 | $ 9,513.32 | $ 1,261,122.16
10/20/2046| $ 1,425.24 | $ 9,571.94 | $ 1,251,550.22
11/20/2046| $ 1,461.57 | § 9,535.61 | $ 1,242,014.61
12/20/2046| $ 1,403.65 | $ 9,593.53 | $ 1,232,421.08
1/20/2047| $ 1,439.23 | $ 9,557.95 | $ 1,222,863.13
2/20/2047| $ 1,428.07 | $ 9,569.11 | $ 1,213,294.02




3/20/2047| $ 1,279.78 | $ 9,717.40 | $ 1,203,576.61
4/20/2047| $ 1,405.55 | $ 9,591.63 | $ 1,193,984.98
5/20/2047| $ 1,349.37 [ $ 9,647.81 | $ 1,184,337.17
6/20/2047| $ 1,383.08 | $ 9,614.10 | $ 1,174,723.06
7/20/2047| $ 1,327.60 | $ 9,669.58 | $ 1,165,053.48
8/20/2047| $ 1,360.56 | $ 9,636.62 | $ 1,155,416.86
9/20/2047| $ 1,349.31 | $ 9,647.87 | S 1,145,768.99
10/20/2047| $ 1,294.88 | $ 9,702.30 | $ 1,136,066.68
11/20/2047| $ 1,326.71 | $ 9,670.47 | $ 1,126,396,21
12/20/2047| $ 1,272.98 | $ 9,724.20 | $ 1,116,672.01
1/20/2048| $ 1,304.06 | $ 9,693.12 | $ 1,106,978.89
2/20/2048| $ 1,292.74 | $ 9,704.44 | § 1,097,274.45
3/20/2048| $ 1,198.73 | § 9,798.45 | $ 1,087,476.01
4/20/2048| $ 1,269.96 | $ 9,727.22 | $ 1,077,748.79
5/20/2048| $ 1,218.00 | $ 9,779.18 | $ 1,067,969.61
6/20/2048| $ 1,247.18 | $ 9,750.00 | $ 1,058,219.62
7/20/2048| $ 1,195.93 | $ 9,801.25 | $ 1,048,418.37
8/20/2048| $ 1,224.35 | § 9,772.83 | § 1,038,645.54
9/20/2048] $ 1,212.94 | $ 9,784.24 | $ 1,028,861.30
10/20/2048| $ 1,162.75 | § 9,834.43 | $ 1,019,026.87
11/20/2048| $ 1,190.03 | § 9,807.15 | $ 1,009,219.72
12/2Q/2048| $ 1,140.56 | $ 9,856.62 | $ 999,363.10
1/20/2049| $ 1,167.06 | $ 9,830.12 | $ 989,532.98
2/20/2049]| $ 1,155.58 | § 9,841.60 | $ 979,691.39
'3/20/2049| $ 1,033.37 | § 9,963.81 | $ 969,727.58
4/20/2049| $ 1,132.46 | $ 9,864.72 | $ 959,862.86
5/20/2049| $ 1,084.78 | $ 9,912.40 | $ 949,950.45
6/20/2049| $ 1,109.36 | $ 9,887.82 | $ 940,062.63
7/20/2049| $ 1,062.40 | $ 9,934.78 | $ 930,127.85
8/20/2049| $ 1,086.21 | $ 9,910.97 | $ 920,216.88
9/20/2049| $ 1,074.64 | § 9,922.54 | $ 910,294.34
10/20/2049| $ 11,028.76 | $ 9,968.42 | $ 900,325.92
11/20/2049| $ 1,051.41 | $ 9,945.77 | $ 890,380.15
12/20/2049| $ 1,006.25 | $ 9,990.93 | $ 880,389.22
1/20/2050| $ 1,028.13 | $ 9,969.05 | $ 870,420.16
i2/20/2050| $ 1,016.48 | $ 9,980.70 | $ 860,439.47
3/20/2050| $ 907.59 | $ 10,089.59 | $ 850,349.87
4/20/2050| $ 993.05 | $ 10,004.13 | $ 840,345.74
5/20/2050| $ 949.71 | $ 10,047.47 | $ 830,298.27
_6/20/2050| $ 969.63 | $ 10,027.55 | $ 820,270.71
7/20/2050| $ 927,02 | $ 10,070.16 | $ 810,200.55
8/20/2050| $ 946.16 | $ 10,051.02 | $ 800,149.53
9/20/2050| $ 93442 | $ 10,062.76 | $ 790,086.77
10/20/2050| $ 89291 | $ 10,104.27 | $ 779,982.50
11/20/2050| $ 910.87 | § 10,086.31 | $ 769,896.19
12/20/2050| $ 870.09 | $ 10,127.09 | $ 759,769.10
1/20/2051| $ 887.26 | $ 10,109.92 | § 749,659.18




2/20/2051| $ 875.46 | $ 10,121.72 | $ 739,537.46
3/20/2051| $ 780.06 | $ 10,217.12 | 729,320.34
4/20/2051| $ 851.71 | $ 10,145.47 | $ 719,174.87
5/20/2051| $ 812.77 | $ 10,184.41 | 708,990.45
6/20/2051| $ 827.96 | $ 10,169.22 | $ 698,821.24
7/20/2051| $ 789.76 | $ 10,207.42 | $ 688,613.82
8/20/2051| $ 804.17 | $ 10,193.01 | $ 678,420.81
9/20/2051| $ 792.27 | $ 10,204.91 | $ 668,215.90
10/20/2051| $ 755.18 | $ 10,242.00 | $ 657,973.89
11/20/2051| $ 768.39 | $ 10,228.79 | $ 647,745.10
12/20/2051| $ 732.04 | $ 10,265.14 | $ 637,479.96
1/20/2052| $ 744.45 | $ 10,252.73 | $ 627,227.23
2/20/2052| $ 732.48 | § 10,264.70 | $ 616,962.53
:3/20/2052| $ 674.01 | $ 10,323.17 | $ 606,639.36
4/20/2052| $ 708.44 | $ 10,288.74 | $ 596,350.62
5/20/2052| $ 673.96 | $ 10,323.22 | $ 586,027.40
6/20/2052| $ 684.37 | $ 10,312.81 | $ 575,714.59
7/20/2052| $ 650.64 | $ 10,346.54 | $ 565,368.05
8/20/2052| $ 660.24 | $ 10,336.94 | $ 555,031.11
9/20/2052| $ 648.17 | $ 10,349.01 | $ 544,682.10
10/20/2052| $ 615.57 | $ 10,381.61 | $ 534,300.48
11/20/2052| $ 623.96 | $ 10,373.22 | § 523,927.26
12/20/2052| $ 592.11 | $ 10,405.07 | $ 513,522.19
1/20/2053| $ 599.70 | $ 10,397.48 | $ 508,124.71
2/20/2053| $ 587.55 | $ 10,409.63 | $ 492,715.08
:3/20/2053| $ 519.71 | $ 10,477.47 | $ 482,237.61
4/20/2053| $ 563.16 | S 10,434.02 | $ 471,803.59
5/20/2053| $ 533.20 | $ 10,463.98 | $ 461,339.62
6/20/2053( $ 538.76 | $ 10,458.42 | $ 450,881.19
7/20/2053| $ 509.56 | $ 10,487.62 | $ 440,393.57
8/20/2053| $ 514.30 | $ 10,482.88 | $ 429,910.69
9/20/2053| $ 502.05 | $ 10,495.13 | $ 419,415.56
10/20/2053| $ 474.00 | § 10,523.18 | $ 408,892.38
11/20/2053| $ 47751 | $ 10,519.67 | $ 398,372.70
12/20/2053| $ 450.22 | § 10,546.96 | S 387,825.74
1/20/2054| $ 452.91 | $ 10,544.27 | $ 377,281.47
:2/20/2054] $ 440.59 | $ 10,556.59 | $ 366,724.88
3/20/2054| $ 386.82 | $ 10,610.36 | $ 356,114.52
4/20/2054| $ 415.87 | $ 10,581.31 | $ 345,533.21
5/20/2054| $ 390.50 | $ 10,606.68 | $ 334,926.53
6/20/2054| $ 391.13 | $ 10,606.05 | $ 324,320.48
7/20/2054| $ 366.53 | $ 10,630.65 | $ 313,689.83
8/20/2054| $ 366.33 | $ 10,630.85 | $ 303,058.98
9/20/2054| $ 35391 $ 10,643.27 | $ 292,415.71
10/20/2054| $ 33047 | $ 10,666.71 | $ 281,749.00
11/20/2054| $ 329.03 | $ 10,668.15 | $ 271,080.85
12/20/2054| $ $ $ 260,390.03

3Q6.36

10,650.82




1/20/2055| $ 304.09 | $ 10,693.09 | $ 249,696.93
2/20/2055| $ 291.60 | $ 10,705.58 | $ 238,991.35
3/20/2055| $ 252.09 [ $ 10,745.09 | $ 228,246.26
4/20/2055| $ 266.55 | $ 10,730.63 | $ 217,515.63
5/20/2055| $ 24582 | $ 10,751.36 | $ 206,764.27
6/20/2055| $ 241.46 | $ 10,755.72 | $ 196,008.55
7/20/2055| $ 22152 [ § 10,775.66 | $ 185,232.89
8/20/2055| $ 21632 | $ 10,780.86 | $ 174,452.02
9/20/2055| $ 203.73 | $ 10,793.45 | $ 163,658.57
10/20/2055| $ 184.96 | $ 10,812.22 | $ 152,846.35
11/20/2055| $ 178.50 | $ 10,818.68 | $ 142,027.66
12/20/2055| $ 160.51 [ $ 10,836.67 | $ 131,190.99
1/20/2056/ $ 153.21 | $ 10,843.97 | $ 120,347.02
2/20/2056| $ 140.54 | $ 10,856.64 | $ 109,490.38
3/20/2056| $ 119.61 | $ 10,877.57 | $ 98,612.82
4/20/2056| $ 115.16 | $ 10,882.02 | $ 87,730.80
5/20/2056| $ 99.15 | $ 10,898.03 | $ 76,832.76
6/20/2056| $ 89.73 | ¢ 10,907.45 | $ 65,925.31
7/20/2056| $ 74.50 | $ 10,922.68 | $ 55,002.64
8/20/2056| $ g4.23 | $ 10,932.95 | $ 44,069.69
9/20/2056| $ 51.46 | $ 10,945.72 | $ 33,123.97
10/20/2056| $ 3743 | S 10,959.75 | $ 22,164.23
11/20/2056| $ 25.88 | $ 10,971.30 | $ 11,192.93
12/20/2056| $ 1265 | $ 10,984.53 | $ | 208.40




FORM OF PRINCIPAL ADVANCE REQUEST

Date:

USDA, Rural Development
1390 S. Curry St.
Carson City, NV 89703

Re:  Storey County, Nevada
Sewer Revenue Bond, Series 2016
Dated December 20, 2016

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The undersigned hereby requests that you make a principal advance in the amount of

$ on the above-captioned Bond to the order of the undersigned Storey County,
Nevada (the "County") on , which is at least three business days after the date
of this request.

The undersigned hereby certifies and warrants that:

1; The aggregate of principal advances requested from USDA, RD under the above-
referenced Bond, including the advance requested in this letter, do not exceed the maximum
principal amount of the Bond of $4,058,000;

2. All representations and warranties of the County contained in the Bond and the
documents accompanying the Bond, including, without limitation, the Federal Tax Exemption
Certificate dated December 20, 2016, remain true and correct on this date as if made on this date.
No event of default, as defined in the Ordinance adopted by the County Commission on
December 6, 2016, has occurred and is continuing. No law has been adopted which would in
any way adversely affect the County's authority to obtain and repay this advance. The County
covenants to advise you immediately if any such law is adopted; and

3. Please deposit the amount advanced into our account: Routing #12100()248
Account # 505-3070545.

Respectfully submitted,
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

By:
(Must be Chairman, County Clerk/Treasurer or County Comptroller)

43947335



GENERAL AND NO-LITIGATION
CERTIFICATE AND RECEIPT

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED by the undersigned, the duly chosen, qualified and
acting Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County, in the State of Nevada
(the "Board," the "County" and the "State," respectively), the County Clerk/Treasurer, the County
Comptroller and as to paragraphs 5, 6 and 7 hereof, the District Attorney for the County that:

1. The County was created as a County pursuant to Section 243.335 of Nevada
Revised Statutes ("NRS") and is operating as a County, which is a political subdivision under the
laws of the State and the validity of such creation has never been questioned.

2. During the course of the proceedings authorizing the issuance of the "Storey
County, Nevada, Sewer Revenue Bond, Series 2016" in the maximum principal amount of
$4,058,000 issued as a single bond (the "Bond"), up to and including the date of this certificate, the
following were and now are the duly chosen, qualified and acting officers and members of the Board

and other officers of the County:

Chairman: Marshall McBride
Members: Lance Gilman
Jack McGuffey
County Clerk-Treasurer: Vanessa Stephens
County Comptroller: Hugh Gallagher
District Attorney: Anne M. Langer

and each of the foregoing officers has duly filed his or her oath of office, and each of them legally
required to give bond or undertaking has given or filed such bond or undertaking in form and amount
as required by law, and has otherwise duly qualified.

3. The Bond is authorized to refinance certain obligations issued to acquire,
improve, equip, operate and maintain, within the County, a sewerage project as defined in NRS
244A.0505 (the "Sewer Project").

+ The Bond is authorized to be issued pursuant to an ordinance of the County
finally adopted by the Board on December 6, 2016 (the "Bond Ordinance"); pursuant to Nevada
Revised Statutes ("NRS") 244A.011 through 244A.065, inclusive (the "Project Act") and NRS
Sections 350.350 through 350.490 (the "Water and Sewer Act"), cited in NRS Section 350.350 as the

43896656



Water and Sewer Revenue Bond Law, the Local Government Securities Law (Sections 350.500
through 350.720, Nevada Revised Statutes) and pursuant to NRS Chapter 348; and to all laws
amendatory thereof and supplemental thereto.

5. No action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity, before
any court, public board, or body, is pending or, to the best of our knowledge, threatened against the
County:

a. Affecting the corporate existence of the County or the titles of its members or

officers to their respective offices;

b. Seeking to prohibit, restrain or enjoin the issuance, execution, delivery or sale
of the Bond or the collection of the Net Revenues (as defined in the Bond Ordinance) to pay
the principal of and interest on the Bond, as applicable, if necessary, or the application of any
revenues or funds of the County to the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bond, or
affecting in any way the right or authority of the County to pay the Bond or otherwise to carry
out the terms and provisions of the Bond Ordinance, or otherwise concerning the Bond or the
Sewer Project;

C In any way questioning, contesting or otherwise affecting the validity or
enforceability of the Bond or the Bond Ordinance; or

d. Contesting the powers of the County or any authority for the Sewer Project,
the issuance of the Bond, the adoption of the Bond Ordinance, or the sale of the Bond to the
United States of America, Department of Agriculture, Rural Development, the purchaser of
the Bond (the "Purchaser") thereof.

6. No proceedings or authority for the issuance, sale, execution, or delivery of the

Bond, including the preliminary proceedings thereto, or the Bond Ordinance have been repealed,
rescinded, revoked, modified, changed, or altered in any manner.

7. The County agrees that the issuance of the Bond, including but not limited to,
all proceedings related thereto, will not violate any law, rule, regulation, ordinance, or any other
instrument or agreement governing the County.

8. The regular meetings of the Board are held in the County Commissioner's

Meeting Room, Storey County Courthouse, 26 South B Street, Virginia City, Nevada. The meetings

2
43896656



of the Board at which the Bond Ordinance was introduced and adopted were called and held in
accordance with all applicable ordinances, resolutions and rules of the County and the Board.

9. All meetings of the Board relating to the Bond and the Sewer Project have
been open to the public at all times.

10.  To the best of our knowledge, neither the Chairman nor any other member of
the Board, nor any other officer, employee, or agent of the Board or the County is interested (except
in the performance of his or her official rights, privileges, powers and duties), directly or indirectly,
in the profits of any contract, job for work or services to be performed and pertaining to the issuance
of the Bond or the Sewer Project.

11.  The Comstock Chronicle is a qualified newspaper under the provisions of

NRS Sections 238.020 and 238.030, published and of general circulation in the County.

12.  No referendum petition has been filed concerning any of the ordinances,
resolutions or other proceedings concerning the Bond or the Sewer Project, or the Net Revenues,
including the Bond Ordinance, and to the best of our knowledge no such petition is being circulated
or planned for circulation.

13.  There is no reason within our knowledge why the County may not deliver the
Bond in the maximum principal amount of $4,058,000.

14.  The best bid for the purchase of the Bond at private sale was accepted on
December 6, 2016. The effective interest rate on the Bond does not exceed by more than 3% the

"Index of Revenue Bonds" which was most recently published in The Bond Buyer before the bids

were received for the Bond (a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A).

15. On or before December 20, 2016, the Chairman and the County
Clerk/Treasurer manually signed the Bond. The Chairman and the County Clerk/Treasurer were, and
are now, the duly appointed, sworn, qualified and acting officers of the County authorized to execute
the Bond. The seal of the County which has been affixed to the Bond is a true, perfect and complete
facsimile of the legally adopted, proper and only official corporate seal of the County and is hereby
adopted.

16.  The undersigned County Treasurer hereby certifies that:

43896656



a. she has the full authority under the laws of the State of Nevada to act as
Registrar and Paying Agent for the Bond;
b. she has accepted, and does hereby ratify and confirm her acceptance, of all the
duties and responsibilities of Registrar and Paying Agent under the Bond Ordinance; and
c. the Bond being in the denomination and maturing and bearing interest as
provided in the Ordinance have been duly completed in all respects, and has been duly
registered and the certificate of authentication on the Bond has been manually executed by
her.
17. On the date hereof, the County received from the Purchaser the maximum
principal amount of $4,058,000 in exchange for the Bond.
18.  On the date hereof the County Clerk/Treasurer caused the Bond to be
delivered to the Purchaser, being in all respects as authorized by the proceedings pertaining to the
Bond including the Bond Ordinance.

19. This certificate is for the benefit of each owner from time to time of the Bond.

43896656



WITNESS our hands on this December 20, 2016.
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners

County Clerk/Treasurer
(SEAL)

County Comptroller

County District Attorney (or a deputy thereof)

43896656



EXHIBIT A

(Attach Copy of Index of Revenue Bonds from the 12/5/2016 edition of The Bond Buyer)



Summary -  An ordinance authorizing the issuance by Storey County, Nevada of its Sewer
Revenue Bond, Series 2016 in the maximum principal amount of $4,058,000 and
providing other matters relating thereto.

ORDINANCE NO. lb:21%

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF THE

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA, SEWER REVENUE BOND,

SERIES 2016 IN THE MAXIMUM PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF

$4,058,000 TO PAY IN PART THE COST TO FINANCE A

SEWERAGE PROJECT; PROVIDING THE FORMS, TERMS

AND CONDITIONS OF THE BOND, THE SECURITY AND

THE SALE THEREOF; PROVIDING OTHER MATTERS

RELATING THERETO AND THE EFFECTIVE DATE

HEREOF.

WHEREAS, Storey County, Nevada (the "County" and the "State," respectively), isa
political subdivision of the State, a body corporate and organized and operating as a County under
the statutes of the State; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes ("NRS") Sections 244A.011
through 244A.0635, inclusive (the "Project Act") and NRS Sections 350.350 through 350.490, NRS
(the "Sewer Act"), cited in NRS Section 350.350 as the Water and Sewer Revenue Bond Law, the
Board of County Commissioners of the County (the "Board" or the "Governing Body") is authorized
and empowered to authorized to refinance certain obligations issued to acquire, improve, equip,
operate and maintain, within the County, a sewerage project as defined in NRS 244A.0505 (the
"Project"); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Project Act and the Sewer Act, the County is authorized
and empowered to issue the County's sewer revenue bonds to defray the cost of the Project in part, in
the manner and on the conditions provided in the Project Act, the Bond Act and the Sewer Act; and

WHEREAS, for the purpose of defraying a part of the cost of the Project, the Board
deems it necessary to issue the "Storey County, Nevada, Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2016" in the

aggregate maximum principal amount of $4,058,000 (the "Bonds" or the "Bond") payable solely

from the Net Revenues (as defined herein); and

43896653



WHEREAS, the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bond will be secured
by the net revenues of the County's municipal sanitary sewer system (the "System"); and

WHEREAS, the County has not pledged the revenues derived and to be derived from
the operation of the System for the prepayment of any securities payable from such revenues, or
otherwise, with the result that such revenues may be pledged lawfully and irrevocably to secure the
payment of the Bond; and

WHEREAS, the United States of America, Department of Agriculture, acting by and
through Rural Development ("RD"), pursuant to a letter of conditions dated September 15,2015 and
by an approved request for obligation of funds, has agreed to purchase all of the Bonds herein
authorized at par and at an interest rate of 1.375% per annum (provided, however, that the County
may elect to take the RD rate available at the date of issuance of the Bond, if lower) (the "Interest
Rate"); and

WHEREAS, the Board has determined and does hereby determine and declare that
the proposal for the purchase at private sale pursuant to NRS 350.616 of the single Bond by RD, for
a price consisting of the maximum principal amount of such Bond, at the Interest Rate, and
otherwise maturing, being secured and otherwise being issued as herein provided, constitutes the best
proposal for the Bond and is to the best advantage of the County; and

WHEREAS, the effective Interest Rate on the Bond herein authorized or such lower
elected rate, does not exceed by more than 3% the "Index of Revenue Bonds" which was most
recently published before a negotiated offer was accepted for the Bond; and

WHEREAS, the Board hereby determines that it is necessary and advisable that the
County incur a bonded indebtedness by issuing the Bonds pursuant to the County Bond Law, the

Project Act, the Sewer Act and the Bond Act; and

43896653



WHEREAS, the Board has determined and hereby declares that each of the
limitations and other conditions to the issuance of the Bonds in the County Bond Law, the Bond Act,
the Project Act, the Supplemental Bond Act, and in any other relevant act of the State or the federal
government has been met, and pursuant to NRS 350.708 of the Bond Act such determination of the
Board that the limitations in the Bond Act have been met shall be conclusive in the absence of fraud
or arbitrary and gross abuse of discretion; and

WHEREAS, the Board has determined and does hereby declare:

(D) This Ordinance pertains to the sale, issuance and payment of the

Bond;

(2) Such declaration shall be conclusive in the absence of fraud or gross
abuse of discretion in accordance with the provisions of Section 350.579 of the

Bond Act; and
(3)  This Ordinance may accordingly be adopted as if an emergency exists

and may become effective at any time when an emergency ordinance of the County
may go into effect; and
WHEREAS, the Board hereby elects to have Chapter 348 of NRS (the "Supplemental
Bond Act") apply to the Bonds.
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF THE
COUNTY OF STOREY DO ORDAIN:
Section 1. This ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the "2016 Sewer
Revenue Bond Ordinance" (herein the "Ordinance"). '
Section 2. Definitions. The terms defined in this section, except where the
context requires otherwise, shall have the following meanings in this Ordinance:
1. "Bond Act" or "Act" means the Local Government Securities Law,
cited as NRS 350.500 through 350.720 and all laws amendatory thereof.
2. "Bond Account" means the "2016 Sewer Revenue Bond Account”
created in section 28 of this Ordinance.
3. "Bond" means the securities herein authorized designated as the
"Storey County, Nevada, Sewer Revenue Bond, Series 2016" in the aggregate

maximum principal amount of $4,058,000.

43896653



43896653

"2015 Bond" means the securities designated as the "Storey County, Nevada,
Sewer Revenue Bond, Series 2015" in the aggregate maximum principal amount of
$3,002,000.

4. "Consulting Engineer" or "Project Engineer" means any qualified
registered or licensed professional engineer practicing under the laws of the State of
Nevada.

S. "County" means Storey County, Nevada.

6. "Fiscal Year" means the twelve months commencing July 1 of any
year and ending June 30 of the next succeeding year.

7. "Gross Revenues" means all income and revenue derived by the
County from any rates, fees, tolls, connection charges, stand-by charges and charges
for availability of sewer services furnished by, or the use of, the municipal sewer
system as the same may at any time exist to serve customers within or outside the
County limits, whether resulting from improvements, extensions, or otherwise.

8. "Holder," "Owner" or "Registered Owner" means a person (including
RD) in possession and the apparent owner of the Bonds.

9. "Independent Accountant” means any certified public accountant
practicing under the laws of the State of Nevada who is independent and not an
officer or employee of the municipality.

10. "Insured Bank" means a bank defined in NRS 350.512 and qualified to
accept public deposits under state law which is a member of the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation.

11. "Net Revenues" means the Gross Revenues less the Operation and
Maintenance Expenses. The designated term indicates sources of revenues and does
not necessarily indicate all or any portion or other part of such revenues in the
absence of further qualification.

12.  "Operation and Maintenance Expenses" means all reasonable and
necessary current expenses of the County, paid or accrued, for operating, maintaining

and repairing the System, as defined in NRS 350.542 including legal and overhead

-4-



expenses of the County directly related to the administration of the System, insurance
premiums, audits, charges of depository banks and paying agents, professional
services, salaries and administrative expenses, labor, and the cost of materials and
supplies for current operation, but excluding any allowance for depreciation, any
costs of improvements to the System, any accumulation of reserves for major capital
replacements (other than normal repairs) or for the operation, maintenance or repair
of the System, any allowance for the prepayment of any securities of the County, or
any other ground of legal liability not based on contract, in accordance with NRS
350.544.

13.  "Paying Agent" means the office of the Treasurer of the County.

14.  "Project" means the cost to acquire, improve, equip, operate and
maintain, within the County, a sewerage project as defined in NRS 244A.0505, to be
financed in part by the Bonds and described in the preambles hereto.

15. "Project Act" means NRS 244A.011 through 244A.065, inclusive, and
all laws amendatory thereof.

16. "Purchaser" means the United States of America, acting by and
through RD.

17. "RD" means the United States of America Department of Agriculture,
Rural Development or any successor to Rural Development.

18. "Registrar" means the office of the County Treasurer.

19.  "Reserve Account” means the "2016 Sewer Revenue Bond Reserve
Account" created in section 28 of this Ordinance.

20. "Sewer Act" means NRS 350.350 through 350.490, inclusive, and all
laws amendatory thereof.

21. "System" means all of the County's municipal sewer system, and its
sewer facilities and properties now owned or hereafter acquired, whether situated
within or without the County boundaries.

Section 3. Authority for This Ordinance. This Ordinance is adopted pursuant to

the Project Act, the Sewer Act and the Bond Act.

43896653

-5



Section 4. Life of the Project. The Board has determined and does hereby declare

that the estimated life or estimated period of usefulness of the improvements to the System financed
by the Bonds is not less than 40 years from the date of the Bonds; and the Bonds shall mature at such
times not exceeding such estimated life or estimated period of usefulness of the System.

Section 5. Acceptance of Purchase Proposal. The proposal submitted by RD for
the purchase of the 2016 Bond in the maximum principal amount of $4,058,000 at the Interest Rate
which was received by the County at the private sale of the Bonds be, and the same hereby is,
accepted.

Section 6. Ratification. All consistent action taken previously by the Board and
the County officers directed toward the Project and toward the issuance of the Bonds for that purpose

is ratified, approved and confirmed.

Section 7. Authorization of Project. A cost of the Project in an amount of at least
$4,058,000 will be financed from Bond proceeds.
Section 8. Necessity of Project and Bonds. It is necessary and in the best interests

of the County and its inhabitants that the County effect the Project and defray in part the cost thereof
by issuing the Bonds therefor.

Section 9. Ordinance to Constitute Contract. In consideration of the purchase and
the acceptance of the Bonds by the Purchaser and by those who shall own them from time to time,
this Ordinance shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a contract between the County and the
Registered Owner.

Section 10.  Bonds Equally Secured. The covenants and agreements herein set
forth to be performed on behalf of the County shall be for the equal benefit, protection and security
of the Owners of any and all of the Bonds, all of which, regardless of the time or times of their issue
or maturity, shall be of equal rank without preference, priority or distinction of any of the Bonds of
this issue over any other thereof, except as otherwise expressly provided herein.

Section 11.  Special Obligations. The Bonds shall be payable and collectible

(except as herein otherwise provided) solely from the Net Revenues, which revenues are so pledged;
the Holder or Registered Owner may not look to any general or other fund for the payment of the
principal of, or interest on the Bonds, except the Bond Account and the Reserve Account which are

“6s
43896653



hereby pledged therefor. The Bonds shall not constitute an indebtedness or a debt within the
meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision or limitation and the Bonds shall not be
considered or held to be a general obligation of the County but shall constitute its special obligation.
The County does not pledge its full faith and credit for the payment of the Bonds.

Section 12.  Character of Agreement, None of the covenants, agreements,

representations and warranties contained herein or in the Bonds, in the absence of any breach thereof,
shall ever impose or shall be construed as imposing any liability, obligation or charge against the
County (except the special funds pledged therefor) or its general credit, payable out of its general
fund or out of any funds derived from taxation.

Section 13.  Authorization of Bonds. For the purpose of providing funds to pay a

portion of the cost of the Project, the County shall issue the Bond in the maximum principal amount
of $4,058,000 or such lesser amount as shall be advanced under the Bond. The Bond shall be issued
and be payable both as to principal and interest, solely from the Net Revenues of the County's
System, and the County shall pledge irrevocably such Net Revenues to the payment of the Bond and
the interest thereon, the proceeds thereof to be used solely for the aforesaid purpose, pursuant to the
Project Act, the Sewer Act and the Bond Act. RD has requested, and the County has agreed, that the
obligation of the County hereunder shall be represented in the form of a single registered Bond. The
Bond shall be in the form substantially as set forth in section 22 hereof.

Section 14.  Bond Details. The Bond shall be issued in fully registered form, i.e.,
registered as to both principal and interest, in compliance with Section 149 of the Tax Code, and the
regulations of the Secretary of the Treasury thereunder. The Bond shall be dated initially as of the
date of delivery thereof to the RD. The Bond shall bear interest at the Interest Rate on the unpaid
balance advanced under the Bond until the principal advanced under the Bond is paid in full. The
County's indebtedness as represented by the Bond shall be $4,058,000 or such lesser amount as shall
represent the aggregate principal amount advanced to the County as shown on the principal advance
panel attached to the Bond (the "Principal Advance Panel") and the registration records maintained
by the Registrar. Interest accrual shall be calculated based on a 365 day year. The interest payments
on the Bond shall be made by the County monthly on the 12 day of each month commencing on
January 20, 2017. The amortized principal payments on each Bond shall be made by the County in

-7-
43896653



installments monthly on the 20th day of each month commencing on January 20, 2017. The
principal and interest payments shall be fully amortized so as to produce substantially equal monthly
payments (of principal and interest) from payment date to payment date and which shall be in an
amount sufficient to fully pay the total principal of and interest on each Bond within 40 years of the
date thereof. The amount of the first amortized payment after the date of delivery of each Bond may
be different than other payments to take into account a delivery date that is other than the first day of
the month. Except as otherwise provided herein, every payment on the Bonds shall be applied first
to interest computed to the date of payment and then to principal.

Principal on the Bond shall be advanced by RD upon the written request of the
County. The County Chairman, Treasurer and Comptroller are each hereby authorized to request
principal advances under the Bond. At the time of such principal advance, the Registrar shall make a
notation of the date and amount of such principal advance on the Principal Advance Panel and the
registration records maintained by the Registrar. The Registrar shall provide such Principal Advance
Panel to the Registered Owner to be included with the Bond. The registration records maintained by
the Registrar shall be conclusive evidence of the amounts and dates of any principal advances.

Should the Interest Rate at the date of delivery of the Bond be lower than the Interest
Rate in effect at the time of the loan approval, the Board directs the County Treasurer or designee to
make a written request to the RD for the lower rate, and the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman
and the County Treasurer to execute the Bond providing for the lower rate of interest. If any
installment of principal is not paid when due, then in addition to installments thereafter becoming
due, the County shall pay interest on the unpaid balance of the total principal amount from the due
date of the delinquent installment to the date of payment of the delinquent installment, provided, that
interest accruing by reason of any such delinquency shall not include any interest applicable to such
delinquency period in any installment subsequently paid, and shall in no event cause the total interest
payable on the Bond to exceed the rate of 1.375% per annum or such lower rate of interest as set
forth in the Bond, on the unpaid balance of the total principal amount. The final installment on the
Bond shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America without deduction for
exchange or collection charges at the office of the Treasurer of the County. The final installment of
principal and interest due on the Bond is payable only upon surrender of the Bond to the County. If,

-8-

43896653



upon presentation at or after maturity, payment of the Bond is not made as herein provided, interest
thereon shall continue at the same rate per annum until the principal thereof is paid in full.

So long as the United States is the Registered Owner of the Bond, payment of
installments of principal and interest shall be made at the appropriate United States office, currently
designated as 1390 S. Curry St., Carson City, Nevada 89703, or at such other address as the United
States may designate in writing. During the time any registered assign is the Registered Owner of
the Bond, payment shall be made at the address shown on the registration record kept by the
Treasurer of the County, being both the registrar (the "Registrar") and paying agent (the "Paying
Agent") for the Bond. The Bond must be registered by any Registered Owner, and may be assigned
in the manner and with the effect set forth in the provisions for registration contained in the form of
bond hereinafter set forth, and as herein further provided. The principal and interest of the single
registered Bond shall be payable only to, or upon the order of, the Registered Owner or his legal
representative. Upon issuance to the United States, the Bond shall be registered in the name of the
"United States of America".

The County hereby reserves the right, at its option, to prepay the principal amount
outstanding, in whole, or in the manner hereinafter provided, in part, at any time, in inverse order of
maturity as directed by the County Treasurer or the Comptroller. Prepayments shall be made on the
date, at the place, and in the manner provided herein for making regularly scheduled installments,
and partial prepayments shall be in the amount of that portion of one or more installments which
would be allocable to principal. No prepayment of an installment shall extend or postpone the due
date of any subsequent installment. Any prepayments shall be in the amount of principal being
prepaid, together with accrued interest thereon to the date of prepayment, and shall be made without
penalty or without additional interest charges. At the time of such principal prepayment, the
Registrar shall make a notation of the date and amount of such principal prepayment on the
registration records maintained by the Registrar. The registration records maintained by the
Registrar shall be conclusive evidence of the amounts and dates of any principal prepayments.

Section 15.  Prepayment Notice. Unless waived by the Registered Owner, notice of

prior prepayment shall be given by the County Treasurer or the Comptroller in the name of the

County by first class mail or electronic mail, not less than 30 days prior to the date fixed for

-9-
43896653



prepayment. A copy of the notice shall be mailed at least 30 days prior to the prepayment date to any
Registered Owner whose name and address appear on the registration records maintained by the
Registrar. So long as any Bond is owned by the United States, notice shall be mailed to the United
States of America at least 30 days prior to the prepayment date at such address as the United States
of America or RD may designate in writing. The notice shall identify the installments of principal to
be prepaid, specify the prepayment date, and state that on such date the principal amount thereof and
accrued interest to the prepayment date will become due and payable and thereafter interest will
cease to accrue. After such notice, the Bond or portions thereof so called for prepayment will be
paid. Notwithstanding the provisions of this section, any notice of prepayment may contain a
statement that the prepayment is conditioned upon the receipt by the Paying Agent of funds on or
before the date fixed for prepayment sufficient to pay the principal amount prepaid and the accrued
interest thereon to the date of prepayment, and that if such funds are not available, such prepayment
shall be canceled by written notice to the owner of the Bond called for prepayment in the same
manner as the original prepayment notice was mailed.

Section 16.  Negotiability. Subject to the registration and payment provisions
herein provided, the Bond shall be fully negotiable within the meaning of and for the purpose of the
Uniform Commercial Code - Investment Securities and each Owner shall possess all rights enjoyed
by owners of negotiable instruments under the Uniform Commercial Code-Investment Securities.

Section 17.  Registration as to Principal and Interest. The Bond must be registered

for payment as to both principal and interest. The Registrar shall maintain records for the
registration and transfer of Bond.

Section 18.  Registration of Bond.

A. Records for the registration of the Bond shall be kept by the Registrar. The

person in whose name any Bond shall be registered, on the registration records kept by the Registrar,
and as noted on the registration panel appended to the Bond, shall be deemed and regarded as the
absolute owner thereof for the purpose of payment and for all other purposes; and payment of or on
account of either principal or interest on any Bond shall be made only to or upon the written order of
the Owner thereof or his or her legal representative. All such payments shall be valid and effectual
to discharge the liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.

-10-
43896653



B. If the Bond shall be lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated, the Registrar shall,
upon receipt of such evidence, information or indemnity relating thereto as it or the County may
reasonably require, and upon payment of all expenses in connection therewith, authenticate and
deliver a replacement Bond; provided that if the United States of America is the holder of the Bond,
no security or indemnity is required in the event of a lost or destroyed Bond. If such lost, stolen,
destroyed or mutilated Bond shall have matured or shall have been called for prepayment, the
Registrar may direct that such Bond be paid by the Paying Agent in lieu of replacement; provided
that if the United States of America is the holder of the Bond, no security or indemnity is required in
the event of a lost or destroyed Bond.

C. Whenever any Bond shall be surrendered to the Paying Agent upon payment
thereof, or to the Registrar for replacement as provided herein, such Bond shall be promptly canceled
by the Paying Agent or Registrar, and counterparts of a certificate of such cancellation shall be
furnished by the Paying Agent or Registrar to the County.

D. The Registrar shall maintain a registration record for the Bond showing the
name and address of the Registered Owner and the amounts and dates of any principal prepayments
on the Bond and the amounts and dates of principal advances under the Bond.

Section 19.  Form of Execution. The Chairman of the Board (the "Chairman") and

the County Clerk/Treasurer may file their manual signatures with the Secretary of State, pursuant to
the Uniform Facsimile Signatures of Public Officials Act, cited as Chapter 351, NRS. The registered
Bond shall be signed and executed in the corporate name of the County with the manual or facsimile
signature of the Chairman, countersigned with the manual or facsimile signature of the Treasurer,
shall be attested with a manual or facsimile signature of the County Clerk, shall be authenticated by
the manual signature of an authorized officer of the Registrar, and a manual or facsimile of the seal
of the County shall be affixed thereto. The Bond bearing the signatures of the officers in office at the
time of the signing thereof, shall be the valid and binding obligations of the County, notwithstanding
that before the delivery thereof and payment therefor, any or all of the persons whose signatures
appear thereon shall have ceased to fill their respective offices. Any officer herein authorized or

permitted to sign any Bond at the time of its execution and of the execution of a signature certificate,

-11-
43896653



may adopt as and for his or her own facsimile signature, the facsimile signature of his or her
predecessor in office in the event that such facsimile signature appears upon the Bond.

Section 20.  Incontestable Recital. Pursuant to Section 350.628 of the Bond Act,

the Bond shall contain a recital that it is issued pursuant to the Project Act and the Bond Act, which
recital shall be conclusive evidence of the validity of the Bond and the regularity of its issuance.

Section 21.  Registration by Treasurer. Before the Bond is delivered, it shall be
registered by the Treasurer of the County in a record kept in her office for that purpose. The register
shall show the principal amount of the Bond, the time of payment on the Bond, and the rate of
interest the Bond bears.

Section22.  Form of Single Bond. Subject to the provisions of this Ordinance, the

Bond, the registration panel, and the form of assignment therefor, shall be in substantially the

following form:

12-
43896653



(Form of Bond)

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
SEWER REVENUE BOND, SERIES 2016

NO. R-1 Maximum Principal Amount: §
Dated: , 2016

Storey County, Nevada (the "County"), solely from the special funds provided
therefor, hereby acknowledges itself obligated, and for value received, hereby promises to pay to the
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA (the "United States"), the maximum principal amount above
stated or such lesser amount as shall have been advanced hereunder together with interest on the
unpaid balance at the rate [1.375%] per annum.

Interest shall accrue on the unpaid balance of the total principal amount hereof from
the date of this Bond. Interest accrual shall be calculated based on a 365 day year. Interest payments
shall be made by the County monthly on the 20th day of each month commencing on January 20,
2017. Amortized principal payments shall be made by the County monthly on the 20th day of each
month commencing on January 20, 2017 and ending within forty years of the date hereof until the
total principal amount with interest thereon as aforesaid has been fully paid. The County shall pay
amortized installments in an amount which shall be sufficient to fully pay the total principal amount
advanced hereunder plus interest thereon within forty (40) years from the date of this Bond. An
amortization schedule is attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part of this Bond. If less than the
maximum principal amount shall be advanced under this bond (this "Bond") by December 20, 2017,
the United States of America, Rural Development ("RD") shall prepare or cause to be prepared a
revised amortization schedule showing installments of the principal advanced under this Bond,
which schedule shall be provided to the County and attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part of
this Bond in place of Exhibit A attached upon the date of delivery of this Bond.

Principal may be advanced under this Bond by a written request of the County
Chairman, Treasurer or Comptroller. The County Treasurer, as registrar for this Bond (the
"Registrar"), shall maintain records showing the principal amount advanced hereunder and such
records shall be conclusive evidence of the amounts and dates of each advance of principal.

If any installment is not paid when due, then in addition to instaliments thereafter
becoming due, the County shall pay interest on the unpaid balance of the total principal amount from
the due date of the delinquent installment to the date of payment of the delinquent installment,
provided, that interest accruing by reason of any such delinquency shall not include any interest
applicable to such delinquency period in any installments subsequently paid and shall in no event

-13-
43896653



cause the total interest payable on this Bond to exceed the Interest Rate per annum set forth above on
the unpaid balance of the total principal amount. Except as otherwise provided herein, every
payment on this Bond shall be applied first to interest due through the next installment due date and
then the balance to principal.

The installments of principal and interest are payable in lawful money of the United
States of America, without deduction for exchange or collection charges, during the period the
United States of America is the registered owner of this single Bond, at the appropriate United States
Department of Agriculture, Rural Development office, currently designated as 1390 S. Curry St.,
Carson City, Nevada 89703, or at such other place as the United States may designate in writing, and
are so payable during any period the United States is not the registered owner hereof at the address
shown on the registration records of the County. The final installment of principal due on this Bond
is payable only upon the surrender of this Bond to the County.

All installments of principal are subject to prepayment at the option of the County
prior to their stated due dates and, in inverse order of maturity, by the payment of such principal
amount and accrued interest to the prepayment date. Prepayments shall be made on the date, at the
place and in the manner provided herein for making regularly scheduled installment payments and
partial prepayments shall be in the amount of that portion of one or more of the final installments
allocable to principal. No partial prepayment shall extend or postpone the due date of any
subsequent installment. Any prepayment shall be in the amount of principal being prepaid, together
with accrued interest thereon to the date of prepayment, and shall be made without penalty or
additional interest or charges. Prepayment shall be made upon prior notice as provided in the 2016
Sewer Revenue Bond Ordinance authorizing this Bond and adopted on December 6, 2016 (the
"Ordinance").

This single Bond is duly authorized to defray in part the cost to acquire, improve,
equip, operate and maintain a sewerage project within the meaning of NRS 244A.0505, consisting of
facilities pertaining to a county sanitary sewerage system (the "System") for the collection,
interception, transportation, treatment, purification and disposal of sewage, liquid wastes, solid
wastes, night soil and industrial wastes, including without limitation a drainage and flood control
project as defined in NRS 244A.027 (the "Project"), under the authority of and in full conformity
with the constitution and laws of the State of Nevada, and in particular the Bond Act (hereinafter
defined) and the provisions of Sections 244A.011 through 244A.065, inclusive, Nevada Revised
Statutes, and all laws amendatory thereof (the "Project Act"), and pursuant to the Ordinance.

This Bond does not constitute a debt or indebtedness of the County within the
meaning of any constitutional or statutory limitation and shall not be considered or held to be a
general obligation of the County. The County does not pledge its full faith and credit for the
payment of this Bond. Pursuant to the Project Act, as supplemented by Sections 350.500 through
350.720, Nevada Revised Statutes, and all laws amendatory thereof (the "Bond Act"), and all laws
thereunto enabling, this Bond is a special obligation of the County payable and collectible solely out
of and secured by an irrevocable pledge of certain net income derived from the operation of the

-14-
43896653



County's municipal sewer system (the "System"). The owner hereof may not look to any general or
other fund for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Bond except the special funds
pledged therefor. This Bond is issued pursuant to the Project Act and to the Bond Act. Pursuant to
Section 350.628 of the Bond Act, this recital is conclusive evidence of the validity of this Bond and
the regularity of its issuance.

Payment of this Bond and interest thereon shall be made solely from, and as security
for such payment there are pledged, pursuant to the Ordinance, two special funds identified as the
"2016 Sewer Revenue Bond Account," and the "2016 Sewer Revenue Bond Reserve Account," into
which the County covenants to pay from the revenues of the System, after provision only for all
necessary and reasonable operation and maintenance expenses, sums sufficient to pay the principal
and the interest of this Bond and to create and maintain a reasonable and specified reserve. Fora
description of said funds and the nature and extent of the security afforded thereby, reference is made
to the Ordinance. This Bond is secured by and constitutes an irrevocable and prior lien (but not
necessarily an exclusive lien) upon the net revenues of the System. Subject to designated conditions,
additional bonds may be issued payable from the net revenues and having a lien thereon inferior and
junior to the lien, or subject to additional conditions having a lien thereon on a parity with the lien of
this Bond and the 2015 Bond (as defined in the Ordinance), in accordance with the Ordinance.

The County covenants and agrees with the owner hereof that it will keep and perform
all the covenants of the Ordinance, including its covenant against the sale or mortgage of the System
or any part thereof unless provision has been made for the payment of this Bond and its covenant that
it will fix, maintain and collect rates sufficient to pay operating and maintenance expenses and 100%
of both the principal of and the interest on this Bond and any other obligations payable annually from
the net revenues of the System (including reserves).

This Bond shall be registered for payment in the name of the registered owner hereof
only as to both principal and interest in the records of the County in the office of the Treasurer of the
County, as Registrar, and in the panel appended to this single Bond. This Bond is transferable by the
registered owner hereof, in person or by his attorney duly authorized in writing, at the office of such
County Treasurer. No transfer of this Bond shall be valid until it has been duly entered in such
records and duly noted on the registration panel appended to this Bond.

It is further certified, recited, and warranted that all the requirements of law have been
fully complied with by the proper County officers in the issuance of this Bond.

No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of or the interest on this
Bond or for any claim based thereon or otherwise upon the Ordinance or other instrument pertaining
thereto, against any individual member of the Board of County Commissioners or any officer or
other agent of the County, past, present or future, either directly or indirectly through the Board of
county Commissioners or otherwise, whether by virtue of any constitution, statute or rule of law, or
by the enforcement of any penalty or otherwise, all such liability, if any, being by the acceptance of
this single Bond and as a part of the consideration of its issuance specially waived and released.

-15-
43896653



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County,
Nevada, has caused this Bond to be signed and executed in its name and on its behalf with the
manual or facsimile signature of the Chairman, countersigned by the manual or facsimile signature of
the County Treasurer, attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the County Clerk, with the
manual or facsimile seal of the County affixed hereto, all as of the date of the delivery hereof.

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

(SEAL}

(Manual or facsimile signature)
Chairman

Countersigned:

(Manual or Facsimile Signature)

County Treasurer

Attest:

(Manual or Facsimile Signature)
County Clerk

(End of Form of Bond)

-16-

43896653



(Form of Prepayment Panel)

The following installments of principal (or portions thereof) of this Bond have been

prepaid by the County in accordance with the terms of the Ordinance authorizing the issuance of this

Bond:
Signature of
Date of Payment Amount Prepaid Registered Owner
$
(End of Prepayment Panel)

(Form of Registration Panel Appended to Bond)
MANDATORY REGISTRATION FOR PAYMENT AS TO PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST

The within Bond is registered in the office of the Treasurer of the County, as

Registrar, in the name of the last owner listed below; and the principal amount of the Bond and
interest thereon shall be payable only to such owner, all in accordance with the Ordinance

authorizing the Bond's issuance.

Date of Name of Address of Signature of

Registration Owner Owner Registrar

, 2016  United States USDA, Rural Development
of America 1390 S. Curry St.
Carson City, NV 89703

(End of Form of Registration Panel)

-17-
43896653



(Form of Assignment Panel Appended to Bond)

Provision for Assignment

For value received, the undersigned hereby assigns and transfers unto

the within Single Registered Sewer Revenue Bond No. R-1, together with accrued interest thereon,

and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint attorney in fact to transfer said

Bond on the registration records of the County at the office of the County Treasurer, a Registrar with
full power of substitution in the premises.

Dated ,20

In the presence of:
Signature Guaranteed
By

NOTICE: The Signature to this assignment must correspond with the name as it appears upon the
Registration Panel of the within Bond in every particular, without any alteration whatsoever.
Name of Transferee:

Address of Transferee:

Taxpayer Identification number or

Social Security Number(s):

(End of Form of Assignment Panel Appended to Bond)
Exhibit A
(Attach Amortization Schedule)

-18-
43896653



FORM OF PRINCIPAL ADVANCE REQUEST

Date:

USDA, Rural Development
1390 S. Curry St.
Carson City, NV 89703

Re: Storey County, Nevada
Sewer Revenue Bond, Series 2016
Dated December 20, 2016

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The undersigned hereby requests that you make a principal advance in the amount of
$ consisting of the principal amount of $4,058,000 on the above-captioned Debenture to
the order of the undersigned Storey County, Nevada (the "County") on which is at least
three business days after the date of this request.

The undersigned hereby certifies and warrants that:

1. The aggregate of principal advances requested from USDA, RD under the above-
referenced Debenture, including the advance requested in this letter, do not exceed the maximum
principal amount of the Debenture of $4,058,000;

2 All representations and warranties of the County contained in the Debenture and the
documents accompanying the Debenture, including, without limitation, the Federal Tax Exemption
Certificate dated December 20, 2016, remain true and correct on this date as if made on this date. No
event of default, as defined in the Ordinance adopted by the County Commission on December 6,
2016, has occurred and is continuing. No law has been adopted which would in any way adversely
affect the County's authority to obtain and repay this advance. The County covenants to advise you
immediately if any such law is adopted; and

3. Please deposit the amount advanced into our account: Routing # )
Account #

Respectfully submitted,
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

By:
(Must be Chairman, County Clerk/Treasurer or County Comptrotler)

-19-
43896653



Section 23.  Period of Facilities' Usefulness. The facilities to be financed with
Bond proceeds will be useful for at least 40 years.

Section 24. Bond Preparation. Execution and Delivery. The Chairman and the

County Clerk/Treasurer are directed to prepare and execute the Bond. Thereafter, the County
Treasurer shall deliver the Bond to RD on behalf of the United States of America as purchaser on
receipt of the agreed purchase price.

Section 25. isposition of Bond Proceeds.

A. Construction Account. Bond proceeds advanced under the Bond from time to

time shall be immediately deposited in an account hereby created and designated as the "2016
Construction Account" (the "Construction Account"). Such account shall be maintained in an
Insured Bank selected by the County and the United States. Moneys in the Construction Account
shall be used solely for the Project and shall be withdrawn only upon warrants or checks drawn and
signed by the County Comptroller, and such expenditure approved by an official of RD. Warrants or
checks shall not be issued until the Board has received engineering approval that such sum is due and
owing. The County's share of any liquidated damages and other moneys paid by defaulting
contractors or their sureties shall be deposited in the Construction Account to assure completion of
the Project. After the Consulting Engineer has certified that work is completed and that all expenses
have been paid, the Insured Bank shall transfer all remaining Bond proceeds, including interest, in
the Construction Account to the Bond Fund to be used to the extent possible for redeeming Bonds
prior to maturity as provided by this Ordinance.

B. Purchaser not Responsible. The Purchaser or any Registered Owner shall not

be responsible for the application or disposal of Bond proceeds.

Section 26.  Fiscal Year. For the purpose of this Ordinance the System shall be
operated upon a fiscal year commencing July 1 in each year and ending on June 30 of the next
succeeding year.

Section 27.  Income Fund. A special account is hereby created and shall be known
as the "Storey County Sewer Revenue Fund," herein sometimes designated as the "Income Fund".
So long as the Bond shall be outstanding all Net Revenues derived from the operation of the System

-20-
43896653



shall be deposited into the Income Fund. Any money remaining in the Proceeds Account after
payment of the Interim Debenture as described in Section 25(A) hereof and the completion of the
Project shall be deposited in the Bond Account.

Section 28.  Administration of Income Fund. The following payments shall be
made from the Income Fund.

A. Operation and Maintenance Expenses. First, there shall be set aside each
month such reasonable percentage of the Income Fund as the Board shall determine to be reasonable
and necessary for the proper operation and maintenance of the System. Any surplus remaining at the
end of the Fiscal Year and not used for Operation and Maintenance Expenses shall be transferred
back to the Income Fund.

B. Bond Account Payments. Second, from any moneys remaining in the Income
Fund there shall be deposited into a separate account hereby created to be known as the "2016 Sewer
Revenue Bond Account" (herein "Bond Account") monthly, commencing on or before the day
preceding the payment date, and on or before the day preceding each succeeding payment date
thereafter, an amount sufficient, together with any available moneys therein, to pay the next maturing
installment of principal and interest on the outstanding Bond until the maturity or prior prepayment
of the Bond. The Bond Account is hereby pledged to the repayment of the principal of and interest
on the Bond.

G: Reserve Account Payments. There shall be deposited annually into a separate

account hereby created to be known as the "2016 Sewer Revenue Bond Reserve Account” (herein
"Reserve Account"), commencing on or before the first payment date and continuing monthly on
each subsequent payment date, an amount at least equal to 10% of the monthly payment of principal
and interest until an amount at least equal to one year of principal and interest payments (the
"Minimum Reserve") has been accumulated. After the Minimum Reserve has been accumulated, an
amount shall be deposited annually from the Income Fund into the Reserve Account sufficient to
maintain said Reserve Account in an amount not less than the Minimum Reserve. The Reserve
Account is hereby pledged to the repayment of the principal of and interest on the Bond. The
moneys in the Reserve Account shall be maintained as a continuing reserve to be used only for the

following with the prior written approval from RD:

21-
43896653



1. Securities Requirements. To pay principal and interest on the Bond, if

necessary to prevent a default;

2. Emergency Maintenance Costs. To pay the costs of extraordinary and

major repairs, renewal, replacements, or maintenance items appertaining to such
System of a type not recurring annually and not defrayed as operation and
maintenance expenses;

3. Capital Costs. To pay the cost of extending the System; and

4. Replacement Costs. To pay the costs of replacing short-lived assets of

the System which have useful lives significantly less than the term of the Bonds.

D. Termination of Deposits. Payment need not be made into the Bond Account

or the Reserve Account if the total amount in both funds at least equals the principal and interest
requirements of the then outstanding Bond to maturity. In that case such an amount equal to such
principal and interest requirements shall be set aside for that purpose and all other moneys may be
used in any lawful manner.

E. Defraying Delinquencies in Bond Account and in Reserve Account. If, for
any reason, the County shall fail to pay into the Bond Account the full stipulated amount from Net
Revenues, then the difference between that paid and the amount stipulated shall be paid into the
Bond Account from the Reserve Account. Money so used shall be replaced in the Reserve Account
from the first revenues thereafter received not required to be otherwise applied by this section. Ifthe
proceedings authorizing other parity lien obligations require the replenishment of moneys in a
reserve account, then money shall be replenished in each such reserve fund on a pro rata basis. If, for
any reason, the County shall fail to pay into the Reserve Account the full stipulated amount, the
difference between the amount paid and the amount stipulated shall in like manner be paid therein
from the first revenues thereafter received not required to be otherwise applied by this section. The
moneys in the Bond Account shall be used only for the purpose of paying Bond principal and
interest. Any moneys in the Reserve Account in excess of the Minimum Reserve (including any
investment income) may be withdrawn and used in the same manner as Net Revenues.

F. Payment for Additional Obligations. After making the above payments, any

balance in the Income Fund may be used for the payment of principal and interest on additional

9=
43896653



bonds including reasonable reserves therefor. The lien of additional bonds on Net Revenues shall be
on a parity with, or subordinate to, the lien and pledge of the Bonds. Any payments for principal of,
interest on and for deposits to reserve funds with respect to additional parity securities, including the
2015 Bond, shall be made concurrently with those required by this section.

G. Use of Surplus Revenues. After making the above payments, the remaining

Net Revenues, if any, may be applied to any other lawful purpose or purposes authorized by the
Constitution and laws of the State as the Board may direct.

Section 29.  General Administration of Funds and Accounts. The funds and
accounts hereof shall be administered as follows:

A. Places and Times of Deposits. The above accounts and funds shall be

separately maintained and deposited in one or more bank accounts in an Insured Bank or Banks.
Each account shall be continuously secured to the extent required by law and shall be irrevocable and
not withdrawable by anyone for any other purpose. Amounts in the account exceeding the applicable
federal deposit insurance coverage shall be secured by the Insured Bank in advance in accordance
with U.S. Treasury rules and regulations governing the deposit of government moneys. Payments
shall be made into the proper account on the payment date when due, except that when the payment
date shall be a Sunday or legal holiday, the payment shall be made on the preceding calendar which
is not also a Sunday or legal holiday. At least one day prior to any principal and interest payment
date, moneys sufficient to pay interest and principal due on such payment date shall be credited at the
Paying Agent. Nothing in this Ordinance shall prevent the Board from establishing one bank account

for any of the funds and accounts required by this Ordinance.

B. Investment of Money. Any moneys in any fund or account designated in
Sections 25, 27 and 28 of this Ordinance may be invested or reinvested by the County in such
obligations as may be permitted by the Constitution and laws of the State of Nevada, and applicable
federal statutes and regulations.

(€] Tax Covenant. The County covenants for the benefit of the Owners of the
Bond that it will not take any action or omit to take any action with respect to the Bond, the proceeds
thereof, any other funds of the County or any facilities financed with the proceeds of the Bond if such
action or omission (i) would cause the interest on the Bond to lose its exclusion from gross income

-23-
43896653



for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the "Tax Code"), or (ii) would cause interest on the Bond to lose its exclusion from
alternative minimum taxable income as defined in Section 55(b)(2) of the Tax Code except to the
extent such interest is required to be included in the adjusted current earnings adjustment applicable
to corporations under Section 56 of the Tax Code in calculating corporate alternative minimum
taxable income. The foregoing covenant shall remain in full force and effect notwithstanding the
payment in full of the Bond until the date on which all obligations of the County in fulfilling the
above covenant under the Tax Code have been met.

Section 30.  Prior Lien Bonds. The Bond constitutes an irrevocable and prior lien

(but not necessarily an exclusive lien) upon the Net Revenues, superior to the lien thereon of any
subordinate securities and on a parity with the lien thereon of the 2015 Bond and any additional
parity securities.

Section 31.  Additional Bonds.

A. Earnings Test. This Ordinance shall not prevent the issuance of additional
bonds payable from and constituting a lien upon Net Revenues on a parity with the lien of the Bond.
Before any such additional parity bonds are actually issued (and upon receiving the prior written
consent of the United States of America for so long as the United States of America is the Registered
Owner of the Bond) it must be determined that:

1. The County is not, and has not been in default as to any payments
required to be made in Section 28 hereof during the Fiscal Year immediately
preceding the issuance of such additional bonds, or if the Bond has not been
outstanding for a full Fiscal Year, then for the longest period of time the Bond has
been outstanding; and

2, The annual Net Revenues derived from the operation of the System
for the Fiscal Year immediately preceding the date of the ordinance authorizing the
issuance of any such parity lien obligations shall have been sufficient to pay an
amount representing 100% of the average annual principal and interest requirements
on all bonds then outstanding and constituting a lien upon Net Revenues and the
parity lien obligations proposed to be issued (excluding reserves). As used in this

24-

43896653



section "average annual principal and interest requirements” shall be the total
principal and interest coming due on the then outstanding Bond and the proposed
parity lien obligations during the period extending from the date of the proposed
parity lien obligations to the final principal payment date of the then outstanding
parity lien obligations or the proposed parity lien obligations, whichever is longer,
divided by the number of years (including any fraction thereof) computed from the
date of the proposed parity lien obligations to the last principal payment date of the
then outstanding parity lien obligations, or the proposed parity securities whichever is
longer.

The foregoing limitations upon the issuance of parity securities shall not
apply in the case of the issuance of additional parity securities necessary to complete
the Project in accordance with the original plans and specifications therefor as
prepared and filed by the Consulting Engineer and upon certificates by such
Consulting Engineer that such parity lien obligations are required for such Project.
Such certificates shall conclusively determine the right of the County to issue such
parity lien obligations.

B. Certification or Opinion of Revenues. A written certificate or opinion by the

County Treasurer, Comptroller or an Independent Accountant that the earnings test set forth in
Section 31(A) above has been met shall conclusively determine the right of the County to issue
additional parity bonds. The County Treasurer, Comptroller or an Independent Accountant may
utilize the results of any annual audit to the extent it covers the applicable period and may
conclusively rely on a Consulting Engineer's Certificate for the amount of any adjustment required
under paragraph C of this section. In the event that an annual audit covering the applicable period is
unavailable, the County Treasurer or the County Comptroller may utilize unaudited information
covering the applicable period in making such written certification.

C. Consideration of Additional Expenses. In determining whether additional
parity lien obligations may be issued, the County Treasurer, Comptroller or the Independent
Accountant shall consider any probable increase (but not reduction) in Operation and Maintenance
Expenses. A written certificate by a Consulting Engineer as to the amount of such probable increase

25-
43896653



may be conclusively relied on by the County and the County Treasurer, Comptroller or the
Independent Accountant in determining the right of the County to issue additional parity lien
obligations.

D. Subordinate Obligations Permitted. The County may issue bonds or other

obligations (upon receiving the prior written consent of the United States of America for so long as
the United States of America is the Registered Owner of the Bond) having a lien on Net Revenues
subordinate to the lien thereon of the Bond.

E. Superior Obligations Permitted. The County shall not issue any bond or other

obligation having a lien on Net Revenues prior and superior to the lien thereon of the Bond unless
the County has received the prior written consent of the United States of America.

F. Waiver of Earnings Test. The foregoing earnings test described at Section

31(A) above, may be waived or modified by the written consent of Bondholders representing
seventy-five percent (75%) of the then outstanding principal indebtedness on a parity with the
proposed parity lien obligations.

Section32.  Defeasance. Pursuant to RD Instruction 1942-A,  Section
1942.19(h)(10)(iii), so long as the United States of America is the Registered Owner of the Bond, the
Bond may not be defeased.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the United States of America is no longer the
Registered Owner of the Bond, when the principal of and interest on the Bond (the "Bond
Requirements") have been duly paid, the pledge and lien and all obligations hereunder shall thereby
be discharged as to the Bond and the Bond shall no longer be deemed to be outstanding within the
meaning of this Ordinance. There shall be deemed to be such due payment when the County has
placed in escrow or in trust with a trust bank located within or without the State (the "Bank"), an
amount sufficient (including the known minimum yield available for such purpose from Federal
Securities in which such amount wholly or in part may be initially invested) to meet all Bond
Requirements of the Bond, as the same become due to the final maturity of the Bond or upon any
prepayment date as of which the County shall have exercised or shall have obligated itself to exercise
its prior prepayment option by a call of the Bond for payment. The Federal Securities shall become
due before the respective times on which the proceeds thereof shall be needed, in accordance witha

26-
43896653



schedule established and agreed upon between the County and the Bank at the time of the creation of
the escrow or trust, or the Federal Securities shall be subject to prepayment at the option of the
owners thereof to assure availability as so needed to meet the schedule. For the purpose of this
Section, the term "Federal Securities" shall be as defined in NRS 350.522, and shall include only
Federal Securities which are not callable for prepayment prior to their maturities except at the option
of the holder thereof.

Section 33.  Protective Covenants. The County covenants and agrees with each and

every Holder that:
A. Use of Bond Proceeds. The Project shall be constructed and acquired and the

System improved and extended without delay.

B. Payment of Bonds Herein Authorized. The County will make the Bond
principal and interest payments at the place, on the dates, and in the manner specified according to
the true intent and meaning thereof.

C. Use Charges. Rates for services rendered by the System shall be reasonable
and just, taking into account the cost and value of the System, Operation and Maintenance Expenses,
possible delinquencies, proper allowances for depreciation, contingencies, and the amounts necessary
to retire all bonds payable from Net Revenues, and the reserves therefor. There shall be charged
against all users, including the State of Nevada and its subdivisions, rates and amounts sufficient to
produce revenues to pay the annual Operation and Maintenance Expenses, and 100% of both the
principal of and interest on all bonds and other obligations payable from Net Revenues, including
reserves. Except as otherwise provided by law, no free service shall be furnished by the System.
Any use of the System by the County will be paid for from the County's general fund at the
reasonable value of the use so made. Income so derived from the County shall be treated in the same
manner as any other System income.

D. Levy of Charges. Prior to the delivery of the Bonds, the County will establish,

levy and maintain the rates and charges which are required to meet the provisions of paragraph C of
this Section. No reduction in any initial sewer rate schedule may be made unless:
1. The County has complied with Section 28 for at least two Fiscal Years

immediately preceding such reduction.

27-
43896653



2. The audits for the full two Fiscal Years immediately preceding such
reduction disclose that the estimated revenues resulting from the proposed rate
schedule will be sufficient to meet the requirements of paragraph C of this section.

3. If the United States of America then owns the Bonds, the State
Director of the RD (or equivalent RD officer) approves in writing the proposed
reduction, provided that RD on behalf of the United States of America shall have first
been furnished with a written request signed by the Treasurer or Comptroller
requesting and justifying such reduction. This Section 33D(3) applies only if the
United States owns the Bonds on the date of the reduction.

E. Efficient Operation. The County shall make such improvements and repairs to
the System as may be necessary to insure its economical and efficient operation and its ability to
meet demands for service.

F. Records. Separate records will be kept showing complete and correct entries

of all transactions relating to the System. Such records shall include monthly entries showing:

1. The number of System customers;

2. The Gross Revenues received and Operation and Maintenance
Expenses;

3. A detailed statement of expenses; and

4. Such other items specified by any form furnished by the United States
of America or RD including an annual report to be provided to RD specifying
the amount of sewer service purchased, total number of System customers
and the list of names, addresses and telephone numbers of the current
members of the Board of the County.
Before each Fiscal Year the Board will cause an operating budget to be prepared.
G. Right to Inspect. Any Registered Owner, or their duly authorized agents, shall
have the right at all reasonable times to inspect the System, and all records, accounts and data
relating thereto.

H. Audits and Budgets. As long as the United States of America is the Registered

Owner of the Bonds, the County agrees that it will, within 90 days following the close of each Fiscal

28-
43896653



Year when available, furnish an audit made by an Independent Accountant to RD (at the State Office
of RD). Each such audit, in addition to matters thought proper by the accountant, shall include:
1. A statement for the Fiscal Year just closed, of the income and
expenditures of the System, including Gross Revenues, Net Revenues, the
amount of any capital expenditures and profit or loss;
2. A balance sheet as of the end of such Fiscal Year, including all funds
and accounts created by proceedings authorizing bonds payable from System
revenues;
3. The accountant's comment regarding the County's methods of
operation and accounting practices;
4. A list of the insurance policies in force, setting out the amount of each
policy, the risks covered, the name of the insurer, and the expiration date;
5. A recapitulation of each fund or account created by the various
proceedings showing deposits and withdrawals for said Fiscal Year.
After the beginning of each new Fiscal Year, the County shall furnish an operating
budget showing the planned budget for the ensuing year and a copy of the minutes of
the meeting of the Board at which such budget was approved. Along with the
operating budget, the County shall provide a letter showing the name, address and
term of office for each member of the Board, the number of residential users and the
number of commercial users of the System as of the end of the Fiscal Year. The
County will furnish the designated United States representative with quarterly
statements of income and expense on forms furnished by the United States of
America. The County will furnish a copy of each audit, budget, quarterly statement
and written instrument to the United States of America.
L. Billing Procedure and Discontinuance of Service. All bills shall be sent out on
aregularly established manner each month in advance or after service is rendered. Bills shall be due
within an established number of days from the bill date. Bills for sewer use and sewer service may

be sent out in combination with bills for another utility (e.g., water bills, solid waste bills or refuse

-29-
43896653



collection bills) as long as such amounts are separately stated. Ifbills are not paid 30 days after such
due date they shall be collected in any lawful manner.

J. Use of Bond and Reserve Accounts. The Bond Account and the Reserve

Account shall be used solely and only, and said funds are hereby pledged, for the purposes set forth
above.

K. Charges and Liens upon System. The County will pay all taxes and
governmental charges lawfully levied in respect of the System when due. The County will comply
with all valid requirements of any governmental authority relative to the System. It shall not create
or permit to be created any lien or charge upon the System or the revenues except as permitted
herein. The County will satisfy all claims and demands within 60 days after the same shall accrue
which might by law become a lien upon the System or upon the revenues unless the validity thereof
is being contested in good faith by appropriate legal proceedings.

L. Construction Contract and Bond. The County will require each person, firm
or corporation with whom it may contract for labor or materials to furnish a performance and
payment bond in the full amount of any contract. Any such contract will meet the reasonable
requirements of the United States of America and RD which are not inconsistent with State law.

M. Insurance. Fire and extended coverage insurance will be obtained and
maintained on the facilities above ground, including County-owned contents, equipment and
machinery, the amounts of which will be determined with the assistance of the Project Engineer.
The proceeds of such insurance shall be used to restore the property lost or damaged and any
remainder (or if such lost or damaged property is no longer required for the System the entire
proceeds) will be distributed as Net Revenues. The County will carry workmen's compensation
insurance on all full-time employees and will maintain public liability insurance (including liability
and property damage insurance on County-owned or operated vehicles) if authorized by State law as
interpreted by the legal counsel for the County.

N. Competing System or Works. The County shall not grant any franchise or

license to a competing System within the County's Goldfield and Virginia City service areas, or
permit any person or organization to sell sewer service within the County's Goldfield and Virginia

City service areas, but this covenant shall not require the County to take any action which, in the

-30-
43896653



opinion of the County's legal counsel, may violate antitrust laws and shall not prevent the County
from permitting general improvement districts within the County from providing sewer service in the
County.

0. Alienating System. The County will not sell, lease, mortgage, pledge, or

otherwise alienate the System, or any part thereof, except any portion which shall have been replaced
by other property of at least equal value or which shall cease to be necessary for the efficient
operation of the System. In the event of any sale as aforesaid, the proceeds of such sale shall be
distributed as Net Revenues.

P. Extension of Interest Payments. The County will not extend or be a party to
the extension of the time for paying any claim for interest. Any installment of interest so extended
shall not be entitled in case of default hereunder to the benefit or security of this Ordinance except
subject to the prior payment in full of the principal of all bonds and interest which has not been
extended.

Q. Management of the System. If an "event of default" shall occur or if the Net

Revenues in any Fiscal Year fail to equal principal, interest and reserves for all bonds payable from
Net Revenues, the County shall retain a Consulting Engineer to assist in the management of the
System so long as such default continues or the Net Revenues are less than the amount designated.

R. Fidelity Bonds. The persons, being responsible for receiving income and

maintaining the accounts of the System, shall be bonded in a blanket position fidelity bond in a penal
sum at least equal to the maximum amount on hand at any one time (exclusive of Bond proceeds),
which fidelity bond may be provided on Form RD 440-24 "Position Fidelity Schedule Bond" or other
equivalent United States forms and shall designate the United States of America as a co-obligee.
S. The County's Existence,
1. The County will maintain its "corporate" identity and existence so
long as any of principal of the Bond remains outstanding (and the United States of
America is a Registered Owner of any of such Bond), unless another political
subdivision by operation of law succeeds to the liabilities and rights of the County
without adversely affecting to any substantial degree the privileges and rights of any
Registered Owner.

-31-
43896653



2. The County agrees to give written notice to the RD City or State
Office, if the United States of America is a Registered Owner of any principal of the
Bond, at least 30 days prior to any contemplated merger, consolidation or dissolution
of the County.
Section 34.  Events of Default. It is an "event of default" if:

A. Nonpayment of Principal. Payment of any principal of the Bonds is not made

when due or upon prior prepayment.

B. Nonpayment of Interest. Payment of interest is not made when due.

C. Incapable to Perform. The County is not capable of fulfilling its obligations

hereunder.

D. Default of Any Provision. The County defaults in the punctual performance

of its covenants hereunder for 60 days after written notice shall have been given by the Owners of
25% of the outstanding principal of the Bonds.
Section 35.  Remedies on Default. Upon the happening of any event of default, the

Registered Owners or Holders of not less than 25% in principal amount of the outstanding Bond, or a
trustee therefor, may protect and enforce the rights of any Bondholder or Owner by proper legal or
equitable remedy deemed most effectual including mandamus, specific performance of any covenant,
the appointment of a receiver (the consent to such appointment being hereby granted), injunctive
relief, or requiring the governing body of the County to act as if it were the trustee of an expressed
trust, or any combination of such remedies. All proceedings shall be maintained for the equal benefit
of all Registered Owners and holders of the Bonds. Any receiver appointed to protect the rights of
Bondholders may take possession and operate and maintain the System in the same manner as the
County itself might do. The failure of any Registered Owner or Holder to proceed does not relieve
the County or any person of any liability for failure to perform any duty hereunder. The foregoing
rights are in addition to any other right and the exercise of any right by any Bondholder or Owner
shall not be deemed a waiver of any other right.

Section 36.  Duties upon Default. Upon the happening of any event of default, the

County will perform all proper acts to protect and preserve the security created for the prompt

payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds. The Owners or Holders of not less than 25%

-32-
43896653



in principal amount of the outstanding Bonds after written demand, may proceed to protect and
enforce the rights provided by this section.

Section 37.  Prior Charge Upon Lower Rates. If any commission or authority

lawfully prescribes a lower schedule of rates than that contemplated by this Ordinance, then the
payment of principal and interest on the Bonds, and any parity securities, shall constitute a prior lien

and charge on revenues.

-33-
43896653



Section 38.  Refinancing. Ifit shall appear to RD, during the time the United States
owns any of the Bonds, that the County can refinance the amount of the Bonds then outstanding, in
whole or in part, by obtaining a loan for such purposes from responsible cooperative or private credit
sources, at reasonable rates and terms for loans for similar purposes and periods of time, the County
agrees (upon the request of RD), within the limitations of its then existing powers, (and subject to
any contractual limitations contained herein concerning the payment of the Bonds and its
prepayment), to apply for and to accept such loan, with conditions acceptable to the County, in
sufficient amount to repay the United States and agrees to take such action as may be required in
connection with such loan. Any such refinancing shall be accomplished according to applicable
statutes of the State.

Section 39.  Bond Discharge. When the Bonds have been paid, the pledge and lien

and all obligations hereunder shall be discharged and the Bonds shall no longer be deemed to be
outstanding.

Section 40.  Amendment of Ordinance. This Ordinance may be amended, without
receipt by the County of any additional consideration, but with the written consent of the Owners of
seventy-five percent (75%) of the principal of the Bonds then outstanding (not including any portion
of the Bonds which may be held for the account of the County); but no ordinance adopted without

the written consent of the Registered Owners of all of the outstanding Bonds shall have the effect of

permitting:
1- An extension of any installment payment of the Bonds; or
2. A reduction in the principal amount or interest rate of the Bonds; or
3. The creation of a lien upon revenue ranking prior to the lien or pledge

created by this Ordinance; or

4. A reduction of the principal amount of the Bonds required for consent
to such amendatory ordinance; or

5. The modification of or otherwise affecting the rights of the Holders of

less than all of the outstanding Bonds.

Section 41.  Delegated Powers. The officers of the County be, and they hereby are,
authorized and directed to take all action necessary or appropriate to effectuate the provisions of this
_Ordinance, including, without limitation, the execution of such certificates and forms as may be

reasonably required by the United States of America or RD, relating, inter alia, to the signing of the

34
43896653



Bonds, the tenure and identity of the officials of the Board and of the County, the delivery of the
Bonds and the receipt of the Bond purchase price, and, if it is in accordance with fact, the absence of
litigation, pending or threatened, affecting the validity thereof, and the absence and existence of
factors affecting the exemption of interest on the Bonds from federal income taxation, the assembly
and dissemination of financial and other information concerning the County, the Bonds, and the sale
and issuance of the Bonds pursuant to the provisions of this Ordinance and to any instrument
supplemental thereto.

Section 42.  Prior Contracts. If any provision herein is inconsistent with any
provision in any existing contract pertaining to the County so as to affect prejudicially and materially
the rights and privileges thereunder, so long as such contract shall remain viable and in effect such
provision therein shall control such inconsistent provision herein and the latter provision shall be
subject and subordinate to such provision in such existing contract.

Section 43.  Police Power. Nothing in this Ordinance prohibits or otherwise limits
or inhibits the reasonable exercise in the future by the State and its governmental bodies of the police
powers and powers of taxation inherent in the sovereignty of the State or the exercise by the United
States of the powers delegated to it by the Federal Constitution. The County cannot contract away
such powers nor limit or inhibit by contract the proper exercise thereof, and this Ordinance does not
purport to do so.

Section 44.  Ordinance Irrepealable. After the Bonds are issued, this Ordinance

shall constitute an irrevocable contract between the County and the owner of the Bond and this
Ordinance, if the Bond is in fact issued, shall be and shall remain irrepealable until the Bonds, as to
all Bond Requirements shall be fully paid, canceled and discharged as herein provided.

Section 45.  Repealer Clause. All bylaws, orders, ordinances and resolutions, or

parts thereof, inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed. This repealer shall not be
construed to revive any bylaw, order, ordinance or resolution, or part thereof, heretofore repealed.

Section 46.  Publication of Proposed Ordinance. The Board has expressed in the
preambles to this Ordinance that it pertains to the sale, issuance, or payment of arevenue bond, and
that this instrument may accordingly be adopted as if an emergency now exists. This Ordinance shall
become effective after its publication at least twice by its title only, together with the names of the
Commissioners voting for or against its passage and a statement that typewritten copies of this

Ordinance are available for inspection by interested parties at the office of the County Clerk, such

35
43896653



publication to be made in a newspaper or newspapers of general circulation in the County at least
once a week for a period of two weeks, and such publication to be in substantially the following

form:

36
43896653



(Form of Publication)

ORDINANCE NO. 15-265

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF THE
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA, SEWER REVENUE BOND,
SERIES 2016 IN THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $4,058,000
TO PAY IN PART THE COST TO FINANCE A SEWERAGE
PROJECT; PROVIDING THE FORMS, TERMS AND
CONDITIONS OF THE BOND, THE SECURITY AND THE
SALE THEREOF; PROVIDING OTHER MATTERS
RELATING THERETO AND THE EFFECTIVE DATE
HEREOF.

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that typewritten copies of the above-
numbered and entitled ordinance are available for inspection by all interested parties at the office of
the County Clerk of Storey County, Nevada; and that such ordinance was proposed on December 6,
2016, and was passed at the meeting held on December 6, 2016 by the following vote of the Board:

Those Voting Aye:

Those Voting Nay:

Those Absent:

37

43896653



This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the th day of
December 2016, i.e., the date of the second publication of such Ordinance by its title only.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County,
Nevada, has caused this instrument to be published by title only.

DATED on this , 2016.
/sl
Chairman, Board of
County Commissioners
(SEAL) Storey County, Nevada
Attest:
/s/
County Clerk

Storey County, Nevada

(END OF FORM OF PUBLICATION OF ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE)

38
43896653



Section 47.  Severability Clause. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of
this Ordinance shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or
unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall in no way affect any of the
remaining provisions of this Ordinance.

Proposed on the 6™ day of December, 2016.

Proposed by Commissioner
Passed the 6th day of December, 2016.

Those Voting Aye:
Those Voting Nay:
Absent:
Chairman
(SEAL) Board of County Commissioners
Storey County, Nevada
Attest:
County Clerk

This ordinance shall be in force and effect from and after the __ day of the month of December
of the year 2016 (the date of the second publication of such ordinance by its title only).

39
43896653



STATE OF NEVADA )
COUNTY OF STOREY ; "

I am the duly chosen and qualified County Clerk of Storey County (herein "County"),
Nevada, and in the performance of my duties as Clerk do hereby certify:

l. The foregoing pages are a true, correct and compared copy of the original
ordinance proposed and adopted at the regular meeting of the Board of County Commissioners (the
"Board") on December 6, 2016 and the original of such ordinance has been approved and
authenticated by the signature of the Chairman of the Board and myself as Clerk, and has been
recorded in the minute book of the Board kept for that purpose in my office, which record has been
duly signed by such officers and properly sealed.

2 The foregoing ordinance was first proposed and adopted at a regular meeting
of the Board on December 6, 2016. The members of the Board were present at the December 6,
2016 meeting and voted upon the adoption of the ordinance as set forth in the ordinance.

3. All members of the Board were given due and proper notice of such meeting.

4, Public notice of such meeting were given and such meeting was held and
conducted in full compliance with the provisions of NRS Section 241.020. A copy of the notice
of meetings containing the time, place, location and an excerpt from the agenda for the meeting
relating to the ordinance, as posted not later than 9:00 a.m., 3 working days in advance of the
meetings at the Board's office, on the official website of the State of Nevada pursuant to NRS
232.2175, on the County's website, if any, and at:

(i) Virginia City Post Office
(i)  Storey County Courthouse
(iii)  Virginia City Fire Station
(iv)  Virginia City Highlands Fire Station
(v)  Lockwood Fire Station
is attached as Exhibit A.

5. Prior to 9:00 a.m. at least 3 working days before such meeting, such notice

was given to each person, if any, who has requested notice of the meetings of the Board in

compliance with NRS 241.020(3)(b) by United States Mail, or if feasible and agreed to by the

requestor, by electronic mail.

40
43896653



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this December 6, 2016.

County Clerk

41
43896653



EXHIBIT A

(Attach Notice of December 6, 2016 Meeting)

42
43896653



EXHIBIT B

(Attach Affidavit of Publication Twice by Title)

43

43896653



FEDERAL TAX EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE

The undersigned hereby certifies for and on behalf of Storey County, Nevada (the
"Issuer") as to the following facts, estimates and circumstances:
1. In General.

1.1 The Issuer is issuing and delivering, simultaneously with the
delivery of this Certificate, the "Storey County, Nevada, Sewer Revenue Bond, Series 2016" in
the maximum principal amount of $4,058,000 (the "Bonds").

1.2 The undersigned Comptroller of the Issuer is one of the officers of
the Issuer delegated the responsibility for issuing the Bonds.

1.3 I am familiar with the proceedings of the Board of Commissioners
(the "Board") of the of the Issuer taken preliminary to and in issuance of the Bonds, including the
ordinance adopted by the Board authorizing the issuance of the Bonds (the "Ordinance").

1.4 This certificate is for the purpose of establishing the reasonable
expectations of the Issuer as to future events relating to the Bonds pursuant to the Inuternal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended to the date hereof, and to the Regulations promulgated
thereunder as specifically required by Regulation 1.148-2(b) and for the purpose of evidencing
compliance with and setting forth procedures which are designed to comply with certain
provisions of the Code and the Regulations.

1.5 To the best of our knowledge, information and belief, the
expectations contained in this Certificate are reasonable.

1.6  Capitalized terms used herein and in the Exhibits hereto shall have
the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Ordinance or as set forth in Exhibit A hereto.

2 Purpose of the Bonds. The Bonds are being issued for the purpose of providing

moneys which will be sufficient to finance the construction of a sewerage project (the

"Project").

43896654



3. Cost of Project; No Overissuance,

3.1 The estimated total cost of the Project including the costs and
expenses listed in Subsection 4.2 hereof is not less than $4,058,000 plus the investment income
expected to be earned thereon.

3.2  The estimated total cost of the Project set forth in Section 3.1 of
this Certificate will be not less than the amount received from the sale of the Bonds set forth in
Subsection 4.1 of this Certificate, plus the investment income earned thereon.

4. Application of Sale Proceeds and Accrued Interest.

4.1  The net amount received by the Issuer (excluding accrued interest)
from the sale of the Bonds (the "Sale Proceeds™) will be $4,058,000 which amount consists of
maximum principal amount of the Bonds. The principal amount of $50,001 is being advanced
under the Bonds on the date hercof.

4.2  The Sale Proceeds ($4,058,000), and all investment income earned
thereon is expected to be needed and fully expended as follows:

i. An amount of the issue price equal to $4,058,000 will be deposited
into the "2016 Construction Account" created in the Ordinance (the "Construction Account") and
used to pay the costs of the Project. The Issuer expects to receive a grant in the approximate
amount of $8,987,000 from the United States Department of Agriculture, Rural Development
toward the cost of the Project, including the payment of expenses incurred in connection with the

1ssuance of the Bonds.

5. No Replacement. No portion of the amounts received from the sale of the Bonds
will be used as a substitute for other funds which were otherwise to be used as a source of
financing for any of the purposes specified in Section 2 hereof and which have been or will be
used to acquire, directly or indirectly, Investment Property producing a Yield in excess of the
Yield of the Bonds.

6. Economic Life of Project. In accordance with Regulation Section 1.148-1(c)

regarding the safe harbor against the creation of "replacement proceeds," the average
reasonably expected economic life of the facilities refinanced by the Project, determined as of
the issue date, is at least 26 years. The weighted average maturity of the Bonds is not greater

2
43896654



than 21.6991 years. The weighted average maturity of the Bonds therefore does not exceed
120% of the average reasonably expected economic life of the facilities financed with the
Bonds.

(A Bond Fund. The expected source of payment of principal of, and interest on, the
Bonds will be the Net Revenues of the Issuer's sewer system deposited from time to time, to
pay principal of, and interest on, the Bonds as it becomes due as provided in the Ordinance.
Such payments are deposited into the Bond Fund (as defined in the Ordinance) to be used to
pay principal of, and interest on, the Bonds and, in the case of deficiency, the principal of and
interest on the Bonds will be paid from the Reserve Account, as defined in and created by the
Ordinance. The Reserve Account will not be funded with Bonds proceeds. Amounts deposited
in the Bond Fund will be depleted at least annually except for a reasonable carryover amount, if
any, not to exceed the greater of (i) the earnings on the funds for the immediately preceding
Bonds Year, or (ii) one-twelfth (1/12) of the principal and interest payments on the Bonds for
the immediately preceding Bonds Year.

8. Reserve Account. The Reserve Account will be funded with net revenues of the

Issuer's water system and not with proceeds derived from the sale of the Bonds. The amounts
on deposit in the Reserve Account will not exceed the least of the following amounts: ten
percent (10%) of the proceeds of the Bonds, one hundred percent (100%) of the maximum
annual debt service on the Bonds, and one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the average
annual debt service on the Bonds. For this purpose, the term "proceeds" means the aggregate
stated principal amount of the Bonds as there is no original issue discount or premium (as
defined in Section 1.148-1(b) of the Treasury Regulations). The United States Department of
Agriculture, Rural Development, the purchaser of the Bonds, has advised the Issuer that the
funding of the Reserve Account (as required by the Ordinance) in an amount equal to the
average annual debt service on the Bonds is a vital factor in purchasing the Bonds, facilitating
the loan of the proceeds of the Bonds at an interest rate comparable to that of Bonds and other

obligations of a similar type and was not in excess of the amount considered necessary for such

purpose.

43896654



9. Application of Investment Earnings. Other than the Bond Fund, it is anticipated

that net investment earnings on amounts in any fund or account will be retained therein and
used for the purposes thereof. The investment earnings on the Bond Fund shall be transferred
into such fund as the Board determines in its annual budget.

10. No Other Funds. Other than the funds described herein, no fund or account of
any such fund which secures or otherwise relates to the Bonds has been established, nor are any
funds or accounts expected to be established, pursuant to any instrument.

11.  Single Issue. The Issuer does not expect to issue other obligations which will
be: (a) sold at substantially the same time as the Bonds (i.e., less than 15 days apart); (b) sold
pursuant to the same plan of financing with the Bonds; and (c¢) reasonably expected to be paid
for from substantially the same source of funds as will be used to pay the Bonds.

12. Temporary Periods and Yield Limitations.

12.1 Amounts deposited in the Bond Fund may be invested without
regard to Yield restrictions for a period not to exceed thirteen months from the date of deposit of
such amounts to such funds.

12.2 Investment carnings on amounts deposited into the Bond Fund
may be invested without regard to Yield restriction for a period ending 13 months from the date
of initial receipt and thereafter at a Yield not in excess of the Yield on the Bonds.

12.3  Amounts on deposit in the Reserve Account to the extent the
amounts on deposit therein do not exceed the parameters set forth in Section 9 above may be
invested without regard to Yield restriction.

13. Bond Yield. The Yield of the Bonds is 1.3750%.

14.  Allocation of Proceeds to Projects; Reimbursements. A portion of the proceeds

of the Bonds will be used to reimburse the Issuer for expenses incurred prior to the date hereof
on the Project. All of such expenses were incurred on or after July 22, 2016, which is within
sixty (60) days of September 20, 2016, the date the Issuer adopted the reimbursement intent
resolution with respect to the Project and the Bonds, and is within 3 years of the date hereof. A
list of the projects to which Bond Proceeds are being allocated is contained in Exhibit D. This
allocation is being made not later than eighteen (18) months after the later of the date the

4
43896654



original expenditure was paid or the date the project was placed in service, and in any event, not
more than three (3) years after the date the original expenditure was paid. All of the
_ expenditures being reimbursed are capital expenditures. o
15.  Accounting. The Issuer will comply with Exhibit B- Accounting and Valuation
Rules, throughout the term of the Bonds.

16. Prohibited Uses of Proceeds: Federal Guarantees.

16.1 None of the proceeds of the Bonds have been or will be used
(directly or indirectly) to acquire any Nongovernmental Output Property or to make or finance
loans to persons other than Governmental Units, other than (i) loans which cnaEle the borrower
to finance any governmental tax or | assessment of general application for specific essential
.govemmental functions or (ii) loans which consist of investments in Nonpurpose Investments.

16.2  Not more than an amount which is less than 5% of the proceeds of
the Bonds have been or will be used to finance Output Facilities other than facilities for
furnishing water, any portion of the output of which is dedicated to or otherwise made available
for use by persons other than Governmental Units on a basis other than that provided to the
general public.

16.3  Not more than 10% of the proceeds of the Bonds have been or will
be used (directly or indirectly) in a trade or business (or to finance facilities which are used in a
trade or business) carried on by any person other than a Governmental Unit. Not more than 5%
of the proceeds of the Bonds have been or will be used (directly or indirectly) in trade or
business (or to finance facilities which are used in a trade or business) carried on by any person
other than a governmental unit which private business use is not related to any governmental use
or is disproportionate to governmental use, all as described in Section 141(b)(3) of the Code
("Unrelated or Disproportional Use"). For the purpose of this section, use as a member of the
general public shall not be taken into account.

16.4  Section 17.3 shall apply only if the payment of 10% or more (5%
more in the case of Unrelated or Disproportional Use) of the principal of or interest on the Bonds
is (under the terms of the Bonds or any underlying arrangement) directly. or indirectly secured by

any interest in property used or to be used for a private business use or in payments in respect of

43896654



such property or derived from payments whether or not to the Issuer in respect of property or
borrowed money used or to be used for a private business use.

16.5 The payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds is not
and will not be guaranteed directly or indirectly by the federal government within the meaning of
§ 149(b) of the Code.

16.6  Not more than 50% of the proceeds of the Bonds will be invested
in Nonpurpose Investments having a substantially guaranteed Yield for 4 or more years.

16.7 None of the amount received from the sale of the Bonds will be
used to refund or refinance any Tax-Exempt Obligations including, for the purposes of this
paragraph only, Tax-Exempt Obligations which are specified private activity Bonds as defined in
Section 57(a)(5)(C) of the Code.

16.8 The Issuer does not expect to sell or otherwise dispose of the
projects financed by the Bonds before final retirement of the Bonds.

16.09 The Issuer is a political subdivision of the State of Nevada with
general taxing powers. At least 95 percent of the Proceeds of the Bonds is to be used for local
governmental activities of the Issuer. The Issuer and any subordinate entities of the Issuer do not
expect to issue more than $5,000,000 in Tax-Exempt Obligations (including the Bonds) during
the calendar year 2016.

16.10 The Issuer reasonably expects that at least 85% of the spendable
proceeds of the Bonds will be used to carry out the governmental purposes of such issue within
the 3 year period beginning on the date hereof; and not more than 50% of the proceeds of the
Bonds will be invested in Nonpurpose Investments having a substantially guaranteed Yield for 4
Or more years.

17.  This Certificate is, in part, to serve as a guideline in implementing the
requirements of Sections 141 to 150 of the Code. If regulations, rulings, announcements and
notices validly promulgated under the Code contain requirements which differ from those
outlined here which must be satisfied for the Bonds to be Tax-Exempt Obligations or in order to
avoid the imposition of penalties under Section 148 of the Code, pursuant to the covenants
contained in the Ordinance, the Issuer is obligated to take such steps as are necessary to comply

6

43896654



with such requirements. If under those pronouncements, compliance with any of the
requirements of this Certificate is not necessary to maintain the exclusion of interest on the
Bonds from gross income and alternative minimum taxable income (except to the extent of
certain adjustments applicable to corporations) or to avoid the imposition of penalties on the
Issuer under Section 148 of the Code, the Issuer shall not be obligated to comply with that
requirement. The Issuer has been advised to seek the advice of competent counsel with a
nationally recognized expertise in matters affecting exclusion of interest on municipal Bonds
from gross income in fulfilling its obligations under the Code to take all steps as are necessary

to maintain the status of the Bonds as Tax-Exempt Obligations.

43896654



Dated December 20, 2016.

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

By:

County Comptroller

43896654



Exhibit A
Definitions

A.1 "Bond Year" means the one-year period (or, in the case of the first Bonds
Year, the shorter period from the date of issue of the Bonds) ending on the day in the calendar
year that is selected by the Issuer. If no day is selected by the Issuer before the earlier of the
final maturity of the Bonds or the date that is five years after the date of issue, each Bonds Year
ends at the close of business on the day preceding the anniversary date of the issue date and on
the final maturity date.

A .2 "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended to the date
hereof.

A3 "Commingled Fund" means any fund or account containing both Gross
Proceeds of an issue and amounts in excess of $25,000 that are not Gross Proceeds of that issue
if the amounts in the fund or account are invested and accounted for collectively, without regard
to the source of funds deposited in the fund or account.

A .4 "Governmental Unit" means a state or political subdivision thereof. Such
term does not include the United States or any agency or instrumentality thereof.

A .5 "Gross Proceeds" means the Proceeds of the Bonds and any Replacement
Proceeds for the Bonds.

A .6 "Investment Proceeds" means any amounts actually or constructively
received from investing Proceeds of the Bonds.

A.7 '"Investment Property" means any security or obligation within the
meaning of Section 148(b)(2) of the Code, any annuity contract, any interest in any residential
rental property for family units which is not located within the jurisdiction of the issuer, any
"specified private activity Bonds" within the meaning of Section 57(a)(5)(c) of the Code, and any
other "Investment-Type Property."

A .8 "Investment-Type Property" means any property that is held principally as
a passive vehicle for the production of income. A prepayment for property or services is
Investment-Type Property if a principal purpose for prepaying is to receive an investment return
from the time the prepayment is made until the time payment would otherwise be made. A
prepayment is not Investment-Type Property if prepayments on substantially the same terms are
made by a substantial percentage of persons who are similarly situated to the issuer but who are
not beneficiaries of tax-exempt financing.

A .9 "Multipurpose Issue" means an issue that is used for two or more separate
governmental purposes.

A-1
43896654



A .10 "Net Sale Proceeds" means Sale Proceeds, less the portion of those Sale
Proceeds invested in a reasonably required reserve or replacement fund.

A .11 "Nongovernmental Output Property" means any property (or interest
therein) which prior to the date such property was acquired by the issuer was used (or held for
use) by a person other than a governmental unit, in connection within an output facility (other
than a facility for the furnishing of water).

A .12 "Nonpurpose Investment" means any Investment Property that is not a
Purpose Investment.

A .13 "Output Facility" means electric and gas generation, transmission,
distribution, and related facilities, and water collection, storage and distribution facilities.

A .14 "Payment" means:

a. amounts actually or constructively paid to acquire a Nonpurpose
Investment (or treated as paid to a Commingled Fund);

b. in the case of a Nonpurpose Investment that is first allocated to an
issue on a date after it is actually acquired (e.g., an investment that
becomes allocable to Transferred Proceeds or to Replacement Proceeds)
or that becomes subject to the rebate requirement on a date after it is
actually acquired (e.g., an investment allocated to a reasonably required
reserve or replacement fund for a construction issue at the end of the two
year spending period), the Value of that investment on that date;

e in the case of a Nonpurpose Investment that was allocated to an
issue at the end of the preceding Computation Period, the Value of that
Nonpurpose Investment at the beginning of the Computation Period; and

d. the Computation Date Credit.

A .15 "Present Value" in general means with respect to an investment on any
date an amount equal to the present value of all unconditionally payable Receipts to be received
from and Payments to be paid for the investment after that date, using the Yield on the
investment as the discount rate. Present value of an investment is computed under the economic
accrual method, using the same compounding interval and financial conventions used to compute
the Yield of the Bonds.

A .16 "Pre-issuance Accrued Interest" means amounts representing interest that
has accrued on an obligation for a period of not greater than one year before its issue date but
only if those amounts are paid within one year after the date hereof.

A-2
43896654



A .17 "Proceeds" of the Bonds means any Sale Proceeds, Investment Proceeds
and Transferred Proceeds of an issue.

A .18 "Purpose Investment" means an investment that is acquired to carry out
the governmental purpose of an issue.

A .19 "Qualified Administrative Costs" means reasonable, direct administrative
costs, other than carrying costs, such as separately stated brokerage and selling commissions that
are comparable to those charged nongovernmental entities in transactions not involving tax-
exempt bond proceeds, but not legal and accounting fees, recordkeeping, custody or similar
costs. For a guaranteed investment contract, a broker's commission paid on behalf of either an
issuer or the provider is not a Qualified Administrative Cost to the extent that the commission
exceeds the lesser of (i) $35,000 and (ii) 0.2% of the amount of Gross Proceeds the issuer
reasonably expects, as of the date the contract is acquired, to be deposited in the guaranteed
investment contract over the term of the contract or, if more, $3,000.

A .20 "Receipt" means:

a. amounts actually or constructively received from a Nonpurpose

Investment (including amounts treated as received from a Commingled
Fund); '

b. in the case of a Nonpurpose Investment that ceases to be allocated
to an issue before its disposition or redemption date (e.g., an investment
that becomes allocable to Transferred Proceeds of another issue or that
ceases to be allocable to the issue pursuant to the Universal Cap) or that
ceases to be subject to the rebate requirement on a date earlier than its
disposition or redemption date (e.g., an investment allocated to a fund
initially subject to the rebate requirement but that subsequently qualifies as
a bona fide debt service fund), the Value of that Nonpurpose Investment
on that date; and

c. in the case of a Nonpurpose Investment that is held at the end of a
Computation Period, the Value of that Nonpurpose Investment at the end
of that Computation Period.

A 22 "Recgulations" means the Treasury Regulations promulgated under
Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code, and to the extent applicable, any subsequent
amendments to such regulations or any successor regulations.

A 23 "Replacement Proceeds" means amounts that have a sufficiently direct
nexus to an issue to conclude that the amounts would have been used for that governmental
purpose if the Proceeds of the issue were not used or to be used for that governmental purpose.
For this purpose, governmental purposes include the expected use of amounts for the payment of
debt service on a particular date. The mere availability or preliminary earmarking of amounts for

A-3
43896654



a governmental purpose, however, does not in itself establish a sufficient nexus to cause those
amounts to be Replacement Proceeds. Replacement Proceeds include, but are not limited to,
amounts held in a sinking fund or a pledged fund. For these purposes, an amount is pledged to
pay principal of or interest on an issue if there is reasonable assurance that the amount will be
available for such purposes in the event that the issuer encounters financial difficulties.

A 24 "Reserve or Replacement Fund" includes any reasonably required reserve
or replacement fund (as described in Section 148(d) of the Code), any fund reasonably expected
to be used to pay the principal of or interest on the Bonds (including any sinking fund (as defined
in Regulation § 1.148-1(b)) for the Bonds and any bona fide debt service fund (as defined in
Regulation § 1.148-1(c)(2)), any fund pledged directly or indirectly to the payment of the Bonds
in such a manner that the owners of the Bonds have a reasonable assurance that the fund will be
available to directly or indirectly pay debt service on the Bonds if the Issuer encounters financial
difficulties, and any other amounts treated as being in a reserve or replacement fund by the
Regulations.

A .25 "Sale Proceeds" means any amounts actually or constructively received by
the Issuer from the sale of the Bonds, including amounts used to pay underwriter's discount or
compensation and interest other than Pre-issuance Accrued Interest.

A .26 "Tax-Exempt Obligation" means any obligation the interest on which is
excluded from gross income under Section 103(a) of the Code and which is not a specified
private activity Bonds as defined in Section 57(a)(5)(C) of the Code. Such term includes an
interest in a regulated investment company to the extent that at least 95 percent of the income to
the holder of the interest is interest that is excludable from gross income under Section 103(a) of
the Code.

A 27 "Universal Cap" means the Value of all then outstanding Bonds of the
issue.

A .28 "Value (of a Bonds)" means with respect to a Bonds issued with not more
than two percent original issue discount or original issue premium, the outstanding principal
amount, plus accrued unpaid interest; for any other Bonds, its Present Value.

A 29 "Value (of an Investment)" means any of the following:

a. with respect to an investment with not more than two percent
original issue discount or original issue premium, the outstanding stated
principal amount, plus accrued unpaid interest;

b. with respect to a fixed rate investment, its Present Value;

c except as provided in (iv), with respect to any investment, its fair
market value; or

A-4
43896654



d. with respect to any yield restricted investment, its present value.

A 30 "Yield of the Bonds" means the discount rate that, when used in
computing the Present Value as of the issue date of all unconditionally payable payments of
principal, interest, and fees for qualified guarantees reasonably expected to be paid on the issue
produces an amount equal to the Present Value, using the same discount rate, of the aggregate
issue price on the Bonds of the issue as of the issue date. Mandatory and expected contingent
redemptions are taken into account, based on reasonable expectations as of the issue date and the
requirements of the Regulations, including Regulation § 1.148-4(g).

A 31 "Yield of an Investment" means the discount rate that, when used in
computing the Present Value of all unconditionally payable Receipts from the investment,
produces an amount equal to the Present Value of all unconditionally payable payments for the
investment. Unless otherwise decided by the Issuer, the Yield on any investments and the Yield
of the Bonds shall be calculated using a 360-day year and a semi-annual compounding interval.

A-5
43896654



Exhibit B

Allocation and Accounting Rules

B.1  General Rule. The Issuer may use any reasonable, consistently applied
accounting method to account for Gross Proceeds, investments and expenditures of the issue. An
accounting method is "consistently applied" if it is applied uniformly within a Fiscal Period (as
defined below) and between Fiscal Periods to account for Gross Proceeds of an issue and any
amounts that are in a Commingled Fund.

B.2  Allocations of Gross Proceeds to an Issue. Amounts are allocable to only
one issue at a time as Gross Proceeds. Amounts cease to be allocated to the issue as Proceeds
only when those amounts (i) are allocated to an expenditure for a governmental purpose; (ii) are
allocated to Transferred Proceeds of another issue of obligations; or (iii) cease to be allocated to
that issue at retirement of the issue or under the Universal Cap.

B.3  Allocation of Gross Proceeds to Investments. Upon the purchase or sale
of a Nonpurpose Investment, Gross Proceeds of the issue are not allocated to a payment for that
Nonpurpose Investment in an amount greater than, or to a receipt from that Nonpurpose
Investment in an amount less than, the fair market value of the Nonpurpose Investment as of the
purchase or sale date. The fair market value of a Nonpurpose Investment is adjusted to take into
account Qualified Administrative Costs allocable to the investment. Thus, Qualified
Administrative Costs increase the payments for, or decrease the receipts from, a Nonpurpose
Investment.

B.4  Allocation of Gross Proceeds to Expenditures. Reasonable accounting
methods for allocating funds from different sources to expenditures for the same governmental
purpose include a "specific tracing" method, a "gross-proceeds-spent-first" method, a "first-in-
first-out" method or a ratable allocation method, so long as the method used is consistently
applied. An allocation of Gross Proceeds of an issue to an expenditure must involve a current
outlay of cash for a governmental purpose of the issue. A current outlay of cash means an outlay
reasonably expected to occur not later than five banking days after the date as of which the
allocation of Gross Proceeds to the expenditure is made.

B.5  Commingled Funds. All Payments and Receipts (including deemed
Payments and Receipts) on investments held by a Commingled Fund must be allocated (but not
necessarily distributed) among each different source of funds invested in the Commingled Fund
in accordance with a consistently applied, reasonable ratable allocation method. Reasonable
ratable allocation methods include, without limitation, methods that allocate Payments and
Receipts in proportion to either (i) the average daily balances of the amounts in the Commingled
Fund from each different source of funds during any consistent time period within its fiscal year,
but at least quarterly (the "Fiscal Period"); or (ii) the average of the beginning and ending
balances of the amounts in the Commingled Fund from each different source of funds for a
Fiscal Period that does not exceed one month.

B-1
43896654



Funds invested in the Commingled Fund may be allocated directly to
expenditures for governmental purposes pursuant to a reasonable consistently applied accounting
method. If a ratable allocation method is used to allocate expenditures from the Commingled
Fund, the same ratable allocation method must be used to allocate Payments and Receipts on
investments in the Commingled Fund.

Generally a Commingled Fund must treat all its investments as if sold at fair
market value either on the last day of the fiscal year or on the last day of each Fiscal Period. The
net gains or losses from these deemed sales of investments must be allocated to each different
source of funds invested in the Commingled Fund during the period since the last allocation.
This mark-to-market requirement does not apply if (i) the remaining weighted average maturity
of all investments held by a Commingled Fund during a particular fiscal year does not exceed 18
months, and the investments held by the Commingled Fund during that fiscal year consist
exclusively of obligations; or (ii) the Commingled Fund operated exclusively as a reserve fund,
sinking fund or replacement fund for two or more issues of the same issuer. Subject to the
Universal Cap limitation, and the principle that amounts are allocable to only one issue at a time
as Gross Proceeds, investments held by a Commingled Fund that serves as a common reserve
fund, replacement fund or sinking fund must be allocated ratably among the issues served by the
Commingled Fund in proportion to either (i) the relative values of the Bonds of those issues; (ii)
the relative amounts of the remaining maximum annual debt service requirements on the
outstanding principal amounts of those issues; or (iii) the relative original stated principal
amounts of the outstanding issues.

B.6  Universal Cap. Amounts that would otherwise be Gross Proceeds
allocable to an issue are allocated (and remain allocated) to the issue only to the extent that the
Value of the Nonpurpose Investments allocable to those Gross Proceeds does not exceed the
Value of all outstanding Bonds of the issue. Nonpurpose Investments allocated to Gross
Proceeds in a bona fide debt service fund for an issue are not taken into account in determining
the Value of the Nonpurpose Investments, and those Nonpurpose Investments remain allocated
to the issue. To the extent that the Value of the Nonpurpose Investments allocable to the Gross
Proceeds of the issue exceed the value of all outstanding Bonds of that issue, an issuer should
seek the advice of Bonds Counsel for the procedures necessary to comply with the Universal
Cap.

B.7  Expenditure for Working Capital Purposes. Subject to certain exceptions,
the Proceeds of an issue may only be allocated to "working capital expenditures" as of any date
to the extent that those expenditures exceed "available amounts" as of that date (i.e., "proceeds-
spent-last").

For purposes of this section, "working capital expenditures" include all
expenditures other than "capital expenditures." "Capital expenditures" are costs of a type
properly chargeable (or chargeable upon proper election) to a capital account under general
federal income tax principles. Such costs include, for example, costs incurred to acquire,
construct, or improve land, buildings and equipment having a reasonably expected useful life in

B-2
43896654



excess of one year. Thus, working capital expenditures include, among other things,
expenditures for current operating expenses and debt service.

For purposes of this Exhibit B, "available amount" means any amount that is
available to an issuer for working capital expenditure purposes of the type financed by the issue.
Available amount excludes Proceeds of the issuance but includes cash, investments and other
amounts held in accounts or otherwise by an issuer for working capital expenditures of the type
being financed by the issue without legislative or judicial action and without a legislative,
judicial, or contractual requirement that those amounts be reimbursed. Notwithstanding the
preceding sentence, a "reasonable working capital reserve” is treated as unavailable. A working
capital reserve is reasonable if it does not exceed five percent of the actual working capital
expenditures of an issuer in the fiscal year before the year in which the determination of
available amounts is made. For purpose of the preceding sentence only, in determining the
working capital expenditures of an issuer for a prior fiscal year, any expenditures (whether
capital or working capital expenditures) that are paid out of current revenues may be treated as
working capital expenditures.

The proceeds-spent-last requirement does not apply to expenditures to pay (i) any
qualified administrative costs; (ii) fees for qualified guarantees of the issue or payments for a
qualified hedge for the issue; (iii) interest on the issue for a period commencing on the issue date
and ending on the date that is the later of three years from the issue date or one year after the date
on which the financed project is placed in service; (iv) the United States for Yield reduction
payments (including rebate payments) or penalties for the failure to meet the spend down
requirements associated with certain spending exceptions to the rebate requirement; (v) costs,
other than those described in (i) through (iv) above, that do not exceed five percent of the Sale
Proceeds of an issue and that are directly related to capital expenditures financed by the issue
(e.g., initial operating expenses for a new capital project); (vi) principal or interest on an issue
paid from unexpected excess sale or investment proceeds; (vii) principal or interest on an issue
paid from investment earnings on a Reserve or Replacement Fund that are deposited in a bona
fide debt service fund; and (viii) principal, interest, or redemption premium on a prior issue and,
for a crossover refunding issue, interest on that issue. Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph,
the exceptions described above do not apply if the allocation merely substitutes Gross Proceeds
for other amounts that would have been used to make those expenditures in a manner that gives
rise to Replacement Proceeds.

B.8  Prohibited Investments and Dispositions. Upon the purchase or sale of a
Nonpurpose Investment, Gross Proceeds of an issue are not allocated to a Payment for that
Nonpurpose Investment in an amount greater than, or to a Receipt from that Nonpurpose
Investment in an amount less than, the fair market value of the Nonpurpose Investment as of the
purchase or sale date. The fair market value of a Nonpurpose Investment is adjusted to take into
account Qualified Administrative Costs allocable to the investment. Thus, Qualified
Administrative Costs increase the Payments for, or decrease the Receipt from, a Nonpurpose
Investment.

B-3
43896654



B.9  Valuation of Investments - Fair Market Value. The fair market value of an
investment is the price at which a willing buyer would purchase the investment from a willing
seller in a bona fide arm's-length transaction. Fair market value generally is determined on the
date on which a contract to purchase or sell the Nonpurpose Investment becomes binding (i.e.,
the trade date rather than the settlement date). An investment that is not of a type traded on an
established securities market, within the meaning of Section 1273 of the Code, is rebuttably
presumed to be acquired or disposed of for a price that is not equal to its fair market value. The
fair market value of a United States Treasury obligation that is purchased directly from the
United States Treasury is its purchase price.

B.10 Certificates of Deposit. A certificate of deposit that has a fixed interest
rate, a fixed payment schedule, and a substantial penalty for early withdrawal shall be treated as
purchased at its fair market value if the Yield on the certificate of deposit is not less than (1) the
Yield on reasonably comparable direct obligations of the United States; and (ii) the highest Yield
that is published or posted by the provider to be currently available from the provider on
reasonably comparable certificates of deposit offered to the public.

B.11 Guaranteed Investment Contracts. The purchase price of a guaranteed
investment contract is treated as its fair market value on the purchase date if (i) the issuer makes
a bona fide solicitation for a specified guaranteed investment contract and receives at least three
bona fide bids from providers that have no material financial interest in the issue (e.g.,
underwriters or brokers); (ii) the issuer purchases the highest-yielding guaranteed investment
contract for which a qualifying bid is made (determined net of broker's fees); (iii) the Yield on
the guaranteed investment contract (determined net of broker's fees) is not less than the Yield
then available from the provider on reasonably comparable guaranteed investment contracts, if
any, offered to other persons from a source of funds other than Gross Proceeds of tax-exempt
Bonds; (iv) the determination of the terms of the guaranteed investment contract takes into
account as a significant factor the issuer's reasonably expected drawdown schedule for the
amounts to be invested, exclusive of amounts deposited in debt service funds and reasonably
Required Reserve or Replacement Funds; (v) the terms of the guaranteed investment contract,
including collateral security requirements, are reasonable; and (vi) the obligor on the guaranteed
investment contract certifies the administrative costs that it is paying (or expects to pay) to third
parties in connection with the guaranteed investment contract.

B.12 Recordkeeping Requirement. To evidence the fair market value of a
guaranteed investment contract, the Issuer must retain the following records with the Bonds
documents until three years after the last outstanding Bonds is redeemed:

(1) a copy of the investment contract;

(i)  the receipt or other record of the amount actually paid by the issuer
for the guaranteed investment contract, including a record of any administrative
costs paid by the Issuer;

43896654



43896654

(iii)  for each bid that is submitted, the name of the person and entity
submitting the bid, the time and date of the bid, and the bid results; and

(iv)  the bid solicitation form and, if the terms of the purchase
agreement or guaranteed investment contract deviated from the bid solicitation
form or a submitted bid is modified, a brief statement explaining the deviation and
stating the purpose for the deviation.



n8038-G Information Return for Tax-Exempt Governmental Obligations

(Rev. September 2011) » Under Internal Revenue Code section 149(e) OMB No. 1545-0720
» See separate instructions.

B e Caution: If the issue price is under $100,000, use Form 8038-GC.
Reporting Authority If Amended Return, check here » [
1 Issuer's name 2 Issuer's employer identification number (EIN)
Storey County, Nevada 88-6000134
3a Name of person (other than issuer) with whom the IRS may commuynicate about this return (see instructions) 3b Telephone number of other person shown on 3a
4 Number and street (or P.O. box if mall is not delivered to street address) Room/suite 5 Report number (For /RS Use Only)
P.0. Box 432 | 5 .
6 City, town, or post office, state, and ZIP code 7 Date of issue
Virginia City, Nevada 89440 12/20/2016
8 Name of issue 9 CUSIP number
Storey County, Nevada, Sewer Revenue Bond, Series 2016 none
10a Name and title of officer or other employee of the issuer whom the IRS may call for more information (see 10b Telephone number of officer or other
instructions) employee shown on 10a
Hugh Gallagher, County Comptroller 775-847-1006
Type of Issue (enter the issue price). See the instructions and attach schedule.
Educatuon 5 L m R W R RS RO % ® B W & ey e doc @ @ B 8E B0 S e L 0w e 11
12 Health and hospltal B T O TI L T T e B S ST 12
13  Transportation . . . . . . . . . e e e e e e e e e e e 13
14 Public safety . . . . e A E BB e B R N B BB oK W s 14
15  Environment (including sewage bonds) s B OAE B 8 ea9and u R aekeE ¥ 15 |Max 4,058,000 00
16 Housing: % w6 % & % 5 ¥ %3 % 2 § & € ¥y 9% &% # 8 & wwad 3 16
17 Utilites . . . R O¥ R BN B % OH RS Y SEEROR A B ¥ OH W NN R 17
18  Other. Describe b 18

19 If obligations are TANs or RANs, check only box 19a
If obligations are BANs, check only box 19b .
20 If obligations are in the form of a lease or installment sale, check box ;

vvyy
oo

Description of Obligations. Complete for the entire issue for which this form is being filed.

(a) Final maturity date (b) Issue price (c) s‘li?:":;m{::on av(:r)a\sf'r'ggii‘nty {e) Yieid

21 12/20/2056 $ Max 4,058,000| $ Max 4,058,000 21.6991 years 1.3750 %
lmlh Uses of Proceeds of Bond Issue (including underwriters’ discount)

22 Proceeds used for accrued interest . . . . , ., 22 0| 00

23  Issue price of entire issue (enter amount from line 21, column (b)) o 23 | Max4,058,000| 00

24  Proceeds used for bond issuance costs (including underwriters’ discount) . . 24 0| 00

25 Proceeds used for credit enhancement . . . i 25 0| o0

26 Proceeds allocated to reasonably required reserve or replacement fund s 26 0| 00

27 Proceeds used to currently refund priorissues |, . . . . . . . . 27 0| 00

28 Proceeds used to advance refund priorissues , . . . . . . . . 28 0| 00

29 Total (add lines 24 through 28) . : 29 0| 00

30 Nonrefunding proceeds of the issue (subtract line 29 from lme 23 and enter amount here) 30 | Max4,058,000| 00
IEZX@  Description of Refunded Bonds. Complete this part only for refunding bonds.

31  Enter the remaining weighted average maturity of the bonds to be currently refunded . | 4 years

32 Enter the remaining weighted average maturity of the bonds to be advance refunded . > years

33 Enter the last date on which the refunded bonds will be called (MM/DD/YYYY) . | 4

34  Enter the date(s) the refunded bonds were issued P (MM/DD/YYYY)
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see separate instructions. Cat. No. 63773S Form 8038-G (Rev. 9-2011)




Form 8038-G (Rev. 9-2011)

Page 2

Part "l Miscellaneous

Enter the amount of the state volume cap allocated to the issue under section 141(b)(5) .
36a Enter the amount of gross proceeds invested or to be invested in a guaranteed investment contract

(GIC) (see instructions)

b Enter the final maturity date of the GIC B>
¢ Enter the name of the GIC provider P
37 Pooled financings: Enter the amount of the proceeds of this issue that are to be used to make loans

to other governmental units . T—— - . ..

38a If this issue is a loan made from the proceeds of another tax-exempt issue, check box P> l:] and enter the following information:
b
c
d

Enter the date of the master pool obligation P
Enter the EIN of the issuer of the master pool obligation »
Enter the name of the issuer of the master pool obligation P

35

37

39 If the issuer has designated the issue under section 265(b)(3)(B)(i)(lll) (small issuer exception), check box

40 I the issuer has elected to pay a penalty in lieu of arbitrage rebate, check box .

41a If the issuer has identified a hedge, check here » [] and enter the following information:
b Name of hedge provider »
¢ Type of hedge &
d Term of hedge »

42  If the issuer has superintegrated the hedge, check box . ’
43 If the issuer has established written procedures to ensure that all nonqualmed bonds of thls issue are remedlated
according to the requirements under the Code and Regulations (see instructions), check box :

44  |f the issuer has established written procedures to monitor the requirements of section 148, check box .
45a If some portion of the proceeds was used to reimburse expenditures, check here » [] and enter the amount
of reimbursement

b Enter the date the official mtent was adopted > 09/20/2016

.

» O
» [
» [
> [V
> [

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return and accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge

Signature and belief, they are true, correct, and complete. | further declare that | consent to the IRS's disclosure of the issuer’s return information, as necessary to

and process this return, to the person that | have authorized above.

Consent Hugh Gallagher, County Comptrolier

Signature of Issuer’s authorized representative Date Type or print name and title

Pai d Print/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date Choeck D if PTIN

Preparer Kendra S. Follett self-employed P0O1077060

Use Only [Ffim'sname » Sherman & Howard L.L.C. Firm's EIN > 84-0420314
Firm's address » 50 West Liberty Street, Suite 1000, Reno, NV 89501 Phone no. 775-323-1980

Form 8038-G (Rev. 9-2011)



INITIAL PRINCIPAL ADVANCE REQUEST

Date: December 20, 2016

USDA, Rural Developnient
1390 S. Curry St.
Carson City, NV 89703

Re:  Storey County, Nevada
Sewer Revenue Bond, Series 2016
Dated December 20, 2016

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The undersigned hereby réquests that you make a principal advance in the amount of
$ on the above-captioned Bond to the order of the undersigned Storey County,
Nevada (the "County") on December 20, 2016.

The undersigned hereby certifies and warrants that:

1.: " The aggregate of principal advances requested from USDA, RD under the above-
referenced Bond, including the advance requested in this letter, do not exceed the maximum
principal amount of the Bond of $4,058,000;

2 All representations and warranties of the County contained in the Bond and the
documents accompanying the Bond, including, without limitation, the Federal Tax Exemption
Certificate dated December 20, 2016, remain true and correct on this date as if made on this date.
No event of default, as defined in the Ordinance adopted by the County Commission on
December 6, 2016, has occurred and is continuing. No law has been adopted which would in
any way adversely affect the County's authority to obtain and repay this advance. The County
covenants to advise you immediately if any such law is adopted; and

3. Please deposit the amount advanced into our account: Routing #121000248
Account # 505-3070545. : :

Respectfully submitted,
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

By:
(Must be Chairman, County Clerk/Treasurer or County Comptroller)

43941864



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Review and possible approval of Storey County Audited Financial Statements draft and
proposed changes for the year ended June 30, 2016.

2. Recommended motion
I hereby approve the draft of the Storey County Audited Financial Statements with the
approved changes for the year ended June 30, 2016.
3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 847-1006

4. Staff summary:

The attached draft of the Storey County Audited Financial Statements and the proposed
changes subject to approval are presented the Storey County Commission for approval. Time
constraints have prevented a review of the final submission.

S. Supporting materials: Audit Report Storey County, Nevada June 30, 2016.
Recommended changes to Audit Report.

6. Fiscal impact: Creates possible Augmentation in excess of 1 million dollars.

Funds Available: Fund: _x___ Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
_X___ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

] Approved with Modifications
Continued

—
—

Agenda Item No. | %



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/06/16 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [X]

I'; Title: Discussion/Possible Action: The applicant requests a special use permit allowing the
required 75 feet building and structure height limitation to be increased to 250 feet and to exceed
six stories, and for an extension of the allowed timeframe of the special use permit on property
located at the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada (APNs 005-011-
13, 14, 28, 29, and 39, approximately at T19N, R23E MDM).

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the planning
commission, the findings of fact under Section 3.1 of this report, and other findings deemed
appropriate by the board, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I [commissioner]
motion to approve Special Use Permit No. 2016-031 allowing the required 75 feet building and
structure height limitation to be increased to 250 feet and to exceed six stories, and for an
extension of the allowed timeframe of the special use permit on property located at the Tahoe-
Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada (APNs 005-011-13, 14, 28, 29, and
39, approximately at TI9N, R23E MDM).

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.0968

5. Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No., 2016-031

6. Supporting materials: Enclosed Staff Report No. 2016-031

7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
8. Legal review required:
District Attorney
9. Reviewed by: ;
@’ Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:
(] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

-
e d.

Agenda Item No. {4



CASE No.:
APPLICANT:
PROPERTY OWNER:

PROPERTY LOCATION:

REQUEST:

MEETING LOCATION:

MEETING TIME & DATE:

STAFF CONTACT:

Storey County
Planning Commission
Staff Report

2016-031
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC

TI9N, R23E MDM (APNs 005-011-13, 14, 28, 29, and 39 State
Route 439 [USA Parkway]), McCarran, Storey County, Nevada

The applicant requests a special use permit allowing the required
75 feet building and structure height limitation to be increased to
250 feet and to exceed six stories, and for an extension of the
allowed timeframe of the special use permit on property located at
the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County,
Nevada (APNs 005-011-13, 14, 28, 29, and 39, approximately at
T19N, R23E MDM).

Storey County Courthouse
26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada

Planning Commission: 6:00 p.m., Thursday, December 1, 2016
County Commission: 10:00 a.m., Tuesday, December 6,2016

Austin Osborne, Planning Director

1 of 11



Staff Report — 2016-031 Storey County Planning Department
Building Height SUP for TRI, LLC 775.847.1144

1. BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS

1.1 Site characteristics

The subject property is located in the I-2 Heavy Industrial Zone and within the annexed portions
of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center. Pursuant to the development agreement between Storey
County and the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC the property is subject to the provisions of
the 1999 zoning ordinance, including those provisions for the heavy-industrial zone. The subject
property is owned by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC. The property is located at ((TRS)),
approximately seven miles south of the Interstate 80 and State Route 439 (“USA Parkway”)
interchange. The site and its immediate surroundings are currently vacant.

1.2 Proposed use

The applicant proposes to locate future manufacturing and technology-related companies with
the need to construct multiple large, tall buildings, possibly in a campus-like setting. The
proposed use is listed in the zoning ordinance as allowed without a special use permit. A special
use permit is requested because these uses may incorporate one or more buildings which exceed
the 75 foot and six story height limitations in Storey County Code 17.37.080 (see section 2.2
about 1999 zoning ordinance applicability) for the heavy industrial zone. In addition, an
extension of the construction time limits of the special use permit in Storey County Code
17.60.090is requested due to the long timeframe of planning and building large, tall industrial
buildings, the probable phasing of multiple buildings or additions to buildings.

1.3 Abutting uses

The abutting parcels are vacant and the general vicinity is remote and undeveloped. The parcels
run west and east adjacent to State Route 439 (USA Parkway) for approximately three miles.
Like the subject property, the parcels to the north, west, and east are also located within the
annexed portions of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center. The parcels to the south are outside the
area of annexation; however, they are owned by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC and are
planned for future annexation and industrial development. Annexation of this land into the
industrial center and industrial uses of the land is supported by the 2016 Storey County Master
Plan (Chapter 3 McCarran Plan).

14 Safety

The building construction must adhere to all building and fire plan reviews and applicable code
requirements. The regulatory entities will apply the necessary measures to ensure building and
fire safety. There appears to be no safety concerns regarding the construction of buildings
beyond the existing 75 feet height limitation.

1.5  Area impacts

The proposed use will be located in a remote undeveloped area of the industrial center. There are
no uses, zoning allowances, or master plan provisions in the area with which the use may
become in conflict. The future potential for the surrounding land includes additional heavy
industrial uses similar to those in other areas of the industrial center and the subject proposal.

2 of 11



Staff Report — 2016-031 Storey County Planning Department

Building Height SUP for TRI, LLC 775.847.1144
| o~

Washoe County /,__m P 4; Tahoe Reno({_r:qdlgs)trlal Center g
S N = ""' Ry L, —

i , |

TN

/l

S %
Storey County y ’
1 - \ e

Figure 1: TRl Annexation Map. The tan shaded area is annexed into the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center.
Blue illusrates the subect parcels.

J /

Resources

Industrinl

General Subject Area
(approx.)

| Transition: |
| From Resourcos o Inddosinal |

L
JEtag i)

Figure 2: 2016 Master Plan Map for McCarran Area. Gray shaded area is designated in the master plan
as Industrial and is zoned 12 Heavy Industrial. The pink area is designated in the master plan as
Transition from Resource to Industrial and is zoned F Forestry. All pink shaded land is owned by Tahoe-
Reno Industiral Center, LLC. Blue illustrates the subject property areas. Blue illustrates the subject area.

3 of 11



Staff Report - 2016-031 Storey County Planning Department
Building Height SUP for TRI, LLC 775.847.1144

s Lop, Eadnstay Geographies EL0C Eoithsiar Ceopgraphics 310 Cadtiatar Cdoaimphies SiC 245 Plier Ot Soipordiie 2

arias irm o bh i Sorscyrinetuoni B 1 Fs Boathotad Mool imartbioar (i anice 200 85 Y BAR el S E0 T ataliven S O (1413 LAY

Figure 3: Vicinity lllustration. General vicinity and subject property illustratoin. Solid yellow illustrates
the land boundary subject to the special use permit request, and the dotted yellow area indicates the
approximate location of the use.

II. USE COMPATIBILITY AND COMPLIANCE

2.1 Compatibility with surrounding uses and zones

The following table shows uses, zoning classifications, and master plan designations for the land
at and surrounding the proposal. There are no evident conflicts between the proposal and Storey
County Code Title 17 Zoning (2015 or 1999) or the county master plan (2016). The proposed use
is also consistent with the surrounding zoning and master plan designations.

AREA DESCRIPTION
LAND USE MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION | ZONING
APPLICANT’S [ Vacant Industrial 12 Heavy-Industrial
LAND
LAND TO Partially developed industrial |Industrial 12 Heavy-Industrial
NORTH
LAND TO SOUTH | Vacant Transition from Resource to | F Forestry
Industrial
LAND TO EAST | Vacant Industrial 12 Heavy Industrial
LAND TO WEST | Vacant and closed mine site | Industrial 12 Heavy Industrial

4 of 11




Staff Report — 2016-031 Storey County Planning Department
Building Height SUP for TRI, LLC 775.847.1144

2.2 Compliance with required building height limitations and extension of time

The subject property is annexed into the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center pursuant to a
development agreement between Storey County and the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC.
Land located within the annexed area is subject to the provisions in the 1999 Storey County
Zoning Ordinance. The 2015 Storey County Zoning ordinance does not apply to this annexed
area. The maximum building height allowances in the 1999 zoning ordinance for the 12 Heavy
Industrial zone are 75 feet and six stories. The applicant proposes to exceed these height
limitations by up to 175 feet, with total building height being 250 feet or less for one or more
buildings, or portions thereof, not including silos, stacks, towers, and antennas. Storey County
Code Section 17.37.080 (1999) allows a building in the heavy industrial zone to exceed 75 feet
and six stories in height with a special use permit.

Section 17.60.090 (1999) sets forth a time limit of 12 months to commence building and
structure construction, and other time limits for lapse or discontinuance of work. Extensions of
time to these provisions, however, may be granted by the board with action by the planning
commission for good cause.

2.3 General use allowances and restrictions

Storey County Code 17.62 Special Uses (1999) sets for the administration for board and
planning commission action allowing a special use permit for increased building height. The
approval, approval with conditions, or denial of the special use permit request must be based on
findings of fact that the proposed use is appropriate or inappropriate in the location. The findings
listed below are the findings recommended to be included in an approval.

1. The subject property is located in a remote industrial zoned area of the county where it is
found to be most appropriate. Existing areas in the county where building height may
exceed 75 feet or six stories are not appropriate or feasible for the proposed use.
Therefore, a special use permit allowing increased building height is requested.

2. Granting an extension of time limits for this special use permit is necessary to allow
sufficient time to plan, design, engineer, permit, and construct large industrial buildings
and structures which may include multiple phases or buildings in a campus-like setting.

3. Granting of the special use permit is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of
substantial property rights of the applicant. The subject property is zoned heavy
industrial, and the heavy industrial zone is intended for industries and uses which because
of their intensities may be incompatible with non-industrial uses. The heavy industrial
zone is also intended to facilitate economic development and employment in the county.
Allowing the proposed use with increased height serves these purposes.

4, Granting of the special use permit will not under the circumstances of the particular case
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons residing or working in
the neighborhood of the subject property and will not be materially detrimental to the
public welfare or materially injurious to property improvements in the area of the subject
property. The proposed use type, exclusive to structure height, is listed as allowed
without a special use permit in the heavy industrial zone (1999 zoning ordinance), and,
therefore, is expected to meet the safety and health requirements for the subject area. The
use will also be subject to fire and building plan review and inspection requirements in
order to ensure compliance with federal, state, and other codes.

These findings appear to apply to the situation that necessitates the proposed special use permit
and the recommended motion for approval cites these findings as part of that motion.

5 of 11



Staff Report — 2016-031 Storey County Planning Department
Building Height SUP for TRI, LLC 775.847.1144

2.4  Conformance with the 2016 Storey County Master Plan

The 2016 Storey County Master Plan describes McCarran as a “prime location in which further
industrial development can be expected to occur” and as an area “highly suitable for high-
intensity. ..industrial uses” (Chapter 3, p. 84). Section 3.5.7 Goal 2 of the master plan encourages
the diversification of commercial and industrial uses in the area by attracting high-technology
and commercial uses in addition to distribution and manufacturing. Chapter 7 states that Storey
County strives to diversify and expand the local job base; recruit new businesses to industrial
centers; maintain regulations that promote industrial uses in the county; continue to update
standards for industrial growth in industrial centers; and promote development within the Tahoe-
Reno Industrial Center by facilitating efficient and straightforward permitting processes.

The requested special use permit will enhance opportunity for high technology development that
is consistent with the use patterns and allowed use types for subject area. The proposed use does
not appear to conflict with any elements or adjacent specific plans in the 2016 master plan.

III. FINDINGS OF FACT

3.1 Motion for approval

The following findings of fact are evident with regard to the requested special use permit when
the recommended conditions of approval in Section IV Recommended Conditions of Approval,
are applied.

1. The special use permit applies only to allowing increased height of the buildings and
structures on the subject property and an extension of the time limit of the permit, and it
is recognized that the use type on the subject land is a usc allowed without a special use
permit.

2. The special use permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the
McCarran planning area in which the subject property is located. A discussion supporting
this finding for the special use permit is provided in section 2.4 of this staff report and the
contents thereof are citied in an approval of this special use permit.

3. Because of the special circumstances applicable to the subject property, the strict
application of the zoning ordinance would deprive privileges enjoyed by other properties
in the vicinity or under identical zone classification. Granting of the special use permit is
necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial property rights of the
applicant. A discussion supporting this finding for the special use permit is provided in
section 2.3 of this staff report and the contents thereof are cited in an approval of this
special use permit.

4. The special use permit will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on
the abutting properties or the surrounding area, and it will comply with all federal, state,
and county regulations.

5. The conditions of the special use permit adequately address potential fire hazards and
require compliance with the applicable fire codes, including setback and fire protection
ratings.

6. The conditions under the special use permit do not conflict with the minimum
requirements in 1999 Storey County Code Sections 17.62 Special Uses and 17.37 12

6 of 11



Staff Report — 2016-031 Storey County Planning Department
Building Height SUP for TRI, LLC 775.847.1144

3.2

Heavy Industrial Zone, or the development agreement between Storey County and the
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC.

Granting of the special use permit will not, under the circumstances of the particular case,
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons residing or working in
the neighborhood or area of the subject property and will not be materially detrimental to
the public welfare or materially injurious to property improvements in the neighborhood
or area of the subject property.

Motion for denial. Should a motion be made to deny the special use permit request, the

following findings with explanation why should be included in that motion.

1.

IV.

The conditions under this special use permit do not conflict with the minimum
requirements in 1999 Storey County Code Sections 17.62 Special Uses and 17.37 12
Heavy Industrial Zone, or the development agreement between Storey County and the
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC.

The conditions under the special use permit do not adequately mitigate potential adverse
impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential safety hazards for surrounding
use.

RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

All conditions must be met to the satisfaction of each applicable county department, unless
otherwise stated.

1.

Purpose

This special use permit is granted for the purpose of allowing the required 75 feet
building and structure height limitation to be increased to 250 feet and to exceed six
stories, and for an extension of the allowed timeframe of the special use permit on
property located at an area within the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center known as “Comstock
Meadows”, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada (APNs 005-011-13, 14, 28, 29, and 39,
approximately at TI9N, R23E MDM). This special use permit applies to all buildings and
structures that may be placed on the subject property. Silos, stacks, and similar type
equipment are regulated by Storey County Code 17.37.080 (1999 zoning ordinance) and
are not subject to the limitations of this special use permit.

Compliance

The uses on the subject property must comply with federal, state, and county codes and
regulations and the submitted plans and reports, as approved. The permit holder must
provide the building department site plans drawn to scale prior to obtaining a building
permit.

Fire District requirements

The use on the subject property must comply with special requirements of Storey County
and the Storey County Fire Protection District for accessing buildings and structures
exceeding 55 feet in height, including requirements to mitigate financial and other
impacts caused by the increased building and structure height.

7 of 11



Staff Report — 2016-031 Storey County Planning Department
Building Height SUP for TRI, LLC 775.847.1144

4. Permits and expiration

The permit holder must apply for the first building permit and fire permit for the
structure(s) subject to this special use permit within 60 months from the date of board
(Board of Storey County Commissioners) approval, and continuously maintain the
validity of those permits, as appropriate, or obtain a certificate of occupancy for the
subject structures, or this special use permit will become null and void. Subsequent
building and fire permits for additional structures subject to this special use permit must
be applied for at not less than 60-month intervals after completion of construction of the
previous building or phase in order to maintain this special use permit as valid and in
good standing.

5. TRI Architectural Approval

The permit holder must obtain approval from the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center
Architectural Review Committee, or such applicable review entity, if the CC&Rs of the
center apply, and submit valid evidence of the approval to the building department prior
to obtaining a building permit for a structure subject to this special use permit,

6. Taxes paid

Before obtaining a building permit, the permit holder must show the building department
valid evidence that all property taxes on the land are paid to-date.

7. Indemnification

The permit holder agrees to hold Storey County, its officers and representatives harmless
from the cost and responsibilities associated with any damage or liability, and any/all
other claims now existing or which may occur as a result of this special use permit.

V. POWER OF THE BOARD & PLANNING COMMISSION

At the conclusion of the hearing, the planning commission must take such action thereon as it
deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by formal
resolution, and such resolution must recite the findings of the planning commission upon which
it bases its decision. The decision of the planning commission in the matter of granting the
special use permit is advisory only to the Board of County Commissioners and that governing
body must consider the report and recommendation and must make such a decision thereon as it
deems warranted.

8 of 11



Staff Report — 2016-031 ' Storey County Planning Department
Building Height SUP for TRI, LLC 775.847.1144

V1. PROPOSED MOTIONS

This section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is
recommended by staff in accordance with the findings under section 3.1 of this report. Those
findings should be made part of that motion. A motion for denial may be made and that motion
should cite one or more of the findings shown in section 3.2. Other findings of fact determined
appropriate by the planning commission should be made part of either motion.

A. Recommended motion

In accordance with the recommendation by staff, the findings of fact under Section 3.1
of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the planning commission, and
in compliance with the conditions of approval, I [planning commissioner] recommend
approval of Special Use Permit No. 2016-031 allowing the required 75 feet building
and structure height limitation to be increased to 250 feet and to exceed six stories, and
for an extension of the allowed timeframe of the special use permit on property located
at the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada (APNs 005-
011-13, 14, 28, 29, and 39, approximately at TI9N, R23E MDM).

B. Alternative motion

Against the recommendation by staff, but in accordance with the findings of fact under
Section 3.2 of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the planning
commission, I [planning commissioner] recommend denial of Special Use Permit No.
2016-031 allowing the required 75 feet building and structure height limitation to be
increased to 250 feet and to exceed six stories, and for an extension of the allowed
timeframe of the special use permit on property located at the Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada (APNs 005-011-13, 14, 28, 29, and 39,
approximately at T19N, R23E MDM).

Prepared by Austin Osborne, Planning Director
Enclosures:

Exhibit A — Assessor’s Vicinity Map
Exhibit B — Application No. 2016-031

9 of 11



Staff Report — 2016-031 Storey County Planning Department
Building Height SUP for TRI, LLC 775.847.1144

Exhibit A: Assessor’s Vicinity Map

10 of 11



*sapiacad Aunpoddo jenba ue sy junod Assolg
WE/B00Z AINMASY
‘ujuay pejeaulap Ejep 2y Jo Aoeanooe so AOUatdLNS 83 O} S pawnsse St
Aupqesj oN "Aanns e Jussaides jou seop J) “AINO sesodind aagesysnjjy pue
03 v Aunog Asuors ay) Jo esn ayj o) pasedasd s) dew syl ;610N
VAVAIN ‘ALNNOD AFHOLS

M3 2t 7 A

| &

—

ks E
2tlgs @u

85120
|

3€y 3Tey _
wWeedw

ﬂuﬂm ‘N6LL® —N.o_. ‘6 ‘8 ‘g "09s Jo IIV/? ‘0€-22 TT*
ErA4-| 20—.._. ‘¥2-12 ‘9L "22s Jo lIv B ‘51 ‘€L ‘0
322y zoN._. ‘P¢ "098 "Uld ‘3£ZY ‘NOZL ‘L

J

~
I

ﬂvm
mF

10-S0




Exhibit B: Application No. 2016-029

11 of 11



26 South B Street, P.O. Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440
Phone: 775-847-1144 Fax:. 775-847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

Development Application

Submit this completed application and all attachments along with the application fee (see page two for type of
application and fees) at least 30 days prior to the meeting you wish to have your request scheduled. The application
will not be accepted unless complete, including attachments (applicant will be notified within 15 days If application is
not acceptable and what is still required). The application fee is non-refundable. Please make checks payable to
Storey County Ptanning Development,

Project Number: Roll - 03l

Property Owner: Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC
Al land owners must be listed on this application. Type or print legibly In black or biue Ink.

Mailing Address: c¢/o Rebert M. Sader, Esq., 8600 Technology Way

City;_Reno State: NV Zip;___ 89521
Telephone: ( 775 y 329-8310 Email: rmsader@robertmsaderitd.com
Applicant;__Same
All applicants must be listed on this application.
Mailing Address;__S3me
City: State: Zip:
Telephone: ( ) Email:
[JGold Hill [Jvirginia City [] vC Highlands [ Highland Ranches [] Virginia Ranches
(1 acre) (10 acres) (40 acres)
[COMark Twain [JHafed [OLockwood  [JPainted Rock (ATRI [CJother
Project Address: USA Parkway, Storey County, NV
Assessor's Parcel Numbers (APN):_005-011-13, 14, 28, 29 and 39
Lot: Block: Acreage: gt

10of8



Storey County Development Application

— Major

« Major Industrial

_Application Type Application Fee | 'Application Type | Application Fee
Abandonment $200.00 [] Amended Map n/a
Condition n/a [_] Boundary Line $250.00 + 25.00 per lot
Amendment Adjustment
|_] Development $1,000.00 ] Extension of Time 50% of Original Fee
Agreement (Requires a Request (One Year
Special Use Permit) Extension Only)
[JLand Division Map | $500.00 + $50.00 per | [_] Lot Consolidation n/a
(40 acre minimum) lot
[[] Master Plan Map $2,900.00 [ ] Master Plan Text $800.00
Amendment Amendment
|| Natural Resources | $65.00 per hour ] street Name n/a
Exploration and Request
Registration
|| Parcel Map — $250.00 + 25.00 per lot | [_] Parcel Map Final n/a
Record of Survey
[ Planned Unit $500.00 + 1.00 perlot | [] Planned Unit $200.00 + 25.00 per lot
Development (PUD) - Development - Final
Tentative
(] *Special Use Permit | $250.00 ] *Special Use Permit | $450.00
~ Minor - Routine
| *Special Use Permit | $750.00 *Special Use Permit | $2,500.00

] Subdivision Map -
Tentative

$500.00 + 1.00 per lot

[] Subdivision Map -
Final

$200.00 + 25.00 per lot

Variance - n/a [ variance $100.00
Administrative
Wireless [ ] Wireless n/a
Communication Facility Communication
Facility, Modification
| || Zoning Map Change | $1,000.00 [ ] Zoning Text Change | n/a

Note: Additional fees to cover costs accrue by the county in association with the application, including
staff time and consultation with outside legal and professional council may be charged to the
applicant. No additional fees will be charged without expressed written permission by the applicant.

{ms

Applicants Initials

*If you are applying for a Special Use Permit, please refer also to the Storey County Special Use
Permit Definitions List when determining a minor, major, routine or major industrial permit.

20f8




Storey County Development Application

See Informatlon attached.

Detail Description/Justification of Project

Attached additional pages as necessary

3ol8




Storey County Development Application

Professional Consultant/Representative(s)
Name;__ NA
Address: .
City: State: Zip:
Phone: Email: Cell:
Applicant’s Affidavit:
l, ROBERT M. SADER , being duly sworn, depose and say that | am the applicant of the described

Printed name
project and/or request, and all the staterents and answers herein contained and the information herewith submitted are in

all respects complete, true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. | understand that no assurance or guarantee

can M by mem rs of the Storey County Planning Department Staff.
M " / / 4/’ ¢
I/

Signature of A pllcant Date
Counsel for pplucant

State of Nevada,
County of Storey

Signed and sworn to before me on:

Motk 14, 2l s
\ Zeta\Fpad

Notary's Signature

-7-/¥

My Commission Expires

TINA FORD
NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF NEVADA
APPT. NO. 02-76393-2
MY APPT. EXPIRES JUNE 8, 2018

Property Owner’s Affidavit:

I e , being duly sworn, depose and say that | am an owner* in fee of the described
Printed name

property involved in this application, that | have knowledge of, and agree to, the filling of this application, and that the

statements and answers herein contained and the information herewith submitted are in all respects complete, true and

correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. | understand that no assurance or guarantee can be given by members of

the Storey County Planping Department Staff,
RS Jany

Signature of Property Owner Date /
Counsel for Owner

State of Nevada,

County of Storey
Signed and sworn to before me on: TINA FORD
NOTARY PUBLIC
K/}{M/ / /7Z H/ b b STATE OF NEVADA
Vi APPT. NO, 02-76393-2

MY APPT. EXPIRES JUNE 8, 2018

\Tpud \Soscd

Notary's Signature

b-8-/6

My Commisslon Expires

4of8



Storey County Development Applicalion

Property Owner’s Affidavit:

I, A , being duly sworn, depose and say that | am an owner* in fee of the described

Printed name
property involved in this application, that | have knowledge of, and agree to, the filling of this application, and that the
statements and answers hereln contained and the Information herewith submitted are in all respects complete, true and
correct to the best of my knowledge and belief, | understand that no assurance or guarantee can be given by members of

the Storey County Planning Department Staff,

Slgnature of Property Owner Date

State of Nevada,
County of Storey

Signed and sworn to bsfore me on:

by,
Date
Notary's Slgnature
My Commlsslon Explres
Property Owner’s Affidavit:
I N/A , being duly sworn, depose and say that 1 am an owner* In fee of the described

Printed name
property involved in this application, that | have knowledge of, and agree to, the filling of this application, and that the
statements and answers herein contained and the information herewith submitted are in all respects complete, true and
correct to the best of my knowledge and bellef, | understand that no assurance or guarantee can be given by members of

the Storey County Planning Department Staff.

Slgnature of Property Owner Date

State of Nevada,
County of Storey

Signed and sworn to before me on:

by,

Date

Notary's Signature

My Commisslon Expires

*Each property owner must provide an Affidavit

Sof 8



-uonjesijdde ay} yjm pasinbal aq Aew sjeusjew pue uoKeBULIOUI [BUORIPPY :9}ON

@inpe2o.d UOREPIIOSUCOD JO| SARRASIUILPY,

) ¢ X | X X | X | X | X |X|eudjuswdopssq yun psuueld| ]
SARRIUS |
X X | X X | X X | X | X X | X “uawdojeasq Jun peuueld 0
X X X X | X | X X | X dep jeosed| [
X Asaing jo piocoay — deyy [edsed| [
MaIAsy uonensibay pue
X X X | X | X | X |X| yogeiodxg seosnosey eamen|
X X X JusWwpuaW 1xa] ueld Je1sen| [
X X X | X X | X Juswpuaury depy ueld Jeisen | [
X X X | X X | X Luonepliosuoy 107 |
wnwjuu
X X | X X X | X | X X | X a1 gp) dep uoisiag puen] O
(AluQ uoisus)x3 sesp
X X X X X auQ) 1sonbay sl | JO UOISUBIXT O
(Yuusd asn [eroadg sainbay)
X X X | X | X | X | X | X | X |X|X X | X | X X | X \uswaaiBy Juswdojersq O
X X | X X X| X | X X | X Jusunsnlpy aur Asepunog| [
X X X [ X justupusiny uoipuod | [
X X X X | X X | X dew pepuewy/| []
X X X X| X | X X | X juswuopueqy | []
>> | s| 4 w o - - m o|Imn=| O psl el vl O0O0 | O A
3 W 8 =% S S| o .m g8 | § mw g|2|g| & m 2 adA | uonesyddy
=5 (8| 23128 2|53 EE=R |5 |2 o858
5 (2| 2|72|&8|9|8|F |2 leo|=|2|8| g|28 |8
2L |=| Q|l@ |- o 173 S cilse| =2 o 3
=5 |18 /8|32 |F~*|8 AREIE R RS gl |8
az |3l ®| > g =) glags| = | ® gl € g
g3 |a £ o z|*olS | =z |2 |&
S 8 =] =] ) > & ) -~ = =
=35 - el B | 8 &
s O =3 O
o] ) =
8 > S [swawannbay jeyugng

SLININIHINDIY TVLLINENS NOILYIITddY LNIWJOTIAIQ

goneolddy justwdolaaa(] Amunoyy A3103g




o

G
}

-uonedljdde ayj yym pasinbai aq Aew sjeuajews pue uoljeuLIojul [eUolIpPpPY :9joN

X

BYI0

ebueyo 1xe Bujuoz

abueyn dey Buuoz

uoneawpol 'Ayjioe
UOREIUNLULIOY) SSB|RIIM

x
X | X [ X]| XX
X | X |[X|X|X

Ajroe4
UONEDIUNWILLOY) SSBIRIM

ouBLRA

X
X | X| X | X |X

SAENSIUIUPY - SOUBLBA

X

|euld - deyy uoisIAIpgng

x
X

oAneIUS] - depy UOISIAPGNS

}senbey swe jeens

lewgsnpu Jolepy
— Jlued asn |eoeds

Jofepy — yuued asn [eoads

aupnoy - Jlulad asn [eads

XXX | X [ X[ X[X[X]| X | X |X|X]|X

XX || X | X|X|X
XX | X| X

M| X [ XXX [>X]>X| X | X [X]|X]|X

Joul - juued esn |eadg

1deq Bujuue|d woJy
uochewuoju| [euolippy

UEld UOljBWEj08Y

SO 81

Hodey olyel]

podey s|log

Hoday abeureig

%S1Q UO Jewio4

QvO Ul ejeq B deyy

ue|d 10o|4
JelApy depy (euibuo

Hodey apiL
ydjedey xe) pied

dep ez1s peonpey | X | X | x| x
ueld 10ld
uopeaypsnr/uopduoseq

pasQ - uonduosaq |ebe]

pejeleq

uopeolddy juswidoieAed [ 3¢ | 3¢ [ > | > |3 [ X [ X | X | X | X | X[ X [X

2dA} uonesiddy

Sjuswaiinbay |epnugng

8 O0|0| |(O0|0|0ojo|0|a0o

SINIWI™UINDIY TVLILINENS NOILVIITddY LNIWAOTIAIQ

toneorjddy juowdojaas(] Aunoy) £a1og




10.

1.

12,

13.

14,

18.

16.

Storey County Development Application
DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS GUIDE

Development Application — You can get an application from the Planning Department at the Storey County
Courthouse or online at StoreyCounty.org.

Detailed Description/Justification — The description of your project and the reason for the project. Be as detailed
as possible and submit any information to help explain your project (photos, maps, etc.).

Paid Tax Receipt — This is a receipt showing your property taxes are current or paid In full. A copy can be
obtalned from the Clerk/Treasurer's office located on the 2™ floor in the Storey County Courthouse,

Plot Plan — A diagram showing the location of all buildings, well and septic (if any). This can be obtained from the
Building Department or Assessor's office or neatly hand drawn by the applicant.

Reduced Size Map — Applications with large maps must supply a reduced size map (8" x 11" or 11" x 17").

Original Map Mylar — This map is done by a professional surveyor.

Map & Data in CAD format on Disk — This map is done by a professional surveyor.

Parcel/Vicinity Map — This map shows surrounding parcels to application parcel. A copy can be obtained from the
assessor's office located on the 1* floor in the Storey County Courthouse.

Floor Plan — These are building plans for a house (subdivision) and done by a builder,
Legal Description — Deed - Done by a professional surveyor.
Title Report — Done by a professional company.

Drainage Report — Done by a professional company.

Soils Report — Done by a professional company.
Traffic Report — Done by a professional company.
Water Rights — You can obtain this from State Water Department.

Reclamation Plan — Done by a professional company.

8of §



ROBERT M. SADER, LTD.

A PROFESSIONAL LEGAL CORPORATION
8600 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 101
RENO, NEVADA 89521
(775) 329-8310
FAX (775) 329-8591

November 14, 2016

Storey County Planning Department
P.O. Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440

Re;  TRI Special Use Permit Request
Dear Planning Department:

INTRODUCTION

This office represents Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC (“TRI”) the master developer
of TRI Center. The purpose of this letter is to provide a description and justification by TRI, as
the property owner, for its request to issue a special use permit allowing a variance from the six
stories and maximum 75’ height limitation in the Storey County zoning Code (1999 Edition) (the
“Code”) contained in Chapter 17.37, I-2 Heavy Industrial Zone, Section 17.37.080, to 250 feet.
In addition, TRI requests an extension of the time limit for the permit specified in Section
17.60.090 to allow 36 months for construction to commence and 24 months after completion of
construction for subsequent construction commencement of each additional building or phase.

AUTHORITY

Applicability and procedures for granting a special use permit under these circumstances
are governed by Chapters 17.60 and 17.62 of the Code. Section 17.37.080 on the height
limitation states, “(a) special use permit will be required if the facility exceeds these limits”,
Section 17.60.090 on extensions of permit time limits states, “(e)xtensions of time to the
provisions of this section may be granted...for good cause....” Section 17.62.010 on applicable
circumstances for issuance of a special use permit reads as follows:

17.62.010 Applicability. Certain uses may be permitted by the Board of County
Commissioners in zones in which they are not permitted by this ordinance where
such uses are deemed essential or desirable for public convenience or welfare,
The procedure for filing of applications, filing fees, public hearings, findings and
appeals shall be the same as provided for variances in chapter 17.60 of this
ordinance.

S:/Main/TRI/Variance Application-USA Pkwy-attachment.doc



SUBJECT PROPERTY

This special use permit application pertains to a portion of TRI Center known as
Comstock Meadows, which is zoned [-2 Industrial (1999 Code Edition), The area is shown on
the attached Vicinity Map and Project Map. It is a 2,635.36-acre area bisected by USA Parkway
approximately 7-10 miles from I-80 in the southern portion of TRI Center. Comstock Meadows
is currently the most remote of all developable land in TRI Center and is vacant. NDOT has
recently paved USA Parkway in Comstock Meadows and TRI has therefore now opened this
area up for sales to industrial and commercial owners and developers.

JUSTIFICATION FOR VARIANCE

Prospective purchasers have shown substantial interest in acquiring large parcels (100
acres or more) for future manufacturing, or high tech plants and campuses in Comstock
Meadows. Discussions with these prospective purchasers have confirmed that Comstock
Meadows will be an ideal location for large industrial buildings, particularly for manufacturing,
assembly, data centers and offices, except for one limitation: the height limitation of six stories
or 75 feet will inhibit, impair or preclude the type of buildings some owners will need to build.
A high-rise office tower or a multi-story manufacturing plant with stacked office components
will easily exceed the height limit.

This special use permit application seeks to solve this problem before any specific
purchaser is faced with the height limitation, in order to facilitate the economic development in
the county which will result from these high-value types of new industries.

Large and tall buildings in excess of 75 fees high located on big parcels in Comstock
Meadows will constitute extraordinary and exceptional situations compared to normal industrial
structures allowed in the I-2 Zone. The strict application of current height limitations would
result in peculiar and exceptional practical difficulties, and undue hardships for owners of
property in Comstock Meadows needing to build buildings in excess of the height limitation.
Indeed, it would preclude owners from locating in TRI Center and developing their property for
the uses intended.

Relief from the 75 height limitation and allowance of building heights up to 200 feet will
not create any substantial detriment to the public. It will not substantially impair the intent and
purpose of the 1-2 Industrial Zone, By allowing bigger and taller buildings will enhance the
intent and purpose of the industrial zoning. Public safety and welfare will also not be impaired.
Construction standards for tall buildings insure safety of occupants and are common practice in
today’s industrialized countries. Employment, prosperity, and county tax revenues are all part of
the public welfare benefits from attracting economic development of industries whose buildings
need to exceed current height limitations.

Comstock Meadows is surrounded by mountainous terrain much higher than 200 feet.
There is no danger to airplane traffic presented by tall buildings in this area. Indeed, the scale of
tall buildings fits the wide-open mountainous county surrounding Comstock Meadows. It will
neither be dangerous or congested to locate buildings up to 250 feet in height there.

S:/Main/TR/Variance Application-USA Pkwy-attachment.doc



Under 17.62.010 a special use permit is allowed when the uses requested are “deemed
essential or desirable for public convenience or welfare”. Certainly, expansion of economic
development and attracting new industries to TRI Center and Storey County is desirable for
public convenience and welfare. Unless the height limitation is raised, industries with tall
buildings in excess of the limitation cannot locate in TRI Center and Storey County. Under the
circumstances, there are no adverse consequences to public convenience and welfare in allowing
buildings and structures up to 200 feet in height.

Regarding the one-year time limit of Section 17.60.090 to commence construction of a
building subject to the permit, the extraordinary size, height, cost and complexity of developing
very large industrial buildings, and possibly multiple such buildings of this type in a series of
phases, will require longer periods of time. Planning, design, site engineering, permitting and
financing all have to take place before a building commences construction. Time to construct
takes longer than normal industrial buildings. There may be significant time periods between
construction of subsequent buildings or phases. Under the circumstances, a period of 36 months
is requested for commencement of construction of the first building, and 24 months between
completion of construction of a building and commencement of construction of the next building
or phase,

CONCLUSION

TRI requests a special use permit from the height limitation contained in Section
17.37.80 of the 1999 Code to allow buildings and other structure up to 250 feet high, not
including silos, stacks and equipment; and an extension of construction time limits specified in

Section 17.60.090 as stated in this letter.
Sincerely, QA‘QV

ROBERT M. SADER,
Counsel for TRI

S:/Main/TRI/Variance Application-USA Pkwy-attachment.doc



20D UAWYILNE-AMY ] VS(1-UuoiRoddy DUBLIBA /I L/UBIN/LS

Bt TR

. . . .
v 7 L IVIN ALINIDIA
2 e \\.\\m\\W\\N\\\. c
\\\\\ i gpeARN ‘Auno)) £2101§
\\.\\\»\\s G g7 12U [PLUSNPU] OUNY-20YE],
- N o \‘\.\x .ﬂ.\\\“\\ 77 \
< H \\\\\ 7507
33 & w\ SMOAVI I
z 2 X7 3DOLSWOD \
z Eg )
{ 5 g ©G = w
BE & /
w \\/ hu\l,\ )
< .\. _— \V .,\ N S
P 4/ L f 8] oy
7,
_ /\ R " u.m\h ;
\ | [ T e/ Z
\ -~ 2
\ L 1 S T =
X 4 K N, , 9
| / Noob > ¥
sOL 0N \ B V/ == X
/.4\.- ) ~ { ,/ { 3
| “
| | T >
! ; | f o
E..u i m B e Ody.w&
H : w . - — -H\_ _.I.-M ,".”\/;
_.I” u).m\e. 084
| _,‘
-V v : v > v ry v v




20p 1UAWYORIIE-AM ] VS[)-U01iBoNddy 2dURHBA TAL/WEN/:S

A

€ pisXd

Hil

SMOAVAN JOOLSWOO - dVIN LOIfOYd

ATILL L0
11073 VINLSOONT ONAX D)

7

\
7
7

7T 777 ALY
\ \\\\\\\\\\\ A \\\
7
%\\\»\_,\..m%\\\\\w\

00
. \\\
A

]

]

o
A

/ S A

= e 7 \\\ S
> S IhE \\\x \\\ / 7
g 5 \\\. / g j

7 Z 7/ /\id ¥ 1N
7 \\ \\\ b d

4 .\\ \
A /
b ;
/ y




Tax Bill - Storey County 11/17/16

MAKE REMITTANCE PAYABLE TO: Parcel 005-011-13 Roll # 004451
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer NORWAY DR 2011-03

P O Drawer D INDUSTRIAL GID

Virginia City, NV 89440 PTN S19,20,30 T19N R23E
775-847-0969 District-12,2

TAXES FOR PERIOD
July 1, 2016 thru June 30, 2017

TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CNTR LLC
P O BOX 838
POWAY, CA 92074

ABATEMENT
ASSESSED VALUES TAXES RATE OR RECAPTURE . TAX AMOUNT
Real Estate 175 GENERAL 1.7719 3,10
----------- SCHOOL OPER .7500 1.31
TOTAL 175 SCHOOL DEBT , 1447 .25
CAPITAL AQUIS ,0500 .09
STATE L1700 .30
IND MEDICAL .0100 .02
IND ACCIDENT .0150 .03
FIRE DISTRICT .5446 .95
YOUTH SERVICE .0045 .01
Ad Valorem Total 3,4607 6.06
Payments to Date 6.06-

PAID IN FULL

L

[‘\ i
nm\,f £ z[m 'j
BY s '1@24.“...



Tax Bill - Storey County 11/17/16

MAKE REMITTANCE PAYABLE TO: Parcel 005-011-14 Roll # 004452
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer PTN S19-21,28-30 T19N R23E 2011-04
P O Drawer D INDUSTRIAL GID

Virginia City, NV 89440 PTN S819-21,28-30 T19N R23E
775-847-0969 Digtrict-12.2

TAXES FOR PERIOD
July 1, 2016 thru June 30, 2017

TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CNTR LLC
P O BOX 838
POWAY, CA 92074

ABATEMENT
ASSESSED VALUES TAXES RATE OR_RECAPTURE TAX AMOUNT
Grazing 3rd Class 4,850 GENERAL 1.7719 8.76- 77.16
----------- SCHOOL OPER .7500 3.71- 32,66
TOTAL 4,849 SCHOOL DEBT L1447 .71- 6.31
CAPITAL AQUIS .0500 .25~ 2.17
STATE .1700 .84- 7.40
IND MEDICAL .0100 .05- .43
IND ACCIDENT .0150 .07~ .66
FIRE DISTRICT .5446 2.69- 23,72
YOUTH SERVICE .0045 .02- .20
Ad Valorem Total 3.4607 17.10- 150.71
Payments to Date 150.71-

PAID IN FULL

"?\.JE‘L 2.-5 ”.j
]I Nﬂv 'i 2016

EB\Q 42](12445:=nn.



Tax Bill - Storey County 11/17/16

MAKE REMITTANCE PAYABLE TO: Parcel 005-011-28 Roll # 004333
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer PT 817,18 R23E, S13 R22E TI1O9N

P O Drawer D INDUSTRIAL GID

Virginia City, NV 89440 PT S17,18 R23E, S13 R22E
775-847-0969 District-12.2

TAXES FOR PERIOD
July 1, 2016 thru June 30, 2017

TAHOE-RENO IND CENTER LLC

C/0 CINDY GAGLIANO COMPTROLLER
P O BOX 838

POWAY, CA 92074

ABATEMENT

ASSESSED VALUES TAXES RATE OR RECAPTURE TAX AMOUNT

Grazing 3rd Class 1,726 GENERAL 1.7719 .05~ 30,52
----------- SCHOOL OPER .7500 .03- V291

TOTAL 1,725 SCHOOL DEBT . 1447 .01~ 2,49
CAPITAL AQUIS .0500 .86

STATE .1700 .01~ 2.92

IND MEDICAL .0100 B Lt

IND ACCIDENT .0150 .26

FIRE DISTRICT .5446 .02~ 9.37

YOUTH SERVICE .0045 .08

Ad Valorem Total 3.4607 .12- 59.58
Payments to Date 59.58~-

PAID IN FULL

PSP TTS
]IT;:JUV 1] [Hﬁ'\]

BY:?@.%&J&-—



Tax Bill - Storey County 11/17/16

MAKE REMITTANCE PAYABLE TO: Parcel 005-011-29 Roll # 004334
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer PT S15-18,20-22,27,28 T19N R23E

P O Drawexr D INDUSTRIAL GID

Virginia City, NV 8944¢ PT 815-18,20-22,27,28 R23E
775-847-0%69 District-12.2

TAXES FOR PERIOD
July 1, 2016 thru June 30, 2017

TAHOE-RENO IND CENTER LLC

C/0 CINDY GAGLIANO COMPTROLLER
P O BOX 838

POWAY, CA 92074

ABATEMENT
ASSESSED VALUES TAXES RATE OR RECAPTURE TAX AMOUNT
Grazing 3rd Class 2,917 GENERAL 1.7719 .38- 175.33
----------- SCHOOL OPER .7500 .16~ 74,22
TOTAL 9,917 SCHOOL DEBT L1447 03+ 14.32
CAPITAL AQUIS .0500 .01- 4,95
STATE .1700 .04- 16,82
IND MEDICAL .0100 .99
IND ACCIDENT .0150 1.49
FIRE DISTRICT .5446 ,11- 53.90
YOUTH SERVICE . 0045 .45
Ad Valorem Total 3.4607 «73- 342.47
Payments to Date 342.47-

PAID IN FULL

Fanm

NOY 1 ZU

BY:.. .:_}Q,%



Tax Bill - Storey County

MAKE REMITTANCE PAYABLE TO:
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer

P O Drawexr D
Virginia City, NV
775-847-0969

TAXES FOR PERIOD

July 1, 201e thru June 30,

89440

2017

Parcel 005-011-39

Roll # 004453

PTN OF T19N R22E & R23E
INDUSTRIAL GID
PTN T19N R22E & R23E

Digstrict-12.2

TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CNTR LLC

P O BOX 838

POWAY, CA 92074

11/17/16

ABATEMENT
ASSESSED VALUES TAXES RATE OR RECAPTURE TAX AMOUNT
Grazing 3rd Class 17,748 GENERAL 1.7719 314.49
----------- SCHOOL OPER .7500 133,11
TOTAL 17,748 SCHOOL DEBT 1447 25.68
CAPITAL AQUIS . 0500 8.87
STATE . 1700 30.17
IND MEDICAL ,0100 1.77
IND ACCIDENT 0150 2,66
FIRE DISTRICT 5446 96 .66
YOUTH SERVICE 0045 .80
Ad Valorem Total 3.4607 614,21
614.21-

Payments to Date

PAID IN FULL

22 R cﬁj
%\V 17 2016
BY:-_M



Treasurer' Receipt
STOREY COUNTY TREASURER
VANESSA STEPHENE
26 SOUTH B STREET
P.0. DRAWER D
VIRGINIA CITY, NV, 89440

Received From:

ROBERT SADER LTD

For; 8S8UP 2016-031 TRI

Fund PFund Description Account Description
001 GENERAL 001-000-32206-000 PLANNING SPEC USE/VAR
Receipt No. 936 Fiscal Year: 2017

No. 53¢

Date: 11/17/16

*¥hw¥%¥2, 500.00

Amount
2,500.00CR

*h¥ww¥wd, 500.00

Bank Bank Description
199 WELLS FARGO CC ACCOUNT

Amount
2,500.00

Receipt No. 936 Fiscal Year: 2017 Bank Account Total: kkwk¥¥2, 500.00
Check amount 2,500.00 ABA# Check#t 3640 Payer ROBERT SADER
Total Cash: AR TR TR i)

Total Checksg: ***%**2 ,500.00

Total Non Caghi**¥wkxkrkix (0
Credit Cards: *r kK HERRER 00

Total Other: bl dalladinieodicfadttt] ' 11 T, urexr

Deputy



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/06/16 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: The applicant requests a special use permit allowing the
construction and maintenance of an accessory dwelling (mother-in-law quarters), and primary
occupancy of the accessory dwelling during construction of the principal dwelling (primary
residence), at property located at 160 Vermillion Road, Highland Ranches, Storey County, Nevada
(APN 003-442-15).

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the planning
commission, the findings of fact under Section 3.1 of this report, and other findings deemed
appropriate by the board, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I [commissioner]
motion to approve with conditions Special Use Permit No. 2016-027 allowing the construction and
maintenance of an accessory dwelling (mother-in-law quarters), and primary occupancy of the
accessory dwelling during construction of the principal dwelling (primary residence), at property
located at 160 Vermillion Road, Highland Ranches, Storey County, Nevada (APN 003-442-15).

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.0968

5. Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2016-027

6. Supporting materials: Enclosed Staff Report No. 2016-027

7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
8. Legal review required:
District Attorney
9. Reviewed by:
@’ Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[R— —]

Agenda Item No. \5



Storey County
Planning Commission

Staff Report
CASE NoO.: 2016-027
APPLICANTS: Kevin and Christie Singleton
PROPERTY OWNERS: Kevin and Christie Singleton
PROPERTY LOCATION: 160 Vermillion Road, Highland Ranches, Storey County, Nevada

(APN 003-442-15)

REQUEST: The applicant requests a special use permit allowing the
construction and maintenance of an accessory dwelling (mother-in-
law quarters), and primary occupancy of the accessory dwelling
during construction of the principal dwelling (primary residence),
at property located at 160 Vermillion Road, Highland Ranches,
Storey County, Nevada (APN 003-442-15).

MEETING LOCATION: Storey County Courthouse
26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada

MEETING TIME & DATE:  Planning Commission: 6:00 p.m., Thursday, December 1, 2016
County Commission: 10:00 a.m., Tuesday, December 6, 2016

STAFF CONTACT: Austin Osborne, Planning Director

1 of 25



Staff Report — 2016-027 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — Accessory Dwelling 775.847.1144

L. BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS

1.1 Site characteristics

The subject property is located in the H-R-10 zone. This zoning designation exists only in the
Highland Ranches 10 acre parcels. The property is located at 160 Vermillion Road
approximately 0.1 miles southwest from State Route 341 at Five Mile Flat. The parcel is
approximately 10 acres and is currently vacant.

1.2 Proposed use

The applicant proposes to construct several buildings on the property, including a principal
dwelling, an accessory dwelling, and several non-dwelling accessory buildings. The principal
dwelling and non-dwelling accessory building are allowed on the subject property without a
special use permit. Only the accessory dwelling requires a special use permit and is subject to
this request.

The accessory dwelling will be the first building constructed on the now vacant property, and it
will be occupied by the property owners during construction of their principal dwelling on the
same parcel. The accessory dwelling is proposed to be three bedrooms and approximately 1,450
square-feet. The accessory dwelling conforms to the minimum square-foot requirement for a
three-bedroom principal dwelling in the Estate zone. However, Storey County Code 17.12.046
limits accessory dwellings to a maximum of 1,000 square-feet. Therefore, the accessory dwelling
will be non-compliant with the code until the principal dwelling is completed. Section 2.2 of this
report explains that a building permit will be active for the accessory and principal dwellings
concurrently. The code allows this concurrent situation to occur.

1.3  Abutting uses

The west and north abutting parcels are vacant. Single family residences occupy the parcels to
the east and south; however, the east-abutting residence is unoccupied. All surrounding parcels
are 10 acres and are zoned E-10-HR.

1.4  Safety

The building construction must adhere to all building and fire plan reviews and applicable code
requirements. The Storey County Fire Protection District and the Storey County Building
Department were made aware that the proposed accessory dwelling may be attached to another
accessory non-dwelling structure by a breezeway or other unoccupied space. The fire district and
building department may require fire resistive construction when living space is attached or in
very close proximity to non-living space, such as a garage. The code will at a minimum require
application of Class A roofing materials such as asphalt composition shingles.

1.5  Areaimpacts

The proposed use appears to have minimal or no adverse visual impact on the area, including for
the nearest neighboring residence (see Figures 1-2). The accessory dwelling may include outdoor
lighting typical to non-commercial single-family residences in the area. Outdoor lighting must
comply with Storey County Code 8.02 Outdoor Lighting (“dark-skies™) in order to prevent light
glare and trespass adjacent properties.

2 of 25



Storey County Planning Department

Staff Report — 2016-027
775.847.1144

Special Use Permit — Accessory Dwelling

-
-
-
-
-
-
=
-
-
-

-

ot SN GNP ||

4 it o ) 2 \ L v
L D0 Pidtmptty A TR | PN ) et S e A
Figure 1: Vicinity lllustration. The circle denotes general area of building development (see Figure 2 plot
plan).

3 of 25



Staff Report — 2016-027 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — Accessory Dwelling 775.847.1144

; PROPOCED
RoPoMD | PROPOMD Twan 0y X0
| BRERZEVAY ; B
STRUCTURN |
3 BEDROOM i
N 190", 24F0—¢ ' -~ PROPONED
M@ X 'f . ) - GRAEL
e i) a
(Y —10 / ', g -
- ”.’-'“""'
zm foin |
SERTIC TANK
— \ ‘gl PROPOSED
Tt e ‘ § \ 810 o1,
palEEnNy 0 L
208) \ ——__,.—-""*“,_ l
.‘ \‘ =-AgE 2;‘
e REBIDENG
SR~ ;T'a'—i Hog v \ \ mp
'\ .‘iﬁ;j““ \ DRIVEAY
AR
S— - b e, W \ CLEANOUT
#-0"MNL | v& ‘B\E
n-.o’ u:o. "\L \
houy ' e " mmorostp .
, {FmT Y s oo o
- wee. | B - (PHASE ) - WATRR LINK
e s — PROPOND T AraeMN
mrer ‘121:1 &~ a/ oTUB POR '
e AT ji; e )
o CONNECTION
o ’J‘Q'L"j— PRORCSED e TR
!1.Q'~ .” . “S”wmm | /N
- l \ i B 088 OETAL VA| |/ \ j? Y

Figure 2: Plot Plan. The accessory dwelling is one of four buildings that will be placed on the subject
proeprty. The accessory dwelling may be attached to a non-living structure by a breezeway. The
cumulative square-feet of all proposed accesory buildings is below the maximum 5,000 square-feet
allowance for accessory structures in the Estate zone (see Section 2.3).

4 of 25



Staff Report - 2016-027 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — Accessory Dwelling 775.847.1144

II. USE COMPATIBILITY AND COMPLIANCE

2.1 Special Use Permit Required

The Estate zone is established for areas particularly suited for low density residential use, to
further enhance the quality of life for residents and to prohibit the development of uses which are
incompatible and detrimental to a rural residential environment. However, Storey County Code
17.40.025 allows for one detached accessory dwelling (i.c., mother-in-law quarters) defined as a
structure occupying an accessory position on a lot and used exclusively for housing members of
the immediate family of those living within the principal dwelling, or their nonpaying guests
subject to a special use permit. Storey County Code 17.12.046 states that accessory dwelling
must meet the standards listed below. The proposed use meets these standards, except for the
maximum square-foot requirement in (b), an issue discussed further in Section 2.3. The use:

Must be a complete dwelling and include a kitchen and bathroom.
b. Must be no less than 500 square-feet or no greater than 1,000 square-feet.

c. If a family guest home is occupied on a permanent basis, a signed affidavit and deed
restriction to the property must be filed with the Storey County Recorder’s Office stating
who is occupying the guest home. Affidavits will be reviewed annually.

d. The lot size must be at least | acre in the Estate zone,

e. The owners of the property in which the accessory dwelling unit is permitted shall
occupy at least one of the dwelling units (accessory or principal) on the premises, except
for a bona fide temporary absence.

f. At least 1 off-street parking space shall be provided in addition to the required parking
for the principal use.

g. Only 1 accessory dwelling unit is allowed per parcel.

h. Septic and domestic water use requirements must comply with the applicable Nevada
Revised Statutes, which may require well metering.

2.2 Temporary accessory dwelling

It is unlawful to construct, erect, or locate an accessory dwelling unit in the Estate zone without
an existing principal dwelling on the parcel. A temporary accessory dwelling unit may be
constructed without a principal dwelling located on the same parcel if a building permit for the
principal dwelling or both the accessory and principal dwelling is active. A certificate of
occupancy for the principal dwelling and accessory dwelling shall not be granted until the
temporary accessory dwelling is converted into a non-dwelling use, or in case of this application,
a special use permit is granted for the accessory dwelling.

2.3 Compatibility with surrounding uses and zones

The following table shows uses, zoning classifications, and master plan designations for the land
at and surrounding the proposal. The proposal appears to conform to the county code, including
the zoning ordinance, and the 2016 Storey County Master Plan, as well as the character of the
surrounding single-family estate residential environment.

5 of 25



Staff Report — 2016-027 Storey County Planning Department

Special Use Permit — Accessory Dwelling 775.847.1144
AREA DESCRIPTION
LLAND USE MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION Z.ONING
APPLICANT’S Vacant; proposed single-family principal | Estate Residential with 10-acre | Estate 10-acre
LAND dwelling and accessory dwelling minimum (E-10-HR)
LAND TO Vacant Estate Residential with 10-acre | Estate 10-acre
NORTH minimum (E-10-HR)
LAND TO SOUTH | Vacant Estate Residential with 10-acre | Estate 10-acre
minimum (E-10-HR)
LAND TO EAST | Single-family residence; unoccupied Estate Residential with 10-acre | Estate 10-acre
minimum (E-10-HR)
LAND TO WEST | Vacant Estate Residential with 10-acre | Estate 10-acre
minimum (E-10-HR)

2.3 Square-feet requirements

The accessory dwelling is proposed to be three bedrooms and approximately 1,450 square-feet.
The dwelling conforms to or exceeds the minimum 1,200 square-foot requirement for a three-
bedroom principal dwelling in the Estate zone. However, Storey County Code 17.12.046 limits
accessory dwellings to a maximum of 1,000 square-feet.

In order to conform to the county code, staff recommends that the accessory dwelling does not
exceed 1,000 square-feet. However, an alternative motion not recommended by staff, but
allowing up to 1,450 square-feet for the accessory dwelling, is provided in Section VI for
consideration. Approving the excess square-footage may be beneficial to ensuring a legally-
conforming residence on the subject property if the principal dwelling (second to be constructed)
unexpectedly fails to be constructed.

There are three accessory buildings planned for the subject property, one being the subject
accessory dwelling. Storey County Code 17.12.045(E) allows up to 5,000 cumulative square-feet
of accessory buildings on a parcel in the E-10-HR zone. The submitted application shows an
estimated total of 4,916 cumulative square-feet of accessory buildings planned for the subject
parcel, of which 576 square-feet include a breezeway connecting two accessory buildings. The
cumulative square-footage of accessory buildings appears to conform to the county code.

2.4  Conformance with the 2016 Storey County Master Plan

The 2016 Storey County Master Plan designates the Highland Ranches as a rural residential
community with parcels no less than 10 acres. Section 3.5.3 Goal 1| (p. 120) for land uses in the
Highlands states that land use decisions, including the implementation of zoning and regulations
in and around the Highlands area must preserve the rural residential character and conform to
historic use patterns in the area.

The accessory use for direct relatives of the subject property owner(s) will not permanently
increase the allowed density of or create a condition that is substantially different than that of the
surrounding area. Additionally, the master plan encourages multi-generational housing options
for county residents and their ageing family members in order to improve the quality of life for
senior citizens in the county and to reduce strain on local and regional senior citizen services.

6 of 25



Staff Report - 2016-027 Storey County Planning Department

Special Use Permit — Accessory Dwelling 775.847.1144
III. FINDINGS OF FACT
3.1  Motion for approval

The following findings of fact are evident with regard to the requested variance when the
recommended conditions of approval in Section IV Recommended Conditions of Approval, are
applied.

1.
y

3.2

The special use permit complies with all federal, state, and county regulations.

The special use permit will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on
the adjacent properties or the surrounding area.

The conditions of the special use permit adequately address potential fire hazards and
require compliance with the applicable fire codes, including setback and fire protection
ratings.

The conditions under the special use permit do not conflict with the minimum
requirements in Storey County Code 17.40 Estate zone and 17.03.150 Special Use
Permits, or any other federal, state, or county regulations, including building and fire
codes.

The 2016 Storey County Master Plan designates the Highland Ranches as a rural
residential community with parcels no less than 10 acres. Master plan Section 3.5.3 Goal
1 (p. 120) for land uses in the Highlands states that land use decisions, including the
implementation of zoning and regulations in and around the Highlands area, must
preserve the rural residential character of and conform to historic use patterns in the area.
The accessory use for direct relatives of the subject property owner(s) will not
permanently increase the allowed density of or create a condition that is substantially
different than that of the surrounding area. Additionally, the master plan encourages
multi-generational housing options for county residents and their ageing family members
in order to improve the quality of life for senior citizens in the county and to reduce strain
on local and regional senior citizen services.

Motion for denial

Should a motion be made to deny the variance request, the following findings with explanation
why should be included in that motion.

1.

2.

Substantial evidence shows that the special use permit may conflict with the purpose,
intent, and other specific requirement of Storey County Code 17.40 Estate Zone and/or
17.03.150 Special Use Permit, or other federal, state, or county regulations.

The conditions under the special use permit do not adequately mitigate potential adverse
impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential safety hazards for surrounding
uses.

7 of 25



Staff Report — 2016-027 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — Accessory Dwelling 775.847.1144

IV.

RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

All conditions must be met to the satisfaction of each applicable county department, unless
otherwise stated.

1.

Purpose

This special use permit is granted for the purpose of allowing the construction and
maintenance of an accessory dwelling (mother-in-law quarters) at property located at 160
Vermillion Road, Highlands Ranches, Storey County, Nevada (APN 003-442-15). This
special use permit also allows the accessory dwelling to be constructed prior to
completion of a principal dwelling on the subject property as described in Condition 2.

Temporary accessory dwelling use

It is unlawful to construct, erect, or locate an accessory dwelling unit in the Estate zone
without a principal dwelling already existing on the parcel. A temporary accessory
dwelling unit may be constructed pending construction of a principal dwelling provided
that a building permit for the principal dwelling is issued simultaneously with that for the
accessory dwelling, and that the building permit remains active for the principal dwelling
or until a certificate of occupancy is issued for the principal dwelling. A certificate of
occupancy for the principal dwelling and accessory dwelling shall not be granted unless
the accessory dwelling conforms to the requirements of this special use permit.

Owner site occupancy

The owners of the subject property in which the accessory dwelling unit is permitted shall
maintain primary residence in the principal dwelling or accessory dwelling on the
premises, except for a bona fide temporary absence.

Transfer of rights

The special use permit belongs exclusively to Kevin and Christie Singleton and the real
property subject to this permit so long as the one or both owners own and maintain
primary residence at the subject property. This special use permit is non-transferable.

Compliance

The special use permit must comply with federal, state, and county codes and regulations
and the submitted plans and reports, as approved. The permit holder must provide the
building department site plans drawn to scale prior to obtaining a building permit.

Permits and expiration

The holder of the special use permit must apply for all building and fire permits for the
accessory dwelling within 24 months from the date of board (Board of Storey County
Commissioners) approval, and continuously maintain the validity of those permits, as
appropriate, or this special use permit approval will become null and void.

Occupants

Accept for temporary occupancy by the property owner(s) during construction of the
principal dwelling (see condition 2), the accessory dwelling must be exclusive to housing
members of the immediate family of those living within the principal dwelling, or their

8 of 25



Staff Report — 2016-027 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — Accessory Dwelling 775.847.1144

V.

10.

11.

nonpaying guests. A deed restriction shall be filed with the Office of the Storey County
Recorder stating that the accessory dwelling unit is a temporary use for occupancy by
immediate family members. The deed restriction shall stipulate that the unit will be
vacated and converted to a non-dwelling use (in accordance with the building code) at
such time that the immediate family member(s) no longer occupy the unit. The deed
restriction form will be provided by the planning department and it shall make Storey
County a party to the deed restriction. The planning department shall agree in-writing to
allow the property owners(s) to remove the deed restriction if the owner(s) legally
converts the accessory dwelling to a non-dwelling use. A copy of the required recorded
deed restriction must be presented to the building department prior to issuance of a
building permit.

. Property Owners Association Approval

The holder of the special use permit must obtain a Certificate of Architectural
Appropriateness, or equivalent approval, from the Highlands Ranches Property Owners
Association and submit a copy of the certificate to the building department prior to
obtaining a building permit for the accessory dwelling.

Well and septic

Septic and domestic water uses on the subject property must comply with the Nevada
Revised Statues and county building codes. Note: Nevada Division of Water Resources
under the Nevada Revised Statutes requires an accessory dwelling unit application for the
installation of a meter on the domestic well so that the principal dwelling and accessory
dwelling do not exceed two acre-feet of use per year as provided by the state statutes. The
water usage measurements from the totalizing meter must be submitted by the parcel
owner to the division no later than January 31 of each year.

Taxes paid

Before obtaining a building permit, the holder of the special use permit must show the
building department valid evidence that all property taxes on the land are paid to-date.

Indemnification

The holder of the special use permit agrees to hold Storey County, its officers and
representatives harmless from the cost and responsibilities associated with any damage or
liability, and any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a resuit of this
special use permit.

POWER OF THE BOARD & PLANNING COMMISSION

At the conclusion of the hearing, the planning commission must take such action thereon as it
deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by formal
resolution, and such resolution must recite the findings of the planning commission upon which
it bases its decision. The decision of the planning commission in the matter of granting the
special use permit is advisory only to the Board of County Commissioners and that governing
body must consider the report and recommendation and must make such a decision thereon as it
deems warranted.

9 of 25



Staff Report — 2016-027 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — Accessory Dwelling 775.847.1144

VI. PROPOSED MOTIONS

This section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is
recommended by staff in accordance with the findings under section 3.1 of this report. Those
findings should be made part of that motion. A motion for denial may be made and that motion
should cite one or more of the findings shown in section 3.2. Other findings of fact determined
appropriate by the planning commission should be made part of either motion.

A. Recommended motion

In accordance with the recommendation by staff, the findings of fact under Section 3.1
of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the planning commission, and
in compliance with the conditions of approval, [ [planning commissioner] recommend
approval with conditions Special Use Permit No. 2016-027 allowing the construction
and maintenance of an accessory dwelling (mother-in-law quarters), primary
occupancy of the accessory dwelling during construction of the principal dwelling
(primary residence) at property located at 160 Vermillion Road, Highland Ranches,
Storey County, Nevada (APN 003-442-15).

Summary: Approve accessory dwelling between 500-1,000 square-feet as allowed by
county code

B. Alternative motion

Against the recommendation by staff, the findings of fact under Section 4.1 of this
report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the planning commission, but in
compliance with the conditions of approval, I [planning commissioner] recommend
approval with conditions Special Use Permit No. 2016-027 allowing the construction
and maintenance of an accessory dwelling (mother-in-law quarters) between 1,000 and
1,450 square-feet and primary occupancy of the accessory dwelling during
construction of the principal dwelling (primary residence) at property located at 160
Vermillion Road, Highland Ranches, Storey County, Nevada (APN 003-442-15).

Summary: Approve accessory dwelling with square-footage between 1,000 and 1,450

C. Alternative motion

Against the recommendation by staff, but in accordance with the findings of fact under
Section 5.2 of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the planning
commission, I [planning commissioner] recommend denial of Special Use Permit No.
2016-027 allowing the construction and maintenance of an accessory dwelling
(mother-in-law quarters) and primary occupancy of the accessory dwelling during
construction of the principal dwelling (primary residence) at property located at 160
Vermillion Road, Highland Ranches, Storey County, Nevada (APN 003-442-15).

Summary: Deny accessory dwelling request

Prepared by Austin Osborne, Planning Director

10 of 25



Staff Report — 2016-027
Special Use Permit — Accessory Dwelling

Enclosures:

Exhibit A — Assessor’s Vicinity Map
Exhibit B — Application No. 2016-027

11 0f 25

Storey County Planning Department
775.847.1144



Exhibit A: Assessor’s Vicinity Map

A3d01S
puojubiy

TIEIC MR AQ PEADICOCE AW eN LappIQIo) ) SER0CInd

iOsWIERIN D woy)

J3gio Jo) 1oyd

MYl 3O eEQ “uOsIEy

PRiceu(sd FIDP SUYL SO ADEIR23D syl ©f) ST PRWNSES
%) AII19911 ON “Asasan. © jUsseITB)  (CU  $ADD

puo Luo 3E3 JUIWeEsesEd 40)

B - T ALNSOD
P KT —_— =y _= T W e ~
g
& 4 > 4
veoD 7 PO P be wsoa “f L v .
8 R £ [T & A
' iz sl ] t .m%
»
I s - s
65 \J' [/LETE " ISTe» = b 00....’.
= s . e 4
<% AT Bl »v9TTI 3]
Zf2 Dse m @ = - @o_ =
R 1 L &z * oo
et } B @ X —=mT
o 2t 1
SH
@ oo g
LSORED -
=] NEs @
B ] ™
ae 9

N

T OUNSEONIIZYNIL'S

%_ ® g
9
["Sr-Zrh -g00

%) 4o1€ wrul  3LO0N

YR Sy p A

HYE/W 330/ Ev0Q /A2

% -Q?.
Sy
3 \\O.M &
~

WS O oL

AT RS

L ]

£ e

12 of 25



Staff Report — 2016-027 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — Accessory Dwelling 775.847.1144

Exhibit B: Development Application

VEUAD

Storey County Planning Department

26 South B Street, P.O. Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440
Phone: 775-847-1144 Fax: 775-847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

Development Application

Submit this completed application and all allachments along with Ihe appiication fee (see page two for type of
application and fees) at least 30 days prior to the meeting you wish to have your request scheduled. The application
will not be accepted unless complele, including attachments (applicant will be notified within 15 days if application is
not acceptable and what is still required). The application fee is non-refundable. Please make checks payable to
Storey County Pianning Davelopment.

Project Numbar;_ R0l -0 7]
Property Owner: Kevin  Smsténon) CHUS77E SMWJ

All land ownara mual bo flisled on (his application. Typa or prind legibly in black or biuo ink,

Mailing Address: 1925  Towed Al RD

City: (%, State:_ MVADA zip._8952/
Telephone: (775 )_750 - 7/L4 Email: __Asmilst€ron) 838Y (2. Lsmant. . Lol
Applicant; K;Vm/ P st Swse7en/

Al appiicanis mus! ba listed on ik applicaion.
Mailing Address; Soewme as abore
Cily: State: Zip:
Telaphone: ( ) Email:
[(OGold Hiit [Virginia City [ V?‘ iigr)llands w nghl(e:gtic ﬁ?ches ) Vlrgir(\i:; aR;:;c):hes
[OMark Twain [JHafed [OLockwood  [JPainted Rock dTrI other_____

Project Address: /60 VM)(&/&J
Assessor's Parcel Numbers (APN): oos - 942 -75
Lot: V2] ___ Block: - Acreage: 70

13 of 25



Staff Report — 2016-027
Special Use Permit — Accessory Dwelling

Storey County Planning Department
775.847.1144

Storey County Development Application

Special Use Parmit)

Extension Only)

Application Type Application Fee Application Typse Application Fee
|_J Abandonment $200.00 | || Amended Map n/a

Condition n/a || Boundary Line $250.00 + 25.00 per lot
Amendment Adjustment
|_| Development $1,000.00 | Extension of Time 50% of Original Fee
Agreement (Requires a Request (One Year

— Major

- Major Industrial

) Land Division Map | $600.00 + $50.00 per | [_] Lot Consolidation n/a

(40 acre minimum) lot

" Master Plan Map $2,900.00 [ Master Plan Text $800.00
Amendment Amendment

] Nalural Resources | $65.00 per hour [[] street Name n/a
Exploration and Request

Registration

] Parcel Map — $250.00 + 25.00 per lot | [ | Parcel Map Final n/a
Record of Survey

] Planned Unit $600.00 + 1.00 per lot | [_] Planned Unit $200.00 + 25.00 per lot
Development (PUD) - Development - Final

Tentative

1 “Special Use Permit | $250.00 ] *Special Use Permit | $450.00
— Minor - Routine

] *Special Use Permit | $750.00 ] *Special Use Permit | $2,500.00

|| Subdivision Map - $500.00 + 1.00 per lot | [] Subdivision Map - $200.00 + 25.00 per lot
Tentative Final
"] variance - nla ] variance $100.00
Administrative — o
|| Wireless L] Wireless n/a
Communication Facility Communication
Facllity, Modification
| Zoning Map Change | $1,000.00 ["] Zoning Text Change | n/a

Note: Additional fees to cover costs accrue by the county in association with the application, including
staff time and consultation with outside legal and professional council may be charged to the

applicant:

Applicants Initials

o additional fees will be charged without expressed written permission by the applicant.

*If you are applying for a Special Use Permit, please refer also to the Storey County Special Use
Permit Definitions List when determining a minor, major, routine or major industrial permit.

lot s

14

of 25




Staff Report — 2016-027 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — Accessory Dwelling 775.847.1144

Storey County Development Application

Detail Description/Justification of Project

Attached additional pages as necessary

Reference: Highland Ranches Lot 16
160 Vermitllon
APN 003-442-15

We are requesting a “Special Use Permit” to add an accessory structure of 1464 square feet to
our 10 acre parcel In Highland Ranches. The accessory structure s a three bedroom apartment
home or “Granny Flat” that Is separate bullding from the main residence. The accessory
structure will be used to house our elderly parents. Because the accessory structure meets the
requirements as a primary residence, we would like to construct It first as part of a “phase 1”
build. Once complete, we would live In the accessory structure as our primary residence while
we construct our main house which will be in our “phase 2” build, Once the primary residence
is completed, we would relocate from the accessory structure to the main residence and move
our parents into the accessory structure, Our parents are 84 and 79 years old respectively. They
currently live in a single family residence In Curtl Ranch. We are their only family in the area
and look after their wellbeing. Over the next several years they will need more immediate help

In day to day living requirements,

We understand that the accessory structure can only be used for immediate family and Is not to

be used as a rental or income property.

We hope that you understanding of our request and wlll grant us the “Special Use Permit”

15 of 25



Staff Report — 2016-027 Storey County Planning Department

Special Use Permit — Accessory Dwelling 775.847.1144
Storey ( ounty Decelopment A wlicanon
Professional Consultant/Representative(s)
Name:
Address:
City; Slale: Zip:
Phone: Email: __Cell:
Applicant’s Affidavit:
1, /4‘”‘/ Silezy . being duly sworn, depose and say thal | am the applicant of the described
Prinled name

project and/or request, and all the statemants and answers hereln conlained and the information herewith submilled are in
to the best of my knowledge and belief. | understand that no assurance or guarantee
ounty Planning Department Staff.

03/ %

Date

Stale of Nevada,
County of Storay (Jxé lw«

Signed and sworn to before me on:

t6]s/ 16 -

lure

18] eo/z0m

My Commisslon Expires

Property Owner's Affidavit:

|, EHrtssnl 54)&(/05) _., being duly sworn, depose and say that | am an owner* in fee of the described
Prinled name
property involved In this applicalion, that | have knowledge of, and agree to, the filling of Lhis application, and lhal the
statements and answers herein conlained and the information herewllh submitted are in all respects complete, true and
correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. | understand that no assurance or guarantee can be given by members of
the Slorey Couply Planning, Departmgnt Slalff.
2/

0.8/ 16

Date

Signatufe

Slate of Nevada,
County of Storey

Signed and sworn lo before me on:

IO/E’ﬁ(ﬂ 4 by,

Dale = _
10/20/70l6)

Ky Commission Expires

16 of 25



Staff Report ~ 2016-027 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — Accessory Dwelling 775.847.1144

Storey County Developiment Applicalion

Property Owner's Affidavit:
| /&/m 5/""*""5 / . balng duly swarn, depose and say hat | am an owner* in fee of Ihe described

Printed name
property involved in this application, that | have knowledge of, and agres to, the filling of this application, and that the
arein conlained and the information herewith submilled are in all respects complate, true and

Depariment Slan.

Dalo

Progudy Cwinel

State of Nevada,
County ofStorey Wi Sho.

Signed and swarn to before me on:

_Novemher U, . ’c/;_ by,

L )

/.e'/;[;éf \.ﬁ/.m./’l nuay' .

> No(nryb Signaturs

Seplealed 9, 2ole
W CAmmission Explros
Property Owner's Affidavit:
l w% SondCETER! belng duly sworn, depose and say that | em an owner™ in fee of the described
name

property involved in this application, thal | have knowtedge of, and agree to, the filling of this application, and that the
slatements and answers herein contained and the information harawith submitied are In all respects complele, true and
correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. | understand that no assurancs or guarantee can be given by members of

ty Planni Drmnﬂm/en- taff.

Date

Slate of Nevoda,
County of Stomy- WgShoee..

Slgned and sworn to before me on:

A/ovgmber ol 26)¢

.\é’),gmc@: AREY) ~ aézc@ﬁ

y's Signatuce

Jcﬁa/ﬁz/ 19,2020

uaon Expiros

“Each property owner must provide an Affidavit S — )

5ofR

17 of 25



775.847.1144

‘uopesidde sy} ypm peiinbal aq Aew s|eL2)eW PUR UOIIELWIOJUI [BUOIPPY 310N

21Npa00.d UOREPYOSUOD 0] SARBISILIWDY,

X | X X| X | X X | X | 1euid eawdo@asq uun pauLeld

SAEIUS L
X ‘Wawdejanaqg yupn paueld

x
x
=
*
*
>
x
X

X depy jaaied

x
»
b
x
>
x

A3nng 10 piooay — deyy [3died

MBIASY UORERSIDSY pus
ucgeIo|dx3 Sa2IN0saY |eINMeN

Storey County Planning Department

JUSWpUAWY X3 UB|d Jalsely

W3WpUALY GB UB4 JA1SEW

»

LUOREPI|OSUS)) 10

LWNUIUIL
208 Op) depy uoisiNg pueT

(A0 uaIsUaXg JB3A
auQ)1sanbay awi} JO uoIsus)x3y

(Rulag 8sn [epads salinbay)
Wwawsaiby yuswdolanaQg

x
x
b3
XX [ X[ XX

x
x
>
»

juaugsnipy aul Asepunog

JUSLWPUAWY UOHIPUCYD

dep papusLy

X[ 2] X | X | X |x[X|X]| X |X|X| X | X

MIM[X[X| X | X | X [X]|X]|xX| X

*

jusuiudpueqy

ue|c) voawe|oey
sjybiy so1em
podey sjyes|
oday s(los
Jodsy abeueig

“idaq Buuue| g wol
UO||BULIO)U| [BUONIPPY

Bnooo|o|glajapo ogofald

adA | uoneoiddy

podey efiL
ue|d 100} 4
¥SI(] U0 |BWI0 4
uB|d 101d | x| =
paleloq

deyy Anuoipviesed | X[ =[] x [ x| = [x|x
avo w eieq @ dep

dew 0zis paonpay | x| x
1dieoay xe| pled

seAy deyy (guBuo
uoned)ddy Juswdoeaaq ¢ | x| x| x| X | X | X || x|x| X

peaQ - uopduvseq |ebe | x| x
uofjeaynsnryuodiasse(

| suswinbay |ewIgng

Special Use Permit — Accessory Dwelling

Staff Report - 2016-027

|
SINIWININDIY TVLLINENS NOILVIITddY LNINJOTIA3Q

URSHYERY T ) g

18 of 25



Staff Report — 2016-027 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — Accessory Dwelling 775.847.1144

‘Jdaq Bujuue|d wouy
uonewsojul feuoppy | | 2| 3| X [ X[x] X [>x] x| x| xf x| x
uB|g UCHRWERPY
SBIY Jerem x
voday ouyjes ) »
uoday s|l0g *
vicdey ebeuelq »
i
5 uodey oL x
= .
w c
© paeq - uonduoseq |efe x| x X | X | x ,g
3
g 3
w ueld Jooj4 i
o Q.
a &
g o dep Auiojp X|X|X| » | X|X X | x| X | X |X o
'E' %SIg UO jeuso i » £
& Qv uleleq g dey g
=
» JejAwy depy jeuIBuO * E -
» z 2
> ) =
= =7 dey 8215 paonpay | x| X | x| X x| x X | X |%|x|x g
®
Q 14
E N ugldiold [ x| x| x| X [ x[x|x X | X |x[x|x 8
: >
2 ©
S N _~ 1dieoay xey pieg | X[ X % | X x| % x| %X | x x E
=
)
Wl . uopeaysnrjuondussag ©
= . K.
E papag | X | X[ XXX X ]| x| X x| x]x 8
9 £
Y| uoneanddy juewdoeas [ x| x| 3| x | [x[>[x[x| x| x |x|x|x £
B3 E
& @ &
| E| = [
£ B35 | 15.lel Is Is 2
3 Sl|= HELR 2 |8 ©
Bl O A KR 8 Bl olw
g 2|l=|l=le |3]|F|>(B £ (g9 o = E
@ 8 E|E|E(E_|3|alal2] |5 |58 5|8 8
o £ o o|ologlf|al & E £ (82|28 c
E '; olafafa-g A £ EE o|o =
£ 5 38| 8188 85|55 I8 |38 8% 5
& IR KR o=z 2 <
a § S|z lzglzlel 288 ﬁ . o
L IS8 l%|3|2|5lslézs e 2 =
L EEH S HHE
) alo=sd|ala|S|SIZEZER[(R]|S 3
i S 13] [w] ] = [] [w] [=) [=] [=] [=1 =1 [ =] [ p
©
2z

19 of 25



Staff Report — 2016-027 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — Accessory Dwelling 775.847.1144

10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

186,

Storey County Development Application
DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS GUIDE

Development Appilcation -~ You can get an application from the Planning Depatlment al (he Slorey County
Courthouse or online at StoreyCounty.org.

Delalled Description/Justification ~ The description of your project and the reason for the project. Be as detalled
as possible and submit any Information to help explain your project (photes, maps, etc.).

Paid Tax Recslpt ~ This Is a receipt showing your properly taxes are current or pald In full. A copy can bs
obtainad from the Clerk/Treasurer's office located on the 2™ flaor in the Storey Gounty Courthouse.

Plot Plan —~ A diagram showing he localion of all buildings, well and seplic {if any). This can be obtained from the
Building Department or Assessor's office or neatly hand drawn by the applicant.

Reduced Size Map - Applications with large maps must supply @ raduced size map (8" x 11" or 11" x 17").

Original Map Mylar — This map Is done by a professional surveyor.

Map & Data in CAD format on Disk — This map Is done by a professional surveyor.

ParcelVicinity Map - This map shows surrounding parcels to application parcel. A copy can be obtained from the
assessor’s office located on the 1™ floor In the Storey County Courlhouse.

Floor Plan — Thess are bullding plans for a house (subdivision) and done by a bullder.
Legel Description — Deed - Done by a professional surveyor.
Title Report — Done by a professional company.

Drainage Report— Done by a professional company.

Solls Report — Done by a professional company.
Traffic Report — Done by a professional company.
Water RIghts — You can obtain this from State Water Depariment,

Reclamation Plan - Done by a professional company.

20 of 25



Staff Report ~ 2016-027 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — Accessory Dwelling 775.847.1144

APN 003-442-15
LOT 16 HIGHLAND RANCHES
160 VERMILLION ROAD
[10.01+ ACRES]

B 3
BB B362.85
5008

Prop-house’ stakas
o !

R |

MARCH 17, 2015 1"=100"

SURVEY DISPLAY OF SENDoedie L. 1
160 VERMILLION RD - SUMMIT ENGINEERING OF

J20031_1 20180310.000 ~ 0:04 . 17 o puous 7‘7-0550% 5) 747-03.0 1

21 0f 25



Staff Report — 2016-027 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — Accessory Dwelling 775.847.1144

034/

Ranches
COUNTY

Highland
STOREY

=

[ie]

fis}

o

=

m

&

z 235

Z ® . 3

"~ grois

[{o] 0_3' z

& :‘=§

8 F=rey

n E22:58
€ TEa

s ggete
F T

€ I

@ .
a52%58
e
7 ont
Bl
w,E83
o52st
'zgzza

REV/ 0OAS /DEC 88/RAN
'8

omed P

o NPT ety il PO L ]

22 of 25



Storey County Planning Department

Staff Report - 2016-027
775.847.1144

Special Use Permit — Accessory Dwelling

A AN Thuncg Reuorg ‘seuours PURIYBIH i - [
7 ql-Lr¥y-€00 ‘Nal¥ PeON YO|IWeA OF a .
: oouepR 9oy uEBug N <
N 110G Pve ||FM Oe1ocieis vl [ ):'
b
: R
- — VAL LAY N n
. e =
1 a 4
| 3 2
! " ! r—{—.
= ) £ |
i} . : g
| ‘ - 8
1] !
L] '
| h :
1 @
i 3 we ; u
- an .
o LS L
o ! i
H o :
! b o 5 b
! ! L
! ~ i
i i s
i .: W0l
- = oot
] W AN v -t

O

Dispcssai Fleid Plan

23 of 25



Staff Report — 2016-027 Storey County Planning Department

Special Use Permit — Accessory Dwelling 775.847.1144
Tax Bill - Btorey County 10/31/16
MAKE REMITTANCE PAYABLE TO: Parcel 003-442-15 Roll # 003685
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer 160 VERMILLION RD
P O Drawer D HIGHLAND RANCHES
Virginia City, NV 89440 10'8~ 16
775-847-0969 District-10.1 Lot - 16

TAXES FOR PERIOD
July 1, 2016 thru June 30, 2017

SINGLETON KEVIN E & CHRISTIE L
3810 NATURE TRAIL
RENO, NV 89511

ABATEMENT

ASSESSED VALUES TAXES RATE ___OR RECAPTURE TAX_AMOUNT

Real Estate 13,831 GENERAL 1.7719 73.88- 171,20

----------- SCHOOL OPER 7500 31.27- 72.47

TOTAL 13,831 SCHOOL DEBT L1447 6.03- 13.98

CAPITAL AQUIS ,0500 2,08- 4.84

STATE 1700 7.09- 16.42

IND MEDICAL ,0100 42- .96

IND ACCIDENT , 0150 .63~ 1.44

FIRE DISTRICT 5446 22.71- 52.61

YOUTH SERVICE 0045 .19~ .43

' Ad valorem Total 3.4607 144,30~ 334.35

‘ Payments to Date 334,35~
|
|

PAID IN FULL

28 R .j
0CT 319016
il Jev FooeAe

B :ﬁ:&::ﬁh/ Saosw

24 of 25



Staff Report — 2016-027
Special Use Permit — Accessory Dwelling

Treasurer' Receipt
STOREY COUNTY TREASURER
VANESSA STEFHENS
26 SOUTH B STREET
F.O. DRAWER D
VIRGINIA CITY, NV. 89440

Raceived From:

KEVIN SINGLETON

For: SUP 2016-027 SINGLETON

Fund Fund Description Account Description
001 GENERAL 001-000-32206-000 PLANNING SPEC USE/VAR
Receipt No. 884 FPlascal Year: 2017

Storey County Planning Department

’ 775.847.1144

No. BA4

PData: 11/01/16

wedeusrs250. 00

Anmount
250.00CR

weserxa+250,00

Bank Bank Description
199 WELLS FARGQ CC ACCOUNT

Receipt No. 884 Piacal Year: 2017 Bank Account Total:
Check amount 250,00  ABAK Check# 1593
Total Cash: V&S he'a i Shnkc 00

Total Chackdg: *weieresr250,00

Amount
250.00

FHETREXE250 DO

Payer KEVIN SINGLETON

Total Non Cagh:é*evierseese 00
Credit Cardp: +evditrerew ()
Total Other. thwdddddber, (0 Treagurer

Deputy

25 of 25

(AN~



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/06/16 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: The applicant requests a variance allowing the required
10 foot side corner-lot setback distance between a principal building and the property line to be
reduced up to zero feet for the placement of a principal building expansion located at 106 East
Carson Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada (APN 001.156.02)

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the planning
commission, the findings of fact under Section 3.1 of this report, and other findings deemed
appropriate by the board, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I [commissioner]
motion to approve with conditions Variance No. 2016-029 allowing the required 10 foot corner-lot
side setback distance between a principal building and the property line to be reduced up to zero
feet for the placement of a principal building expansion located at 106 East Carson Street, Virginia
City, Storey County, Nevada (APN 001.156.02)

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.0968

5. Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2016-029

6. Supporting materials: Enclosed Staff Report No. 2016-029

7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
8. Legal review required:
District Attorney
9. Reviewed by:
_@’__ Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

o —
[I——

Agenda Item No. |lo



Storey County
Planning Commission

Staff Report
CASE No.: 2016-029
APPLICANTS: Community Chest, Inc.
PROPERTY OWNERS: Storey County
PROPERTY LOCATION: 106 East Carson Street, Virginia City, Storcy County, Nevada

(APN 001.156.02)

REQUEST: The applicant requests a variance allowing the required 10 foot
side corner-lot setback distance between a principal building and
the property line to be reduced up to zero feet for the placement
of a principal building expansion located at 106 East Carson
Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada (APN 001.156.02)

MEETING LOCATION: Storey County Courthouse
26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada

MEETING TIME & DATE:  Planning Commission: 6:00 p.m., Thursday, December 1, 2016
County Commission: 10:00 a.m., Tuesday, December 6, 2016

STAFF CONTACT: Austin Osborne, Planning Director

1. BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS

1.1 Site characteristics

The subject property is located in the P Public zone. This zoning designation exists on properties
that are owned by Storey County and other government entities, and some non-profit
organizations. The subject property is owned by Storey County and leased to the Community
Chest, Inc., a local non-profit community services organization. The property is located at 106
East Carson Street three blocks east of “C” Street. The existing community center proposed for
expansion is co-located on the same parcel with and situated adjacent to Miner’s Park, Storey
County swimming pool, and Storey County baseball field. The subject property is approximately
4 acres, of which approximately 15,000 square-feet are occupied by the existing community
center and parking lot owned and operated by the applicant Community Chest, Inc.

10f12



Staff Report — 2016-029 Storey County Planning Department
Setback Variance — Community Chest, Inc. 775.847.1144

1.2 Proposed use

The applicant proposes to construct an addition to the existing community center building over
an existing unpaved parking lot located to its immediate east. The structure addition as proposed
will encroach approximately ten feet into the required building setback area. This will cause the
distance between the building addition and the east property line to be zero to one foot.

1.3  Abutting uses

The east abutting parcels are vacant. The subject property abuts the “H” Street right-of-way;
however, the graded street itself is approximately 40 feet from the eastern boundary of the
subject property. The west and south abutting uses co-located on the subject parcel are occupied
respectively by the county swimming pool and baseball field. The abutting west parcels are
occupied by single-family residences. The north boundary of the subject property abuts Carson
Street and is adjacent to several single-family residences.

1.4 Safety

The building construction must adhere to all building and fire plan reviews and applicable code
requirements. The Storey County Fire Protection District and the Storey County Building
Department were made aware that the proposed structure may be located up to zero feet of the
property line and the undeveloped “H” Street right-of-way. The regulatory entities will apply the
necessary measures to ensure building and fire safety.

Due to approximately 30 feet of grade separation existing between the subject property and the
graded “H” Street, it is likely that significant separation will remain between the use and
roadway into the foreseeable future.

1.5  Area impacts

The proposed use appears to cause minimal to no adverse impacts on the surrounding uses,
including for vehicles and pedestrians on Carson Street and “H” Street. The use does not appear
to obstruct the viewshed of any residential use in the immediate area. Despite the proposed
structure having zero to one foot setback to the east property line, 30 feet of grade separation
between the building and “H” Street appears to ensure that the developed roadway will never
abut or otherwise conflict with the proposed building.

The area and its immediate surroundings should be graded to mitigate an increase in stormwater
caused by the development. Increased stormwater should be detained on-site, directed toward
existing drainages along Carson and “H” Street, or otherwise directed away from abutting private
properties not owned by the applicant. Stormwater drainage should also be directed away from
the steep slope between the building and “H” Street unless appropriate erosion control is applied.

The exiting building and its expansion may include outdoor lighting typical to commercial uses
in the area. Outdoor lighting must comply with SCC Chapter 8.02 Dark Skies in order to prevent
unnecessary glare and light trespass adjacent properties.

20f 12



Staff Report — 2016-029

Storey County Planning Department

Setback Variance — Community Chest, Inc. 775.847.1144

| oo 4

Figure 2: Vicinity close-up. Subject property

Search

. Dotted area indicates building expansion area.

3of 12



Staff Report — 2016-029 Storey County Planning Department

Setback Variance — Community Chest, Inc. 775.847.1144
I 1y
| | | 14
| ! IE?
. 7 | ewower b ”
e o R L —

Unimproved i
hillside §
I
2 |
Ak
i /
/ pi
I
!\ o
-1 Al = " ) . ) 31‘ | nroved de
=1 Existing iy N4 Buildi I 1 @
34 ::m::“"“y e:pan's'?on Ih tilty /' l%‘
] area | (LA /E / ié
= 40" +/-
£ T |
I ol 1 ik
” ’!‘/ |
:mu\:) Hl" ‘ / !
il K
\ “’l, , /
\ I I".‘jxm /f" )
“ S | i
c = /7| Unimproved |/| ! .
% ;| hillside [ | \
=T g I T .
\ eani i / ¢
ey | i< L |
\ I “T|-9
: T
ARCHITEGTURAL SITE PLAN 4

Figure 3: Plot plan. Subject property. Blue dotted area indicates building expansion area. Red dashed
line indicates east property boundary. Note that the right-of-way shown is mostly uniproved hillside.

4 of 12



Staff Report — 2016-029 Storey County Planning Department
Setback Variance — Community Chest, Inc. 775.847.1144

II. USE COMPATIBILITY AND COMPLIANCE

2.1 Compatibility with surrounding uses and zones

The following table shows uses, zoning classifications, and master plan designations for the land
at and surrounding the proposal. There are no evident conflicts between the proposal and SCC
Title 17 Zoning or the county master plan. The proposed use is also consistent with the
surrounding public services, residential, and commercial uses.

AREA DESCRIPTION

LAND USE MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION | ZONING
APPLICANT’S | Community center and Mixed-use commercial and | P Public
LAND childcare residential
LAND TO Single-family residence Mixed-use commercial and  |CR Commercial-
NORTH residential Residential
LAND TO Hotel and vacant Mixed-use commercial and |CR Commercial-
SOUTH *County baseball ficld residential Residential *Public
LAND TO Vacant Single-family residential R1 Single-Family
EAST Residential
LAND TO Single-family residences Mixed-use commercial and  |CR Commercial-
WEST *County swimming pool residential Residential *Public

*Uses are co-located on the same subject parcel.

2.2 Compatibility with required setback regulations

Required setback distances for principal structures in the P Public Zone are established in Storey
County Code 17.15.050. The required distance between a principal building and the property line
in the Public Zone is that established in the abutting zone. In the case of the subject property, the
east abutting zone is zoned R1 Single-Family Residential. Setback distances in the R1 Zone are
20 feet front and rear, and ten feet side when the building is located on a corner lot. The
proposed building is located on a corner lot facing Carson and “H” Street. Unless a variance is
granted, the proposed building must maintain at least 10 feet of distance to the east boundary.

2.3 General variance allowances and restrictions

A variance to the required building setback distances may be granted by the board with action by
the planning commission as allowed by Storey County Code 17.03.140 where by reason of
exceptional narrowness, shallowness, or shape of a specific piece of property at the time of
enactment of the regulations, or by reason of exceptional topographic conditions or the
extraordinary and exceptional situation or condition of the lot or parcel, the strict application of
the regulations enacted under the regulations would result in peculiar and exceptional practical
difficultly to, or exceptional and undue hardship upon the owner of the property. The approval,
approval with conditions, or denial of the variance request must be based on findings of fact that

S5of 12




Staff Report ~ 2016-029 Storey County Planning Department
Setback Variance — Community Chest, Inc. 775.847.1144

the proposed use is appropriate or inappropriate in the location. The findings listed below are the
minimum findings to be cited in a motion for approval.

1. Because of the special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including shape,
size, topography, or location of surroundings, the strict application of the zoning
ordinance would deprive the subject property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in
the vicinity or under identical zone classification; and

2. Granting of the variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial
' property rights of the applicant; and

3. Granting of the variance will not, under the circumstances of the particular case,
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons residing or working in
the neighborhood of the subject property and will not be materially detrimental to the
public welfare or materially injurious to property improvements in the neighborhood of
the subject property.

These findings appear to apply to the situation that necessitates the proposed variance and the
recommended motion for approval cites these findings as part of that motion.

2.4  Conformance with the 2016 Storey County Master Plan

The 2016 Storey County Master Plan emphasizes the importance of maintaining historically
authentic land use patterns throughout the Comstock. This is in-part accomplished by allowing
the integration of commercial-residential mixed-uses with densities similar to those known to
have existed in the nineteenth century.

The subject property is located in the V&T Midtown specific plan area. This area is described as
containing sporadic clusters of commercial, and single- and multi-family residential uses
separated by large tracts of vacant land. Many of the buildings and use patterns in this area are
described as “remnants from the 19" Century which to this day are occupied and used much as
they were a century ago” (Chapter 3, p. 25). This area is also described as becoming increasingly
significant to the Virginia City overall tourism and economic development portfolio. The subject
land abuts the Silver Star Neighborhood specific plan area. This area has and continues to be
comprised primarily of single-family residences located on small suburban residential parcels.

The requested variance will increase the density and practical use of the subject land as
encouraged by the master plan for the V&T Midtown planning area. Section 3.5.2 Goal 1
encourages the enhancement and diversity of the local economy by promoting commercial
businesses tailored to the needs of visitors and local residents; by reducing regulatory barriers to
commercial growth; by maintaining historic use patterns and densities; by encouraging mixed-
use commercial-residential patterns; and by preventing sprawl into outlying areas not historically
developed. Section 3.5.1 Goal 2 encourages land use patterns that maintain compact
communities by concentrating commercial development in defined centers; encouraging new
commercial development as infill within existing communities; facilitating regulatory
environment to create enterprise centers; maintaining walkability between residential and non-
residential uses; and to encourage uses that attract diverse people and workforces by creating a
physical environment that facilitates education facilities that directly related to the surrounding
community functionally, culturally, and visually, and where such facilities are incorporate the
greater community. Section 3.5.1 Goal 4 supports facilitating the integration of public facilities

6of 12



Staff Report — 2016-029 Storey County Planning Department
Setback Variance — Community Chest, Inc. 775.847.1144

into the surrounding community by combining public functions into unified facilities. Section
3.5.1 Goal 5 supports maintaining distinct communities in the county by approving uses that are
compatible with the distinct character of the surrounding community. Section 3.5.1 Goal 6
supports maintaining compatibility between uses by implementing performance standards to
ensure that the development is compatible with existing and surrounding uses.

The use in its reduced setback configuration appears to conform to these elements of the master
plan. The use also does not appear to conflict with the adjoining master plan area.

ITII. FINDINGS OF FACT

cA | Motion for approval

The following findings of fact are evident with regard to the requested variance when the
recommended conditions of approval in Section IV Recommended Conditions of Approval, are
applied.

1. The variance conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the Comstock area and
for the V&T Midtown specific planning area in which it is located. The use does not
conflict with the abutting Silver Star Neighborhood specific planning area. The subject
master plan goals and objectives are described in Section 2.4 of this staff report.

2. The variance will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on the
abutting properties or the surrounding area, and it will comply with all federal, state, and
county regulations.

3. The conditions of the variance adequately address potential fire hazards and require
compliance with the applicable fire codes, including setback and fire protection ratings.

4, The conditions under this variance do not conflict with the minimum requirements in
Storey County Code Sections 17.03 Administrative Provisions, 17.12 General Provisions;
and 17.15 P Public Zone.

5. Because of the special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including shape,
size, topography, or location of surroundings, the strict application of the zoning
ordinance would deprive the subject property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in
the vicinity or under identical zone classification.

6. Granting of the variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial
property rights of the applicant.

7. Granting of the variance will not, under the circumstances of the particular case,
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons residing or working in
the neighborhood of the subject property and will not be materially detrimental to the
public welfare or materially injurious to property improvements in the neighborhood of
the subject property.

7 of 12



Staff Report — 2016-029 Storey County Planning Department
Setback Variance — Community Chest, Inc. 775.847.1144

3.2 Motion for denial. Should a motion be made to deny the variance request, the following
findings with explanation why should be included in that motion.

1. Substantial evidence shows that the variance may conflict with the purpose, intent, and
other specific requirement of Storecy County Code Sections 17.03 Administrative
Provisions, 17.12 General Provisions; and 17.15 P Public Zone, or any other federal,
state, or county regulations, including building and fire codes.

2. The conditions under the variance do not adequately mitigate potential adverse impacts
on surrounding uses or protect against potential safety hazards for surrounding uses.

IV. RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

All conditions must be met to the satisfaction of each applicable county department, unless
otherwise stated.

1. Purpose

This variance is granted for the purpose of allowing the required 10 foot corner-lot side
setback distance between a principal building and the property line to be reduced by up to
zero feet for the placement of an expanded principal building located at 106 East Carson
Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada (APN 001.156.02). The variance does not
modify the existing required front (north), rear (south), or west setback distances.

2. Compliance

The variance must comply with federal, state, and county codes and regulations and the
submitted plans and reports, as approved. The applicant must provide the building
department site plans drawn to scale prior to obtaining a building permit.

3. Permits and expiration

The holder of the variance must apply for all building and fire permits for the structure
subject to this variance within 24 months from the date of board (Board of Storey County
Commissioners) approval, and continuously maintain the validity of those permits, as
appropriate, or this variance approval will become null and void.

4. Comstock Historic District Approval

The holder of the variance must obtain a Certificate of Architectural and Historical
Appropriateness from the Comstock Historic District and submit a copy of the certificate
to the building department prior to obtaining a building permit for the structure subject to
this variance.

5. Record of survey

The holder of the variance must submit with the building permit application to the
building department a Record of Survey or valid evidence from a licensed surveyor
illustrating the correct location of the east property line of the subject property. The
evidence must also show existing parcel boundaries, easements, and right-of-ways. No

8of 12



Staff Report — 2016-029 Storey County Planning Department
Setback Variance — Community Chest, Inc. 775.847.1144

V.

10.

building may be constructed over an easement or right-of-way other than that as
expressly allowed by this variance.

Existing easements and right-of-ways

The granting of this variance will not affect any existing casements or right-of-ways on or
adjacent to the subject property.

Taxes paid

Before obtaining a building permit, the holder of the variance must show the building
department valid evidence that all property taxes on the land are paid to-date.

Safety

The holder of the variance must install a fence or hand-railing between the east exterior
wall of the structure and the adjacent slope. The holder of the variance may cooperate
with the Storey County Public Works Department in order to install the fence or railing
within the adjunct public right-of-way area.

Stormwater management

The holder of the variance must grade the subject property such as to mitigate any
increase in stormwater caused by the development. Increased stormwater must be
detained on-site, directed toward existing designated drainage ways, or otherwise directed
away from abutting private properties not owned by the variance holder. Stormwater
drainage must be directed away from the steep slope between the building and “H” Street
unless appropriate erosion control is applied.

Indemnification

The holder of the variance agrees to hold Storey County, its officers and representatives
harmless from the cost and responsibilities associated with any damage or liability, and
any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a result of this variance.

POWER OF THE BOARD & PLANNING COMMISSION

At the conclusion of the hearing, the planning commission must take such action thereon as it
deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by formal
resolution, and such resolution must recite the findings of the planning commission upon which
it bases its decision. The decision of the planning commission in the matter of granting the
variance is advisory only to the Board of County Commissioners and that governing body must
consider the report and recommendation and must make such a decision thereon as it deems
warranted.

9of 12



Staff Report - 2016-029 Storey County Planning Department
Setback Variance — Community Chest, Inc. 775.847.1144

VI. PROPOSED MOTIONS

This section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is
recommended by staff in accordance with the findings under section 3.1 of this report. Those
findings should be made part of that motion. A motion for denial may be made and that motion
should cite one or more of the findings shown in section 3.2. Other findings of fact determined
appropriate by the planning commission should be made part of either motion.

A. Recommended motion

In accordance with the recommendation by staff, the findings of fact under Section 3.1
of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the planning commission, and
in compliance with the conditions of approval, I [planning commissioner] recommend
approval with conditions Variance No. 2016-029 allowing the required 10 foot corner-
lot side setback distance between a principal building and the property line to be
reduced up to zero feet for the placement of a principal building expansion located at
106 East Carson Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada (APN 001.156.02)

B. Alternative motion

Against the recommendation by staff, but in accordance with the findings of fact under
Section 3.2 of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the planning
commission, I [planning commissioner] recommend denial of Variance No. 2016-029
allowing the required 10 foot corner-lot side setback distance between a principal
building and the property line to be reduced up to zero feet for the placement of a
principal building expansion located at 106 East Carson Street, Virginia City, Storey
County, Nevada (APN 001.156.02)

Prepared by Austin Osborne, Planning Director
Enclosures:

Exhibit A — Assessor’s Vicinity Map
Exhibit B — Application No. 2016-029

10 of 12



Staff Report — 2016-029 Storey County Planning Department
Setback Variance — Community Chest, Inc. 775.847.1144

Exhibit A: Assessor’s Vicinity Map

11of 12



Exhibit B: Application No. 2016-029

12 of 12



26 South B Street, P.O. Box 1786, Virginia City, NV 89440
Phone: 775-847-1144 Fax: 775-847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

Development Application

Submit this completed application and all attachments along with the application fee (see page two for type of
application and fees) at least 30 days prior to the meseting you wish to have your request scheduled. The application
will not be accepted uniess complete, including attachments (applicant will be notified within 15 days if application is
not acceptable and what is still required). The application fee is non-refundable. Please make checks payable to
Storey County Planning Development,

Project Number: 2016-029

Storey County

All land owners must be listed on this application. Type or print legibly in black or blue Ink.
Storey Co Courthouse

Property Owner;

Mailing Address:

City: virginia City State: NV Zip:_89440
Telephone: ( ) Email:
Applicant; VVC Community Chest, Shaun Griffin

All applicants must be listed on this appiication,

Mailing Address;__PO Drawer 980

city;__Virginia City state:_ NV Zip;_89440

Telephone: ( )__/75.847.9311 Email: Shaungrif@aol.com

[CJGold Hilt IZIVi}ginia City [C] vC Highlands [C] Highland Ranches [] Virginia Ranches
(1 acre) (10 acres) (40 acres)

[(OMark Twain [JHafed [CJLockwood  [JPainted Rock CTRI [CJother

Project Address: 106 East Carson Street

Assessor's Parcel Numbers (APN);___001-156-02
Lot: Block: Acreage:_4 acres/15,0008F




Storey Cloupdy Doevelo

prnent Appheation

Record of Survey

Application Type Application Fee Application Type Application Fee
Abandonment $200.00 Amended Map n/a
Condition n/a Boundary Line $250.00 + 25.00 per lot
Amendment Adjustment
L] Development $1,000.00 [_] Extension of Time | 50% of Original Fee
Agreement (Requires a Request (One Year
Special Use Permit) Extension Only)
LI Land Division Map | $500.00 + $50.00 per L] Lot Consolidation n/a
40 acre minimum) lot
[_] Master Plan Map $2,900.00 || Master Plan Text $800.00
Amendment Amendment
] Natural Resources | $65.00 per hour ] Street Name n/a
Exploration and Request
Registration
Parcel Map — $250.00 + 25.00 per lot | [_| Parcel Map Final n/a

(] Planned Unit

$500.00 + 1.00 per lot

] Planned Unit

$200.00 + 25.00 per lot

— Major

- Major Industrial

Development (PUD) - Development - Final

Tentative

L] *Special Use Permit | $250.00 | *Special Use Permit | $450.00
— Minor - Routine

[ | *Special Use Permit | $750.00 [_] *Special Use Permit | $2,500.00

| Subdivision Map -
Tentative

$500.00 + 1.00 per lot

| Subdivision Map -
Final

$200.00 + 25.00 per lot

L] Variance - n/a ] Variance $100.00
Administrative
|| Wireless L_| Wireless n/a
Communication Facility Communication
Facility, Modification
| L] Zoning Map Change | $1,000.00 [_| Zoning Text Change | n/a

Note: Additional fees to cover costs accrue by the county in association with the application, including
staff time and consultation with outside legal and professional council may be charged to the
applicant. No additional fees will be charged without expressed written permission by the applicant.

S <

Applicants Initials

*If you are applying for a Special Use Permit, please refer also to the Storey County Special Use
Permit Definitions List when determining a minor, major, routine or major industrial permit.




Storey Comnty Developineno Application

Detail Description/Justification of Project

Attached additional pages as necessary

The property is located at 106 C Street and an expansion is proposed

that would come within 1'-0" of the eastern property line. The setback is
10'. Along the Eastern Property line we are asking for a variance to the

10" setback down to 1'-0".
The extra distance is paramount to the proposed function of the building

——which includes a Multi Purpose room which will function as a half sized
basket ball court as well as a community stage for plays and concerts.

Currently the east side of the property is parking. The eastern edge of
the property abuts H street with about a 30" downhill grade separation.

With such a steep grade separation it is most likely that separation will
remain indefinitely. Because of the grade separation it is highly un-likey

that H street would ever expand to conflict with the proposed building
nor does the reduced setback have an adverse impact on the

surrounding uses.




Storey Cotmdy Developmen: Apphcation

Professional Consultant/Representative(s)

Darrin Berger, AIA Berger Hannafin Architecture, LLP

Name:
Address: 312 West 3rd Street
City:___Carson City State:_NV Zip:_89703

Phone: 775.882.6455

Email:__darrin@bharchitects.biz

Cell; 775.297.1312

Applicant’s Affidavit:

Printed name

, being duly sworn, depose and say that | am the applicant of the described

project and/or request, and all the statements and answers herein contained and the information herewith submitted are in
all respects complete, true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. | understand that no assurance or guarantee

can be ivén by members of the Storey County Planning Department Staff.

Signature of Applican!

State of Nevada,
County of Sterey- CARSH

Signed and sworn to before me on:

e rnber /0, 2elC by,

Nolary's Signature

wry . Y, 2020
My Commission Expires

Property Owner’s Affidavit:
l, %fo?o (sbare

Printed name

/Lol )6

Date

o T

g @ SHARI BAUGHMAN
N NOTARY PUBLIC

; STATE OF NEVADA

> No,08-7130-5 My Appt. Exp. May 4, 2020 §
ORI, S S ~a

, being duly sworn, depose and say that | am an owner* in fee of the described

property involved in this application, that | have knowledge of, and agree to, the filling of this application, and that the
statements and answers herein contained and the information herewith submitted are in all respects complets, true and
correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. | understand that no assurance or guarantee can be given by membears of

the Storey; County Planning Department Staff,
Yo 1%
.//O

Signaturé st Prdpgy Owner

State of Nevada,
County of Storey

Signed and sworn to before me on:

_Novenber 15 2016 .

@MW{M

Nolary's Signature U d

JBR-JA ~R0I1

My Commlission Expires

118/ te

Date

DOREAYNE NEVIN
NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF NEVADA
APPT, No. 14-12430-16
MY APPT. EXPIRES DEC. 12, 2017




Starey Connty Developmaene Application
Property Owner's Affidavit:

I, . being duly sworn, depose and say that | am an owner* in fee of the described
Printed name

property involved in this application, that | have knowledge of, and agree to, the filling of this application, and that the

statements and answers herein contained and the information herewith submitted are in all respects complete, true and

correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. | understand that no assurance or guarantee can be given by members of

the Storey County Planning Department Staff.

Signature of Property Owner Date

State of Nevada,
County of Storey

Signed and sworn to before me on:

by,

Date

Notary's Signature

My Commission Expires

Property Owner’s Affidavit:

l, , being duly sworn, depose and say that | am an owner* in fee of the described
Printed name

property involved in this application, that | have knowledge of, and agree to, the filling of this application, and that the

statements and answers herein contained and the information herewith submitted are in all respects complete, true and

correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. | understand that no assurance or guarantee can be given by members of

the Storey County Planning Department Staff,

Signature of Property Owner Date

State of Nevada,
County of Storey

Signed and sworn to before me on:

by,

Date

Notary's Signature

My Commission Expires

*Each property owner must provide an Affidavit



Storey Commy ey elopiment Apiiicdion

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

Submittal Requirements

Applicatlon Type

Description/Justification
Original Map Mylar

Map & Data in CAD
Format on Disk

Legal Description - Deed
Title Report

Floor Plan

Detailed

Drainage Report
Soils Report

Traffic Report
Water Rights
Redamation Ptan
from Planning Dept.

Special Use Permit - Minor

Speclal Use Permit - Routine

Special Use Parmit - Major

x | 3 | > | > | Paid Tax Receipt

X | x| > |>| Reduced Size Map

Special Use Permit —
Major Industrial

Street Name Request

3¢ |5¢| X | > ||| Vicinity Map

b

Subdlvision Map - Tantative

XX |>| 2 | x ||| PlotPlan

>
x
x
x

Subdlvislon Map - Final

Variance - Adminlistrative

Variance

Wireless Communication
Facility

Wireless Communication
Facllity, Modification

XNl X | X [x|x
b3

Zoning Map Change

Zoning Text Change

| x || x XXX |x| X |3 [>|>| Development Application

olao|o|oocjojaoo]olololak
¢ > | 3¢ |35 x[|%| % |x|x|x

XXX x| x
HKIX[IX| X | X
>

Other X

MM X | X I x5 x| X x|

Note: Additional information and materials may be required with the application.



Por of WNE%of Sec. 29 |
TI7N,R2IE,MDB&M ,\

| Il @ =¥
o pol—15 (=02 € . STREET
F 418! 4 F - 58208 = 35" | g T 7] — T ] S [
nrﬂdﬂ 50 “Puo.\ ﬁ.uoaﬂ..ua.@‘_ (15087 _ 507} " pwm\v\ \” B tf270's) N % 1,00 “ HES L a0’ ; 87 A
L [ = " bl I Gl | u
TR ! ! 1 | - ! i i ; r i
: " 2N 4 | w 1 \mum. v . M. z |8 " :o.;n__ .%m_ o t 2 m.
1 '
' i 1 “ A -rlll!'lﬁuWﬂn.ﬂV||lllqll snllww.ll..»'lulll_l.lll..lll..llu.llm.ﬂ.llfla-.l _r

STREET

EAINES

42 ' 50
it .
g |
gt 10
! {
1 !
777777 77N T AR R AR AR AR
- 3 \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\‘...vlm.ﬁ Y AR AR AR
o~ G \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\
o . Y A A A R ARSI A S PSS S I I
T T A R AP AP A PP I 5
- - Z .\ _\\ \\-\\\\\ﬁ;\\.\?-\\.\\\\.\\\.\\n\\.;\\\~\~\\\\~\\.\\\ Lol iy el e o Rt  STEEs: = - =
9 1 50 T sl s5 | 85 29 s0' ) T80 1281 | 25| 248 I > s¢ s [
ol T s e (DL,
ofgs '8 17 _w_.ﬂ_o_w_w_.\_m_m_ 721 | of 4 fo 3 wt 2
ev | P § [ 1 1o g 2 [e 1S Sy % i
: _ . ot {470 'H 50 T -E
o _ V828 ot TN U ) i ) / ml .
L ! ! [} 30 : ! : o] | [ L] T 284 358t L t = 3
7 A A A A A A R R A AR A i 4
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\-\\\\\\‘\\\\\\\\\.\\\\\\\\\\\\
A A A A A AR A AP A S A Al
o~ AT A AR A AR AR AR A A AP AAAAS A A STREET
© \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\
3 Y Y A A AR R AR AR AR RASS S A AP I I
s s e ettt t Al 2L LIl LLLLLLALLLLLLLALLLLLLLLLLLLLLLILL .
I o | I ]
\I\
. @ :
\Va
\\.
H 8
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
This ¥
.nlvu.ﬂdvﬂdmnﬂn_oﬁaonnﬂmgoﬂﬂw.>§mﬂ§»
ONL T . v
and Tlustrative purposzs ONLY, Tt does not represent & survey. No lishility is <=.@_3_O O:<

assumed 13 to the sufficiency or v of fhc data deli 1)

REV/DORS /JUNE 92 /TG .v
. . STOREY COUNTY




Parcel Number 001-156-02 Prior # (F4) 001-156-01 Changed 6/11/09
Last Updated 12/15/15 By JVS

Ownership. . . " . (F6=Al]1 Owners_. . F7=Documents)
Legal Owner......... STOREY COUNTY Force Assmt Notice.... _
Assessed Owner...... STOREY COUNTY Force Ag Message... _
Mail Address........ DRAWER D Force Label........... _

Force Card/Aff (C/A).. _
City, State....... VIRGINIA CITY, NV Zip... 89440
Vesting Doc #, Date, _ Yr,Bk,Pg 00 003 065 Corr Rq'd _
Map Document #s..... oy — = _

Description (Fll=Additional Locations)
Additional Locations # Dir Street or Other Description Unit #(s)
Property Location... 106 E_ CARSON ST
Subdivision......... PARK/POOL RNG F Block... _49 Lot... 1-6
Town................ VIRGINIA CITY Parcel Map ID..

Property Name....... PARK & POQL& SR CENTER Confidential.. _

Remarks.............

Pg{cel # Containing Descriptive/Document Data.... Land Use: 690
12€ & .

Total Acres... 3.220 Square Feet.... 140,000

Ag Acres...... 000 W/R Acres...... .000

F9=Scan >/< > F5=Addr Hist F10=0thr Func F12=Cancel Fl4=Imprv/Apprs! Data
F15=Legal Description F16=Misc Notes Fl7=Factoring History F20=Tax Years
F21=Personal Property F22=Ag Land F23=Exempt ions F24=Livestock Counts

@\,_ ev“éK



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/06/16 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: The applicant requests a variance to light emission
shielding requirements in Storey County Code 8.02 Outdoor Lighting by allowing replacement of
two existing outdoor modern type light fixtures with historically appropriate light fixtures to the
front and north entrances of the Storey County Courthouse, and allowing an existing non-
conforming but historically appropriate outdoor light fixture at the south entrance of the Storey
County Courthouse located at 26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada (APN 001.081.03). The
subject light fixtures must comply with Comstock Historic District and Nevada State Historic
Preservation Office requirements.

2. Recommended motion: See Exhibit A.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne

4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.0968
5. Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2016-028

6. Supporting materials: Enclosed Staff Report No. 2016-028

7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
8. Legal review required:
District Attorney
9. Reviewed by:
_@’__ Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:
[1] Approved

[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[
[y —

Agenda Item No. |'?-

Page 1 of 2



Exhibit A to Agenda Request No. 2016-028

3. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the planning
commission, the findings of fact under Section 3.1 of this report, the approval by the
Comstock Historic District and the Nevada State Historic Preservation Office, and other
findings deemed appropriate by board, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I
[commissioner] motion to approve with conditions Variance No. 2016-028, a variance to
light emission shielding requirements in Storey County Code 8.02 Outdoor Lighting, by
allowing replacement of two existing outdoor modern type light fixtures with historically
appropriate light fixtures to the front and north entrances of the Storey County Courthouse,
and allowing an existing non-conforming but historically appropriate outdoor light fixture
at the south entrance of the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 South “B” Street,
Virginia City, Nevada (APN 001.081.03). This motion recognizes that the subject light
fixtures must comply with Comstock Historic District and Nevada State Historic
Preservation Office requirements.

Page 2 of 2



CASE No.:
APPLICANTS:
PROPERTY OWNERS:

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

REQUEST:

MEETING LOCATION:

MEETING TIME & DATE:

STAFF CONTACT:

Storey County
Planning Commission
Staff Report

2016-028
Storey County
Storey County

Storey County Courthouse, 26 South “B” Street, Virginia City,
Nevada (APN 001-081-03).

The applicant requests a variance to light emission shielding
requirements in Storey County Code 8.02 Outdoor Lighting by
allowing replacement of two existing outdoor modern type light
fixtures with historically appropriate light fixtures to the front and
north entrances of the Storey County Courthouse, and allowing an
existing non-conforming but historically appropriate outdoor light
fixture at the south entrance of the Storey County Courthouse
located at 26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada (APN
001.081.03). The subject light fixtures must comply with
Comstock Historic District and Nevada State Historic Preservation
Office requirements.

Storey County Courthouse
26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada

Planning Commission: 6:00 p.m., Thursday, December 1, 2016
County Commission: 10:00 a.m., Tuesday, December 6, 2016

Austin Osborne, Planning Director

10f12



Staff Report — 2016-028 Storey County Planning Department
Light Fixture Variance 775.847.1144

I. BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS
1.1 Site characteristics

The subject property is located in the CR Commercial Residential zone. This zoning designation
exists only in Virginia City and Gold Hill. The property is located at 26 South “B” Street, the site
of the Storey County Courthouse. The courthouse is situated facing cast abutting “B” Street.

The applicant, Storey County, has undergone a refurbishment of the front fagade of the Storey
County Courthouse in order to stop and reverse weather damage and restore its historically
appropriate coloring and appearance. A modern type dusk-to-dawn light fixture is located above
the front main entrance of the courthouse. A similar type light fixture is also located above the
north entrance to the courthouse. Both lights appear to have existed at these locations for 20
years or longer. The applicant in 2012 constructed a threshold shelter at the south entrance of the
building. A modern type light fixture similar to those at the front and north side of the building
was replaced by a historically appropriate light fixture. That fixture was approved by the
Comstock Historic District. The front and north side fixtures existed prior to light emission
standards in Storey County Code 8.02 and are legally nonconforming. The south side fixture was
installed after adoption of the code and, therefore, is non-conforming. The subject light fixtures
are illustrated in Figures 1-4.

1.2 Proposed use

As part of the building front fagade refurbishment project, the applicant proposes to remove an
existing modern type light fixture located at the courthouse main entrance with a historically
appropriate light fixture shown to have existed at the same location circa 1942. The applicant
also proposes to replace a modern type light fixture at the building’s north entrance with a
similar historically appropriate outdoor light fixture. Lastly, the applicant requests that the south
entrance light fixture installed in 2012 be considered for legal conformance with the county
code. The subject lights will require a variance from the light emission standards in Storey
County Code 8.02 Outdoor Lighting to be considered legally conforming. The variance is
proposed so long as the fixtures comply with Comstock Historic District and Nevada State
Historic Preservation Office requirements.

1.3  Abutting uses

The main entrance of the courthouse, where one of the subject lights is located, abuts “B” Street.
Several commercial uses and multi-family apartments are located in this immediate area. The
subject light fixture will provide nighttime lighting for the main entrance to the courthouse as
and along the building’s front sidewalk area. The street and immediate surrounding area is also
illuminated by a nearby overhead street light. The north side of the courthouse faces a single-
family residence, Piper’s Opera House, and a parking lot. The south entrance faces a court yard
and parking lot. Despite emitting more horizontal light than allowed by county code, the
proposed lights are partially shielded to emit less horizontal light than the existing modern type
fixtures, and their placement will reduce impacts now existing for adjacent residential uses.

1.4  Safety and Area Impacts

The existing modern commercial light fixtures at the east and north entrances emit obnoxious
light causing general glare and irritation for adjacent residences, and they detract from the
historic architecture of the courthouse. These lights currently use high-pressure sodium bulbs and

20f12



Staff Report — 2016-028 Storey County Planning Department
Light Fixture Variance 775.847.1144

emit between 5,500 and 8,500 lumens. Light emissions from the proposed fixtures will be
approximately 3,000 lumens, equivalent to a 200w incandescent light bulb. This light output is
similar to the light existing at the south entrance to the courthouse. See Figure 4. The existing
lights are flush mounted either to the wall or ceiling. This mounting configuration creates a
shadowing effect in the front and north inset doorway thresholds. This condition is illustrated in
Figure 3. This safety and security hazard is expected to improve dramatically with the front drop-
pole mounted and north side wall-extension mounted light fixtures.

= AL fﬂ*[l g
"!1 - iRy .
wcﬁ‘" - g _

Figure 1: Courthouse and front
entrance light fixture, circa 1942




Staff Report — 2016-028 Storey County Planning Department
Light Fixture Variance 775.847.1144

Figure 2: Porposed Light Fixture. The top image shows the light
fixture approved by the Comstock Historic District and State
Historic Preservation Office. The fixtures will also include a bulb
dome and cage, and mounting pole and hardware similar to that
shown in the right images. The north entrance light hardware will
be configured for side-wall mounting. Note: The fixture shown in
middle right is now located at the Courthouse south entrance.

Figure 3: Existing light fixture at front
and north entrances. Note (top) that
the proposed fixture will be partially
shielded and will better illuminate the
4’ deep now shadowed threshold
area. Improved lighting of the front
entrance threshold area is also
expected from the drop-pole
mounted light fixture.

4 0of 12



Staff Report — 2016-028 Storey County Planning Department
Light Fixture Variance 775.847.1144

Side south entrance light
(See also Figure 2)

Approximate proposed front
entrance light location (See
v also Fiaure 3)

Figure 4: Existing Courthouse outdoor side/south entrance light (for comparison). The image illusrates
the existing light over the south entrance of the Storey County Courthouse. The proposed light fixture
over the front Courthouse entrance will approximately reemble this light and it will emitt siimilar lumens
of ligght. Note the existing overhead street light immediately across the street (east) of the proposed
Courthouse front light. That light provides sufficient vehicle and security lighting of the Courthouse front
area allowing the subject building light to be reduced from its existing intensity.

5of 12



Staff Report — 2016-028
Light Fixture Variance

Storey County Planning Department
775.847.1144

II. USE COMPATIBILITY AND COMPLIANCE

2.1

The following table shows uses, zoning classifications, and master plan designations for the land
at and surrounding the proposal. There are no evident conflicts between the proposal and SCC
Title 17 Zoning or the county master plan. The proposed use is also consistent with the

Compatibility with surrounding uses and zones

surrounding commercial-residential mixed-use environment.

AREA DESCRIPTION

LAND USE

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION

ZONING

APPLICANT’S
LAND

Storey County Courthouse and
public services facility

Mixed-use commercial-residential

CR Commercial-
Residential

LAND TO
NORTH

Occupied single-family residence

Mixed-use commercial-residential

CR Commercial-
Residential

LAND TO SOUTH

Parking lot for the Storey County
Courthouse

Mixed-use commercial-residential

CR Commercial-
Residential

LAND TO EAST

Multi-family residential uses and
commercial uses

Mixed-use commercial-residential

CR Commercial-
Residential

LAND TO WEST

Single-family residences

Mixed-use commercial-residential

CR Commercial-

Residential

2.2 Compliance with Storey County Code 8.04 Outdoor Lighting

Outdoor lighting for the purposes of maintaining “dark-skies” is regulated by Storey County
Code 8.04 Outdoor Lighting. Outdoor lighting devices or fixtures located on office, retail,
commercial, public, institutional, industrial, and multi-family buildings and properties shall be
shielded* in such a manner that light rays emitted by the device or fixture, whether directly from
the lamp or indirectly from the fixture, are restricted to regions below an angle fifteen degrees
beneath the horizontal plain running through the lowest point on the fixture where light is
emitted. No significant intensity of light shall be emitted from the fixture horizontally nor above
the horizon, nor above the region defined above. In general, all outdoor lighting shall be
downwardly directed and fixtures shall conform to standards set forth by the International Dark--
Sky Association (IDSA) or equivalent. Light shields shall be opaque and constructed of solid
material which is in no way transparent or translucent.

It is anticipated that light exiting the proposed fixture may not conform to this requirement.
Section 8.02.070(B) states that no lighting and no variance for lighting may conflict state statutes
governing lighting within the Comstock Historic District. The Comstock Historic District
approved the light fixture described in this staff report and rejected other similar fixtures which
would have conformed to Storey County Code 8.02 regulating outdoor lighting.

6 of 12



Staff Report -~ 2016-028 Storey County Planning Department
Light Fixture Variance 775.847.1144

2.3 General variance allowances and restrictions

A variance to the requirements of the county code may be granted by the board with action by
the planning commission where by reason of extraordinary and exceptional situation applicable
to a property the strict application of the regulations enacted under the regulations would result
in peculiar and exceptional practical difficultly to, or exceptional and undue hardship upon the
owner of the property. The approval, approval with conditions, or denial of the variance request
must be based on findings of fact that the proposed use is appropriate or inappropriate in the
location. The findings listed in Section III are the minimum findings to be cited in a motion for
approval or denial.

24  Conformance with the 2016 Storey County Master Plan

The Comstock Historic District maintains jurisdiction over the regulation of the exterior
appearance of buildings and structures in Virginia City and the Comstock Historic District. Their
Jurisdiction also applies to the outdoor light fixtures proposed in this report. The decision of the
Comstock Historic District to approve the subject light fixtures, and its decision to deny light
fixtures that better conform to the strict requirements in Storey County Code 8.02 Outdoor
Lighting, conforms to the provisions of the 2016 Storey County Master Plan which emphasizes
the importance of preserving and maintaining historical authenticity of historic structures of the
Comstock. The Comstock Historic District maintains that the light fixtures proposed in this
report exhibit attributes most similar to what was shown to have existed at the front entrance of
the Storey County Courthouse circa 1942, and what was likely to have also existed at the
building’s north and south entrances.

III. FINDINGS OF FACT

3.1 Motion for approval

The following findings of fact are evident with regard to the requested variance when the
recommended conditions of approval in Section VI Recommended Conditions of Approval, are
applied.

1. Office, retail, commercial, public, institutional, industrial, single-family, and multi-family
buildings and their lighting are part of the overall image of the community. In all cases,
these standards stress the importance of visually identifying and unifying the community
character. Unnecessary and improperly designed light fixtures cause glare, or intense
light that results in unnecessary brightness, a reduction of visual performance and
visibility, light pollution and wasted resources through additional expense for utility
costs, hazardous conditions for all modes of transportation, and also affects the ability to
view the night sky, including astronomical observations. The regulations in Storey
County Code 8.02 are intended to mitigate these conditions by regulations that require
shielding, pointing lighting downward (other than certain lighting allowed with a
variance), and only using the amount of light that is necessary. This variance serves to
conform as much as possible to the purpose and intent of this ordinance while also
conforming and preserving the historical integrity of the Storey County Courthouse.

7 of 12



Staff Report — 2016-028 Storey County Planning Department
Light Fixture Variance 775.847.1144

2.

3.2

The variance complies with all federal, state, and county regulations, including the
approval of the Comstock Historic District as evidenced by the Certificate of
Architectural and Historic Approval granted thereby.

Because the Storey County Courthouse is listed in the National Register of Historic
Places, and because the exterior architectural design and preservation is under the
jurisdiction of the Comstock Historic District Commission and the Nevada State Historic
Preservation Office, the strict application of Storey County Code 08.02 Outdoor Lighting
requirements would potentially not conform to Nevada Revised Statutes regulating
historic buildings in the Comstock Historic District, and would potentially degrade the
historic value and authenticity of the building and the enjoyment thereof by visitors,
residents, and scholars.

The variance takes into consideration and incorporates provisions of Storey County Code
08.02 “Dark Skies” to reduce the light emission impacts on adjacent uses while
maintaining historic authenticity in accordance with Comstock Historic District
requirements.

The conditions under this variance do not conflict with the minimum requirements in
Storey County Code Sections 17.03 Administrative Provisions, 17.12 General Provisions;
and 17.30 CR Commercial-Residential Zone, or any other federal, state, or county
regulations, including building and fire codes.

Granting of the variance will not, under the circumstances of the particular case,
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons residing or working in
the neighborhood of the subject property and will not be materially detrimental to the
public welfare or materially injurious to property improvements in the neighborhood of
the subject property.

Motion for denial. Should a motion be made to deny the variance request, the following

findings with explanation why should be included in that motion.

1.

Substantial evidence shows that the variance may conflict with the purpose, intent, and
other specific requirement of Storey County Code Sections 17.03 Administrative
Provisions, 17.12 General Provisions; and 17.30 Commercial-Residential Zone, or any
other federal, state, or county regulations, including building and fire codes.

The conditions under the variance do not adequately mitigate potential adverse impacts
on surrounding uses or protect against potential safety hazards for surrounding uses.

8 of 12



Staff Report — 2016-028 Storey County Planning Department
Light Fixture Variance 775.847.1144

IV. RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

All conditions must be met to the satisfaction of each applicable county department, unless
otherwise stated.

1. Purpose

This variance is granted for the purpose of diverging from light emission shielding
requirements in Storey County Code 8.02 Outdoor Lighting, by allowing replacement of
two existing outdoor modern type light fixtures with historically appropriate light fixtures
to the front and north entrances of the Storey County Courthouse, and allowing an
existing non-conforming but historically appropriate outdoor light fixture at the south
entrance of the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 South “B” Street, Virginia City,
Nevada (APN 001.081.03).

2. Compliance

The variance must comply with the Comstock Historic District and Nevada State Historic
Preservation Office requirements, and with federal, state, and county codes and
regulations. A certificate of Comstock Historic District Approval and State Historic
Preservation Office approval must be obtained by the applicant before installation of the
subject light fixture, and the certificate must be kept on-file at the Office of the Storey
County Clerk.

3. Permits and expiration

The holder of the variance must apply for all necessary electrical and other permits
subject to this variance within 24 months from the date of board (Board of Storey County
Commissioners) approval, and continuously maintain the validity of those permits, as
appropriate, or this variance approval will become null and void.

4. Light emission limitations

The light emitting device (e.g., light bulb) within the light fixture shall not exceed 3,000
lumens (equivalent to 200w incandescent light bulb) unless a shield is placed thereon
preventing light trespass onto east abutting properties as limited by Storey County Code
08.02 Outdoor Lighting.

V. POWER OF THE BOARD & PLANNING COMMISSION

At the conclusion of the hearing, the planning commission must take such action thereon as it
deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by formal
resolution, and such resolution must recite the findings of the planning commission upon which
it bases its decision. The decision of the planning commission in the matter of granting the
variance is advisory only to the Board of County Commissioners and that governing body must
consider the report and recommendation and must make such a decision thereon as it deems
warranted.

9of12



Staff Report — 2016-028 Storey County Planning Department
Light Fixture Variance 775.847.1144

VI. PROPOSED MOTIONS

This section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is
recommended by staff in accordance with the findings under section 3.1 of this report. Those
findings should be made part of that motion. A motion for denial may be made and that motion
should cite one or more of the findings shown in section 3.2. Other findings of fact determined
appropriate by the planning commission should be made part of either motion.

A. Recommended motion

In accordance with the recommendation by staff, the findings of fact under Section 3.1
of this report, the approval by the Comstock Historic District and the Nevada State
Historic Preservation Office, and other findings deemed appropriate by staff, and in
compliance with the conditions of approval, I [planning commissioner] recommend
approval with conditions Variance No. 2016-028, a variance to light emission
shielding requirements in Storey County Code 8.02 Outdoor Lighting, by allowing
replacement of two existing outdoor modern type light fixtures with historically
appropriate light fixtures to the front and north entrances of the Storey County
Courthouse, and allowing an existing non-conforming but historically appropriate
outdoor light fixture at the south entrance of the Storey County Courthouse located at
26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada (APN 001.081.03). This motion recognizes
that the subject light fixtures must comply with Comstock Historic District and Nevada
State Historic Preservation Office requirements.

B. Alternative motion

Against the recommendation by staff and the approval by the Comstock Historic
District at the Nevada State Historic Preservation Office, but in accordance with the
findings of fact under Section 3.2 of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate
by staff, I [planning commissioner] recommend denial of Variance No. 2016-028, a
variance to light emission shielding requirements in Storey County Code 8.02 Outdoor
Lighting, by allowing replacement of two existing outdoor modern type light fixtures
with historically appropriate light fixtures to the front and north entrances of the Storey
County Courthouse, and allowing an existing non-conforming but historically
appropriate outdoor light fixture at the south entrance of the Storey County Courthouse
located at 26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada (APN 001.081.03).

Prepared by Austin Osborne, Planning Director

Enclosures:

Exhibit A — Assessor’s Vicinity Map
Exhibit B = CHDC Certificate of Historic and Architectural Appropriateness

10 of 12



Storey County Planning Department

Staff Report — 2016-028
Light Fixture Variance

775.847.1144

Exhibit A: Assessor’s Vicinity Map

|80-10

TprTpemg JEDGDey F Gnsd] TOCEE] j0 P AP A pascadde g
Tppaay ¢ evoelnd pomenes Sy g 1 W g o ) weseay
PSR TP 3 D ATCKTION gl 6 S jumsnicr s Jpnamn o E3airs
Rt 106 S0P JUT K0 v Remey Xg R R RL RIOK

G OU M POV

AINNOD  A3¥OLS )]

£y oubna ;

e

— =
£ ed IR it ) N RSk b

I S N *in 8 ' -

elrizlel » 155} : 9 @n q0 Uzt o 3 F:

(O] ! S} ¢ < L «d © r

il R o E :
\ Zist ot s (I, 8 a6 DRIT e T, M -

- .

=

an
. 3
C '(45

@

i
K

| L | = |
e T@f@‘ ;
]
-
W\ A
8.,
*®
.Ql)
M)

5 . .— " . ’ n '
* ' ol :"«. T .@
- A R e 2 (T
)
‘

-

2 iNarg

- § ® S

ol o Tyl P s

BN ' V) i - v
e o |1 |ainth A R B IR HEH P
' ] ~
1 B aN ¢ n_OM% so o ﬁ..ﬂ@. ) IO i CMF? W.._ﬂ Ui s tasdsa .m"
(G REY< F O o
2| Q « 38 @ity By OpSQeRL LB T

- L8 & = ks o7 " J«u_«~aw

- 1]

b SLERTY i EET ot ! N'u

TWB'GAW 312H 'NLIL
82 O§ UIN ®d

11 of 12



Staff Report — 2016-028 Storey County Planning Department
Light Fixture Variance 775.847.1144

Exhibit B: Certificate of approval from CHDC and SHPO

\/ : \\ :?‘:22 icrnnie Depariment of Conservation and Natural Resources
Q*J PRESERVATION OFFICE o T xegnar

Leo M. Drozdoff, P.E,, Director
Rebecca L. Palmer, Administrator, SHPO

November 16, 2016

Cherie Nevin

Community Relations Coordinator
Storey County, Nevada

P.0.Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440

RE;  Letter of Permission for the replacement of twe light fixtures at the Storey County
Courthouse, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada

Dear Ms. Nevin,

The Nevada State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO; defined as “State” in the Commission for
Cultural Affairs Covenants) has reviewed your proposed scope of work for the replacement of two
light fixtures at the front and north entrances of the Storey County Courthouse in accord with the
Covenants (Stipulation 2) that remain in effect until December 31, 2061. The scope of work was
submitted to the SHPO on November 10, 2016. Further information about the project was obtained
via 3 phone call with County staff on November 16, 2016.

The proposed work Is in keeping with the Secretary of the Interlor's Standards. The SHPO gives
Storey County permission to make the following changes to the courthouse:

* Removing the flush-mounted light fixture located on the “ceiling” of the entrance averhang on
the bullding's front elevation, and replacing it with the more period-appropriate fixture depicted
in the submitted scope of work. The conlcal metal fixture will be hung from a metal red,

+ Removing the wa!l-mounted light fixture located above the door on the nerth elevatlon, and
replacing It with the same conlcal metal fixture that will be installed on the front elevatlon, In
thls north location, the fixture will be wall-mounted via a simple curved metal bracket.

Thank you for your commIitment to this important cultural and architectural resource. |f you have
question?um Ing this correspondence, please feel free to contact SHPO architectural historlan
W

r by emall at knbrown@shpo.nv.gov.

State Hlistorie Preservation Officer

901 S. Stewart Street, Suite 50034~ Carson City, Nevada 89701 —<4Phone: 775.884.3448 Fux: 775.664,3442
viwvr.shpo.nv.qov

12 of 12



"'I;’\'_\\\‘

Storey County Planning Department

26 South B Street, P.O. Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440
Phone: 775-847-1144 Fax: 775-847-0948
planning@storeycounty.org

Development Application

Submit this completed application and all attachments along with the application fee (see page two for type of
application and fees) at least 30 days prior to the meeting you wish to have your request scheduled. The application
will not be accepted unless complete, including attachments (applicant will be notified within 15 days if application is
not acceptable and what is still required). The application fee is non-refundable. Please make checks payable to
Storey County Planning Development.

Project Number:._ X&[(L ~O28
Property Owner: S_h?&" U C ate w‘k"l

All'land owners must be listed on thid application. Type or print legibly in black or blue ink.

Mailing Address,___ D vawer RO [ 36 Soutl B Street

city__ \wginig  City state:__ A/ V/ zip 894 4D
Telephone: (11%) 3477 ~ 09L& Email:
Applicant: Sf‘ormf C siaaty

Alf applicants must be listed on this application.

Mailing Address,___ S ame a = aloove

City: State: Zip:

Telephone: (1 79)_%4H 7 - 09L& Email:

[JGold Hill [RVirginia City [C] VC Highlands [] Highland Ranches [] Virginia Ranches
(1 acre) (10 acres) (40 acres)

[OMark Twain [JHafed [tockwood  [JPainted Rock CITRI [CJother

Project Address;_ 2o S oukh. B Street ( Sto cey County CO“-:’H'\MtSeB
Assessor’s Parcel Numbers (APN):.___ OO - 0% -3
Lot_3 -~ 10 Block___ 10 3 Acreage,__» 171

b ord



\ veli

et \|u yeation

Application Type Application Fee Application Type Application Fee
[_| Abandonment $200.00 Amended Map n/a
[_] Condition n/a [] Boundary Line $250.00 + 25.00 per lot
Amendment Adjustment
L) Development $1,000.00 || Extension of Time | 50% of Original Fee
Agreement (Requires a Request (One Year
Special Use Permit) Extension Only)
L_| Land Division Map | $500.00 + $50.00 per | | Lot Consolidation n/a
40 acre minimum) lot
| Master Plan Map $2,900.00 ] Master Plan Text $800.00
Amendment Amendment
[_] Natural Resources | $65.00 per hour [_] Street Name h/a
Exploration and Request
Registration
|| Parcel Map ~ $250.00 + 25.00 per lot | [_| Parcel Map Final n/a

Record of Survey

[_! Planned Unit

$500.00 + 1.00 per lot

[ ] Planned Unit

$200.00 + 25.00 per lot

Development (PUD) - Development - Final

Tentative

(| *Special Use Permit | $250.00 | *Special Use Permit | $450.00
— Minor - Routine

[_] *Special Use Permit | $750.00 L] *Special Use Permit | $2,500.00

— Major

- Major Industrial

[_] Subdivision Map -
Tentative

$500.00 + 1.00 per lot

L] Subdivision Map -
Final

$200.00 + 25.00 per lot

(] Variance - n/a Variance $100.00
Administrative ot o
[ | Wireless ] Wireless n/a
Communication Facility Communication

Facility, Modification
L] Zoning Map Change | $1,000.00 |_| Zoning Text Change | n/a

Note: Additional fees to cover costs accrue by the county in association with the application, including
staff time and consultation with outside legal and professional council may be charged to the
applicant. No additional fees will be charged without expressed written permission by the applicant.

7
©

Applicants Initials

*If you are applying for a Special Use Permit, please refer also to the Storey County Special Use
Permit Definitions List when determining a minor, major, routine or major industrial permit.




Professional Consultant/Representative(s)

Name:
Address:
City: State: Zip:
Phone: Email: Cell:

Applicant’s Affidavit:
l,_Z/SHM) O:édm@~ , being duly sworn, depose and say that | am the applicant of the described

Printed name
project and/or request, and all the statements and answers herein contained and the information herewith submitted are in
all respects complete, true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. | understand that no assurance or guarantee
can be g}ve‘i'w/b/,y members of the Storey County Planning Department Staff.
Z

X Al (/16/1¢

Signature of A Mﬂ'ﬂ Date

State of Nevada,
County of Storey

Signed and sworn to before me on:

ﬂS)\).Qrvv Vorc ) Lo, RO o by,

Date/,,’

2 2 S P
(P ore ok e
Notary's Signature
Tore 20, oS

My Commission Expires

TAMARA A, MIOAN
NOTARY PUBLIC

STATE OF NEVADA
APPT. No, 98-4873-16

MY APPT. EXPIRES JUNE 20, 2018

.

Property Owner’s Affidavit:

l./z/rf)ﬂ Q/éame e , being duly sworn, depose and say that | am an owner* in fee of the described
Printed name

property involved in this application, that | have knowledge of, and agree to, the filling of this application, and that the

statements and answers herein contained and the information herewith submitted are in all respects complete, true and

correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. | understand that no assurance or guarantee can be given by members of

the St%ynﬂ' Planning Department Staff.

/¥, i
- M/ [/ 16/14
Signatureof oﬁgﬂ'y Owner Date 4 7

State of Nevada,
County of Starey

Signed and sworn to before me on: =

TAMARA A. MIGAN
NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF NEVADA
v T. No. 0B-4873-16
727 |y APPT. EXPIRES JUNE 20, 2018

{\overbe - i, 201t by,

Date s

’ ~n 1

& /f-‘%f?/l_ec KL /{/( A

Nolary's Signature /7
___/

Junrse RO, 2007 8

My Commission Expires




Starey County DRevelopinent Application
Property Owner’s Affidavit:

I, , being duly sworn, depose and say that | am an owner* in fee of the described
Printed name

property involved in this application, that | have knowledge of, and agree to, the filling of this application, and that the

statements and answers herein contained and the information herewith submitted are in all respects complete, true and

correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. | understand that no assurance or guarantee can be given by members of

the Storey County Planning Department Staff.

Signature of Property Owner Date

State of Nevada,
County of Storey

Signed and sworn to before me on:

by,

Date

Notary's Signature

My Commission Expires

Property Owner’s Affidavit:

l, , being duly sworn, depose and say that | am an owner™ in fee of the described
Printed name

property involved in this application, that | have knowledge of, and agree to, the filling of this application, and that the

statements and answers herein contained and the information herewith submitted are in all respects complete, true and

correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. | understand that no assurance or guarantee can be given by members of

the Storey County Planning Department Staff.

Signature of Property Owner Date

State of Nevada,
County of Storey

Signed and sworn to before me on:

by,

Date

Notary's Signature

My Commission Explres

*Each property owner must provide an Affidavit



Qi 4 \ . . .
storey County Development Application

Detail Description/Justification of Project
Attached additional pages as necessary

The applicant requests a variance 1o light emission shielding
requirements in Storey County Code 8.02 Outdoor Lighting by
allowing replacement of two existing outdoor modern type light
fixtures with historically appropriate light fixtures to the front and
north entrances of the Storey County Courthouse, and allowing an
existing non-conforming but historically appropriate outdoor light
fixture at the south entrance of the Storey County Courthouse
located at 26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada (APN
001.081.03). The subject light fixtures must comply with
Comstock Historic District and Nevada State Historic Preservation
Office requirements.




‘uonjesijdde ayj ym palinbal aq Aew sjelsajew pue uoljewlojul |BUORIPPY 310N

21npa201d UOHEPIIOSUOD J0] SABJSILIWPY,,

X | X X | X | X X |X

|eul4 ‘JuswidojeAsq Jun pauueld

X

>
bad
»
bed

SAleUS |
‘JuawdojsAe Jufn pauue|d

>
>
b
bad
x
x
x

deyy [2o/ed

Aanng Jo pioosy — depy |eaed

M3IASy uojensibay pue
uoielojdxg seoInosay [eJneN

JuswipusWwY X8 Ueld Joise

Jswpuawy dey ueld Jajse

LUO)EPIIOSUOD 10T

wnwiuiw
2108 Op) dejy uoising pueT

(AJuQ UOISUSIXT 1ea\
auQ) jsenbay swi] jo uoisusixg

Jlusg asn [e19adg salnbay)
Juswsaiby Juswdojaasq

X| X | X | X [X

X
>
>
>

wauysnlpy sui Aiepunog

JuaWpuUsWY UOIIPUOD)

depy pspuawy

XXX XX | X [ XX [XXX|X| X | X[X]| X | X

X XXX X | X | X [X]|X|X| X

>

>

x
MX|X[X]| XX | X | X | XX

b

»

b

JuSWIUOpUBRqY

‘Jdaq Buiuue|d woy
uoljewiioju| [euonippy

ue|d uonewe|say

S)ybry Jojep

Hodsy oes ]|

Hoday sjiog

Hoday sbeuleiq

Moday a1

uejd 100|4

3SI UO jeuwio

avo ureleq g dep
ueld 1oid | x| x

pajeleq

JejAp depy jeulbQ
jdigoay xe| pled | >

depy 8z1g peonpay | x| x

dewy Ayuioip/@2.1ed
uoneolddy Juswidojena [ || > | x| X | % | X |X|x|%]| %

paaq - uonduose(q |ebe | x| x
uoneolisnp/uopdudseq

ad£) uopeoyddy

sjuawalinbay |epiwgng

Riogoo|lolo|o|oojolooo|a|o

SINIWIAINDIY TVLLINGNS NOILYIITddY LNINdOTIAIQ




‘uoeaijdde ay3 ym pasinbai aq Aew sjeajew pue UoBWIOU| [BUCIIPPY :9]ON

B2Yyl0

abuey) xa] Buuoz

abueyn deyy Buiuoz

uoyeoupoy “Ajioe
UoHEUNWIWOY SSS[SIINA

x
X | X [ X|X|X
X | X [ X[ X|X

(SRR
UOREOIUNWIWOY) SSIIIIAA

aoueuep

>
K| X | X | X

SAIJBISIUILIPY ~ S0UBLEA

Jeuld - depy uoisiAipgns

b
x
>
>

aAnBjuUa] - depy uoISIAPQNSg

X
b

1sanbay aweN 122118

[ewsnpu 10Ty
—Jwlad asn |eoadg

lolepy — jwiiad asn [eoadg

aupnoy - uiad asn [ewadg

MIX | X[ X [ XXX | X[ X[ X | X |X]|X|X

XX | X[ X[ XXX
x
N[ X[ XXX XX X [ X [X]|X]|X

XX | X | X

Joulpy - Julsd asn |eads

‘1deq Buluue|d woJy
uolewIolu| |eUORIPPY

ue|d UoijeWERD8Y

SIYBIY Jojem

Joday aes]

Hodey s|l0g

Yoday abeulelq

ue|d 4004
dey Ajutolp, | > [ X[ X< |
SI U0 JBWIO
pejieleq

yoday aplL
avo ur ejeq g depy

a2dAj uoneoiddy

dep azig peonpay | x| x| X | X
ueld joId
Jdisoay xe] pled

JejApy deyy (ewibiio

uoneslddy JuawdolaAdq | > | < | 3¢ [ > [ 3 [3< || 3 [>¢[ > | > [ | > | X

pee( - uopduoseq |eben
uoneoniisnr/uoydioseq

sjuswalinbay j[eniuqng

RIOO0O)|0O|O00ga|0a|o|oono

SLNIWIVINDIY TVLLINGNS NOILYOITddYy LNIWJdOI3AIQ




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

storey Counly Development Applicaten
DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS GUIDE

Development Application — You can get an application from the Planning Department at the Storey County
Courthouse or online at StoreyCounty.org.

Detailed Description/Justification — The description of your project and the reason for the project. Be as detailed

as possible and submit any information to help explain your project (photos, maps, etc.).

Paid Tax Receipt - This is a receipt showing your property taxes are current or paid in full. A copy can be
obtained from the Clerk/Treasurer's office located on the 2™ floor in the Storey County Courthouse.

Plot Plan — A diagram showing the location of all buildings, well and septic (if any). This can be obtained from the
Building Department or Assessor's office or neatly hand drawn by the applicant.

Reduced Size Map — Applications with large maps must supply a reduced size map (8" x 11" or 11" x 17”).

Original Map Mylar — This map is done by a professional surveyor.

Map & Data in CAD format on Disk — This map is done by a professional surveyor.

Parcel/Vicinity Map — This map shows surrounding parcels to application parcel. A copy can be obtained from the
assessor's office located on the 1% floor in the Storey County Courthouse.

Floor Plan — These are building plans for a house (subdivision) and done by a builder.
Legal Description — Deed — Done by a professional surveyor,
Title Report — Done by a professional company.

Drainage Report — Done by a professional company.

Soils Report ~ Done by a professional company.
Traffic Report — Done by a professional company.
Water Rights — You can obtain this from State Water Department.

Reclamation Plan — Done by a professional company.



0O-08

Por N2 Sec 29
TITN, R2IE, M.D.B.&M.

ﬁ—m--‘}:;— -

- ——

YoravyL 2

T s10

STREET

City
COUNTY

Virginia
STOREY

NOTZ: This plat is for assessment use only acd does not represent 2
survey. No lizbility is assumed as te the acouracy of the data delinegied
hereor. Use of this plat for other then 2ssessment purposes is ferbicden
nnless approved by the Dept. of Taxation, Division of Assessmeut Standards

@

Revissd Mar 2004-35



Parcel Number 001-081-03
Last Updated 8&/30/16 By .” )

Ownership ) (F6=ALl_uwners_ .. F7=Documents)
Legal Owner......... STOREY COUNTY Force Assmt Notice.... _
Assessed Owner...... STOREY COUNTY Force Ag Message... _
Mail Address........ DRAWER D Force Label........... _

Force Card/Aff (C/A).. _

City, State....... VIRGINIA CITY, NV Zip... 89440
Vesting Doc #, Date. _ Yr,Bk,Pg 00 000 000 Corr Rgq'd _
Map Document #s..... 124526 _ = _
Description (F1l1=Additional Locations)
# Dir Street or Other Description Unit #(s)

Property Location. .. 26 S B ST
Subdivision......... [..3-10 BLK 103 RNG A Block... Eotorr mumes
TOWN: = o o s 5 B8 . VIRGINIA CITY Parcel Map ID..
Property Name....... COURTHOUSE Confidential.. _
Remarks............. _
P%gcel # Containing Descriptive/Document Data.... LLand Use: 400

Size . .

Total Acres... 471 Square Feet.... 20,503
Ag Acres...... .000 W/R Acres...... .000

FO9=Scan >/< > F5=Addr Hist F10=0Othr Func F12=Cancel _F14=Imprv/Apprsl Data
F15=Legal Description F16=Misc Notes Fl17=Factoring History F20=Tax Years
F21=Personal Property F22=Ag Land F23=Exempt ions F24=Livestock Counts

&(
o



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/06/16 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: The applicant requests a special use permit allowing: (a) a
single-family dwelling combined with a non-dwelling use (combined residence-barn) that will separately
house humans, animals, and agricultural equipment; (b) the maintenance of up to 80 large domestic animals
and various accessory structures for sheltering, feeding, watering, protecting, and servicing the animal; and
(c) a temporary (up to one year) occupancy watchperson’s travel trailer on property located at 199 Scales
Road, American Flat, Storey County, Nevada (APNs 004.331.40; 004.331.08; and 004.331.22).

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the planning commission,
the findings of fact under Section 3.1 of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the board,
and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I [commissioner] motion to approve with conditions
Special Use Permit No. 2016-030 allowing: (a) single-family dwelling combined with a non-dwelling use
(combined residence-barn) that will separately house humans, animals, and agricultural equipment; (b) the
maintenance of up to 80 large domestic animals and various accessory structures for sheltering, feeding,
watering, protecting, and servicing the animal; and (c¢) a temporary (up to one year) occupancy
watchperson’s travel trailer on property located at 199 Scales Road, American Flat, Storey County, Nevada
(APNs 004.331.40; 004.331.08; and 004.331.22).

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.0968

5. Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2016-030

6. Supporting materials: Enclosed Staff Report No. 2016-030

7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:

District Attorney
9. Reviewed by:

_(@’__ Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:
10. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. | 8



Storey County
Planning Commission

Staff Report
CASE NoO.: 2016-030
APPLICANT: Sally Summers
PROPERTY OWNER: Comstock Mining, LLC
PROPERTY LOCATION: 199 Scales Road, American Flat, Storey County, Nevada (APNs

004.331.40; 004.331.08; and 004.331.22)

REQUEST: The applicant requests a special use permit allowing: (a) a single-
family dwelling combined with a non-dwelling use (combined
residence-barn) that will separately house humans, animals, and
agricultural equipment; (b) the maintenance of up to 80 large
domestic animals and various accessory structures for sheltering,
feeding, watering, protecting, and servicing the animal; and (c) a
temporary (up to one year) occupancy watchperson’s travel trailer
on property located at 199 Scales Road, American Flat, Storey
County, Nevada (APNs 004.331.40; 004.331.08; and 004.331.22).

MEETING LOCATION: Storey County Courthouse
26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada

MEETING TIME & DATE: Planning Commission: 6:00 p.m., Thursday, December 1, 2016
County Commission: 10:00 a.m., Tuesday, December 6, 2016

STAFF CONTACT: Austin Osborne, Planning Director

1 0of 24



Staff Report — 2016-030 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — F Zone Uses 775.847.1144

1. BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS

1.1 Site characteristics

The subject property is located in the F Forestry zone. The property is located at 199 Scales Road
at American Flat approximately four miles west from State Route 342 in Gold Hill and one mile
north of the Storey-Lyon County boundary. Each subject parcel exceeds the 40 acres and the
combination the subject parcels is approximately 200 acres. The subject parcels are contiguous.
The properties are vacant except for minor accessory improvements that have occurred in the
past month before the applicant was aware of the special use permit requirements.

1.2 Proposed use

The applicant proposes to construct a single-family residential dwelling on the subject property.
The dwelling will be combined with a non-dwelling use (barn) that will house animals and
agricultural equipment. The applicant also proposes to maintain up to 80 horses or other large
domestic animals on the property and construct various accessory structures for sheltering,
protecting, and servicing the animals. The animals will be fed in a controlled manner and,
therefore, there will be no pastures created or mass grading on the premises. The proposed use is
non-commercial and, therefore, will not facilitate commercial business or public visitors, except
volunteer and other works caring for the animals and providing maintenance and security. A
travel trailer providing for a site security person is proposed to be located at the site for up to one
year. The proposed uses may only occur on the subject property with a special use permit.

1.3  Abutting uses

The subject property and the surrounding area are mostly vacant and remotely located at the
south central area of American Flat. The property abuts the V&T Railroad on its south and west
boundaries, and a single-family residence exists approximately 2,000 feet to the west. Most other
surrounding land is federally owned and managed by the Bureau of Land Management. All
surrounding parcels exceed 40 acres and are zoned F Forestry.

1.4  Safety

The subject property is accessed by unpaved Scales Road. The Storey County Fire Protection
District has been informed of the use location. The fire district requires that the road to the
premises and circulation ways therein sufficiently facilitate emergency vehicles and equipment.
The principal dwelling construction must adhere to all building and fire plan reviews and
applicable code requirements. The fire district and building department may require fire resistive
construction and/or separation between living and non-living spaces of a building. The code will
at a minimum require application of Class A roofing materials such as asphalt composition
shingles.

1.5 Area impacts

When managed properly and in accordance with the recommended conditions of the special use
permit, the proposed use appears to impose minimal impacts on the surrounding uses. The
principal residence and barn combination use is consistent with other properties in the general
vicinity that include single-family residences and large barns and accessory outbuildings. The
agricultural use, however, will require consistent maintenance in order to maintain order, and
public health and safety for abutting and area uses. A detailed discussion of the potential impacts
and remedies is contained in the following subsections.

20f24



Staff Report — 2016-030 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — F Zone Uses 775.847.1144

L.5.1

1.5.2

1.5.3

1.5.4

Permanent principal residence

Permanent single-family residential uses are allowable in the Forestry zone with a special
use permit when they serve to maintain the rural character of land in that zone. The
proposed permanent residence will be located on 40 or more acres of land and it appears
to conform to the requirement of maintaining the rural character of the surrounding area.

The single-family dwelling will occupy a loft area of a large barn or equipment storage
building. Co-location of living and non-living space within a single building is not an
uncommon situation in Storey County. This type of combined use is allowable by the
International Building Code when proper structural and fire separations are in place
between residential and non-residential spaces. This combination use also appears to
conform to maintaining the rural character of the surrounding Forestry zoned area.

Temporary watchperson dwelling

The application states that a travel trailer or recreational vehicle will be maintained on the
subject property for up to one year. The unit will provide shelter and may provide
temporary residence for a site watchperson. The unit was approved for use by the
Comstock Historic District for up to six months of use. Before the unit is occupied by a
residence, it should be required to be connected to the on-site well and septic that will
later service the proposed permanent residence. This will preempt the potential for illegal
dumping of black and gray water from the unit. The unit should be disconnected from the
well and septic, converted to non-living use, and removed from the subject property once
the year period has passed. The trailer may be stored on-site thereafter as allowed by the
county code. The watchperson dwelling should be allowed for up to one year unless the
Comstock Historic District imposes more stringent time limitations on the use.

Animals and density

There are no provisions limiting the maximum number of domestic animals that may
occupy a parcel in the F Forestry zone, except when the density creates an “Industrial
Agriculture” use such as a stockyard. Storey County Code 17.40 E Estate Zone, however,
contains provisions limiting the number and density of animals on a given parcel. Storey
County Code 17.40.020(F) allows up 16 large domestic animals on a 40 acre parcel in the
E Estate zone. The codes states further that there must be a minimum of 400 square-feet
provided to each penned large domestic animal and that this entire area must be less than
10 percent grade slope. Planning staff recommends that these provisions in Chapter 17.40
are incorporated into the subject special use permit. Accordingly, the total number of
large domestic animals on the subject property (the entire 200 +/- acres) would not
exceed 80, and that the density would not exceed 2.5 per acre or 16 per 40 acres.

Accessory structures

The subject property will be developed with accessory buildings and structures providing
shelter, food and water, and security for the proposed animals. These structures will be in
addition to the proposed principal residence and barn. The accessory structures will be
required to conform to setback distances and other limitations in Storey County Code
17.32.041 Setback Requirements in the Forestry Zone and 17.12 General Provisions for
accessory structures. The required setback distances between buildings and the property
boundaries are established by Storey County Code 17.32.041 Setback Requirements in
the Forestry zone. The setback requirements are front, 30 feet; rear 40 feet, and side 30

3of24



Staff Report — 2016-030 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — F Zone Uses 775.847.1144

L.5.5

L.5.5

1.5.6

1.5.7

feet. Buildings may not exceed three stories or 35 feet, whichever is higher, except as
allowed by a variance. The height limitation does not apply to grain silos, water towers,
and other such structures listed in the county code. See Section 1.6 below for discussion
regarding limitations for fencing and gating Scales Road.

Emergency plan

An emergency plan needs to be submitted to the fire district for review and approval prior
to obtaining rights to this special use permit. For the safety of humans and animals on the
property, the plan must include the emergency contact phone numbers for the property
manager and special use permit holder; emergency contact procedure, including for
Emergency 9-1-1 and Storey County Emergency Direct-Connect 775.847.0950 from
cellular telephone; documenting and reporting procedures, and other items determined
appropriate by the fire district. All personnel and clients on the property need to be
informed by the applicant to dial Emergency Services Direct-Connect 775.847.0950 (in
lieu of Emergency 9-11) from cellular telephones during times of emergencies.

Emergency services access

The permit holder must develop sufficient access, circulation, and staging areas for
emergency vehicles and equipment. The surfaces must be maintained at all times as
required by the fire district. The access plan needs to be included in the emergency plan.

Dust and erosion

The proposed use will involve the maintenance of up to 80 large domestic animals on
approximately 200 acres with most of the animals concentrated on 40 or less acres of the
subject property.

The property is currently unimproved and is almost entirely naturally vegetated with
sagebrush and wild grasses. The applicant stated that mass grading will not occur on the
property. If mass grading were to occur, airborne dust during wind events would likely be
difficult to manage. Therefore, the special use permit should not allow mass grading. The
applicant, however, owns or leases water rights to the property and could potentially use
the water to irrigate the land for pasture. Allowing native vegetation to be replaced with
pasture grass does not appear problematic so long as the pasture is maintained. Failure to
irrigate and otherwise maintain the pasture may result in ongoing airborne dust hazards,
erosion from stormwater and wind, and the proliferation of non-native noxious weeds.
The holder of the special use permit should be responsible for wetting all disturbed arcas
during wind events and for otherwise maintaining erosion and dust control.

Outdoor lighting

The subject use may include lighting typically found on residential and commercial use,
including building and field lighting. Outdoor lighting must comply with Storey County
Code 8.02 Outdoor Lighting (“dark-skies™) in order to prevent unnecessary glare and
light trespass onto area properties and minimize its visual impact in the region.

4 of 24



Staff Report — 2016-030 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — F Zone Uses 775.847.1144

1.5.8

L5.9

1.5.10

1.5.11

Noise

Storey County Code 17.32.060 requires that motorized generators in the Forestry zone
are muffled and installed a sound-insulated structure in order to mitigate noise in the rural
environment subject to this zone. The special use permit should address mitigation of
noise emitted from other motorized machinery as well.

Visual impacts

The subject property is remotely located toward the southern boundary of American Flat.
However, the property abuts the V&T Railroad and is distantly visible from Gold Hill
and the Divide. The site should be kept orderly and clean in order to mitigate potential
adverse visual impacts experienced from tourists riding on the V&T Railroad.
Additionally, earth-tone and non-reflective coatings and colors should be applied to
buildings and large surfaces on the subject property in order to reduce contrast and visible
presence against the surrounding natural environment. Structures on property must
otherwise conform to the requirements of the Comstock Historic District Commission.

Site sanitation

The entire premises and arcas around the premises must be kept clean at all times. There
shall be no trash allowed to accumulate on the subject property or fugitive trash allowed
to exit the premises without immediate removal. Trash shall be properly disposed of in a
licensed landfill facility each week. The permit holder is responsible for picking up all
manure from animal enclosures each day and removing all collected manure from the
property within each 14 day period. No manure should be allowed accumulate on the
property, and on-site composting shall not be deemed an appropriate method of disposal.
Manure should be deposited in a licensed landfill facility either by prescribed trash pick-
up or personal transport to said facility or transfer station.

Maintaining a healthy and sanitary environment includes providing adequate and
properly maintained restroom facilities. The applicant should provide portable restrooms
or allow occupants to use permanent facilities existing on the subject property.

Noxious weed abatement

Each year Storey County, the Dayton Valley Conservation District, and Carson Water
Subconservancy District employ significant efforts and funding toward the abatement of
noxious weeds in the county, including in American Flat and Gold Hill. Annual noxious
weed treatment and eradication efforts benefit the wildlands in Storey County and
agricultural lands downstream in Dayton and Lahontan Valleys.

Imported animal feed (hay) has been identified as a major seed source in certain areas in
the county. Animals associated with the proposed use will be fed with imported hay. The
permit holder should be required to submit a plan which addresses the management of
imported hay so that noxious weed proliferation in the area is prevented. The permit
holder will also be required to comply with NRSs and fire district requirements for weed
and fire fuels management.

5of24



Staff Report — 2016-030 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — F Zone Uses 775.847.1144

1.5.12 Animal Health

All large domestic animals on the subject property must meet all equivalent Nevada State
health regulations regarding examinations and immunizations. Certifications and other
proof of compliance with state health requirements should be made available for review
by the county and the State of Nevada officials.

1.5.13 Humane Animal Treatment

The permit holder shall be responsible for assuring that each animal living on the
premises (up to 80 large domestic animals) is treated humanely and is provided adequate
and appropriate nourishment, nutritional supplements, water, and shelter. Specifically, all
animals shall receive the following treatment:

a. Appropriate medical care.
b. High quality, clean, and mold free hay/grain, at least twice daily.
Clean, safe, and ice-free water and salt blocks (as applicable).

d. Adequate shelter from wind, rain, snow, direct sun, heat, and other elements.
Shelters shall be appropriately designed for the type of animal and such as to
protect them from predators. If sheep and goats are to be placed on the property,
they shall be provided at least one companion, of similar or different breed or
species, in the living quarters. No animal may be tethered except temporarily
during training exercises and when directly supervised. All animals living on the
property shall receive no less than 60 minutes exercise in the open arena areas per
day and shall be provided an appropriate amount of rest, shade, food, and water
between trainings and exercises.

1.5.14 Carson River Mercury Superfund Site (“CRMSS”)

The applicant will acknowledge by accepting the special use permit that portions of the
subject property may be within or applicable to the CRMSS. Properly managing
disturbances of existing and former mine and mill sites, mill tailings, mine waste, mine
material, and other areas that are found to contain Contaminant of Concern (CoC’s) as
applicable to the CRMSS will be the sole responsibility of the permit holder as
communicated thereto by the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection. Handling,
redistributing or reprocessing CoC impacted materials by the holder must be completed
in accordance with the requirements of the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection.

1.6 Prescriptive easement — Scales Road

Scales Road runs north to south through the approximate center of American Flat and it
encroaches into the subject property along its approximate castern boundary. The road connects
American City Road and American Flat Road, thus providing a connecter through American Flat
and from Gold Hill to Mound House, Lyon County. The road is graded and includes shoulder
drainage improvements, but it is not paved or graveled. The road is a public right-of-way
established by prescriptive easement and it is regularly maintained by Storey County. The
applicant recently fenced off and gated Scales Road and installed “No Trespassing” signs at both
entrances. The applicant was ordered by county officials to reopen the road and allow public
access. The applicant has since not reopened the road but has maintained unlocked gates. This
road must remain ungated and open to the public. The applicant may, however, realign the road
within the subject property as desired as long as the realigned road is developed to standards

6 of 24



Staff Report — 2016-030 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — F Zone Uses 775.847.1144

similar to the existing road, and that it provides equivalent access to the existing beginning and
terminus points.

1.7 Stop-Work-Order

On October 17, 2016, building and planning staff witnessed construction and other activities
occurring at the subject property without a building permit application on-file. A visit to the site
also availed that the applicant fenced and gated a public road (see Section 1.6). Staff met with
the applicant about these matters. The applicant stated that it was not known that a special use
permit was needed to develop the land and that Scales Road was subject to open public access.
The structures found on the site appeared to be less than 200 square-feet and not requiring a
building permit. A stop-work-order was issued and the applicant was provided opportunity to
apply for a special use permit.

Officinl Muaster Plan
Map of Storey County
Gold Hill, The Divide,

American Fiat

Awvertcan |
Sub-Planning Arca

Netideas iah

Figure 1: Master Plan Desiignation Map. The 2016 Storey County Master Plan designates the subject
land (red dotted area shown above) as Resource. The proposed use conforms to the Resource master

plan designation.

Figure 2: Zoning Map. The yellow box illustrates the approximate location of the subject property.

7 of 24



Staff Report — 2016-030 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — F Zone Uses 775.847.1144

{4 ¢ Tl
o oA AUNEIAS

b4

\ Residence [
£ -

L
y

& ‘,ll'lll'l'l"'lﬂ‘lll. -1-

Mine Process
Heap Leach

b Y
w B
g
LB &
0. B
“
X
~
0
3

S BABRBRAER” B

-Storey-Lyon Co.
boundary

American Flat Rd.

” Jtolale] g/
Imiage Couresyof USCS imaoa courte /y of the Nevada Stale Mapping Advisory Comnities Eartist
Il "

imam corrtesy of LSGS Imans cornesy of the Nevada State Maooing Advisary Comimitas Eiietsr Geodrachics SI0 8 2016 Mic rosoft Corntration & 2048 HERE 8 AND

Figure 3: Vicinity map and uses. The subject land is outlined yellow and the land in which the principal
residence and barn, and the first phases of development, are shown in the dotted yellow area.

8 of 24



Staff Report — 2016-030 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — F Zone Uses 775.847.1144

Proposed dwelling
V&T Railroad ; and corrals

Existing residence
2,000" +/- west

Figure 4: Vicinity illustration. The subject land is remotely located at the south end of American Flat;
however, it abuts the V&T Railroad and is vislible from at least one area residence located approximately
2,000 feet to the west as shown in the second image.

90f24



Staff Report — 2016-030 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — F Zone Uses 775.847.1144

Figure 5: Scales Road. The appicant gated and fenced Scales Road and installed “No Tresspassing” signs.
The applicant proposes to move the fence to the right as shown by the arrow and remove the gate so
that Scales Road is outisde of the project area.

10 of 24



Staff Report — 2016-030 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — F Zone Uses 775.847.1144

2 USE COMPATIBILITY AND COMPLIANCE

2.1  Special Use Permit Required

The Forestry zone is established to protect areas having important environmental qualities in the
county from unnecessary degradation and to provide areas of very low density residential and
other uses. All uses in the Forestry require a special use permit approved by the board with
action by the planning commission. The uses listed in the application including, one single-
family dwelling of permanent character and location; general agricultural uses and accessory
structures related to the agricultural use; and wildlife refuges are listed in Storey County Code
17.32.020 as allowed with a special use permit. Accessory uses, buildings, and structures for
non-agricultural uses are also allowed by section 17.32.025 of the code with a special use permit
if they are clearly incidental to another permitted use.

2.3 Compatibility with surrounding uses and zones

The following table shows uses, zoning classifications, and master plan designations for the land
at and surrounding the proposal. There are no evident conflicts between the proposal and Storey
County Code Title 17 Zoning or the county master plan. The proposed use is also consistent with
the surrounding single-family residential uses.

AREA DESCRIPTION

LAND USE MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION | ZONING
APPLICANT’S | Vacant, several accessory Resource F Forestry
LAND structures
LAND TO Vacant Resource F Forestry
NORTH
LLAND TO Vacant Resource F Forestry
SOuTH
LAND TO Vacant Resource F Forestry
EAST
LAND TO Vacant; V&T Railroad Resource F Forestry
WEST alignment

2.4  Conformance with the 2016 Storey County Master Plan

The 2016 Storey County Master Plan describes American Flat as a largely undeveloped four
square-mile valley to the southwest of Virginia City and to the west of Gold Hill. The area is
described as being home to several single-family residences, abundant public lands and
recreation opportunities, and mining related uses including a large-operations cyanide heap-leach
mine processing facility. The master plan also explains that American Flat is home to a
significant portion of the V&T Railroad, and that the railroad is a major part of the tourism
economy of Comstock communities. Uses allowed to occur in American Flat should be carefully
analyzed to ensure that they contribute to master plan goals for orderly, efficient, and sustainable
development; contribute to the compatibility between existing and future uses; do not hinder the

11 of 24



Staff Report — 2016-030 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — F Zone Uses 775.847.1144

advancement and diversity of the local economy from tourism and other sources (Chapter 3 Land
Use, pp. 108-119) and do not detract from or cause substantial degradation of historic resources
on the Comstock (Chapter 11 Cultural and Historic Resources, pp. 23-24).

The master plan emphasizes that despite the remote location of American Flat, “careful
consideration should be taken to assure that all allowed uses and growth patterns conform to the
historic character of the Comstock™ (Chapter 3 Land Use, p. 36). Comstock IHistoric District
Approval is required for all structures and buildings associated with the proposed use (see
Exhibit B Historic District Approval Certificate). If approval is obtained for the structures by the
Comstock Historic District; if the site is managed to remain clean and orderly; and if the subject
animals are provided proper care, the site does not appear to conflict with the provisions of the
master plan described in this section.

3 FINDINGS OF FACT

3.1 Motion for approval

The following findings of fact are evident with regard to the requested variance when the
recommended conditions of approval in Section V Recommended Conditions of Approval, are
applied.

1. The special use permit does not conflict with the provisions of the 2016 Storey County
Master Plan including the goals and objectives listed in Chapter 3 Land Use and Chapter
11 Cultural and Historic Resources, including as related for the maintenance of an
orderly, efficient, and sustainable development; compatibility between existing and future
uses; the advancement and diversity of the local economy from tourism and other
sources; and for the preservation of historic and cultural resources for the subject area.

2. The special use permit will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on
the adjacent properties or the surrounding area.

3. The conditions of the special use permit adequately address potential structure and
wildland fire hazards and require compliance with the applicable fire codes, including
setback and fire protection ratings.

4. The conditions of this special use permit do not conflict with the minimum requirements
in Storey County Code 17.32 F Forestry Zone, or any other federal, state, or county
regulations, including building and fire codes.

3.2 Motion for denial

Should a motion be made to deny the variance request, the following findings with explanation
why should be included in that motion.

1. Substantial evidence shows that the special use permit may conflict with the purpose,
intent, and other specific requirements of Storey County Code 17.32 F Forestry Zone, or
any other federal, state, or county regulations, including building and fire codes.

2. The conditions under the special use permit do not adequately mitigate potential adverse
impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential safety hazards for surrounding
uses.

12 of 24



Staff Report — 2016-030 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — F Zone Uses 775.847.1144

4 RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

All conditions must be met 1o the satisfaction of each applicable county department, unless
otherwise stated.

| P

Purpose

This special use permit is granted for the purpose of allowing: (a) permanent single-
family dwelling combined with a non-dwelling use (combined dwelling and agriculture
barn) that will separately house humans, animals, and agricultural equipment; (b) the
maintenance of up to 80 large domestic animals (e.g., horses) and various accessory
structures for sheltering, feeding, watering, protecting, and servicing the large domestic
animals; and (c) a temporary (up to one year) watchperson’s travel-trailer on property
located at 199 Scales Road, American Flat, Storey County, Nevada (APNs 004.331.40;
004.331.08; and 004.331.22).

Transfer of rights

This special use permit belongs exclusively to Sally Summers and/or Horse Power and
the real property associated with this permit so long as the permit holder owns or leases
the property. This special use permit is non-transferable.

Compliance

The special use permit must comply with federal, state, and county codes and regulations
and the submitted plans and reports, as approved. The permit holder must provide the
building department site plans drawn to scale prior to obtaining a building permit.

Permits and expiration

The permit holder must apply for all building and fire permits for the structures
associated herewith within 24 months from the date of board (Board of Storey County
Commissioners) approval, and continuously maintain the validity of those permits, as
appropriate, or obtain a certificate of occupancy or equivalent approval, or this special
use permit approval will become null and void.

Temporary watchperson’s trailer

A travel trailer/recreational vehicle may be placed on the subject property and occupied
by a resident/watchperson for up to one year commencing on the day of this special use
permit approval. The use must be connected to a permitted well and septic system (later
to be serve the permanent dwelling) if the use is to provide residential quarters for the
watchperson during the allowed time. The temporary dwelling must be disconnected
from the well and septic after this time and it must be converted to a non-occupancy use
(stored) as allowed by the applicable Storey County code or removed from the property.

Animal density and use

Up to 80 large domestic animals may occupy the entire subject property. Large domestic
animals are those listed in the Storey County code, including but not limited to, horses,
burrows, donkeys, and cattle, whether domesticated or not. Up to 10 large domestic
animals may be kept on any one acre of graded corral area, and there must be a minimum
of 400 square-feet of area that is less than 10 percent slope provided to each animal in

13 of 24



Staff Report — 2016-030 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — F Zone Uses 775.847.1144

10.

11.

12.

these penned areas. The density of large domestic animals outside of graded and corral
areas on the subject property must not exceed 2.5 (16 animals per 40 acres).

Accessory structures

The subject property may be developed with accessory buildings and structures providing
shelter, food and water, and security for the large domestic animals. These structures will
be in addition to the proposed principal residence and barn. The accessory structures will
be required to conform to setback distance and height limitations in Storey County Code
17.32.041 Setback Requirements in the Forestry Zone and 17.12 General Provisions for
accessory structures. Other accessory structures must comply with SCC 17.32 and 17.12.

Improvements

The property must be developed with a domestic well and septic system adequate in
capacity to meet the minimum requirements for a single-family residence and other
permitted uses on the subject property. There must also be adequate water supply, as
determined by the fire district, for on-site fire suppression.

Restrooms

The permit holder must provide an adequate and properly maintained permanent or
portable restroom facility on the subject property for occupants and visitors.

Record of survey

The applicant must submit to the building department a Record of Survey or proof of
property corners by a licensed surveyor with the building permit application. The
evidence must show existing parcel boundaries, easements, and right-of-ways within 100
feet of all permitted structures. No building may be constructed over an easement or
right-of-way, or within a building setback area.

Public access ways

All public right-of-ways including, but not limited to Scales Road, and access easements
must remain open to the public and not be gated, fenced, barricaded, or otherwise made
to be inaccessible to the public. Signs indicating no trespassing and other such restrictions
shall not be situated such as to imply restrictions to public access on the right-of-ways
and access easements. The permit holder may, however, realign Scales Road and other
roads within the subject property as desired as long as the realigned road(s) is developed
to standards similar to the road(s) existing at the time of submittal of the special use
permit application, and provides equivalent access to existing start and end points.

Emergency plan

An emergency plan must be submitted to the Storey County Fire Protection District for
review and approval prior to obtaining rights to develop the land pursuant to this special
use permit. The permit holder and the subject property must be in compliance with the
approved emergency plan. The plan must include:

e Basic company owner, site, and emergency contact information.
¢ Plot plan including detailed sketch drawings of the premises, arcas of activity
including structures, corrals, and other accessory uses.

14 of 24



Staff Report — 2016-030 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — F Zone Uses 775.847.1144

e Emergency contact procedure, including for Emergency 9-1-1 and Storey County
Emergency Direct-Connect 775.847.0950 from cellular telephone; documenting
and reporting procedures, and other items determined appropriate by the fire
district. All personnel and clients on the property must be informed by the permit
holder to dial Emergency Services Direct-Connect 775.847.0950 (in lieu of
Emergency 9-11) from cellular telephones during times of emergencies.

e Wildland fire prevention and suppression, including water storage and flows for
wildland fire suppression and fire fuels management.

Emergency vehicle access, circulation, and staging.

Documenting and reporting of emergency situations.

Documenting and reporting of Nevada Division of Environmental Protection and
other environmental permits and notices.

e Noxious weed management.

e Environmental management and Best Management Practices (BMP).

13. Signage

14.

15

16.

17.

Legible signage shall be placed at appropriate entry points of the premises. The signage
must state the name of company/organization, street address (or descriptive location),
contact phone number(s), and other information required by the fire district,

Site inspections

The permit holder must provide the building department and planning department site
plans (hand-drawn is acceptable) reasonably drawn to scale, of the overall site layout,
animal shelters, and other accessory structures associated with this special use permit.
The property layout and design, construction, and placement of each shelter/accessory
structure will be subject to inspection and approval of the building official, director of
planning, or their designees. The building official and director of planning or their
designees shall reserve the right to make periodic inspections and impose requirements as
thereby deemed appropriate.

Emergency access

The permit holder must develop sufficient access, circulation, and staging areas for
emergency vehicles and equipment, The surfaces must be maintained at all times as
required by the fire district. The access plan needs to be included in the emergency plan.

Noise management

The use of motorized generators and equipment is limited to daytime hours between 7:00
a.m. to 6:00 p.m. and Monday through Saturday. Noise on the subject property is
otherwise limited by Storey County Code 8.04 Noise Limitations.

Dust management

This special use permit recognizes that the subject property is almost entirely covered in
natural vegetation and that this vegetation effectively prevents soil erosion from wind and
stormwater. Mass grading shall not occur on the property, except as may be necessary for
principal and accessory structures, corrals, and driveways. Up to 5 cumulative acres of
the subject property may be graded. Appropriate dust and erosion control shall be applied
to areas where grading does occur.

15 of 24



Staff Report — 2016-030 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — F Zone Uses 775.847.1144

18.

19.

20.

21,

22.

23

24,

Stormwater management

Any increased stormwater from development of the land must be detained on-site or
directed appropriately to the abutting public right-of-ways and not allowed to enter
abutting private propertics. Stormwater drainage onto the right-of-way must be to the
satisfaction of the Public Works Director,

Site sanitation

The entire premises and areas around the premises must be kept clean at all times. There
shall be no trash, rubbish, or junk allowed to accumulate on the subject property or
fugitive trash allowed to exit the premises without immediate removal. Trash shall be
properly disposed of in a licensed landfill facility each week.

The permit holder is responsible for picking up all manure from animal enclosures each
day and removing all collected manure from the property within each 2 week period. No
manure shall be permitted to accumulate on the property and on-site composting shall not
be deemed an appropriate method of disposal. Manure shall be deposited in a licensed
landfill facility either by prescribed trash pick-up or personal transport to said facility or
transfer station.

Noxious weed abatement

The permit holder must submit to the planning department a plan to mitigate the
proliferation of invasive weed species (with emphasis on hoary cress and perennial
pepperweed). The plan must address the weed-seed management of imported hay and
other seed-containing feed and how graded and disturbed surfaces will be managed to
prevent the germination and proliferation of invasive weed species. The plan will apply to
entire subject property and must conform to the applicable state or federal regulations,
and the requirements imposed by this special use permit and the fire district. The permit
holder must conform to the plan.

Outdoor lighting management

The subject use may include lighting typically found on residential and commercial use,
including building and field lighting. Outdoor lighting must comply with Storey County
Code 8.02 Outdoor Lighting in order to prevent unnecessary glare and light trespass onto
area properties and minimize its visual impact in the region,

Visual impact

Earth-tone and non-reflective coatings and colors must be applied to all structures on the
subject property in order to lessen visibility from Gold Hill, Virginia City, and the V&T
Railroad. Structures on the subject property must otherwise conform to the requirements
of the Comstock Historic District Commission.

. Animal health

All large domestic animals on the subject property must meet all equivalent Nevada State
health regulations regarding examinations and immunizations.

Animal humane treatment

The permit holder shall be responsible for assuring that each animal living on the
premises (up to 80 large domestic animals) is treated humanely and is provided adequate

16 of 24



Staff Report — 2016-030 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — F Zone Uses 775.847.1144

25.

26.

27.

and appropriate nourishment, nutritional supplements, water, and shelter. Specifically, all
animals must receive the following treatment:

a. Appropriate medical care.
b. High quality, clean, and mold free hay/grain, at least twice daily.
c. Clean, safe, and ice-free water and salt blocks (as applicable).

d. Adequate shelter from wind, rain, snow, direct sun, heat, and other weather
elements. Shelters shall be appropriately designed for the type of animal and such
as to protect them from predators. Sheep and goats shall be provided at least one
companion, of similar or different breed or species, in its living quarters. No
animal may be tethered except temporarily during training exercises and when
directly supervised.

e. All animals living on the property must receive no less than 60 minutes exercise
in the open arena areas per day and they must be provided an appropriate amount
of rest, shade, food, and water between trainings and exercises.

Carson River Mercury Superfund Site (“CRMSS”)

By accepting this special use permit, the permit holder acknowledges that portions of the
subject property may be within or applicable to the CRMSS. Properly managing
disturbances of existing and former mine and mill sites, mill tailings, mine waste, mine
material, and other areas that are found to contain Contaminant of Concern (CoC’s) as
applicable to the CRMSS will be the sole responsibility of the permit holder as
communicated thereto by the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection. Handling,
redistributing or reprocessing CoC impacted materials by the holder must be completed
in accordance with the requirements of the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection.

Taxes paid

Before obtaining a building permit, the holder of the special use permit must show the
building department valid evidence that all property taxes on the land are paid to-date.
Million insurance

Indemnification

The holder of the special use permit agrees to hold Storey County, its officers and
representatives harmless from the cost and responsibilities associated with any damage or
liability, and any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a result of this
special use permit.

17 of 24



Staff Report — 2016-030 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — F Zone Uses 775.847.1144

S POWER OF THE BOARD & PLANNING COMMISSION

At the conclusion of the hearing, the planning commission must take such action thereon as it
deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by formal
resolution, and such resolution must recite the findings of the planning commission upon which
it bases its decision. The decision of the planning commission in the matter of granting the
special use permit is advisory only to the Board of County Commissioners and that governing
body must consider the report and recommendation and must make such a decision thereon as it
deems warranted.

6 PROPOSED MOTIONS

This section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is
recommended by staff in accordance with the findings under section 3.1 of this report. Those
findings should be made part of that motion. A motion for denial may be made and that motion
should cite one or more of the findings shown in section 3.2. Other findings of fact determined
appropriate by the planning commission should be made part of either motion.

A. Recommended motion

In accordance with the recommendation by staff, the findings of fact under Section 3.1
of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the planning commission, and
in compliance with the conditions of approval, I [planning commissioner] recommend
approval with conditions Special Use Permit No. 2016-030 allowing: (a) single-family
dwelling combined with a non-dwelling use (combined residence-barn) that will
separately house humans, animals, and agricultural equipment; (b) the maintenance of
up to 80 large domestic animals and various accessory structures for sheltering,
feeding, watering, protecting, and servicing the animal; and (c) for a temporary (up to
one year) occupancy watchperson’s travel trailer on property located at 199 Scales
Road, American Flat, Storey County, Nevada (APNs 004.331.40; 004.331.08; and
004.331.22).

B. Alternative motion

Against the recommendation by staff, but in accordance with the findings of fact under
Section 3.2 of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the planning
commission, I [planning commissioner] recommend denial of Special Use Permit No.
2016-030 allowing: (a) single-family dwelling combined with a non-dwelling use
(combined residence-barn) that will separately house humans, animals, and agricultural
equipment; (b) the maintenance of up to 80 large domestic animals and various
accessory structures for sheltering, feeding, watering, protecting, and servicing the
animal; and (c¢) for a temporary (up to one year) occupancy watchperson’s travel trailer
on property located at 199 Scales Road, American Flat, Storey County, Nevada (APNs
004.331.40; 004.331.08; and 004.331.22).

Prepared by Austin Osborne, Planning Director

Enclosures: (A) Vicinity map; (B) Historic District certificate; (C) Application No. 2016-030

18 of 24



775.847.1144

Storey County Planning Department

Special Use Permit — F Zone Uses

Staff Report — 2016-030

Exhibit A — Assessor’s vicinity map

Wy PGP G R )0 S l;ll‘l
ARG 0K, oz v jarta) 108 909 1 A0 el sagememn gt

B e 3370 e w33 2ty phcnsod By b wew |

VAVAIN "AINNOD XTa01S

ALINNOD  A3MOLS

VA/BL 120/ 8¥00/ 100
o PIOSD
W/ FR2/TIOD /A

-

19 of 24



Staff Report — 2016-030 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — F Zone Uses 775.847.1144

04-33

’

Deraw D

paee v — ———r

LT 5

20 of 24



775.847.1144

Storey County Planning Department

Special Use Permit — F Zone Uses

Staff Report — 2016-030

) : 2
H [3 REIBPUEIS  iesR RS v h er0L o b
Vo t.?oo AZHOLS 1dog 4y fa peasseds Semen vepsiasel o1 sbsessns '
: ‘privavies o103 s%| o <3 13" peunss ‘
)
_:I “v_OmV o f:_...-: N ...-.:. e

‘.
PRe [100 BEM UINESISTO 0] 1) KOFE wanl . Ji0m

®Q\ -
)

—

SN ALY YUK Q0D

&

WR'EOW "'2N28 ‘NSIL

8z -zo CD @ ‘8 /S 'L MNN
B LS L3INgN

Z2-70 ‘afsac‘,3i'C 28

— 2

D e et

e 4 b L

Wi

21 of 24



Staff Report — 2016-030 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — F Zone Uses 775.847.1144

Exhibit B — Comstock Historic District certificate of approval

STATE OF NEVADA
COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION
P.0O. BOX 128
VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA 89440

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS
This Certilicate verifies that pursusnl to Nevada Revised Statutes Section 384,110,

/ V‘/\j; — W /674. “‘7‘ 5 Y nine S ,owner

has made application to the Comstock IMistoric District Commission for a Cerlificate of
Appropriateness for work to be conducted on the structure located at:

/&M gb{lﬁ‘a Qé\ A’Mﬁcm. ﬂeﬁ”

property address/description

This upplication has beea reviewed by the Comstock Historic District Comemnission in
accordance with Chapter 384 of the Nevada Revised Statutes. The proposed project as described
in the application on file with the Commission’s office, as amended at the public meeling before

" the Commission if applicable, has been deemed approptiate to the preservation of the Comstock
Historic District. “The work specified below or in detail in Exhibit A attached here to and made
parl thereof, may now be commenced. This certificale shall not be effective without said
description or attachment. This certificate will be in force and effect until:

Cg\! ZL , 20 { 27 unless there is a violation thereof !

The observation of work not in keeping with this certificate shall constitute due cause for the
issuance of a Stop Work Order and legal action pursuant to NRS 384,190 to 384.200 ioclusive

This certificate is not valid or effective until signed by the owner of the property in question
ot his representatlive and the Chair of the CHDC or his duly appointed representative,

?C\A&u/l C)L-t(‘jﬁ %/ paEe
\N,L//oow\ Sl’\e {u"@v/

CO/*’A(S \.emf) ‘**l'd\(llf

?5&35@ - / ‘
{a; air, CHOC 6 WG JMS

22 of 24



Staff Report — 2016-030 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — F Zone Uses 775.847.1144

Exhibit B — Comstock Historic District certificate of approval

STATE OF NEVADA
COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION
P.O. BOX 128
VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA 89440

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS
This Certificate verifies that pursugnt to Nevada Revised Statules Section 384.110,

ey
[ ML L /‘74, U‘f g U e S .owner
has made application to the Comslock Historic Districl Commission for a Certificate of
Appropriateness for work (o be conducted on the structure located ul:

(44 Sedes Qo\ AWN‘CM»L ?L’d‘

property address/description

This application has been reviewed by the Comstock Historic District Comemission in
accordance with Chapter 384 of the Nevada Revised Statutes. The proposed project as described
in the application on file with-the Commission’s office, as amended at the public meeting before
the Commission if applicable, has been deemed appropriute to the preservation of the Comstock
Historie District. ‘The work specified below or in detail in Exhibit A attached here to and made
pant thereof, may now be commenced. This certificute shall not be eifective without said
description or attachment. This cerlificate will be in force and &ffect until:

C&!ZZ‘ , 20 ‘ % uniess there is a violation thereof f

The observation of work not in keeping with this certificate shall constitute due cause for the
issuance of a Stop Work Order and legal action pursuant to NRS 384,190 to 384.200 inclusive

This certificate is not valid or effective until signed by the owner of the property in question
or his representative and the Chair of the CHDC or his duly appointed representative,

(2216 Tenecny, Gleller Lo homes

\ - vom Sl(e‘l vr{/
C?m/ \““f” Ynsler Eor

%gl%@‘éﬂy— é W@ % (qws

22 of 24



Staff Report — 2016-030 Storey County Planning Department
Special Use Permit — F Zone Uses 775.847.1144

Exhibit C — Application No. 2016-030

23 of 24



Exhibit A: Assessor’s Vicinity Map

Exhibit B: Application No. 2016-030

24 of 24



A (/4,/’?6‘), Q)?O/.
O50n
26 South “B" Street, P.O. Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440 /0%y,

Phone: (775) 847-1144 Fax: (775) 847-0949

planning@storeycounty.org

Development Application

Submit this completed application and all attachments along with the application fee (see page two for type of
application and fees) at least 30 days prior to the meeting you wish to have your request scheduled, The application
wilt not be accepted unless complete, including attachments (applicant will be notified within 15 days if application is
not acceptable and what is still required). The application fee is non-refundable. Please make checks payable to
Storey County Planning Development.

Project Number;__ . OV, — (0 40

Property Owner: C o 3"' ocdc Whinig LLC

Al fand owniers must be listed on fhis applization, Type or print legibly In black or blue ink.

Mailing Address; /" ' /1 IRE
City: [ / State;_/\ 1 Zip:o
Telephone (Home) (223" )54 7 ~“/ /£ .~ Business ( )
Applicant; —SAlly STunM s

; All applicants mus! be lisled on this application,
Mailing Address;_ -2 _ ' . i psvin o fifud T 0
City:ﬁ,;"-._ >l Vs /!(7 State: /A \/ Zip: =51 /G
Telephaone (Home) (__'v ) a5 /") Business ( )
TEGold Hil [TJVvirginia City [ Vﬁ gﬁg?lands [] I-iighliggcie;;whes (] Virgi?li'g gcfer;g;hes
[(IMark Twain [JHafed [(JLockwood  [JPainted Rock CITRI [A0ther _( Z‘_j" /
Project Address:__ /- Bl
Assessor's Parcel Numbers (APN);_ O C Y - 351 1’/0 20455/~ \-'.,'f." Vo Tk Mot oY A
Lot: Block: ./ Acreage: /%5 40 28 =25

1 of8




Storey County Deve

lopment Application

@}Eﬁciﬁ&h Type

Application Fee

_Application Type

Application Fee

Agreement (Requires a

 Special Use Permit) |

Request (One Year
Extension Only)

[] Abandonment | $200.00 ] Amended Map n/a

|_| Condition n/a || Boundary Line $250.00 + 25.00 per lot
Amendment o Adjustment

L] Development $1,000.00 [ "] Extension of Time | 50% of Original Fee

Development (PUD) -
Tentative

Development - Final

["] Land Division Map | $500.00 + $50.00 per | [ | Lot Conselidation n/a
;40 acre minimum) lot 0
Master Plan Map $2,900.00 |_| Master Plan Text $800.00
| Amendment Amendment -
T:] Natural Resources | $65.00 per hour | ] Street Name n/a
Exploration and Request
Rogistration | ‘
|| Parcel Map — $250.00 + 25.00 per lot | [_] Parcel Map Final n/a
Record of Survey |
—D Planned Unit $500.00 + 1.00 per lot UPlanned Unit $200.00 + 25.00 per lot

- Major B
|_| Subdivision Map -

1 $500.00 + 1.00 per lot

- Major Industrial

[XI *Special Use Permit | $250.00 []*Special Use Permit | $450.00
| — Minor - Routine -
[ ] *Special Use Permit | $750.00 [_| *Special Use Permit | $2,500.00

| (1 Subdivision Map -

$200.00 + 25.00 per lot

 Tentative . |F@d
[_| Variance - n/a || Variance $100.00
Administrative -
[ ] Wireless [ ] Wireless n/a
Communication Facility Communication
o - Facility, Modification
[ ] Zoning Map Change | $1,000.00 [ "] Zoning Text Change | n/a

‘Note: Additional fees to cover costs accrue by the county in association with the application, including
staff time and consultation with outside legal and professional council may be charged to the
applicant. No additional fees will be charged without expressed written permission by the applicant.

9

Applicants Initials

*If you are applying for a Special Use Pernit, please refer also to the Storey County Special Use
Permit Definitions List when determining a minor, major, routine or major industrial permit,

208 -




Storey County Development Application

Detail Description/Justification of Project
Attached additional pages as necessary

ﬂc“/ucf&’r /ﬁﬂ/ Srsn ;// wrigl L8 8
= are = TmrS?b Lmelless poin e, r*m/z?yp_é“_ﬁgs doelels
/“j(,(,émn & C BYA Ml __ Shffers roxiZ.
TR 3 [ cop - %/;q?/tf“r‘umg‘cfi -
B Fotees) -
/&g//r:/ Thrdoe. = 247

35.0{}“%: Wit 7;;(/0&” o

/4//‘7/1 GUXp. 200 x)u“r'S /J a//w r/ )Ue; 5ﬂ_é~[/ aﬂazmzq

AleyS onsee pdloe » L:Lf/ﬁl// Mot fommm”
DO Eacing 7‘%[&;@@& st Ly - Tt pﬂ&is_.__
)4#’(?/’0 b ugcc cree E@u@d@f Y SHeLy 2SS,

s _faslove. (s0emsins cogree  Soos Yo M hoesss

Mé&.ﬁ&mc. dowe. oy Frvete {pnd
E/@MMS Tlzes 1’724 vele.. ngzz{w o

iaﬁf__{_ S faas a%rﬁg_ﬁﬂi}@mg_& __ié&ﬁ*’ﬁm‘ﬂm/ -

Jof§




Storey County Development Application

Professional Consultant/Representative(s)

Name:
Address: - o
City: State: Zip:

Phone: Email: Cell:

Applicant’s Affidavit:

L =< MQ’.«/‘S , being duly sworn, depose and say that | am the applicant of the described

(Prinfed nama) =
project and/or request, and all the statements and answers herein contained and the information herewith submitted are in

all respects complete, true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. | understand that no assurance or guarantee
an bg, i ?ery nym bers of the Storey County Planning Department Staff.
\

Il et bl 11O ¢

of Applicant Date

State of Nevada,
County of Storey

Signed and sworn to beforeme on__\ \ =10 -1 (s by,

TAMARA A, MIGAN
NOTARY PUBLIC

STATE OF NEVADA
APPT. No. 08-4873-16

MY APPY. EXPIRES JUNE 20, 2018

c')G-\ \ea ) P Tt )

74’7‘/’7&««- ﬁ '(/E—\V'v

Notary's Signature
S e Jo 201

My Commission Expires

Property Owner’s Affidavit:

I, , being duly sworn, depose and say that | am an owner” in fee of the described

(Printed name)
property involved in this application, that | have knowledge of, and agree to, the filling of this application, and that the
statements and answers herein contained and the information herewith submitted are in all respects complete, true and
correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. | understand that no assurance or guarantee can be given by members of

the Storey County Planning Department Staff,

Date

Signalure of Appllcant

State of Nevada,
Caounty of Storey

Signed and sworn to before me on by,

Notary's Signature

My Commission Expires
4 0f 8



Storey County Development Application

Property Owner’s Affidavit:

> | A —
I, S Dol<ovER , being duly swomn, depose and say that | am an owner* In fee of the described
(Printed name)
property involved in this application, that | have knowledge of, and agree to, the filling of this application, and that the
statements and answers herein conjained and the information herewith submitted are in all respects complete, true and
correct to the best of my knowle:{g r:?elief. | understand that no assurance or guarantee can be given by members of
S

dge a
the Storey County Piannin/g.D' arli taff,
////'/rlp Date

Pt <
Signaltre of Apﬁican%

State of Nevada,
County of Storey

o o / - -
Signed and swomn to before me on V2 dereiv ) 1o lgﬁ’?&)/é)

e it oa s

OCC77T  Jout CoOVEL A 2

M . 2 i ;’ oy Pablls DN GE

A 2 5 ¥l N\, Notary Public, Stale of Nevada
S — o - B

LA EL /C:C"(//C -fg_“ ,.g & Appointment No, 12-6415.2

Notary's Signature My Appt. Expires Dec 16, 2019.

L. (o . 2879

My Commission Expires

Property Owner's Affidavit:

l, , being duly sworn, depose and say that | am an owner* in fee of the described
(Printed name)

property involved in this application, that | have knowiedge of, and agree to, the filling of this application, and that the

statements and answers herein contained and the information herewith submitted are in all respects complete, true and

correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. | understand that no assurance or guarantee can be given by members of

the Storey County Planning Department Staff,

Date

Signature of Applicant

State of Nevada,
County of Storey

Signed and sworn to before me on by,

Notary's Signature

My Commission Expires

*Each property owner must provide an Affidavit

Sal'y



Storey County Development Application

Property Owner's Affidavit:

! . -
. Seom DolcovEl | being duly sworn, depose and say that | am an owner* in fee of the described

{Printed name)
property involved in this application, that | have knowledge of, and agree to, the filling of this application, and that the
staternents and answers herein confained and the information herewith submitted are in all respects complete, true and
correct to the best of my knowledgé and bglief. | understand that no assurance or guarantee can be given by members of

the Storey Counly Plannin)q,.D' arl Staff.

Date

P et
Slgnalire of Apﬂican/

State of Nevada,
County of Storey

Signed and sworn to before me on /Y2 VErYioEL /" 9.}2@/6

A e el iV Ve s s vt

OCC77  JCr COVEL A &

. % //’7 ,éi?éf%, » ;\NET:U :uzmcm-amce
e CCCEAPPALC — illongst’ Jii: VO'ary Public, State of Nevava f
AL ELET e C 3 ,‘,;‘J ApPOINIMENt No, 12-6415-2
st My Appt, Expires Dec 16, 2019

Motary's Signature

/DC.';C"- /6 L V‘\7:9'/Cj/’

My Commission Expires

Property Owner’s Affidavit:

I, ______, being duly sworn, depose and say that | am an owner* in fee of the described
(Printed name)

property involved in this application, that | have knowledge of, and agree to, the filling of this application, and that the

statements and answers herein contained and the information herewith submitted are in all respects complete, true and

correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. | understand that no assurance or guarantee can he given by members of

the Storey County Planning Department Staff.

Date

Signature of Applicant

State of Nevada,
County of Storey

Signed and sworn to befare me on by,

Notary's Signature

My Commission Expires

*Each property owner must provide an Affidavit

fofs



Sterey County Development Application

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS
_ "
|

Submittal Requirements

Application Type

DescriptionMustification
Legal Description - Deed

Map & Data in CAD
Additional Information —
M X X | X XXX ]| X | > |X]|>]| Check with Planning

Format on Disk

sc| ¢ | 2 | ¢ | ¢ [ 5| Vicinity Map

Detailed

Plot Plan
Original Map Mylar
Floor Plan

Title Report
Drainage Report
Soils Report
Traffic Report
Water hights
Reclamation Plan
Department

PNAX|X| X | X | XX

Special Use Permit - Minor

Special Use Permit - Routine

Special Use Permit — Major

Special Use Permit —
Major Industrial

Street Name Request
Subdivision Map - Tentative

s | ¢ | x [ x| Paid Tax Receipt
> | X | X[ X | Reduced Map (11 x 17)

x
X

Subdivision Map - Final

pad
>
x
>

Variance - Administrative

Variance

Wireless Communication
Faciiity

Wireless Communication
Facility, Modification
Zening Map Change

ololaloloc o ololala

[

X X | X XX
x

myymj =)

Zoning Text Change
Other

P XX X[ XX XXX X | X |X|X]| Development Application
DX 2| XXX XXX X XXX
>

K XX X | X
XXX X | X
>

X

Note: Additional information and materials may be required with the application.

)

o
(=%
oD




Received From:

SALLY SUMMERS

For: 2016-030 SUP SUMMERS

Fund Fund Description

001 GENERAL

Receipt No.

Treasurer' Receipt
STOREY COUNTY TREASURER

VANESSA STEPHENS
26 SOUTH B STREET
P.0. DRAWER D
VIRGINIA CITY, NV

Account

001-000-32206-000 PLANNING SPEC USE/VAR

818 Fiscal Year: 2017

89440

Description

NQ, 918

bate: 11/10/16

Crvraanv 250,00

Amount
250.00CR

iﬁi“iﬁbzso.oo

Bank Bank Description
199 WELLS FARGO CC ACCOUNT

Receipt No,

918 Fiscal Year:

Cash amount

Total Cash:
Total Checks:
Total Non Cash:
Credit Cards:
Total Other:

AxrEXNERDE50, 00
ARr kAR RRN 00
'ﬁ.ﬂi'itt'..oo
whEkrektwrr (0
whbhkk kAN 00

250,00

2017 Bank Ag¢count Total:

Amount
250.00

Rk rEhk*250 00

Treasurer

595,

Deputy



* Notes Present » Secured Tax Payment Entry 11/10/16 15:57:28 TCO0100B
Parcel #....... 004-331-22

Property Loc..., LOTS 1 & 2, OS MILLS/MINES 2017 Roll #..: 003532
Billed to....., SALZWIMMER DAN L & CAROLINE District..... P 5.1
3240 S RAINBOW AVE Tax Service..:
PAHRUMP, NV 89048 Land Use Code: 100
Payment Date... 11/10/16 Payer.. S CAROLIN
Qutstanding Taxes: ,
Prior Year Tax_ Penlty/Intrst Total Amount Paid Total Due
Current Year . No, Taxes, Owing .
08/15 68.19 68.19 68.19 .00
10/03 65,00 65.00 65.00 .00
01/02 65.00 65,00 65.00 .00
03/06 65.00 65.00 65.00 .00
Totls . ... .. ... 283,18 i v vien s ned Ot & 55t 3.5 20319 ¢ i i visii 4 263.19

F20=Print Bill
F5=Notes F9=Adj Pmts F10=Amend
F12=Cancl F13=Hist F1l4=Prt Sumry Fl17=Asrlnq



Tax Bill - Storey County

MAKE REMITTANCE PAYABLE TO:
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer
P O Drawer D
Virginia City, NV
775-847-0969

89440

TAXES FOR PERIOD
July 1, 2016 thru June 30, 2017

COMSTOCK MINING LLC
P O BOX 1118
VIRGINIA CITY, NV 89440

Parcel 004-331-08

11/14/16

Roll # 000877

SE4 OF NW4: SEC 7-16N-21E

District-5.1

ABATEMENT

ASSESSED VALUES TAXES RATE OR RECAPTURE TAX AMOUNT

Real Estate 4,368 GENERAL 1.7719 77.38
----------- SCHOOL CPER .7500 32.76

TOTAL 4,368 SCHOOL DEBT ,1447 6.32
CAPITAL AQUIS .0500 2.18

STATE .1700 7.43

IND MEDICAL .0100 .44

IND ACCIDENT .0150 .66

FIRE DISTRICT .5446 23.79

YOUTH SERVICE 0045 .20

Ad Valorem Total 3.4607 151.16
151.16-

Payments to Date

PAID IN FULL

A)Z‘]j

5
Nf)v 1+ 2016
Bf£ ZM@/



Tax Bill - Storey County

MAKE REMITTANCE PAYABLE TO:
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer
P O Drawer D
Virginia City, NV
775-847-0969

89440

TAXES FOR PERIOD
July 1, 2016 thru June 30, 2017

COMSTOCK MINING LLC
P O BOX 1118
VIRGINIA CITY, NV 89440

Parcel 004-331-40
PTN 87, T16é6N, R21E
SEC 7 T16N R21E
District-5.1

11/14/16

Roll # 000879

ABATEMENT
ASSESSED VALUES TAXES RATE OR_RECAPTURE TAX AMOUNT
Real Estate 7,344 GENERAL 1.7719 130.14
----------- SCHOOL OPER 7500 55.08
TOTAL 7,344 SCHOOL DEBT 1447 10.63
CAPITAL AQUIS 0500 3,67
STATE 1700 12.48
IND MEDICAL 0100 .73
IND ACCIDENT 0150 1.10
FIRE DISTRICT 5446 39.99
YOUTH SERVICE 0045 33
Ad Valorem Total 3.4607 254,15
Payments to Date 254,15~

PAID IN FULL



) ] IM/BL 130/8Y0Q/ L0a
TR PSP Sep 393 30 40600t 25 LSUIDMITS 93 0 5T paTny vV fog PILMT
ApqryoN “Aazs = rosaedr 300 ssopa; “AINO s350dmd ssnanzg poe ¥0/68 §34/5w00 /138
L TmeISER i) Stwy Kooy A0S 3G JO 2 53 1oy pamrdand o deg gy
VAVAIN AINNOD ATHOLS

AINAOD  A3HOLS

i
i
!
1
1
1
1] 1 a
i
I
i
|
R

S 1.2

-
®)
3

WBEaAW ] QDLW.Q\_Q

3128 NOIL ‘6'8°82'HC suoi35 jo UoIIOG W 819G SUOHDIS z K
302 'NOIL pI'8°CI'2I SUON23S 10 UalIog v B'1]*2" | Su0dsS s

£C—%0 Y

&N~

W



STATE OF NEVADA
COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION
’.O. BOX 128
VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA 89440

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

This Certificate verifies that punsuam to Nevada Revised Statutes Section 384. 1 10,

/‘ W\j:/l ne /A]"L t‘f g U v S ,owner

has made appllcauon o the Comstock Historic Dklrla Commission for a Certificale of
Appropriateness for work to be conducted on the structure located at:

/qq gbi’.efp Qé\ A’Wﬂ/\qw ?L’L’\"

property address/description

This application has been reviewed by the Comstock Historic District Commission in
accordance with Chapler 384 of the Nevada Revised Statutes. The proposed project as described
in the application on file with the Commission’s office, as amended at the public meeting before
the Commission if applicable, has been deemed appropriate to the preservation of the Comstock
Historic District.  The work specified below or in detail in Exhibit A attached here to and made
part thercof, may now be commenced. This certificate shall not be effective without said
description or attachment. This certificate will be in force and effect until;

Cg\{ ZL , 20 (?‘ unless there is a violation thereof

The observation of work not in keeping with this certificate shall constitute due cause for the
issuance of a Stop Work Order und legal action pursuant to NRS 384.190 to 384.200 inclusive

This certificate is not valid or effective until signed by the owner of the property in question
or his representative and the Chair of the CHDC or his duly appointed representative.

i{‘//-,.zzf{lé ?CV‘-OU(/L!? G e e {or loses

\o\(,L/oowx $L\e"k ?(L&
CO//QLS \..QMP J;M‘l,e/ '@9/

A WG Sequs

Chair, CHDC
C



=~

002-254-01
: ‘6149@‘14 00242@’2.9@} .

A



STOREY COUNTY BUILDING PERMITS
P.O. BOX 526
VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA 89440
TELEPHONE: 775-847-0966

Date: 07/18/16 Receipt #: 012644

Permit #: 09773 00
Owner: COMSTOCK MINING LLC
Contractor: A M SMITH ELECTRIC INC

Cash: 47 .25
Check :
Credit Card:

Total: 47.25
Remarks: POWER POLE @ 199 AMERICAN RAVINE~ COMSTOCK MINING

RETAIN THIS RECEIVED BY: Eég 2 INVALID

RECEIPT FOR WITHOUT
YOUR RECORDS SIGNATURE



PROPOSAL AIRT'ST’C P\ X

'FENCE:COZ INC]

" Cont. License #7798A Q\ 0" p
480 Morlll Avenuo D 5740 US Highway 50 East \D 720 E. Fallglgt{ds
Reno, Navada 89512 arson Cily, NV 89701-1413 Winnemucoa, NV 89445
(775) 786-6002 (775) BB2-4685 (775)-823-6876
FAX (775) 786-7992 FAX (775) 8082-7BA7 FAX (775) 623.9566

il Sty Sunrieps Phone No. EXFR=2FFT2Y,

DI oL i UL érroi"(f.‘( 60‘)’\“’1’

: WE PROPOSE TO.

(O INSTALL FENCE
SH-MATERIALS ONLY F.O.13. OUR YARD
. OR DO THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED WORK:

STEEL
Length Helght |- f
& - EESE 1B2g° =
D220 | (3smds) 5
Drlva -

Qate

[ [
212 Il I ;
Ty

svivd
12, Wire Ga, ~ % Vs v

Terminal ’
;T's";a L}/ ¥ J )
T ~ Posts ‘I".(-' 47 At

\%' Rall %_75/ ?/-q»,-g.d

1

/

—feaa
|
\
|

s

o -

[(s' W A ' -

! =

PAYMENT IN FULL DUE UPON COMPLETION =
PERMIT NOT INCLUDED UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED "zl oby § 6,760

WE PROPOSE to furnish and Install fencing materials (or materials only) In accordance with the conditions and ~ Installed € V9,700
terms as listed. The fence line and grade are to be Jocated by the property owner. CUSTOMER ASSUMES — ) A )
FULL RESPONSIBILITY FOR LOGATION OF FENGE and agraes to, al customer's sols expens, defendand 1 <0+>+ ot aul o Dusuy
hold Artisllc Fence Co., Inc. harmless respecling claims of 2neroachment, claims of damage to underground

facliitles, andfor any other claims brought on account of the work hereln above described, including sprinkler systems. Mo« M":“‘ M h Pofy
Price If Installation Is based on the enlire job being done at one time. If on account of changes made by

purchaser the crew has to make more than one Irip, the exira charge covering such expense will be made, 4 )_\\, of UMATY, ou(\ S0

Quotatlon Is subject to change after days,
By oTuve BPeepile Accepted By
L L \ Subject to additional conditions on raverse side.

Date 2--Z- — |l ' Dale




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: fa.- é-16 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required []

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval
2. Recommended motion; Approval
3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to

Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None

istrict Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
x__ Departmen d Department Name: Community Development

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[]  Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Al

Agenda Item No. l q



To:

P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 + Fax (775) 847-0935 « buslic@storeycounty.org

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office November 28, 2016
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the December 6, 2016, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS
A, TOOLS & TECHNOLOGY BY BURNS, LLC - General / 550 W Plumb ~ Reno (mobile tool store)
B. BUREAU VERITAS NORTH AMERICA, INC. - Professional / 1601 Sawgrass ~ Sunrise, FL, (consult)
C. HESSE MECHATRONICS, INC. - Contractor / 6105 South Ash ~ Tempe, AZ (equipment)
D. ADVENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC. - Professional / 503 Bangs Ave ~ Modesto, CA (consultant)
E. DOUG WALL CONSTRUCTION, INC. - Contractor / 78450 Ave 41 ~ Bermuda Dunes, CA (contractor)
F. F & M MAFCO, INC. - Contractor / 9149 Dry Fork Rd ~ Harrison, OH (equipment)
G. RENO CARSON HOME SERVICES - Contractor / 2206 Bordeaux ~ Carson City (contractor)
H. PEOPLE READY, INC. — General / PO Box 2910 ~ Tacoma, WA (staffing)
I. KEYENCE CORPORATION OF AMERICA - General / 669 River Dr ~ Elmwood Pk, NJ (distributor)
J. CHEWY, INC. - General / 385 Milan (ecommerce, fulfillment) TRI
K. SSUSA WEST, LLC - General / 470 East Sydney (steam sterilization of herbs/spices) TRI
L. AQUA METALS RENO, INC. - General / 2500 Peru Drive (battery recycling facility) TRI
Inspection Required
ec: Chris Hood, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Commissioners’ Office

Dean Haymore, Comm. Deyv. Fritz Klingler, Fire Dept. Assessor’s Office



STOREY COUNTY FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT

North Dist. Auto Aid

® Aldto TMFPD = Dist. 74/75 Calls

Fires 84 Year To Date Call Volume

EMS 966

Hazmat 23

Service Call 86

False Alarm 39 = Fires = EMS  Hazmat = ServiceCall  False Alarm

Total 1198

Fires 11 Number of Vol. Responses: 8

IEMS 157 Average Response Time: 8:17

Hazmat 1 Patient Transports October: 54

Service Call 13 Patient Transports YTD: 353

I'alse Alarm 9 Hours spent out of district on transports 111

Total 191 Highest call volume day of the week: Monday

Aid to TMFPD 22 71 (Virginia City) 67

Dist. 74/75 Calls 46 72 (Virginia City Highlands) 47

North Dist. Total 68 74 (Lockwood) 24
75 (McCarran) 44

Calls by district

Annual Business Inspections Oct.

Annual Business Inspections YTD 218
New Construction Inspections Qct. 88
Re-Inspections YTD 66
Number of Fire Permits Issued Oct. 15
I'ire Plan Reviews Completed Oct. 28
30 Foot Clearance Inspections YTD 347

100
, B ® o> ®
LS CAE L I
Inspections
1 AN ST Bal
"7
0 50 100 150 200 250

- Re-Inspections YTD » New Construction Inspections QOct,

« Annual Business Inspections YTD  * Annual Business Inspections Oct.

All Pre-plans completed

All RIC training completed

District 73 map book completed

All hand tools inspected and maintained

Standardization completed on all apparatus

All evacuation barrels inspected and below ground tanks checked

[tem # 20




%\pteY County Commissionerg’ Offloe
Drawer 176 Storey County Commissioners@StoreyCounty.org

Virginia City, NV 89440 Courthouse www.StoreyCounty.org

November 30, 2016
Re:  Canyon GID Independent Water Test Results

Storey County has been made aware of potential concerns regarding the quality and safety of water provided by
the Canyon General Improvement District (CGID). To determine if any validity to these claims exists, we have
performed the following:

¢ We drew test samples from 6 different locations. Draws were typically done at outside hose bibs to
minimize the possibility of tainted results due to interior plumbing.
o 5 ofthe 6 locations would be considered as “public buildings” including our Elementary School,
Sheriff’s Sub-Station, Fire Station and Senior Center.
¢ Test samples were submitted by us to the independent lab we use for the Virginia City/Gold Hill/Silver
City system.
We requested that all samples be tested for both Coliform and E-Coli as well as Iron and Manganese.
Coliform and E-Coli positive findings would be considered a “health concern” by NDEP and would
require immediate corrective action thru actions such as issuing a “boil water” order or conversion to
bottled water until corrected. Since these are considered as unhealthy, any presence is
unacceptable...much like a “pass/fail” situation.
o Test results for all 6 locations came back with zero trace findings. This means that water tested
passed all health standards.
® Presence of Iron and Manganese are not considered to pose a health hazard but rather are either
“aesthetic”, meaning there may be undesirable tastes or odors or “cosmetic” in that they may be
undesirable, such as discolored water, but do not damage the body.
o EPA established guidelines, considered as “secondary” standards are anything in excess of 0.3
mg/l (ppm) for iron and 0.05 mg/l for manganese.
o 5 of 6 sites tested were well below the threshold standards for both Iron and Manganese and in
fact any trace of Manganese was not detected (ND) at those $ sites.
o The exception site was our own Fire Station where ratings were almost double the standard for
Iron and triple the standard for manganese. We have known about occasional occurrences which
we believe to be due the very aged plumbing inside the building and have mitigated it thru partial
filtering of potable water. However, given these results, we are most likely going to beef up over
all filtering at that location.

Storey County also intends to perform additional tests at 3 to 4 locations where we have been told prior
concerns have been voiced. The CGID has been extremely supportive of our efforts to perform an independent
analysis. In the meantime, given the results attached, I am confident that the water provided by the Canyon
GID is safe to drink and encourage any user on their system to contact the GID at 342-2850 if they have
questions or concerns.

Pat Whitten® <~ < = o
Storey County Manager



ENVIRONMENTSL
ey www.WETLaboratory.com

Specializing in Soil, Hazardous Waste and Water Analysis

11/14/2016

Storey County OrderID: 1610886
P.O. Box 435

Virginia City, NV 89440

Attn:  Blake Hiller

Dear: Blake Hiller

This is to transmit the attached analytical report. The analytical data and information contained therein
was generated using specified or selected methods contained in references, such as Standard Methods
for the Examination of Water and Wastewater, online edition, Methods for Determination of Organic
Compounds in Drinking Water, EPA-600/4-79-020, and Test Methods for Evaluation of Solid Waste,
Physical/Chemical Methods (SW846) Third Edition.

The samples were received by WETLAB-Western Environmental Testing Laboratory in good condition
on 10/31/2016. Additional comments are located on page 2 of this report.

[f you should have any questions or comments regarding this report, please do not hesitate to call.

Sincerely,

Jennifer Delaney
QA Specialist

Page | of 5
SPARKS ELKO LAS VEGAS
475 E. Greg Street, Syite 119 1084 Lamoille Hwy 3230 Polaris Ave Suite 4
Sparks, Navada 89431 Elko, Nevada 89801 Las Vegas, Nevada 83102
el {775) 355-0202 teol (775) 777-9933 tel (702) 475-8899
fax (775) 385-0417 fax {(7758) 777-9933 fax (702) 622-2883

EPA LAB ID: NV00925 - ELAP No: 2523 EPA LAB 1D: NV0O0926 EPA LAB ID: NV0O0S32



Western Environmental Testing Laboratory
Report Comments

Storey County - 1610886

Specific Report Comments

None

Blank contamination; Analyte dctected above the method reporting limit in an associated blank

Due to the sample matrix dilution was required in order to properly detect and report the analyte. The reporting limit has
been adjusted accordingly.

HT -~ Sample analyzed beyond the accepted holding time

J — The reported value is between the laboratory method detection limit and the laboratory practical quantitation limit

M -~ The matrix spike/matrix spike duplicate (MS/MSD) values for the analysis of this parameter were outside acceptance
criteria due to probable matrix interference. The reported result should be considered an estimate.

N - There was insufficient sample availablc to perform a spikc and/or duplicate on this analytical batch.

NC -~ Not calculated due to matrix interference

QD — The sample duplicate or matrix spike duplicate analysis demonstrated sample imprecision. The reported result should be
considered an estimate.

QL — The result for the laboratory control sample (LCS) was outside WETLAB acceptance criteria and reanalysis was not
possible. The reported data should be considered an estimate.

S - Surrogate recovery was outside of laboratory acceptance limits due to matrix interfercnce. The associated blank and LCS
surrogatc recovery was within acceptance limits

SC - Spike recovery not calculated. Sample concentration >4X the spike amount; therefore, the spike could not be adequately
recovered

U — The analyte was analyzed for, but was not detected above the level of the reported sample reporting/quantitation limit

General Lab Comments

Per method recommendation (scction 4.4), Samples analyzed by methods EPA 300.0 and EPA 300.1 have been filtercd prior to analysis.

The following is an interpretation of the results from EPA method 9223B:
A result of zero (0) indicates absence for both coliform and Escherichia coli meaning the water meets the microbiological requirements of the
U.S. EPA Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA). A result of one (1) for either test indicates presence and the water does not meet the SDWA
requirements. Waters with positive tests should be disinfected by a certified water treatment operator and retested.

Per federal regulation the holding time for the following paramelers in aqueous/water samples is |5 minutes: Residual Chlorine, pH, Dissolvec
Oxygen, Sulfite.

Page 2 of 5

SPARKS

475 €. Greg Street, Suite | 19
Spar Navada 8343 |

tel (775) 355-0202

fax (775) 356-0817

EPA LAB ID: NVQQ925 - EILAP No

ELKO

1084 Lamoite Hwy
Elko. Nevada 39801
tey (773) 777-9933
fax (775) 77799
EPA LAB ID: NVOD925

LAS VEGAS

3230 Polaris Ave Suite 4

Las Vegas, Nevada 89102
tel (702) 475-8899

fax (702) 622-2868

EPA LAB |ID: NVYO0932



Storey County - 1610886

Western Environmental Testing Laboratory
Analytical Report

Storey County Date Printed:  11/14/2016
P.O. Box 435 OrderlD: 1610886
Virginia City, NV 89440

Attn: Blake Hiller

Phone: (775) 847-0958  Fax: (775) 847-0947

PO\Project:  Lockwood Iron/ Manganese
Customer Sample [D: Lockwood Fire House Collect Date/Time: 10/31/2016 10:34

WETLAB Sample ID: 1610886-001 Field Residual Chlorine:  0.32 mg/L Receive Date:  10/31/2016 12:52
| Analyte Method Results Units DF RL Analyzed LabID I
Microbiological Analyses
Total Coliform SM 9223B (IDEXX Colilert) 0 /100 mL | 10/31/2016 NV00925
Escherichia Coli SM 9223B (IDEXX Colilert) 0 /100 mL | 1073172016  NV00925
Xrace Metals by ICP-QES
iron EPA 200.7 0.64 mg/L. | 0.020 [1/3/2016 NV00925
Manganese EPA 200.7 0.16 mg/L | 0.0050 11/3/2016 NV00925
Sample Preparation
Trace Metals Digestion EPA 200.2 Complete | “’ 1/3/2016 NV00925
Customer Sample ID: Lockwood Sheriff's Office Collect Date/Time: 10/31/2016 |1:03
WETLAB Sample ID: 1610886-002 Field Residual Chlorine:  0.02 mg/L. Receive Date: 10/31/2016 12:52
Analyte Method Results Units DF RL Analyzed LabID |
L — . 1
Microbiological Analyses
Total Coliform SM 9223B (IDEXX Colilert) 0 /100 mL | 10/31/2016  NV00925
Escherichia Coli SM 9223B (IDEXX Colilert) 0 /100 mL 1 1073172016  NV00925
Irace Metals by ICP-QES
lron EPA 200.7 0.039 mg/L | 0.020 117172016 NV00925
Manganese EPA 200.7 ND mg/L I 0.0050 11/1/2016 NV00925
Customer Sample ID: Lockwood Senior Center Collect Date/Time: (0/31/2016 11:20
WETLAB Sample ID; 1610886-003 Field Residual Chlorine:  1.26 mg/L Receive Date:  10/31/2016 12:52
! Analyte Method Results Units DF RL Analyzed LabID
-_— R = !
Microbiological Analyses
Tota) Coliform SM 9223B (IDEXX Colilert) 0 /100 mL | L0/31/2016  NV00925
Escherichia Coli SM 9223B (IDEXX Colilert) 0 /100 mL 1 1073172016 NV00925
Trace Metals by [CP-QES
Tron EPA 200.7 0.030 mg/L | 0.020 1172016 NV00925
Manganese EPA 200.7 ND mg/L | 0.0050 /172016 NV00925
DF=Dilution Factor, RL=Reporting Limit, ND=Not Detected or <RL Page 3 of §
SPARKS ELKD L&S VEGAS
475 E. Greg Street. Suite | 19 108+ Lamaille Huyy 3230 Polaris Ave. Suits 4
Sparks Nevada 8943 | Etko. Nevacia 89801 Las VYegas. Nevada 89102
tel (775) 355-0202 tal (775) 777.9933 tel (702) 475-8899
Ax (77S) 3550817 fax (775) 777-9933 fax (702) 622-2868

EPA LAB I0: NVCD925 - ELAP No 2523 EPA LAB 1D NVOD926 EPA LAB 1D: MNV00932



Storey County - 1610886

Customer Sample 1D: Lockwood Elementary School Collect Date/Time: 10/31/2016 11:39
WETLAB Sample 1D: 1610886-004 Field Residual Chlorine:  1.45 mg/L Receive Date: 10/31/2016 12:52

Analyte Method Results Units DF RL Analyzed LabID

Microbiological Analyses

Total Coliform SM 9223B (IDEXX Colilert} 0 /100 mL | 10/31/2016 NV00925

Escherichia Coli SM 92238 (IDEXX Colilert) 0 /100 mL | 10/31/2016 NV00925

Trace Mctals by ICP-OES

Tron EPA 200.7 0.10 mg/L 1 0.020 11/1/2016 NV00925

Manganese EPA 200.7 ND mg/L 1 0.0050 L1/1/2016 NV00925
Customer Sample [D: Lockwood Clubhouse Collect Date/Time: [0/31/2016 11:59
WETLAB Sample (D: 1610886-005 Field Residual Chlorine: 096 mg/L Receive Date: 10/31/2016 12:52

Analyte Method Results Units DF RL Analyzed LabID

Microbiological Analyses

Total Coliform SM 9223B (IDEXX Colilert) 0 /100 mL 1 10/31/2016 NV00925

Escherichia Coli SM 92238 (IDEXX Colilert) 0 /100 mL | 10/31/2016 NV00925

Trace Mctals by ICP-OES

Tron EPA 200.7 ND mg/L 1 0.020 11/1/2016 NV00925

Manganese EPA 200.7 ND mg/L | 0.0050 11/1/2016 NV00925
Customer Sample (D: (NN R csidence Collect Date/Time: 10/31/2016 12:22
WETLAB Sample 1D: 1610886-006 Field Residual Chlorine: {17 mg/L Receive Date: 10/31/2016 12:52
| Analyte Method Resuits Units DF  RL Analyzed  LabID
Microbiological Analyses

Total Coliform SM 9223B (IDEXX Colilert) 0 /100 mL | 10/31/2016 NV00925

Escherichia Coli SM 9223B (IDEXX Colilert) 0 /100 mL. 1 10/31/2016 NV00925
Trace Metals by ICP-QES

fron EPA 200.7 0.035 mg/L | 0.020 11/1/2016 NV00925

Manganese EPA 200.7 ND mg/L | 0.0050 11/1/2016 NV00925
DF=Dilution Factor, RL=Reporting Limit, ND=Not Detected or <RL Page 4 of 5

SEPMNIKS ELKO LAS VEGAS

75 B (areq Street, Suite 119

Sparks Nevada 89431
355-0202
) 355-0817
EFA LAB 1D NV00Q925

1084 i.amoeille Hwy

Elkn, Nevada 39801
tel (775) 777-9933
fax (775) 777-9933

ELAR No 2523

EFPA LAB 1D NV0O0926

3230 Polaris Ave, Suite 4
Las Yegas. Nevada 89102
i (702) 175-8889

fax {702} B22-2868

EPA LAB 1D: NV0O0932




